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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
@ 344,740 331,407 290,279 269,788 248,444
(6,694,851)  (6,435,924)  (5,637,218)  (5,239,283)  (4,824,782)
165,113 148,173 122,440 117,132 106,497
(3.206,494)  (2,877,520)  (2,377,785)  (2,274,703)  (2,068,172)
138,012 119,922 97,342 92,867 80,560
(2,680,193)  (2,328,885)  (1,890,382)  (1,803,477)  (1,564,475)
25,220 25,220 25,220 25,220 25,220
(489,772) (489,772) (489,772) (489,772) (489,772)
945,503 858,745 723,750 611,301 540,118
(18,361,668)  (16,676,828)  (14,055,225)  (11,871,465)  (10,489,092)
10,138,912 9,249,021 8,361,448 7,417,240 6,745,729
(196,897,671) (179,615,988) (162,379,320) (144,042,801) (131,002,057)
1.738 1.522 1.253 1.20 0.94
(34) (30) (24) (23) (18)

®

. 5.26 4.61 3.79 3.62 3.13
(102) (90) (7%) (70) (61)
. 5.26 4.61 3.79 3.62 3.13
(102) (90) (74) (70) (61)
/ 570,143 182,048 421,328 4,432 (35,721)
(11,072,177)  (3,535,372)  (8,182,190) (86,069) (-693,702)
/ (513,926) (19,697) (240,753) (70,571) 19,718
(-9,980,443) (-382,516)  (-4,675,423)  (-1,370,489) (382,924)
/ (297,032) 89,359 (211,787) 110,450 94,333
(-5,768,361)  (1,735,352)  (-4,112,904)  (2,144,939)  (1,831,947)
12 31 567,198 801,754 552,790 589,675 543,683
(11,014,985)  (15,570,063)  (10,735,182)  (11,451,489)  (10,558,324)
® 112,999 103,669 90,867 84,683 74,590
" 1.42 1.36 1.23 1.31 1.24
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% 17.06 16.96 15.73 16.84 16.57
)
- Tierl
% 13.68 12.66 12.29 11.95 11.78
- Tierl
% 15.75 14.94 13.98 12.69 12.62
- % 17.77 17.48 16.54 15.54 15.68
(@) 2018 12 31
@
3) 2017 2020 2021
2022
(4) 2022 2021 12 31 CMBFL CMBIC
CmMB CMFM CIGNA CMB CIGNA CMAM MUCFC CMB
CmMB 2020 12 31
CMBFL CMBIC CMB CMFM  CIGNA CMB MUCFC CMB CmB
2019 12 31 CMBFL CMBIC CMB
CMFM  CIGNA CMB MUCFC 2019 12 31
2018 12 31 82,241
) Tierl Tierl
11.52% 13.25% 14.68%
100% 1987 31
100 1989 400 1994
1999 4.2 1994
2002 1.5
4.2
2006
2008 30 53.12% 1933
2008 10
2009 15
2009 16
CSRC 2010 2,007,240,869 449,878,000
2010 19 2010
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CSRC 2013 2,962,813,544 680,423,172
2013 11 2013 10
CBIRC CSRC 2017 10 25 50,000,000
2017 10 26 2017 12 22 275,000,000
2018 12
2022 10 25
@
1987
2002 2006
143 1,756
2,695 5,855
12,511
92.706 20.48%
6.29%  188.474 60.01%
11.51% 129.338
68.62% 3.57%
59.136 31.38%
57.12% 29.583
52.10%
21.266 10.60%
1.70% 62.394
2.51% 127.851
40.70% 0.99% 86.534
67.68%
5.550 41.317 32.32%

39.91%
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1,310 550%
()
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SA. ®
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®)
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®
(1) CMBIC PBOC [1998]405
2014 CMBIC 750 CMBIC 1,000
2015 28
CMBIC 400
2016 20
(2) CMBFL  CBIRC [2008]110 2008
2014 CMBFL 2,000 CMBFL 6,000
2021 CMBFL 6,000 CMBFL
12,000
o) 2008 30 53.12% 2009
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%) 2012 CMFM 21.60% ING B.V.
63,567,567.57 CHFM 2013 33.40%  55.00%
CMFM CMFM 2013 11 28 2017 12
CMFM 605 CMFM 495
CMFM 1,310
(5) OB CBIRC [20197981
2019 11 CBIRC [2021]920 JP
JP 2022 CMB
10% 2,667 CMB
5,000 5,556 >
90% 10%
(6) CMB CBIRC [2016]460 2021
ECB
(7) CIGNA CMAM CBIRC [2020]708 2020 10 18
CIGNA CMB 87.3458% CMBIC
12.6542%
) CIGNA CMB 50.00%
CHLIC 50.00% CHLIC
CIGNA CMB
)
CUNC MUCFC CBIRC 2015 MUCFC
CUNC MUCFC 50%
2017 12 CUNC MUCFC 600 MUCFC
2,859 15% 35%
50% 2018 12 MUCFC 1,000 CUNC
MUCFC 3,869 MUCFC
24 .15% 25.85% 50%
2021 MUCFC CUNC MUCFC
50% 2021 10 MUCFC 1,331
4,800 MUCFC 10,000
2022 12 31 112,999 ¢
CMBFL CMBIC CMB CMFM
CIGNA CMB CIGNA CMAM MUCFC CMB CMB
48,939 64,060
18,746 51,526
6,495 16,478 10,846 1,000
7,908
25,546 72,346
15,107
28,555 13,941
35,289 5,114 11,601 15,332 3,077
4,987 5,739
120 30 6,379 31 40 3,665 41 50
685 51 60 117
2022 55,647
39
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0.10
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0.96%

0.77%

1.42%

344.740

15.08%
126.505

17.06%

10,138.912
8.64%

7,535.742

0.05
4.32%

58.004

41/433

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

oOoOooodn
4.02%
7.02% 218.235
ROAE 0.06
9.62%
9,184.674
18.73%
7.142
450.79% 33.08
0.10



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

OooooOodd
11.43%  165.113
15.64% 2.81

2022 2021
218,235 203,919 14,316
94,275 94,447 (172)
29,705 29,011 694
(122,061) (116,879) (5,182)
(56,751) (65,962) 9,211
(815) (393) (422)
2,525 4,030 (1,505)
165,113 148,173 16,940
(25,819) (27,339) 1,520
139,294 120,834 18,460
138,012 119,922 18,090

4.02%  344.740
63.30% 1.77

36.70%

8.05% 353.380
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5.96% 265.601
%
2022 2021
D) )

2,250,662 86,754 3.85 2,005,664 80,575 3.84

3,089,371 168,174 5.44 2,869,358 159,124 5.55

510,242 10,673 2.09 399,173 10,963 2.75

5,850,275 265,601 4.54 5,364,195 250,662 4.67

2,184.862
105.009 4.81% 3,665.413
160.592 4.38%
17.39% 65.808
11 3.24%
7.54% 13.489

16 2.09% FRB
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135.145 9.75%
25.50% 105.836
%
2022 2021
() ()
2,631,389 27,749 1.05 2,396,802 21,873 0.91
1,755,394 46,698 2.66 1,485,640 39,854 2.68
4,386,783 74,447 1.70 3,882,442 61,727 1.59
1,655,088 6,073 0.37 1,453,378 5,110 0.35
913,786 25,316 2.77 637,653 17,495 2.74
2,568,874 31,389 1.22 2,091,031 22,605 1.08
6,955,657 105,836 1.52 5,973,473 84,332 1.41
16.309
9.81%
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218.235 7.02%
%
2022 2021
Q) D)
5,850,275 265,601 4.54 5,364,195 250,662 4.67
2,029,578 65,808 3.24 1,672,594 56,059 3.35
557,031 8,482 1.52 533,863 7,792 1.46
644,938 13,489 2.09 649,046 12,543 1.93
9,081,822 353,380 3.89 8,219,698 327,056 3.98
D) ()
6,955,657 105,836 1.52 5,973,473 84,332 1.41
996,819 16,309 1.64 1,076,618 18,083 1.68
322,784 9,662 2.99 410,711 12,532 3.05
122,194 2,828 2.31 276,773 7,635 2.76
13,408 510 3.80 13,977 555 3.97
8,410,862 135,145 1.61 7,751,552 123,137 1.59
/ 218,235 / / 203,919 /
/ / 2.28 / / 2.39
/ / 2.40 / / 2.48
3.89%
1.61% 2.28%

2.40%
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2022 2021

21,912 (6,973) 14,939
11,589 (1,840) 9,749
370 320 690
(92) 1,038 946
33,779 (7,455) 26,324
14,933 6,571 21,504
(1,343) (431) (1,774)
(2,624) (246) (2,870)
(3,562) (1,245) (4,807)
1) (24) (45)
7,383 4,625 12,008
26,396 (12,080) 14,316
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%
2022 10 12 2022
) %)
6,004,655 67,485 4.46 5,928,303 66,912 4.48
2,209,149 18,044 3.24 2,067,350 16,742 3.21
561,051 2,289 1.62 548,779 2,170 1.57
601,940 3,771 2.49 604,711 3,106 2.04
9,376,795 91,589 3.88 9,149,143 88,930 3.86
(%) )
7,292,633 28,485 1.55 7,081,701 27,560 1.54
1,008,086 4,395 1.73 990,687 3,954 1.58
236,036 1,841 3.09 279,947 2,176 3.08
118,681 656 2.19 113,830 674 2.35
12,925 107 3.28 13,370 128 3.80
8,668,361 35,484 1.62 8,479,535 34,492 1.61
/ 56,105 / / 54,438 /
/ / 2.26 / / 2.25
/ / 2.37 / / 2.36
2022 2.37% 2.26%
2022
0.77% 126.505
0.18% 94.275
14.28% 30.903
14.75% 12.457 10.44% 21.399
8.26% 15.051
8.99% 5.753
6.59% 5.791 15.82% 12.018
2.45% 32.230
1.07%  18.013
2.767 -2.675

7.43% 3.600

47/433



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

oOoOooodn
39.00% 10.767 CMBFL
8.785
3.45% 60.026
47.45% 1.40%
51.635 40.82% 2022 CMBFL

14.67% 14.844 11.73%
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%

2022 2021 )
103,372 102,318 1.03
30,903 36,053 -14.28
12,457 10,856 14.75
21,399 19,377 10.44
15,051 13,902 8.26
5,753 6,321 -8.99
5,791 5,433 6.59
12,018 10,376 15.82
(9,097) (7,871) 15.58
94,275 94,447 -0.18
32,230 33,041 -2.45
29,705 29,011 2.39
18,013 17,822 1.07
/ (2,675) 92 N/A
3,600 3,351 7.43
10,767 7,746 39.00
2,525 4,030 -37.34
126,505 127,488 -0.77

CMFM  CMBIC CMB
CIGNA  CMAM

2022

4.43% 122.061
7.01% 70.657
1.09% 51.404

0.22 32.89%
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2022 2021
70,657 66,028
15,720 14,519
32,319 33,249
360 311
3,005 2,772
122,061 116,879

13.96% 56.751

2022 2021
45,157 37,020
3,879 15,848
(3,284) 6,110
7,112 5,639
3,887 1,345
56,751 65,962

45.157 8.137
3.879

11.969

-3.284 9.394

3.887 2.542
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10,138.912 9.62%
"
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
(%) (%)
6,062,913 59.80 5,580,885 60.34
(255,759) (2.52) (245, 494) (2.65)
5,807,154 57.28 5,335,391 57.69
2,815,204 27.77 2,224,041 24.05
605,989 5.98 571,847 6.18
@ 631,598 6.23 799,372 8.64
9,999 0.10 9,954 0.11
@ 268,968 2.64 308,416 3.33
10,138,912 100.00 9,249,021 100.00
(€]
)
6,051.459 8.64%

59.69% 0.53
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%
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
D ()
18,671 0.67 23,390 1.06
423,467 15.19 348,123 15.82
215,081 7.72 176,764 8.03
208,386 7.47 171,359 7.79
1,536,397 55.13 1,169,652 53.16
1,452,499 52.12 1,078,888 49.03
126,698 4.55 129,851 5.90
648 0.02 620 0.03
(43,448) (1.56) (39,707) (1.80)
771,271 27.67 628,355 28.56
13,416 0.48 6,995 0.32
23,844 0.86 23,654 1.08
2,787,066 100.00 2,200,169 100.00
60(F)
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
1,543,237 6,428 (6,109) 2,641,846 11,877 (11,991)
874,230 11,376 (11,671) 1,186,030 10,041 (14,054)
92,258 867 (856) 139,931 1,472 (1,237)
2,509,725 18,671  (18,636) 3,967,807 23,390  (27,282)
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
1,600,274 1,205,718
494,628 390,387
232,923 168,483
111,026 119,419
2,438,851 1,884,007
23.844 0.80%
25 26
IFRS CMFM

579 9.999
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9,184.674 9.56%

"

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
(%) (%)
7,590,579 82.64 6,385,154 76.16
@ 945,624 10.30 1,081,328 12.90
129,745 1.41 159,987 1.01
81,950 0.89 91,043 1.09
223,821 2.44 446,645 5.33
@ 212,955 2.32 219,183 2.61
9,184,674 100.00 8,383,340 100.00

€Y
@
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7,535.742 18.73%
82.05%
%

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
Q) D)
2,762,671 36.66 2,652,817 41.80
1,668,882 22.15 1,406,107 22.15
4,431,553 58.81 4,058,924 63.95
1,983,364 26.32 1,557,861 24.54
1,120,825 14.87 730,293 11.51
3,104,189 41.19 2,288,154 36.05
7,535,742 100.00 6,347,078 100.00
2022 — 61.63%

2.82 59.98%
1.75
64.43% 5.08
945.503 10.10%
15.02% 492.971

21.48% 11.815

4.153 2.009
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%

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
Q) D)
5,919,985 97.83 5,472,563 98.25
73,470 1.21 46,609 0.84
22,770 0.38 17,490 0.31
23,737 0.39 20,755 0.37
11,497 0.19 12,617 0.23
6,051,459 100.00 5,570,034 100.00
58,004 0.96 50,862 0.91

7.142 58.004 0.05 0.96%
26.861 73.470

0.37 1.21%
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"
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
%) OB %) @ @
2,375,616 39.26 29,961 1.26 2,150,938 38.62 26,732 1.24
821,269 13.57 9,562 1.16 729,999 13.11 16,755 2.30
864,880 14.29 14,123 1.63 821,259 14.74 7,267 0.88
289,605 4.79 330 0.11 257,428 4.63 397 0.15
@ 399,862 6.61 5,946 1.49 342,252 6.14 2,313 0.68
® 514,054 8.49 - - 431,305 7.74 - .
3,161,789 52.25 28,043 0.89 2,987,791 53.64 24,130 0.81
631,038 10.43 4,031 0.64 561,871 10.09 3,500 0.62
1,389,208 22.96 4,904 0.35 1,374,406 24.68 3,821 0.28
884,519 14.62 15,650 1.77 840,371 15.09 13,846 1.65
® 257,024 4.24 3,458 1.35 211,143 3.78 2,963 1.40
6,051,459  100.00 58,004 0.96 5,570,034  100.00 50,862 0.91
(€)
10 MEA
@A)
(©)
10.45% 2,375.616
0.64 39.26%
3.229
29.961 0.02
1.26%
5.82% 3,161.789
1.39 52.25% 12.31%  631.038
3.913 28.043 0.08
0.89% 1,804 15.650
0.12 1.77%
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"
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
%) @ © %) OB
2,375,616 39.26 29,961 1.26 2,150,938 38.62 26,732 1.24
492,248 8.14 948 0.19 445,603 8.00 2,045 0.66
375,980 6.21 15,348 4.08 401,704 7.21 5,655 1.41
465,712 7.70 4,781 1.03 333,398 5.99 6,871 2.06
212,893 3.52 468 0.22 194,688 3.50 658 0.34
161,750 2.67 1,784 1.10 174,758 3.14 4,054 2.3
180,709 2.99 1,836 1.02 147,272 2.64 3,726 2.53
112,114 1.85 440 0.39 95,333 1.71 90 0.09
105,770 1.75 435 0.41 120,934 2.17 569 0.47
IT
89,858 1.48 406 0.45 65,994 1.18 235 0.36
64,996 1.07 100 0.15 65,248 1.17 175 0.27
40,495 0.67 521 1.29 34,505 0.62 786 2.28
@ 73,001 1.21 2,894 3.96 71,501 1.29 968 1.35
514,054 8.49 - - 431,305 7.74 - .
3,161,789 52.25 28,043 0.89 2,987,791 53.64 24,130 0.81
6,051,459  100.00 58,004 0.96 5,570,034  100.00 50,862 0.91
(€)
)
39.69%  465.712 7.70% 1.71

12
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%
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

%) )P %) O

@ 942,006 15.57 17,811 1.89 910,281 16.35 17,862 1.96

1,338,769 22.12 10,532 0.79 1,200,571 21.55 7,436 0.62

828,311 13.69 5,118 0.62 719,187 12.91 4,479 0.62

1,087,410 17.97 4,673 0.43 1,007,513 18.09 6,358 0.63

169,566 2.80 2,020 1.19 168,974 3.03 2,354 1.39

641,554 10.60 8,048 1.25 569,787 10.23 5,766 1.01

633,129 10.46 5,468 0.86 581,820 10.45 4,275 0.73

78,567 1.30 544 0.69 94,153 1.69 218 0.23

332,147 5.49 3,790 1.14 317,748 5.70 2,114 0.67

6,051,459 100.00 58,004 0.96 5,570,034 100.00 50,862 0.91
1))
0)
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%
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
) O *) O
2,219,635 36.68 21,662 0.98 1,977,014 35.51 19,861 1.00
836,550 13.82 16,698 2.00 752,744 13.51 13,272 1.76
2,132,337 35.24 14,246 0.67 2,075,639 37.26 12,684 0.61
348,883 5.77 5,398 1.55 333,332 5.98 5,045 1.51
514,054 8.49 - - 431,305 7.74 - -
6,051,459 100.00 58,004 0.96 5,570,034 100.00 50,862 0.91
3.00%
11.13% 12.27%
10
%
(
2022 12 31 )

10 %) %)
20,800 2.00 0.35
19,509 1.88 0.32
15,300 1.47 0.25
11,944 1.15 0.20
11,934 1.15 0.20
11,500 1.11 0.19
11,370 1.10 0.19
11,280 1.09 0.19
10,544 1.02 0.17
9,900 0.95 0.16
134,081 12.92 2.22

20.800

2.00% 10 134.081
12.92% 13.16%
2.22%
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%
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
Q) D)
37,207 0.61 22,327 0.40
26,669 0.44 16,339 0.29
9,810 0.16 10,849 0.19
4,599 0.08 7,911 0.14
78,285 1.29 57,426 1.02
6,051,459 100.00 5,570,034 100.00
78.285 20.859
0.27 1.29%
14.880
0.21 28.08%
23.52% 48.40%
90
1.41 60 1.25
%
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
(%) ()
12,076 0.20 16,517 0.30
90
5,207 0.09 10,406 0.19
0.10 0.20%
612 156
456 4.543
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2022 2021
246,104 234,664
45,157 37,020
(386) (247)
8,972 9,893
(39,087) (35,105)
716 (121)
261,476 246,104
261.476 15.372 450.79%
33.08 4.32% 0.10
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Tier 1 Tier 1
13.68% 15.75% 17.77% 1.02 0.81 0.29
%
2022 12 31 2021 12 31 )
@
Tier 1 799,352 704,337 13.49
Tier 1 919,798 831,380 10.64
1,037,942 972,606 6.72
5,491,072 5,037,500 9.00
4,823,836 4,441,186 8.62
89,200 60,296 47.94
578,036 536,018 7.84
5,841,685 5,563,724 5.00
Tier 1 13.68% 12.66% 1.02
Tier 1 15.75% 14.94% 0.81
17.77% 17.48% 0.29
(@)
11,569,842 10,394,899 11.30
7.95% 8.00% 0.05
[€)) 2012 CBRC
CMBIC CMBFL CMB CMFM  CIGNA & CMAM
CvMB
95% 90% 2017 80%
(2)2015 2015 12 CBRC
2022 2022 2022
8.00% 7.64% 8.07%
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Tier 1 Tier 1
13.23% 15.42% 17.51% 1.08 0.83 0.28

%
2022 12 31 2021 12 31 )
Tier 1 701,033 617,403 13.55
Tier 1 817,387 741,627 10.22
927,881 875,859 5.94
4,925,532 4,530,952 8.71
4,330,955 4,002,933 8.19
69,000 39,049 76.70
525,577 488,970 7.49
5,299,237 5,082,896 4.26

Tier 1 13.23% 12.15% 1.08

Tier 1 15.42% 14.59% 0.83

17.51% 17.23% 0.28
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Tier 1 Tier 1
11.52% 13.25% 14.68% 0.35 0.03
%
2022 12 31 2021 12 31 )
)
Tier 1 799,352 704,337 13.49
Tier 1 919,798 831,380 10.64
1,018,678 927,277 9.86
6,941,350 6,303,544 10.12
Tier 1 11.52% 11.17% 0.35
Tier 1 13.25% 13.19% 0.06
14.68% 14.71% 0.03
2012 CBRC
Tier 1 Tier 1
10.97% 12.79% 14.22% 0.37 0.06 0.04
%
2022 12 31 2021 12 31 %)
Tier 1 701,033 617,403 13.55
Tier 1 817,387 741,627 10.22
908,572 830,529 9.40
6,390,196 5,824,290 9.72
Tier 1 10.97% 10.60% 0.37
Tier 1 12.79% 12.73% 0.06
14.22% 14.26% 0.04

66/433



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O00O(E05986)

oOoOooodn
IRB
2022 12 31
IRB 1,223,199 1,223,199
2,394,452 2,394,452
3,693,448 3,693,448
1,383,477 1,383,477
1,703,749 1,703,749
606,222 606,222
IRB 3,983,915 4,489,602
207,840 226,001
11,648 12,479
89.200
7.136 4.972
2.164
250 99%
10
2022 12 31
1. 772 535
2. 942 727
3. 440 182
4. 849 468
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2022 2021
94,178 191,415 77,709 179,014
67,149 142,094 67,386 142,618
3,786 11,231 3,078 9,775
165,113 344,740 148,173 331,407
2022 CMBFL
94.178 21.19%
57.04% 4.60 6.93%
191.415 55.52% 1.50
1.48 31.95%
56
2022 570,143 2021
182,048
2022 513,926 2021
19,697
2022 297,032 2021
89,359
2022 12 31 567,198 2021 12 31 234,556
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28

28
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(¢))
2022 12 31
@ @
25.494,845,601 P
@
1) 20,628,944 ,429 4,590,901,172 275,000,000
2002 12 31
1.00 25,219,845, 601
100.00 275,000,000 ()
10%
46(a)
(@)
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©)
2017 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
400,614
2018 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
400,614
2019 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
400,614
2020 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
400,614
2021 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
400,614
2022 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
400,614
2017 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172
89,155
2018 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172
89,155
2019 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172
89,155
2020 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172
89,155
2021 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172
89,155
2022 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172

89,155
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2017 12 31 325,000,000 0
2018 12 31 325,000,000 0
2019 12 31 325,000,000 0
2020 12 31 325,000,000 0
2021 12 31 325,000,000 0
2022 10 25 -50,000,000 6))
2022 12 31 275,000,000

@ 2022 10 25
@

570,634 541,363
29,271

18
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®)
2022 12 31 10
(%)
HKSCC 4,553,256,923 18.05
3,289,470,337 13.04
1,574,729,111 6.24
1,506,791,186 5.97
1,258,542,349 4.99
1,147,377,415 4.55
1,130,991,537 4.48
944,013,171 3.74
804,907,835 3.19
696,450,214 2.76
16,906,530,078 67.04
(1)HKSCC HKSCC
0} 10 HKSCC

®
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10

(%)

106,000,000 38.55
40,000,000 14.55
25,000,000 9.09
20,000,000 7.27
20,000,000 7.27
15,000,000 5.45
15,000,000 5.45
9,000,000 3.27
7,200,000 2.62
5,000,000 1.82
5,000,000 1.82

€Y)
&)

10
®
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2021
2022

2016

2016

50%
10%

1.522
1.738

2017

2017

52
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GAAP
GAAP
1.5%
30%

2017

2022 10 25
2017

2022 12 19

46(a)



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

OoOoOoOoOodno
(€))
Bis
HEEAS —
HEEls
EEEAE Mmmirs s ~|
EREAs
H - FEEAS -
DEREEEE || EREEFHE
Y% - AFREEEAE
i HEARETEEAR
EXEfs —
L A T TR EEAS
EEYETEHEE R L g
HREHHRHEEAS || 7005 0 AL - MIES & U
Y HTAERERS
EREES [ — THERS WEEGEEE AL
L E AP —
FEES | | | BEEES | | M sseweEsaz
EEEES | | RAEHES o TrvTFuLEAS
WIREEWwR L REEEEEE A
L EMESEEER
13
18 86 17
35 104 33
11 35 36 16
37 18 38 18 39 22 40 19
41 20 42 22 12 29
12 22 18 19
20 10 28 11 29 12 28
10 12 30
14 37 20
CSRC [2020169 ) CSRC

[2020]128
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CSRC

15

IFRS

CBIRC CSRC

3.13
3.13

2023

2022

2022 35 137
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2023 24
ESG ESG ESG
ESG
2023
24
2023 24
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2023 24

2023
24

2023 24
2023 31
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14
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2023

2023

24

12

24

2022
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12
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ooooood
€))
2023 31 30 %
2023 31
(2022 12
31 )
) ( )
(MIAO Jianmin)
(1965 ) 19 20
(HU Jianhua)
(1962 11 )
Port de
Djibouti S.A.
Colombo

International Container Terminals Limited
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(SUN Yunfei)
(1965 )

300,000 362.46
(WANG Liang)
(1965 12 ) 1995
2012
2013 11
2015
2016 11 2019
2019 2023
2021
2022 18
2022 15
CMBIC
MUCFC
14

(ZHOU Song)
(1972 )
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(HONG Xiaoyuan)
(1963 )

(ZHANG Jian)
(1964 10 )
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(CHEN Dong)
(1974 12 )

- 50.00
(WONG See Hong)
(1953 )
EC
ABN
BOCI
MPF
- 50.00
(L1 Menggang)
(1967 )
NAES

IEEE
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- 50.00
(LIU Qiao)
(1970 )

ChiNext
CSRC

- 50.00
(TIAN Hongqi)
(1957 )

- 50.00
(L1 Chaoxian)
(1958 )
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Oooooog
- 50.00
(SHI Yongdong)
(1968 11 )
(2022 12
31 )
) ( )
240,000 331.70
(XIONG
Liangjun) 2000 2003
(1963 )
2003 2014
2014 2021
2021
(LUO Sheng)
(1970 )
2019 2022
11
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ooooooo
(PENG Bihong)
(1963 10 )
20
2018 2019
(WU Heng)
(1976 )
2000 2005
2005 2009
2009 2015
2014 2015
2015 2019
- 40.00
(XU Zhengjun)
(1955 )
True Smart
International Limited
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Oooooog
- 20.22
(CAl Hongping) AGIC
(1954 12 )
1996 1997
1998 2005 BNP
2006 2010 UBS AG
2010 2015
- 20.22
(ZHANG Xiang)
(1963 12 )
S.
1996
1999 2004
2004 2018
2014 2016
133,150 154.75
(CAl Jin)
(1970 )
1992
1995
2010 2021 12
127,000 -
(CAO Jian)
(1970 10 )
CMB
2003
2021 11 2023
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Oooooog
(2022 12
31 )
( ) ( )
300,000 362.46
(WANG Liang)
(1965 12 )
210,000 294.28
(WANG Yungui) 2008
(1963 ) 2016 12
2016 12
2019
2019
204,400 293.60
(LI Delin) 2013
(1974 12 ) 10
2019
2021
198,800 293.90
(ZHU Jiangtao) 2003
(1972 12 ) 2007 12 2020
2020
2021
225,600 293.90
(XIONG Kai) 1994 2006
(1971 )
2006 2014
2014
2021
177,300 256.10
(ZHONG Desheng)
(1967 ) 1993
2021 10
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Oooooog
(WANG Xiaoqging) 2005
(1971 10 ) 2020
2020
CMFM
2021 10
CMFM
CIGNA CMB CIGNA CMAM
200,000 -
(Wang Ying) 1997
(1972 11 )
2023
167,700 -
(Peng Jiawen)
(1969 ) 2001
2023
198,100 277.53
(Jiang
Chaoyang) 2013 11
(1967 12 )
2019 11
@
CMFM
@
11
12
©)
@
2022 11 17
18 14 19 20 20 21
12 12 16 10 25

11 14
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2022
2022
2022
2022
2022
€Y)
2021 2022
2022
2016

2022 GAAP 2022
IFRS 2022
31.23

1.55 2022
38.53
Q)

®
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193

2023
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IFRS

38 59
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12 31
2022 2021
) ( ) ) ( )

6 353,380 6,862,640 327,056 6,351,428
7 (135,145)  (2,624,516) (123,137)  (2,391,321)
218,235 4,238,124 203,919 3,960,107

8 103,372 2,007,484 102,318 1,987,016
(9,097) (176,664) (7,871) (152,855)

94,275 1,830,821 94,447 1,834,161

9 29,705 576,871 29,011 563,394
170 3,301 (657) (12,759)

342,215 6,645,815 327,377 6,357,661
10 (122,061)  (2,370,425) (116,879)  (2,269,790)
220,154 4,275,391 210,498 4,087,871

14 (56,751)  (1,102,104) (65,962)  (1,280,982)
(815) (15,827) (393) (7,632)

25 1,710 33,208 2,877 55,871
26 815 15,827 1,153 22,391
165,113 3,206,494 148,173 2,877,520

15 (25,819) (501,405) (27,339) (530,923)
139,294 2,705,089 120,834 2,346,596

138,012 2,680,193 119,922 2,328,885

1,282 24,896 912 17,711

17 5.26 102.15 4.61 89.53
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12 31
2022 2021
( ) ) )« )
139,294 2,705,089 120,834 2,346,596
1,285 24,955 5,856 113,724
(1,155) (22,430) 133 2,583
(5.617) (109,082) 4,156 80,710
3,471 67,407 3,036 58,959
112 2,175 105 2,039
4,429 86,011 (1,574) (30,567)
45 874 - -
38 738 1,333 25,887
48 932 1,318 25,596
(10) (194) 15 291
16 1,323 25,693 7,189 139,610
1,053 20,449 7,298 141,727
270 5,243 (109) (2,117)
140,617 2,730,782 128,023 2,486,207
139,065 2,700,642 127,220 2,470,612
1,552 30,140 803 15,594
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12 31
2022 2021
( ) ) ( ) )

15,209 295,359 13,310 258,480

2,962 57,522 4,639 90,089

18 587,818 11,415,426 553,898 10,756,699
19 91,346 1,773,939 80,350 1,560,397
20 263,576 5,118,646 194,421 3,775,656
21 276,676 5,373,048 524,601 10,187,751
22 5,807,154 112,774,931 5,335,391 103,613,293
23(a) 423,467 8,223,729 348,123 6,760,549
60() 18,671 362,591 23,390 454,234

23(b) 1,555,457 30,206,975 1,185,841 23,029,032

23(c) 780,349 15,154,378 636,038 12,351,858
23(d) 13,416 260,539 6,995 135,843
25 14,247 276,677 14,779 287,008
26 9,597 186,374 8,875 172,353
27 1,268 24,625 1,372 26,644
28 99,919 1,940,427 80,415 1,561,659
29(a) 17,553 340,879 18,403 357,386
30 3,402 66,067 4,066 78,962
31 9,999 194,181 9,954 193,307
32 90,848 1,764,268 81,639 1,585,429
33 55,978 1,087,093 122,521 2,379,358

10,138,912 196,897,671 9,249,021 179,615,988
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12 31
2022 2021
( ) ) ( ) )
129,745 2,519,648 159,987 3,106,948
34 645,674 12,538,989 753,018 14,623,610
35 192,857 3,745,283 170,650 3,314,023
36 63,314 1,229,558 63,761 1,238,239
60(T) 18,636 361,911 27,282 529,816
37 107,093 2,079,746 157,660 3,061,757
38 7,590,579 147,409,044 6,385,154 123,999,691
39(a) 23,866 463,478 19,761 383,759
40 19,458 377,874 22,491 436,775
41 6,679 129,706 7,536 146,349
29(b) 13,013 252,712 13,812 268,229
42 22,491 436,775 14,660 284,697
43 223,821 4,346,604 446,645 8,673,846
32 1,510 29,324 1,353 26,275
44 125,938 2,445,716 139,570 2,710,449
9,184,674 178,366,369 8,383,340 162,804,463
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12 31
2022 2021
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
45 25,220 489,772 25,220 489,772
46 120,446 2,339,061 127,043 2,467,175
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®) 16 . . . - Ga) 112 - - - - 4,153 1,053 15 255 1,323
- - - - (3,212) 112 - - 138,012 - 4,153 139,065 1,095 457 140,617
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4,151 80,612 4,259 82,710
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510 9,904 555 10,778
(48,851) (948,686) 12,874 250,013
(508,891)  (9,882,663) (564,924)  (10,970,824)
63,611 1,235,326 (37,395) (726,211)
1,188,664 23,083,855 718,742 13,957,970
(135,569)  (2,632,750) 73,321 1,423,894
(46,825) (909,342) 2,160 41,947
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1,334,013 25,906,532 1,160,739 22,541,551
79,122 1,536,549 71,197 1,382,646
(484) (9,399) (5,342) (103,742)
(34,892) (677,603) (24,160) (469,187)
6,750 131,085 2,399 46,589
463 8,991 855 16,604
(513,926)  (9,980,443) (19,697) (382,516)
78,666 1,527,694 319,707 6,208,710
20,287 393,974 14,692 285,319
21,481 417,161 63,872 1,240,394

_ . 42,989 834,846

2,667 51,793 - -
10,796 209,658 6,860 133,221
(250,996)  (4,874,342) (226,012)  (4,389,153)
(16,504) (320,508) (21,363) (414,869)
(78,735)  (1,529,034) (55,771)  (1,083,073)
(4,932) (95,779) (4,835) (93,896)
(7,196) (139,746) - _
(1,104) (21,440) - _
(202) (3,923) (227) (4,408)
(38,664) (750,855) (31,845) (618,430)
(1,675) (32,529) (1,638) (31,810)
(3,562) (69,174) (1,975) (38,355)
(12,400) (240,808) (11,398) (221,349)
(14,959) (290,504) (3,697) (71,796)
(297,032)  (5,768,361) 89,359 1,735,352
(240,815)  (4,676,627) 251,710 4,888,208
801,754 15,570,063 552,790 10,735,182
6,259 121,550 (2,746) (53,327)
567,198 11,014,985 801,754 15,570,063
285,050 5,535,671 269,081 5,225,553
108,496 2,106,992 111,177 2,159,057
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2022 2021
34 61
47 66
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FVTOCI

15
@

(®)

FVTOCI

25

2021

25

22(0)(C )
22(c) ( )

23(0)( )
23¢)(C )

EDINETOOOO
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2022 2021
45,157 37,020
40,175 35,678
4,982 1,342
(3,284) 6,110
3,879 15,848
4,234 13,201
(355) 2,647
7,112 5,639
3,887 1,345
56,751 65,962
2022 2021
34,276 38,141
33,133 37,222
973 767
170 152
(8,457) (10,802)
25,819 27,339
2022 2021
165,113 148,173
41,278 37,043
1,593 1,392
(17,114) (12,053)
(215) (258)
955 1,716
(942) (550)
264 49
25,819 27,339

149/433



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

OooooOodd
16
@
2022 2021
732 553 1,285 8,382 (2,526) 5,856
FVTOCH
(7,353) 1,736 (5,617) 5,675 (1,519) 4,156
FVTOCH
4,631 (1,160) 3,471 4,060 (1,024) 3,036
135 (23) 112 88 17 105
( (1,155) (1,155) 133 133
)
4,429 4,429 (1,574) (1,574)
45 45
40 ©) 38 1,176 157 1,333
FVTOCH
52 ) 48 1,158 160 1,318
12) 2 (10) 18 ®) 15
772 551 1,323 9,558 (2,369) 7,189
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2022

2017

2021
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2022 2021
(1,746) 6,793
(3,871) (2,637)
(5,617) 4,156
3,471 3,036
3,471 3,036
48 1,318
48 1,318
112 74
31
112 105
2022 2021
138,012 119,922
(1,675) (1,638)
(3.562) (1,975)
132,775 116,309
25,220 25,220
5.26 4.61
2020 2021
2022 2021 12 31
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2022 2021
534,232 484,878
50,846 65,819
) 2,455 2,958
285 243
587,818 553,898
PBOC
2022 12 31
2021 12 31
PBOC
2022 2021
91,587 80,664
(509) (378)
91,078 80,286
268 64
91,346 80,350
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2022 2021
57,809 37,453
54,808 35,620

3,001 1,833
33,778 43,211
33,390 41,430

388 1,781
91,587 80,664
(509) (378)
(490) (329)
(19) (49)
91,078 80,286

2022 2021
378 277
120 109
1 ®)
509 378

2022 2021
264,782 196,351
(2,658) (2,860)
262,124 193,491
1,452 930
263,576 194,421
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2022 2021
202,381 127,959
65,018 19,213
137,363 108,746
62,401 68,392
61,880 68,102
521 290
264,782 196,351
(2,658) (2,860)
(163) (136)
(2,495) (2,724)
262,124 193,491
2022 2021

89,368 66,842
158,086 115,906
14,670 10,743
262,124 193,491

2022 2021
2,860 376
(235) 2,481
33 3
2,658 2,860

2022 2021
277,561 528,564
(1,094) (4,263)
276,467 524,301
209 300
276,676 524,601
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@
2022 2021
277,382 528,447
42,077 60,323
235,305 468,124
179 117
179 117
277,561 528,564
(1,094) (4,263)
(216) (175)
(878) (4,088)
276,467 524,301
®
2022 2021
268,890 524,301
7,577
276,467 524,301
©
2022 2021
256,129 522,202
20,338 2,099
276,467 524,301
@
2022 2021
4,263 743
14 (3,169) 3,520
1,094 4,263
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FVTOCI
FVTPL
)
12 ECL
ECL
ECL
( ) FvTOCH
FVTOCI
12 ECL
ECL
ECL

(
(

)
)

(

)
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2022 2021
5,432,112 5,075,052
11,326 10,548
5,443,438 5,085,600
(254,913) (244,523)
(846) (9o71)
(255,759) (245,494)
5,187,679 4,840,106
614,481 488,004
4,994 7,281
5,807,154 5,335,391
2022 2021

2,270,323 2,087,247
3,161,789 2,987,791

14

5,432,112 5,075,052
(254,913) (244,523)
(159,932) (169,347)
(44,898) (32,007)
(50,083) (43,169)
5,177,199 4,830,529

2022 2021

100,430 56,713
514,051 431,291
614,481 488,004
(6,563) (1,581)
(6,311) (1,289)

(252) (292)
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FVTOCI
( ) FVTPL
2022 2021
4,863 6,978
3
128 303
4,994 7,281
®
)
2022 2021
461,434 412,417
445,218 309,635
349,682 367,642
203,870 187,611
171,786 138,352
158,320 170,009
103,998 117,453
IT 78,950 58,267
75,593 57,988
64,886 64,427
34,421 28,854
67,677 66,364
2,215,835 1,979,019
514,054 431,305
1,379,825 1,364,534
884,395 840,254
629,857 560,657
213,599 173,527
3,107,676 2,938,972
5,837,565 5,349,296
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2022 12 31

)
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2022 2021
36,521 37,345
30,814 33,186
26,298 34,062
20,494 23,763
10,908 7,727
9,023 7,077
8,923 8,920
6,074 5,651
3,430 4,749
1,772 3,481
110 821
5,414 5,137
159,781 171,919
9,383 9,872
124 117
1,181 1,214
43,425 37,616
54,113 48,819
213,894 220,738

90 2021 12 90

2022 2021
2,219,635 1,977,014
836,550 752,744
2,132,337 2,075,639
348,883 333,332
5,537,405 5,138,729
514,054 431,305
6,051,459 5,570,034
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)
2022
22,260 12,382 2,365 880 37,887
6,533 7,537 3,581 762 18,413
5,180 6,177 2,913 1,696 15,966
3,234 573 951 1,261 6,019
37,207 26,669 9,810 4,599 78,285
2021
18,097 10,269 2,972 944 32,282
1,141 2,650 3,476 1,403 8,670
2,616 2,733 3,610 2,142 11,101
473 687 701 3,422 5,373
22,327 16,339 10,849 7,911 57,426
2022 2021
4,198 1,517
1,819 473
6,017 1,990
( ) ECL
2022
B EL ECL ECL
5,217,868 156,240 58,004 5,432,112
(159,932) (44,898) (50,083) (254,913)
5,057,936 111,342 7,921 5,177,199
FvTOCI 612,660 1,821 614,481
FvToCI (6,311) (252) (6,563)
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2021
T ECL ECL
4,912,836 111,354 50,862 5,075,052
(169,347) (32,007) (43,169) (244,523)
4,743,489 79,347 7,693 4,830,529
FvToct 485,735 2,269 488,004
FVTOCI (1,289) (292) (1,581)
©
)
2022
- ECL ECL
169,347 32,007 43,169 244,523
3,039 (2,965) (74)
(7,699) 7,879 (180)
(3,693) (4,681) 8,374
y (1,694) 12,653 29,216 40,175
D) (39,016) (39,087)
(386) (386)
8,972 8,972
632 76 8 716
159,932 44,898 50,083 254,913
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2021
1 EcL ECL ECL
159,918 27,401 47,107 234,426
5,848 (5,743) (105)
(1,137) 1,592 (455)
(1,001) (4,972) 5,973
5,766 13,763 16,149 35,678
(35,105) (35,105)
47) 247)
9,893 9,893
CY)) (3%) (41) 122)
169,347 32,007 43,169 244,523
2022 2021
1,581 238
4,982 1,342
1
6,563 1,581
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23

FVTOCI
FVTOCI

1€)

FVTPL

12

ECL
ECL
ECL

23(a)
23(b)
23(c)
23(d)
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2022 2021

13,323 15,035
11,035 11,225
6,074 8,519
6,089 5,323
3,860 5,580
17,448 13,980
57,829 59,662
(9,665) (8,378)
48,164 51,284
(3,671) (3,237)
(1,308) (1,872)
(1,646) (632)
17) (733)
44,493 48,047

2022 2021
423,467 348,123
1,555,457 1,185,841
780,349 636,038
13,416 6,995
2,772,689 2,176,997

2022 2021
411,591 318,245
11,876 29,878
423,467 348,123
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(

) FVTPL

2022 2021
182,416 129,792
81,781 46,721
21,871 9,861
35,999 21,245
42,765 51,965
182,416 129,792
167,998 113,762
12,215 15,796
2,203 234
1,971 1,949
17

814 811
1,032 1,036
108 102
1,971 1,949
134 111
1,837 1,838
184,387 131,741
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FVTPL
2022 2021
20,789 17,094
14,039 9,784
6,750 7,310
20,789 17,094
18,216 15,388
1,872 1,333
701 373
206,415 169,410
4,362 4,909
199,725 161,959
1,511 1,360
817 1,182
206,415 169,410
330 62
653 1,118
205,432 168,230
FVTPL 227,204 186,504
FVTPL 411,591 318,245
)
2022 2021
11,876 29,878
218 41
4,559 17,970
6,370 11,251
729 616
11,876 29,878
11,656 28,793
220 1,060

25
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2022 2021
cHC) 1,579,845 1,209,359
19,294 16,368
1,599,139 1,225,727
CHCHC)H) (43,448) (39,707)
(234) (179)
(43,682) (39,886)
1,555,457 1,185,841

2022 2021
1,452,499 1,078,888
993,624 768,537
394,126 280,129
56,913 20,064
7,836 10,158
1,452,499 1,078,888
1,395,184 1,068,300
33,319 4,740
23,996 5,848
1,457,373 1,099,251
127,346 130,471
108,616 115,022
5,500 100
12,582 14,729
648 620
127,346 130,471
127,346 130,471
1,579,845 1,209,359
(43,448) (39,707)
12 ECL (10,120) (14,974)
ECL (960) (712)
ECL (32,368) (24,021)
1,536,397 1,169,652
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OooooOodd
) ECL
2022
1 EcL ECL ECL
1,543,652 2,073 34,120 1,579,845
(10,120) (960) (32,368) (43,448)
1,533,532 1,113 1,752 1,536,397
2021
b L ECL ECL
1,183,320 1,962 24,077 1,209,359
(14,974) (712) (24,021) (39,707)
1,168,346 1,250 56 1,169,652
)
2022
1 EL ECL ECL
14,974 712 24,021 39,707
QN 27
(153) (298) 451
(4,674) 518 8,390 4,234
(531) (531)
28 28
1 9 10
10,120 960 32,368 43,448
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2021
P ECL ECL
11,832 326 13,960 26,118
©) 5

14 3,156 381 9,664 13,201

(10) (10)

419 419

® (12) ey

14,974 712 24,021 39,707

(c) FvToCI
2022 2021

FVTOCI () 771,271 628,355
9,078 7,683

780,349 636,038
FVTOCI () (6,540) (6,622)
(80) (84)

(6,620) (6,706)

FVTOCI
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( ) FvTOCI
2022 2021
771,271 628,355
524,651 390,419
74,072 82,427
119,602 106,139
52,946 49,370
771,271 628,355
611,110 522,889
90,148 65,439
70,013 40,027
)
2022 2021
6,622 4,014
14 (355) 2,647
273 (39)
6,540 6,622
() FvTocl
2022 2021
3,266 901
10,150 6,094
13,416 6,995
1,412 65
2,744 2,204
9,260 4,726
13,416 6,995
2022 12 31 FVTOCI
2,879 2021 2,186
20 2021 1,804
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24
@
) 4,129 100
) 12,000 100
() 1,161 100
) 1,310 55
) 5,556 90
() 50 100
() 500 )
) CMBIC PBOC
1998 405 2014 CMBIC 750
CMBIC 1,000
2015 28 CMBIC CMBIC 400
2016 20
) CMBFL CBIRC 2008 110
2008 2014 CMBFL 2,000
CMBFL 6,000 2021 CMBFL
6,000 CMBFL 12,000
) CMB WLB 2008 30 CMB
WLB 53.12 2009 15 CMB WLB CMB WLB 2009
16 2023 24 CMB WLB
) 2012 CMFM 21.60 ING
B.V. 63,567,567.57 2013 CMFM
33.40 55.00 CMFM CMFM 2013 11 28
2017 12 CMFM 605 CMFM
495 CMFM 1,310
) CMBWM CBIRC 2019 981
2019 11 CBIRC 2021 920
JP JP
2022 CMBWM 10 2,667
CMBWM 5,000 5,556 JP
90 10
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OOooOoOoOoo
() CBIRC 2016 460 2021
ECB
() CBIRC 2020 708
2020 10 18
87.3458 CMBIC 12.6542
25
2022 2021
14,247 14,779
1,710 2,877
(997) 133
) 50.00 50.00
D)) 10,000 50.00 50.00
() CIGNA & CMB 50.00
CHLIC
50.00 CHLIC
() CMB WLB
CUNC MUCFC CBIRC 2015
MUCFC CMB WLB CUNC MUCFC 50
2017 12 CUNC  MUCFC 600
MUCFC 2,859 15 CMB WLB
35 50 2018 12 MUCFC 1,000
CUNC MUCFC 3,869
CMB WLB MUCFC 24.15 25.85
50
2021 CMB WLB MUCFL CUNC MUCFC
50 2021 10 MUCFC 1,331
4,800 MUCFC 10,000

170/433



EDINETOOOO

DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

Ooooood
CIGNA & CMB
2022
CIGNA & CMB
130,758 121,145 9,613 31,841 730 (1,996) (1,266) 1,071 147 (475)
65,116 60,573 4,543 15,921 336 (997) (661) 536 74 (238)
2021
CIGNA & CNB
108,815 97,686 11,129 26,635 1,174 268 1,442 1,290 151 (43)
54,172 48,843 5,329 13,318 565 133 698 645 76 (22)
( ) MUCFC
2022
MucFC 164,346 147,279 17,067 17,501 3,329 3,329 5,425 47 500
82,174 73,640 8,534 8,751 1,665 1,665 2,713 24 250
2021
MUCFC 149,698 135,660 14,038 15,933 3,015 3,015 4,655 42 477
74,849 67,830 7,019 7,967 1,507 1,507 2,328 21 239
2022
(2,874) (2,874)
(291) (291)
2021
4,675 ®) 4,672
805 805
26
2021 2022
9,597 8,875
815 1,153
(158)
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1,800 24.8559 248559
10 2021 31
14.8559 3,121
248559
FVTOCI
2022
372,578 343,254 29,324 11,034 4,445 (138) 4,307 20,368 522 1,196
91,509 85,319 6,190 2,743 1,004 (35) 969 5,063 130 297
2021
316,172 289,731 26,441 6,775 2,215 30 2,245 11,665 287 604
77,536 72,015 5,521 1,684 490 9 499 2,899 71 150
2021 2021 2021 12 31
2022
(11,527) @737) (12,264)
(189) (123) (312)
2021
37,958 (65) 37,893
663 ©) 654
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27

2022 2021
3,135 3,276
13 (86)
153 (55)
12 31 3,301 3,135
1,763 1,653
132 155
33 6
105 (38)
12 31 2,033 1,763
12 31 1,268 1,372
1,372 1,623

2022 12 31
2021
CMB WLB
2022 12 31 5,534 2021
12 31 5,279
2022 2021

289 313
240 170
184 127
153 106
102 105
275 350
1,243 1,180
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2022

2022

2022

2022

2022

2022

2022
2022

EDINETOOOO
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Ooooooog
2022 12 31

3,140 3,140

2,394 2,394

3,140 2,394 5,534

2021 12 31

3,076 3,076

2,203 2,203

3,076 2,203 5,279
28,876 3,502 16,860 10,925 61,327 5,909 127,399
24 1,910 1,898 649 26,872 357 31,710
1,490 (1,625) 162 122 (162) 13)
(150) (517) (100) (7.912) (643) (9,322)
261 113 82 5,454 17 5,927
12 31 30,501 3,787 18,516 11,678 85,741 5,478 155,701
12,998 12,924 7,028 9,051 4,465 46,466
1,286 2,174 1,103 5,027 557 10,147
(33) 113 (113) (33)
87) 497) (70) (1,653) (578) (2.885)
175 77 (16) 686 13 935
12 31 14,339 14,791 8,045 13,111 4,344 54,630
20 498 518
778 778
(194) (194)
50 50
12 31 20 1,132 1,152
12 31 16,142 3,787 3,725 3,633 71,498 1,134 99,919
15,858 3,502 3,936 3,897 51,778 1,444 80,415
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2021 12 31

2021

2021 12 31

2021
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2021 12 31

2021 12 31

2021

(@) 2022 12 31

(b) 2022 12 31

(c) 2022 12 31

©)

28,279 3,107 15,149 9,661 48,124 6,299 110,619
539 743 2,420 1,106 17,879 563 23,250
169 (348) 20 223 22 86
19) (698) 18) (3,415) (971) (5,121)
(92) (31) “n (1,261) 0 (1,435)

28,876 3,502 16,860 10,925 61,327 5,909 127,399
11,750 11,489 6,132 6,729 4,813 40,913
1,314 2,007 950 3,822 519 8,702
6 17 (16) 7
14) (661) @15) (1,290) (848) (2,828)
(58) 18) (39) (210) ®) (328)
12,998 12,924 7,028 9,051 4,465 46,466
236 236
20 267 287
®) ®)
20 498 518
15,858 3,502 3,936 3,897 51,778 1,444 80,415
16,529 3,107 3,660 3,529 41,159 1,486 69,470
1,108 2021 12 31 1,026
2021 12 31
CMBFL
24,512 2021 12 31 15,075
2022 2021
11,306 7,765
9,601 7,148
8,134 5,796
7,087 4,862
6,151 4,253
19,876 13,357
62,155 43,181
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2022

2022

2022

2022

2022
2022

2022
2022

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

10
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5,985 23,070 7 16 29,078
3,656 4 7 3,667

(2,848) @) 12) (2,861)
15 48 63
6,000 23,926 10 11 29,947
1,190 9,414 3 9 10,616
181 3,965 3 2 4,151

(2,458) @) ©) (2,468)
4 32 36
1,375 10,953 5 2 12,335
59 59
59 59
4,566 12,973 5 9 17,533
4,736 13,656 4 7 18,403
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2021

2021

2021

2021
2021

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)
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5,957 21,122 4 16 27,099
33 4,071 5 1 4,110

(2,107) @ @ (2,110)

® (16) (21

12 31 5,985 23,070 7 16 29,078
1,009 6,978 2 6 7,995

10 182 4,070 3 4 4,259

(1,629) @ @ (1,632)

@ ® ®)

12 31 1,190 9,414 3 9 10,616
59 59

12 31 59 59
12 31 4,736 13,656 4 7 18,403
4,948 14,144 2 10 19,104
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®)
2022 2021
503 506
501 536
3,001 2,989
3,038 3,228
4,612 4,925
1,178 1,628
13,013 13,812
©
10
() 2022 4,932 2021
4,835

(e) 2022 2021 12 31
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2022

2022

2022

2022

2022
2022

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021
2021

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

10

10
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10,045 1,083 11,128
347 347
(13) (13)

14 98 112
10,393 1,181 11,574
6,550 512 7,062
1,021 40 1,061
(10) (10)
11 48 59
7,572 600 8,172
2,821 581 3,402
3,495 571 4,066
9,576 1,118 10,694
479 479
(10) (35) (45)
10,045 1,083 11,128
5,442 489 5,931
1,114 39 1,153
®) (16) 22)
6,550 512 7,062
3,495 571 4,066
4,134 629 4,763
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31

CMBWLB ()

CMRM ()

o ()
)

CMB WLB

2008 30
12,898
10,177

2013 11 28

752

355

2022 12 30 CMB WLB

2015 CMBIC

CGU

10
CGU

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

Ogoooood
2021 1302§1
12 31
10,177 10,177
355 355
45 45
1 1
10,533 45 10,578
(579) (579)
9,954 45 9,999
CMB WLB 53.12 CMB WLB
6,851
CMB WLB 24
CMFM  55.00 CMFM
414 769
CMFM 24
( CMlI )
CMI 357
402 45
100
0A IT
CGU
CMB WLB CMFM 11 10 2021
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32
2022 2021
90,848 81,639
(1,510) (1,353)
89,338 80,286
@
2022 2021
/C ) C )
301,706 75,228 284,360 71,191
FVTOCI (3.332) (1,016) (11,092) (2,763)
FVTPL 730 183 92 23
65,626 16,453 53,510 13,188
364,730 90,848 326,870 81,639
356 50
FVTOCI 15 4 ) [€))
FVTPL 215 54 (144) @n
(10,235) (1,618) (7,755) (1,325)
(9,649) (1,510) (7,904) (1,353)
®
FVTOCI FVTPL
2022 71,101 (2,764) [0 11,863 80,286
4,061 1,160 243 2,993 8,457
578 (1) 557
26 14 ) 38
2022 12 75,278 (1,012) 237 14,835 89,338
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OooooOodd
FVTOCI FVTPL
2021 61,340 (1,404) 1,579 10,305 71,820
9,850 1,020 (1,584) 1,516 10,802
(2,383) 14 (2.,369)
1 3 1 28 33
2021 12 31 71,191 (2,764) ) 11,863 80,286
33
2022 2021
15,387 78,719
5,274 5,274
4,154 3,913
209 257
(@) 456 513
465 519
329 186
7,569 4,987
196 135
39(b) 50 65
21,889 27,953
55,978 122,521
@
2022 2021
606 623
6 31
612 654
(156) (141)
456 513
2022 44 (2021 66 )
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34
2022 2021
(a) 644,618 751,254
1,056 1,764
654,674 753,018
€))
2022 2021
633,178 701,085
103,250 77,788
529,928 623,297
11,440 50,169
10,779 48,301
661 1,868
644,618 751,254
35
2022 2021
(a) 191,872 170,257
985 393
192,857 170,650
@
2022 2021
124,533 114,496
123,934 107,214
599 7,282
67,339 55,761
67,130 55,570
209 191
191,872 170,257
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36
2022 2021
@ 18,247 17,017
(b) 45,067 46,744
63,314 63,761
@
2022 2021
17,634 16,406
613 611
18,247 17,017
V)
2022 2021
36,217 34,677
14,170 11,596
22,047 23,081
8,850 12,067
383 377
7,709 7,600
758 4,090
45,067 46,744
2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021 12 31 2022 2021
12 31
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37
2022 2021
@) 107,024 157,572
69 88
107,093 157,660
@
2022 2021
103,452 155,322
103,446 147,410
6 7,912
3,572 2,250
2,801 1,854
771 396
107,024 157,572
)
2022 2021
95,999 152,071
73,335 90,956
15,330 48,833
3,476 2,774
3,858 9,508
11,025 5,501
107,024 157,572
38
2022 2021
@ 7,535,742 6,347,078
54,837 38,076
7,590,579 6,385,154
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@
2022 2021
4,431,553 4,058,924
2,762,671 2,652,817
1,668,882 1,406,107
3,104,189 2,288,154
1,983,364 1,557,861
1,120,825 730,293
7,535,742 6,347,078
®
2022 2021
199,384 134,858
6,888 18,878
29,366 21,574
44,732 32,412
42,490 31,208
322,860 238,930
39
@
2022
() 18,065 151 58,583 (53,724) 23,075
() 1,629 5,110 (5.974) 765
() 67 (41) 26
19,761 151 63,652 (59, 698) 23,866
2021
() 14,155 53,827 (49,917) 18,065
() 1,240 4,884 (4,495) 1,629
() 67 17 an 67
15,462 58,728 (54,429) 19,761
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(

(

)

)

2022
14,318 151 48,682 (44,263) 18,888
19 2,310 (2,312) 17
530 3,311 (3.470) 371
515 3,192 (3,354) 353
6 34 (34) 6
9 85 (82) 12
166 2,309 (2,318) 157
3,032 1,971 (1,361) 3,642
18,065 151 58,583 (53,724) 23,075
2021
11,121 43,716 (40,519) 14,318
24 2,908 (2,913) 19
408 3,158 (3,036) 530
391 3,046 (2,922) 515
6 27 @n 6
11 85 87 9
191 2,119 (2,144) 166
2,411 1,926 (1,305) 3,032
14,155 53,827 (49,917) 18,065
2022
157 2,821 (2,827) 151
1,450 2,221 (3,080) 591
22 68 (67) 23
1,629 5,110 (5,974) 765
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2021
130 2,566 (2,539) 157
1,088 2,257 (1,895) 1,450
22 61 (61) 22
1,240 4,884 (4,495) 1,629
2022 12 31
14 16 2021 14 16
2022 12 31
0 8.33 2021 0 8.33
2022
67 (41) 26
2021
67 17 an 67
10 2022 12 31

10
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2015
2016

2017

(

)
22
24
25
)
2022 12 31
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2022 12 31
0.157 10
0.210 10
0.240 10
2022 2021
16.21 1.76 18.34 2.87
17.23 (0.42)
13.65 (1.15) 19.11 (0.69)
15.91 0.61 16.21 1.76
15.25 0.55 14.92 1.35
15.91 2021 16.21
2021  4.36



(

)

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)
oOoOooodn

2022
24.94 25.27 17.75
43.30 43.30 43.30
12.81 11.38 21.92
48.34 48.34 48.34
2.50 3.58 4.58
2.93 2.93 2.93
1.43 1.43 1.43
2021
40.54 33.66 33.40 25.98
61.75 61.75 61.75 61.75
7.44 14.59 13.16 23.70
37.41 37.41 37.41 37.41
2.50 3.50 4.58 5.58
3.36 3.36 3.36 3.36
1.43 1.43 1.43 1.43
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)
2022
/
1,230
157 210 240 607 203
157 210 240 607 1,433
2021
/
225 300 300 330 1,155 75
870
157 210 240 607 203
660
225 457 510 570 1,762 1,808
2022 2021 17.23 0.42
)
CMB WLB
CMB WLB
2022 12 31 1ASB IAS 19
121 2021 123
2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
285 349
(235) (284)

50 65
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12
2022
2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
©) (10)
1
(®) (10)
2022 12 31 42 2021
2022 2021
284 341
9 10
4 1
(49) (42)
O] O]
(31) (22)
10
22 ®
12 31 235 284
2022 2021
349 401
5 1
A7) 1
(49) (42)
27 (12)
12 31 285 349
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2022 2021
153 53.7 202 57.9
50 17.5 71 20.3
82 28.8 76 21.8
285 100.0 349 100.0
2022 12 31 58 2021 53
2022 2021
3.3 1.4
4.6 0.4
5.0 5.0
2022 2021
2022 2021
13,392 16,539
4,141 4,399
1,925 1,553
19,458 22,491
2022 2021
5,319 6,065
1,360 1,471
6,679 7,536
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ooooOoog
42

2022 2021
20,217 12,790
2,274 1,870
22,491 14,660

2022 2021
20,217 12,790
12 ECL 12,082 8,210
ECL 7,569 3,724
ECL 566 856

43

2022 2021
@ 19,994 34,236
©) 120,971 159,306
65,719 240,284
15,604 10,715
1,533 2,104
223,821 446,645

@
11,700
2012 ’
180 12 27 5.20 11,696 4 (11,700)
20,000
2018 ’
120 11 15 4.65 19,994 19,994
31,690 4 (11,700) 19,994
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CMB WLB

3.75

T*41.75
2017 400

120 11 22 2,546 3 116 (2,665)

2,546 3 116 (2,665)
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0oooooo
300
36 20 0.25 2,164 o) 30 (2,193)
600
36 20}8 Libor* 3,823 97 (3,920)
+0.74
30,000
36 2019 3.45 29,990 10 (30,000)
20,000
36 209 3.33 19,997 3 (20,000)
60
33 20;3 Libor* 382 10 (392)
+0.74
400
36 2020 1.10 2,546 @ 236 2,780
300
36 2020 0.95 1,908 ) 183 2,087
10,000
36 T 3.48 9,998 1 9,999
10,000
36 2oi1 3.40 9,998 9,998
20,000
36 2021 3.18 19,995 19,995
10,000
36 2021 2,90 9,998 9,998
2%
" 300
2% 2021 SORR* + 1,912 W 176 2,087
0.50
300
60 2021 1.25 1,912 w 178 2,089
400
36 2022 2.00 2,534 9 255 2,798
5,000
36 2022 2.65 4,998 1 4,999
10,000
36 2022 2.40 10,000 @) 9,997
114,623 17,532 12 1,165  (56,505) 76,827
Libor SOFR
CVMB WLB 2022 12 31 555 2021 12 31
1,142
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Ooooooo
CMBFL
36 20 3.50 Ho% 1,500 (1,500)
60 2019 4.00 o0 499 1 500
13
36 2009 3.68 3000 2,999 1 (3,000)
60 2019 3.00 o0 5,705 10 550 6,265
120 2019 3.63 10 633 1 60 694
36 Zoi? 3.60 .00 2,998 2 (3,000)
120 2020 4.25 2000 1,993 1 1,994
60 2029 1.88 o0 5,078 5 488 5,571
120 2020 2.75 0 2,526 3 242 2,771
36 et 3.85 000 3,993 4 3,997
36 e 3.60 000 3,992 4 3,996
60 2021 2.00 0 2,539 2 244 2,785
120 2021 2.88 0 2,520 3 242 2,765
18 20% 1.16 * 318 30 (348)
36 202 3.58 2000 1,996 2 1,998
60 2021 2.00 # 126 12 138
24
36 202 1.25 o0 3,805 5 369 4,179
60 2028 1.75 30 1,893 3 185 2,081
36 2zt 0.50 10 721 1 19 741
12 1220% Libor + ® 382 35 “417)
0.55
2 o 0.50 * 216 6 222
12 2022 SOFR + He 728 1 73 802

0.80
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Ooooooog
45
2022 SOFR +
12 0.8 298 16 314
75
2022 SOFR +
12 100 497 26 523
120
2022 SOFR +
12 12 0.95 805 32 837
80
12 2022 1.95 554 38 592
50
2022 SOFR +
10 13 0.75 346 3 349
300
2022
12 U 3.21 300 300
45
2022 SOFR +
12 1 0 83 315 @ 314
100
2022 SOFR +
60 1 1 140 695 3 698
57
2022
12 Py 2.90 420 1 421
46,432 4,958 49 2,673 (8,265) 45,847
CMBFL 2022 12 31 1,370 2021 12 31
1,370 CMBFL
CMBILM 2022
12 31 2,268 2021 12 31 2,085 CMB WLB
CMBILM 2022 12 31 1,602 2021 12 31 900
CMBIC
600
36 2021 1.38 3,816 1) 371 4,166
3,816 1) 371 4,166
CMB WLB CMBIC 2022 12 31 74 2021 12 31 68
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oOoOooodn
44
2022 2021
31,534 50,565
45,500 38,500
5,274 5,274
2,902 2,063
827 951
39 47
39,862 42,170
125,938 139,570
45
2021
20,629
4,591
25,220
2022 2022 12 31 25,220 25,220
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oooooog
46
@
2017
2017
10 25 4.40 20 50 6,597
2017
2017
12 2 4,81 100 275 27,468
325 34,065
2022 2022 12 31
2017
10 25 50 6,597 (50) (6,597)
2017
12 22 275 27,468 275 27,468
325 34,065 (50) (6,597) 275 27,468
() 2017 10 25 1,000
20 50
4.40 16.68
CBIRC
() 2017 12 22 27,500
100 275
4.81 16.68
)
Tier Tier 5.125
Tier 5.125
Tier
Tier CBIRC
CBIRC
CSRC
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OOooOoOoOoo
CBIRC
Tier
(b)
2020 3.95 500 49,989
100
15021 3,69 430 42,989
100
930 92,978
2022 2022 12 31
. 500 49,989 500 49,989
13021 430 42,989 430 42,989
930 92,978 930 92,978

201/433




(

(

)

)

2020

2021

2021

CBIRC

Tier

2020
Tier
100 2020
2021 12
Tier 2021
100
CBIRC

Tier

202/433

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

ooooooo
50,000
2020
2020
43,000
2020
2021
Tier



©

47

12 31

48

FVTOCI

FVTOCI

49

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)
oOoOooodn

2022 2021
945,503 858,745
825,057 731,702
120,446 127,043

5,237 3,613
5,237 3,613
(5,237) (3,613)
8,735 6,936
5,948 3,300
62(a) 2,787 3,636

2022 2021

67,523 67,523
(2,088)
65,435 67,523

2022 2021

9,319 11,459
2,606 2,578
78 88
(233) 922
45
11,815 15,047
()
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50

12 31

51

1.5

12 31

52
@

(®)

2021

2020

1.738

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

ooooOoog
MOF
10

2022 2021
82,137 71,158
12,848 10,979
94,985 82,137

2.5
2022 2021

115,288 98,082
17,183 17,206
132,471 115,288

2022 2021

1 1.522 38,385

1 1.253 31,601

2022 2021
12,848 10,979
17,183 17,206
2021 1 1.522 43,832 38,385
73,863 66,570
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53

54

2022
2022

2023

24

2022

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)
oOoOooodn

2021

14,787
2,884
585,338
47,791
247,340
276,292
5,482,692
369,391
17,859
1,533,546
675,484
10,724
50,767
13,341
6,190

907
26,541
16,764
2,422
88,056
41,440

12,794
4,554
543,652
41,632
188,376
523,516
5,023,050
290,941
23,179
1,183,662
552,498
6,392
49,495
12,582
5,521
945
26,833
17,701
3,228
79,712
109,871

9,510,556

8,700,134
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oOoOooodn
2022 2021

129,745 159,987
621,621 732,631
43,319 55,710
40,035 36,105
18,207 26,866
95,970 137,857
7,327,974 6,150,241
19,136 15,853
17,221 20,926
6,653 7,536
12,285 13,164
22,410 14,503
172,402 398,672
96,680 119,395
8,623,658 7,889,446
25,220 25,220
120,446 127,043
76,082 76,681
13,144 14,866
94,985 82,137
121,230 105,941
391,579 340,271
43,832 38,385
380 144
886,898 810,688
9,510,556 8,700,134




2022

2021

2022

FVTOCI

2022 12 31

2021

2020

2021

FVTOCI

2021 12 31

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

OooooOodd
25,220 34,065 92,978 76,681 14,866 82,137 105,941 340,271 38,385 144 810,688
- (6,597) - (599) 1,722) 12,848 15,289 51,308 5,447 236 76,210
- - - - - - - 128,484 - - 128,484
- - - - (1,692) - - - - 236 (1,456)
- - - - (1,692) - - 128,484 - 236 127,028
- (6,597) - (599) - - - - - - (7,196)
- - - - - 12,848 15,289 (77,206) 5,447 - (43,622)
- - - - - 12,848 - (12,848) - - -
- - - - - - 15,289 (15,289) - - -
- - - - - - - - (38,385) - (38,385)
_ _ _ - - - - (43,832) 43,832 - -
- - - - - - - (1,675) - - (1,675)
- - - - - - - (3,562) - - (3,562)
- - - - (30) - - 30 - - -
25,220 27,468 92,978 76,082 13,144 94,985 121,230 391,579 43,832 380 886,898
25,220 34,065 49,989 76,681 7,951 (26) 71,158 94,067 293,523 31,601 228 684,457
- - 42,989 - 6,915 26 10,979 11,874 46,748 6,784 (84) 126,231
- - - - - - - - 109,794 - - 109,794
- - - - 8,720 26 - - - - (84) 8,662
- - - - 8,720 26 - - 109,794 - (84) 118,456
- - 42,989 - - - - - - - - 42,989
- - - - - - 10,979 11,874 (64,851) 6,784 - (35,214)
- - - - - - 10,979 - (10,979) - - -
- - - - - - - 11,874 (11,874) - - -
- - - - - - - - - (31,601) - (31,601)
_ _ - - - - - - (38,385) 38,385 - -
- - - - - - - - (1,638) - - (1,638)
- - - - - - - - (1,975) - - (1,975)
- - - - (1,805) - - - 1,805 - - -
25,220 34,065 92,978 76,681 14,866 - 82,137 105,941 340,271 38,385 144 810,688
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55
@
2022 2021
66,055 79,129
81,928 75,919
93,704 65,897
275,051 527,341
50,460 53,468
567,198 801,754
®
2022 240,284 11,092 201,142 2,104 26 26,650 13,812 495,110
78,666 20,287 21,481 10,796 131,230
(250,996)  (16,504)  (78,735) (14,959) (4,932)  (366,126)
(5,714) (6,686)  (44,103) (56,503)
3,623 3,623
6,115 510 6,625
44,103 44,103
3,479 31 37 3,547
(26) (544) ©) (579)
1,107 5,293 241 6,641
2022 12 31 65,719 15,987 148,674 1,533 26 22,719 13,013 267,671
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19,084

14,692
(21,363)

(811)

(15)

(495)
11,092

194,775

63,872
(55,771)

53

(257)

(1,530)
201,142

1,985

(7,630)

7,749

2,104

26 23,047
6,860
(3,697)
(35,685)
35,685
656
(216)
26 26,650

14,242 397,975
405,131

(4,835)  (311,678)
(47,083)

3,850 3,850
555 8,304
35,685

4,783

384

(2,241)

13,812 495,110

2021 144,816
319,707

(226,012)

(3,768)

5,541

2021 12 31 240,284

©

2022 2021 12 31
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56
)
)
)
CMB WLB CMBFL
2022 CMBFL

2022 2021
10
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@
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
28,165 21,026 140,443 135,412 49,627 47,481 218,235 203,919
«C ) 62,294 69,222 (9,054) (18,571) (53,240) (50,651)
90,459 90,248 131,389 116,841 (3,613) (3,170) 218,235 203,919
25,540 25,290 57,279 60,155 11,456 9,002 94,275 94,447
26,095 27,080 2,747 2,018 863 @7 29,705 29,011
142,094 142,618 191,415 179,014 8,706 5,745 342,215 327,377
(7,103) (5,740) (2,942) (2,860) (234) (257) (10,279) (8,857)
(1,676) (1,672) (2,250) (2,367) (225) (220) (4,151) (4,259)
(43,495) (41,317) (58,079) (56,451) (6,057) (5,995) (107,631)  (103,763)
89,820 93,889 128,144 117,336 2,190 727) 220,154 210,498
(22,671) (26,503) (33,966) (39,627) (929) (225) (57,566) (66,355)
2,525 4,030 2,525 4,030
67,149 67,386 94,178 77,709 3,786 3,078 165,113 148,173
28,884 20,158 2,660 3,278 513 326 32,057 23,762

2022 12 31 2021 12 31 2022 12 31 2021 12 31 2022 12 31 2021 12 31 2022 12 31 2021 12 31

5,633,640 5,203,529 3,081,290 2,908,405 1,314,820 1,037,190 10,029,750 9,149,124

23,844 23,654 23,844 23,654

5,495,463 5,142,042 3,157,321 2,329,192 446,949 811,434 9,099,733 8,282,668
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®)

©
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2022 2021
342,215 327,377
165,113 148,173

2022 12 31 2021 12 31

10,029,750 9,149,124

9,999 9,954

581 571

90,848 81,639
7,734 7,733
10,138,912 9,249,021
9,099,733 8,282,668
19,458 22,491
1,510 1,353
63,973 76,828
9,184,674 8,383,340
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CMB WLB CMBIC CMBFL CMFM CMBWM

2022 12 31 2021 12 31 2022 12 31 2001 12 31
4,580,315 4,155,509 3,841,548 3,492,876
1,304,806 1,199,329 1,283,400 1,177,342
827,394 725,505 811,449 711,389
1,083,521 997,986 1,063,334 979,018
170,632 169,282 166,486 166,933
636,801 567,191 628,361 550,499
632,766 590,272 623,631 580,623
194,412 210,633 193,651 208,569
708,265 633,224 572,814 507,001
10,138,912 9,249,021 9,184,674 8,383,340

e 2 2022 2021 2022 2021
52,166 51,220 51,396 42,939 140,083 145,403
5,774 6,198 22,939 24,002 45,768 41,451
4,354 4,319 19,759 17,971 34,105 31,286
4,232 4,432 26,479 22,252 37,563 35,379
1,505 1,617 4,075 2,919 6,485 6,108
3,602 3,958 10,740 9,744 20,989 19,448
3,497 3,877 11,755 12,191 20,931 20,192
707 861 2,046 1,575 3,557 2,632
80,148 61,382 15,924 14,490 32,714 25,478
155,985 137,864 165,113 148,173 342,215 327,377
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2022 2021

129,438 159,357

8,620 7,517
107,024 157,572
245,082 324,446
24,093 29,241
99,199 195,166
25,267 34,441
105,531 81,357
254,090 340,205
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2022
12 ECL ECL ECL

245,003 9,818 272 255,093

44,805 7,341 3 52,149

200,198 2,477 269 202,944

231,849 1,344 233,193

427,150 3,733 500 431,383

155,775 1,607 157,382

22,638 4 22,642

133,137 1,603 134,740

1,406,911 9,613 85 1,416,609

81,225 245 81,470

2,547,913 26,360 857 2,575,130

2021
12 ECL ECL ECL

197,208 7,353 254 204,815

52,198 6,337 3 58,538

145,010 1,016 251 146,277

162,320 1,711 188 164,219

339,155 5,684 790 345,629

141,727 4,896 2 146,625

26,611 2 26,613

115,116 4,896 120,012

1,231,831 7,903 122 1,239,856

126,995 1,555 128,550

2,199,236 29,102 1,356 2,229,694

2022 12 31 22,525 2021 12 31 16,974
6,965 2021 12 31 9,552
203,703 2021 12 31 137,693
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5,159,127

2021

593,062

2021

480
234

714

2022 12 31
2021 12 31 4,441,835
2022
595,977
CBIRC
2014 CBIRC
®)
2022
370
189
559
58(e)
©
2022 12 31
1,910 2021 1,678
@

PBOC
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2022 2021
27,401 30,020
2022 2021
30,519 13,750
8,025 7,421
38,544 21,171
2022 2021
231,266 263,589
(231,266) (263,589)
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2,552,408

©

2021 12 31

2,683,636
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2022

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)
oOoOooodn

2022 12 31

2021

108,868

86,098
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OooooOodd
90
90
( ) ECL
ECL
PO 12
LGD
EAD
)
GDP
CPI PPI
M2
GDP CPI
2023 4.80 2022

5.34 2.80 2022 2.43
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3.1 2021 12 31 3.4

10 10

2021 12 31 1.5
)
)
@)

12,440,314
)
2022 12 31
2021 12 31 16,517

)

2022 12 31
50,862
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2022 12 31
10 ECL
ECL 5.2
12
ECL
58
2022 12 31
2021 12 31 11,235,033
12,076
58,004 2021 12 31
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OooooOodd
)
2022 2021
398 340
(243) (228)
155 112
AAA 1,750,057 1,345,363
AA+  AA- 53,526 29,468
A A- 562,475 422,427
A- 33,429 28,415
38,966 57,994
(5,958) (10,935)
2,432,495 1,872,732
2,432,650 1,872,844
2022 12 31 2,094,902 2021
12 31 1,596,105
)
2022 2021
25,148 4,124

223/433
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2022
12 EL ECL ECL
4,912,836 111,354 50,862 5,075,052
425,054 (27,002) (1,831) 396,221
18,758 (18,644) (114)
(103,532) 103,794 (262)
(35,248) (13,117) 48,365
(145) (39,016) (39,161)
5,217,868 156,240 58,004 5,432,112
2021
1 EcL ECL ECL
4,517,239 76,286 53,615 4,647,140
468,264 (4,154) (1,093) 463,017
20,436 (20,293) (143)
(69,411) 69,966 (555)
(23,692) (10,451) 34,143
(35,105) (35,105)
4,912,836 111,354 50,862 5,075,052
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2022
1 EcL ECL ECL
1,183,320 1,962 24,077 1,209,359
361,916 (275) 9,395 371,036
3 (€))
(1,276) 1,276
(311) (887) 1,198
(550) (550)
1,543,652 2,073 34,120 1,579,845
2021
b el ECL ECL
1,044,826 971 14,590 1,060,387
140,141 (656) 9,487 148,972
(1,647) 1,647
1,183,320 1,962 24,077 1,209,359
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0oooooo
22 23
() 60 ( )
58(a) 42
2022
ECL ECL

" ECL " ECL

ECL ECL
587,533 587,533

91,574 2 1 91,587 (497) W ) (509)
264,782 264,782 (2,658) (2,658)
277,421 140 277,561 (954) (140)  (1,094)
FvTOCt 767,905 3,211 155 771,271 (4,472) (479)  (1,589)  (6,540)
2021
ECL ECL

" ECL " ECL

ECL ECL
553,655 553,655

80,653 11 80,664 (367) Iety) (378)
196,245 106 196,351 (2,859) W (2,860)
528,424 140 528,564 (4,123) (140)  (4,263)
FvToCH 626,007 2,236 112 628,355 (4,700) 875)  (1,047)  (6,622)
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OooooOodd
()
2022
555,828 41,978 2,766 2,170 602,742 6,039 3,103
491,188 100,237 22,244 16,000 629,669 14,420 24,951
5,466,679 148,993 157,628 23,246 5,796,546 21,433 176,812
2,534,659 188,200 31,130 9,233 2,763,222 27,073 34,920
() 244,335 95,541 3,313 3,544 346,733 13,744 3,716
9,292,689 574,949 217,081 54,193 10,138,912 82,709 243,502
970,667 92,817 3,961 5,507 1,072,952 13,353 4,443
6,964,197 361,242 160,496 49,807 7,535,742 51,967 180,029
FVTPL
63,769 17,725 421 35 81,950 2,549 473
162,146 58,447 790 905 222,288 8,408 886
() 247,646 11,235 11,944 917 271,742 1,618 13,397
8,408,425 541,466 177,612 57,171 9,184,674 77,895 199,228
884,264 33,483 39,469 (2,978) 954,238 4,814 44,274
) 2,456,047 82,618 21,961 14,504 2,575,130 11,885 24,634
280,979 288,388 26,409 20,844 616,620 41,486 29,623
(253,696)  (294,290)  (19,462)  (14,878) (582,326)  (42,335)  (21,831)
29,143 (32,690) (10) 4 (3,516) (4,703) 11)
56,426 (38,592) 6,937 6,007 30,778 (5.552) 7,781

228/433
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2021
487,777 57,919 18,482 2,787 566,965 9,089 22,611
668,673 108,887 12,162 8,356 798,078 17,085 14,879
4,992,946 156,000 141,605 34,960 5,325,511 24,478 173,238
2,037,147 108,939 20,348 10,081 2,176,515 17,095 24,893
() 254,488 111,972 10,513 4,979 381,952 17,569 12,862
8,441,031 543,717 203,110 61,163 9,249,021 85,316 248,483
1,115,553 108,820 4,894 9,327 1,238,594 17,075 5,988
5,830,585 346,349 129,300 40,844 6,347,078 54,346 158,184
FVTPL
71,041 18,554 1,438 10 91,043 2,911 1,759
390,550 50,425 221 3,345 444,541 7,912 270
() 235,507 16,336 9,317 924 262,084 2,565 11,399
7,643,236 540,484 145,170 54,450 8,383,340 84,809 177,600
797,795 3,233 57,940 6,713 865,681 507 70,883
) 2,117,722 71,179 24,448 16,345 2,229,694 11,169 29,909
459,207 451,419 8,554 16,144 935,324 70,833 10,465
(388,786)  (395,153)  (10,651) (9,748) (804,338)  (62,004) (13,030)
(93,522) 38,175 8 3,059 (52,280) 5,990 10
(23,101) 94,441 (2,089) 9,455 78,706 14,819 (2,555)
)
)

229/433
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
2022 2021
(64) 64 (79) 79
(284) 284 (262) 262
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0000000
2022
(
1
)
602,742 575,932 - - - 26,810
629,669 516,309 99,288 14,059 13 -
() 5,796,546 2,234,889 3,028,371 473,932 59,354 -
2,763,222 217,442 356,451 975,413 1,164,031 49,885
() 346,733 - - - - 346,733
10,138,912 3,544,572 3,484,110 1,463,404 1,223,398 423,428
1,072,952 915,004 142,452 10,501 4,995 -
7,535,742 5,528,249 860,746 1,111,583 31,365 3,799
FVTPL 81,950 - 3,006 5,231 73 73,640
13,013 1,094 3,001 7,650 1,178 -
222,288 35,587 69,617 89,565 27,519 -
) 258,729 203 - 2,752 - 255,774
9,184,674 6,480,137 1,078,912 1,227,282 65,130 333,213
954,238 (2,935,565) 2,405,198 236,122 1,158,268 90,215
2021
(¢
1
)
566,965 537,981 - - - 28,984
798,078 723,941 63,581 10,507 49 -
) 5,325,511 2,134,671 2,750,245 376,357 64,238 -
2,176,515 159,659 288,349 884,079 795,611 48,817
) 381,952 - - - - 381,952
9,249,021 3,556,252 3,102,175 1,270,943 859,898 459,753
1,238,594 1,081,661 149,900 6,311 722 -
6,347,078 4,820,271 718,509 804,755 348 3,195
FVTPL 91,043 1,428 2,075 8,177 158 79,205
13,812 1,042 2,989 8,153 1,628 -
444,541 96,239 220,608 88,974 38,720 -
() 248,272 84 - - - 248,188
8,383,340 6,000,725 1,094,081 916,370 41,576 330,588
865,681  (2,444,473) 2,008,094 354,573 818,322 129,165
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( )2022 12 31 2021 12 31
()
()
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
2022 2021
25 25 25 25
(4,412) 4,412 (3,605) 3,605
(8,462) 8,586 (6,830) 6,927
12
©
ALCO

ALCO
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2022
1 1

. 66,055 1,201 535,486 602,742

[GRO))
62,456 368,268 84,572 99,288 15,072 13 629,669
26,008 499,842 399,102 1,514,348 1,626,514 1,706,378 24,264 5,796,546
» 4,213 99,154 105,394 372,002 995,867 1,166,665 19,139 788 2,763,222

-FVTPL
4,213 79,576 42,022 99,531 158,992 52,081 5,723 442,138
- 13,554 35,043 133,748 449,002 904,281 760 1,536,397
-FvToct 6,024 28,329 138,723 387,873 210,303 19 771,271
-Fvroct 13,416 13,416
) 36,461 10,932 15,526 18,475 15,859 5,798 239,528 4,154 346,733
195,193 978,196 604,684 2,005,314 2,653,312 2,878,854 794,153 20,206 10,138,912
515,446 264,739 116,071 148,556 20,817 6,423 1,072,952
4,746,035 384,557 303,284 861,631 1,115,153 35,082 7,535,742
FVTPL

12,950 12,026 12,071 12,415 11,457 20,131 81,950
503 501 3,001 7,650 1,178 13,013
3,939 27,886 73,379 89,565 27,519 222,288
) 159,820 26,774 19,358 23,667 28,868 242 258,729
5,434,251 692,538 571,061 1,122,739 1,273,510 90,575 9,184,674
/ (5,239,058) 285,658 33,623 882,575 1,379,802 2,788,279 794,153 29,206 954,238
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2021
. T
¢y 79,129 487,836 566,965
59,862 601,897 60,072 65,405 10,793 49 798,078
20,719 545,165 368,482 1,333,756 1,387,033 1,650,468 19,888 5,325,511
Cy 4,058 88,783 60,315 304,846 912,392 795,813 10,071 237 2,176,515
-FVTPL
4,058 67,589 31,524 95,228 134,821 35,217 3,076 371,513
- 8,882 11,185 133,930 425,327 590,001 237 1,169,652
-Fvroct 12,312 17,606 75,688 352,244 170,505 628,355
-FvTect 6,995 6,995
) 103,999 10,432 13,946 14,551 14,891 6,107 214,113 3,913 381,952
267,767 1,246,277 502,815 1,718,558 2,325,109 2,452,437 712,020 24,038 9,249,021
627,957 313,745 122,210 153,551 18,350 2,781 1,238,594
4,185,788 315,077 316,452 719,506 809,176 1,079 6,347,078
FVTPL
12,942 13,301 11,720 13,740 20,629 18,711 91,043
506 536 2,989 8,153 1,628 13,812
21,181 70,472 222,647 88,974 41,267 444,541
) 160,991 37,159 15,455 24,744 9,404 519 248,272
4,987,678 700,969 536,845 1,137,177 954,686 65,985 8,383,340
/ (4,719,911) 545,308 (34,030) 581,381 1,370,423 2,386,452 712,020 24,038 865,681
)
) FVTPL
)
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2022
X 1
602,742 602,742 66,055 1,201 535,486
629,669 631,123 62,467 368,531 85,088 99,900 15,124 13
5,796,546 7,132,934 26,024 516,746 433,106 1,604,961 2,071,922 2,365,750 24,425
2,744,551 3,251,681 4,102 101,509 112,634 415,839 1,184,020 1,413,650 19,139 788
-FVTRL 423,467 439,231 4,102 76,314 38,048 96,166 161,826 57,052 5,723
- 1,536,307 1,919,576 17,387 42,650 166,559 588,262 1,103,949 769
-Fvroct 771,271 879,458 7,808 31,936 153,114 433,932 252,649 19
-FvToct 13,416 13,416 13,416
89,425 89,425 35,078 10,381 15,434 17,310 1,534 605 4,929 4,154
9,862,933 11,707,905 193,726 997,167 646,262 2,229,211 3,272,600 3,780,018 550,554 29,367
1,072,052 1,084,577 515,448 265,758 118,566 151,289 26,301 7,125
7,535,742 7,794,971 4,847,726 389,687 403,223 894,832 1,203,242 36,261
FVTPL 63,314 63,506 12,085 9,000 8,027 5,486 7,988 20,020
13,013 14,202 505 509 3,328 8,386 1,474
222,288 235,656 4,480 28,783 76,447 96,703 29,243
162,409 162,409 62,796 27,724 11,623 28,870 31,154 242
0,060,718 9,355,411 5,438,055 697,154 571,721 1,160,252 1,393,864 94,365

1,573,991 1,573,991
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2021
. 1
566,965 566,965 79,129 487,836
798,078 800,869 59,862 602,201 62,062 65,229 11,466 49
5,325,511 6,680,629 20,719 560,371 398,738 1,503,750 1,831,318 2,345,796 19,928
2,153,125 2,540,798 3,715 90,330 67,149 339,704 1,050,476 979,116 10,071 237
-FVTRL 348,123 355,501 3,715 64,405 28,852 90,837 127,527 37,089 3,076
- 1,169,652 1,453,059 12,008 17,405 159,993 529,081 734,385 237
-FvToct 628,355 725,243 13,017 20,892 88,874 393,918 207,642
-FvToct 6,995 6,995 6,995
154,308 154,308 102,918 9,801 13,745 13,795 1,848 528 7,670 3,913
8,997,987 10,743,569 266,343 1,262,793 541,604 1,922,487 2,895,108 3,325,489 505,577 24,078
1,238,594 1,245,870 628,157 315,523 123,610 156,000 19,668 2,912
6,347,078 6,500,805 4,215,760 318,932 323,909 754,023 887,030 1,151
FVTPL 63,761 64,232 12,926 10,408 7,387 4,748 10,068 18,695
13,812 15,087 511 545 3,080 8,974 1,077
444,541 450,323 22,002 70,839 226,189 94,221 46,072
158,001 158,001 74,533 36,128 15,454 23,052 8,406 518
8,265,877 8,443,408 4,931,376 703,504 541,744 1,167,092 1,028,367 71,325

1,386,481 1,386,481

@
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Tier Tier
CBIRC
CBIRC
2022 12 31
CMB WLB CMBIC CMBFL CMFM CMBWM
2013 CBIRC

2014 18 CBIRC

CBIRC
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OoooooO
2022
60,013 734,650 735,046 4,720 1,534,429 6,246 (6,062)
60,013 734,241 735,046 4,720 1,534,020 6,246 (6,062)
409 409
513,568 329,319 27,320 1,198 871,405 11,348 (11,449)
21,443 4,812 645 1,198 28,098 487 (328)
347,432 226,332 17,724 591,488 9,263 (7,304)
1,043 81 1,124
143,650 98,094 8,951 250,695 1,598 (3,817)
91,064 520 640 34 92,258 867 (856)
42,889 57 34 42,980 554
42,909 57 42,966 “72)
5,266 406 5,672 313 (330)
640 640 (54)
1,316 781 2,097 28 (153)
1,316 781 2,097 28 (153)
2,393 100 1,804 709 5,006 182
2,373 100 1,804 709 4,986 182
20 20
FVTPL
3,085 717 3,802 “n
3,085 717 3,802 @“n
728 728 (69)
728 728 (69)
667,038 1,068,990 767,036 6,661 2,509,725 18,671 (18,636)
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2021
567,612 823,679 1,237,360 4,966 2,633,617 11,720 (11,974)
565,833 823,679 1,237,360 4,966 2,631,838 11,720 (11,974)
391 391
1,388 1,388
647,081 506,850 29,615 1,052 1,184,598 10,041 (13,966)
26,577 14,373 1,517 1,052 43,519 985 (164)
485,140 357,685 20,086 862,911 7,530 (7,048)
587 1,157 1,744
134,777 133,635 8,012 276,424 1,526 (6,754)
134,230 5,424 277 139,931 1,472 (1,237)
62,094 907 63,001 344
62,094 907 63,001 (265)
10,001 3,475 60 13,536 1,128 (751)
41 135 217 393 (221)
830 830 16)
830 830 16)
2,883 702 3,585 46
2,883 702 3,585 46
FVTPL
191 967 3,486 4,644 111 an
191 967 3,486 4,644 111 an
72 530 602 72)
72 530 602 72)
1,349,114 1,336,992 1,274,981 6,720 3,967,807 23,390 (27,282)
2022 2021 12 31
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2022 2021
1,500 3,627
137 139
1,242 3,048
121 440
2,187 2,382
3,687 6,009
CBIRC
CBIRC
2014 CBIRC

@
)

IFRS
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)
2022
FVTPL 16,175 390,702 4,714 411,591
15,497 187,349 359 203,205
108 108
494 392 3,493 4,379
76 199,665 798 200,539
2,543 2,543
753 64 817
FVTPL 948 10,928 11,876
948 10,928 11,876
18,671 18,671
FVTPL 3 4,991 4,994
FVTOCI 136,831 643,518 780,349
FVTOCI 514,051 100,430 614,481
FVTOCI 3,164 2,862 7,390 13,416
157,118 1,580,735 117,525 1,855,378
17,917 330 18,247
17,634 17,634
283 330 613
FVTPL 21,879 20,541 2,647 45,067
14,170 14,170
383 383
7,709 7,709
20,158 2,647 22,805
18,636 18,636
39,796 39,507 2,647 81,950
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2021
FVTPL 20,517 292,849 4,879 318,245
19,102 127,411 373 146,886
102 102
1,180 2 3,727 4,909
133 161,865 772 162,770
2,396 2,396
1,175 7 1,182
FVTPL 1,022 28,856 29,878
1,022 28,856 29,878
23,390 23,390
FVTPL 7,281 7,281
FVTOCI 127,847 508,191 636,038
FVTOCI 431,291 56,713 488,004
FVTOCI 2,269 4,726 6,995
151,655 1,284,577 73,599 1,509,831
16,832 185 17,017
16,406 16,406
426 185 611
FVTPL 19,569 19,028 8,147 46,744
11,596 11,596
377 377
7,600 7,600
373 18,651 8,147 27,171
27,282 27,282
36,401 46,495 8,147 91,043

2022 2021 12 31

)
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FVTPL
FVTOCI FVTPL
10
S&P
FVTOCI
FVTPL

FVTPL
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2022 12 31
FVTOCI 2,725
FVTOCI 101
FVTOCI 4,564
FVTPL 4,001
FVTOCI 100,430
FVTPL
2,950
528
15
359
797
1
64
FVTPL 2,647
2021 12 31
FvTOCI 873
FvTOCI 3,853
FVTPL 7,281
FVTOCI 56.713
FVTPL
3,491
12
209
15
373
767
5
7
FVTPL 664
FVTPL 7,483
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2022 12 31

2021

2021 12 31
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FVTPL FVTPL FVTOCI FVTOCI
4,879 7,281 56,713 4,726 73,509
14) (366) 744 364
(107) 51 (56)
1,041 85 196,298 2,527 199,951
(1,147) (2,036) (153,218) (129) (156,530)
(145) (145)
100 27 215 342
4,714 4,991 100,430 7,390 117,525
(14) (366) (380)
FVTPL FVTPL FVTOCI FVTOCI
2,727 6,856 44,289 5,064 58,936
339 287 1,365 1,991
48 1,050 1,098
1,832 143 118,229 721 120,925
(68) (107,218) (2,158) (109,444)
49 ) 49 93
4,879 7,281 56,713 4,726 73,599
339 287 626

247/433



12 31
2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021 12 31
)

22

23(b)

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

248/433

OooooOodd
2022 2021
8,147 5,649
(142) 470
96 3,105
(5,695) (860)
241 @17)
2,647 8,147
148 419
LPR
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2022

1,536,397 1,569,775 41,700 1,434,070 94,005
2021

1,169,652 1,235,725 6,659 1,097,435 131,631
2022

19,994 20,292 - 20,292 -

120,971 118,416 - 118,416 -

140,965 138,708 - 138,708 -
2021

34,236 35,173 - 35,173 -

159,306 160,893 - 160,893 -

193,542 196,066 - 196,066 -
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61
@
16,900 29.97
7,559,427,375 -
(CMG (( ()))
17,000
3,289,470,337 (13'(04 »
(CMSNCL)
600
1,258,542,349 4.99 -
600
944,013,171 3.74 -
7,778
1,147,377,415 4.55 -
Best Winner 0.05
Investment 386,924,063 1.53 - -
Co., Ltd.
China
0.06
Merchants
Union (BVI) 477,903,500 1.89 - -
Limited
10
55,196,540 0.22 -
11,000
’ 9.97 (
2,515,193,034 -
«»
16,191
1,574,729,111 6.24 -
3,191
696,450,214 2.76 -
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52
103,552,616

1,399
75,617,340

500
54,721,930
299 10,121,823

100
804,907,835

30,790
804,907,835
7,214 422,770,418

16,166
201,089,738

21,749
310,125,822

11,683
310,125,822

4,129

CMBIC
12,000
CMBFL

3.19
cCen

100

100
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1,161
CMB - - 100
wLB
1,310
- - 55
CMFM
5,556
- - 90
50
- - 100
500 ) ) ”
( ) ome 29.97 2021  29.97
( ) 2022 12 31 CMG CMSNCL 13.04 2021  13.04
() 9.97 2021  9.97
() 98.23 3.19
2021  3.23
) ( ) 1.68 2021  1.68
() 1.23 2021
1.23
() CMG
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
CMG 16,900,000,000 16,900,000,000
CMSNCL 17,000,000,000 7,000,000,000

Best Winner Investment Co., Ltd.

China Merchants Union (BVI) Ltd.

CmMBIC
CMBFL
CMB WLB
CMFM
CMBWM

600,000,000
600,000,000
7,778,000,000
50,000

60,000
10,000,000
100,000,000
30,790,000,000
11,000,000,000
16,191,351,300
3,191,200,000
52,000,000
1,398,941,000
500,000,000
299,020,000
7,274,023,830
16,165,711,425
21,749,175,737
11,683,461,365
4,129,000,000
12,000,000,000
1,160,950,575
1,310,000,000
5,555,555,555
50,000,000
500,000,000

600,000,000
600,000,000
7,778,000,000
50,000

60,000
10,000,000
100,000,000
30,790,000,000
11,000,000,000
16,191,351,300
3,191,200,000
52,000,000
1,398,941,000
500,000,000
299,020,000
7,274,023,830
16,165,711,425
21,749,175,737
11,683,461,365
4,129,000,000
12,000,000,000
1,160,950,575
1,310,000,000
5,000,000,000
50,000,000
500,000,000
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2022 12 31

2022 1 1

2022 12 31

2021 1 1

2021 12 31

2021 1 1

2021 12 31

2022

142
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CMSNCL

cmBIC

CMBFL

CMBWM

3,289,470,337 13.04 4,129,000,000 100.00 12,000,000,000 100.00 100.00 1,310,000,000 55.00 5,000,000,000 100.00
3,289,470,337  13.04 4,129,000,000 100.00 12,000,000,000 100.00 100.00 1,310,000,000 55.00 5,555,555,555 90.00
50,000,000 100.00 500,000,000
50,000,000 100.00 500,000,000
CMSNCL CmBIC CMBFL CMBWM
3,289,470,337 13.04 4,129,000,000 100.00 6,000,000,000 100.00 100.00 1,310,000,000 55.00 5,000,000,000 100.00
3,289,470,337 13.04 4,129,000,000 100.00 12,000,000,000 100.00 55.00 5,000,000,000 100.00

50,000,000 100.00 500,000,000
50,000,000 100.00 500,000,000
24
12 31
2021 12 31 265
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PBOC LPR
2022 2021
C D
3.65 3.80 3.80 3.85
3.65 4.65 3.80 4.65
0.35 0.35
1.10 2.75 1.10 2.75
2021
©
2022 12 31 MG 29.97 (2021
29.97 ) ( CMSNCL 13.04 (2021  13.04 )) CMSNCL
2022 2021
- 2,000
- 2,589 13,967
B} 40,772 42,645
- 7,626 1,147
- 29,726 29,755
- 45,342 45,708
- 210 186
- 5,087 3,645
- 318 251
- 285 188
1,848 1,738
(1,376) (1,599)
1,027 669
anm (42)
(10) 38
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61(c)
2022 2021

- 2,277
- 3,770 285
- 28,103 13,366
- 770 595
- 4,346 21,356

- 6,047
- 13,447 31,016
- 65 73
- 580 1,711
- 6 46
- 225
1,035 927
(475) (984)
133 273
74) (1,654)
(129) 7

®© 61(c)
2022 2021

- 14,675 14,500
- 6,848 6,044
- 896 1,251
- 331 693
- 8,700
306 516
(19) (20)
2,498 1,695
®) ®)
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2022 2021
399
27,070 17,654
4,302 2,512
2,929 7,502
14,872 19,704
40 46
8,511 7,895
1,835 337
5,125 5,068
913 738
(633) (585)
2,242 1,411
(138)
@ (10)
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2022 2021

- 958 1,950
- 32,438 37,055

- 1,396
- 3,415 3,454
- 4,630 7,246
- 816
- 5,206 3,957

- 38
- 4,599 1,998
- 222 81
943 1,124
(129) (258)
(93) (1,294)
(1,797) (96)
150 111

Q)
2022 2021

38,249 39,264
11,087
(41,066) 17,312
567
(2.817) 68,230
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oooooog
39(a)
(@) an
@
2022 2021 12 31
@
2017 27 CMB WLB 170 2019 24
400 CMB WLB 2017 170
2022 3,636 3,636
2022 (1,104) (1,104)
2022 202 202
2022 (202) (202)
255 255
2022 12 31 2,787 2,787
2021 3,753 3,753
2021 227 227
2021 27) 227)
17 17
2021 12 31 3,636 3,636
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15,942

2021 12 31

CMB WLB

17,362

5,274

2022 12 31
2021 12 31
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2022 2021 12 31

56,068

2022 12 31
2021 12 31

2022 12 31 5,274
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2022 2022 12 31
995 2021 548

@

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
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2022
FVTPL FVTOCI

48,362 48,362 48,362

37,954 37,954 37,954

835 1,031 170 2,036 2,036

186,311 186,311 186,311

110 110 110

187,256 87,347 170 274,773 274,773

2021
FVTPL FVTOCI

67,432 67,432 67,432

34,112 34,112 34,112

2,537 307 1,205 4,049 4,049

156,112 156,112 156,112

158,649 101,851 1,205 261,705 261,705

®)
2022 12 31
2,667,663 2021 12 31 2,777,537
2022 12 31 1,219,793
2021 12 31 1,200,150

2022 12 31 189,332

2021 12 31 174,555
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2022 12 31

2022 12 31
2021 12 31 2,396

2022 12 31

31 6,658

2022 12 31

11,004
2022 12 31
17,037 2021
2022 12 31
5,627 2021 4,223
2022 12 31
526 2021 627
2022
620,318 2021

65

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

oOoOooodn
2021 12 31 30,896
2,433
14,228 2021 12
11,143 2021
11,998
2022 12 31
1,529,874
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China Merchanis Bank Chapter VI Francial Statemants

Annual Report 2022 (H share)

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Fer the year ended 31 December 2022

(Expressed in millons of Benmenbs webeis ofbenass saned)

HNaotes 2021 2021
In{erest income [ 253 380 227 05E
Interest srpense T (135,145) [AFERE]
O S S o s e s s PPETANRTROEL a0
Fee and commission income 8 103,302 102,318
Fes and commission sxpense ES,G’E-T: (7,871}
Nt o aind sl OIS dniinnsnssiniisasa s s e andssmniian
Qther net income 29,705 29,011
= Disposal of financial instruments at amortised cast 1 (65T
Operating income 242,215 aran
Operating expenses 10 (122,061) (11687
Operating profit before impairment |osses and taxation 220,154 10,498
Expecied credit losses 14 (56,751) (B5.962)
Impairment losses on other assets {81%5) [ELE
Share of profits of joint ventues 25 1,710 1,877
Share of profits of associates it 815 1,153
Profit before taxation 165,112 148,173
Income tax 15 (25,819) (27.335)
Profit fer the year 139,494 120,834
Attributable vor
Equity halders of the Bank 138,012 119,922
Man-zontrolling interests 1,282 G412
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted (RME Yuan) 7 5.26 461

The notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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China Mercharis Bank Chaptes VIl Financial Staiomenis
Annual Report 2022 (H share)

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2022

{Exgeansad in mdlaons of Rereanbd welks ot anse Sated)

Hata 2022 2021
Profit for the year 125,294 120,834
Other comprehensive income for the year after tax
ltems that may be reclassified subsequantly to profit ar loss 1,285 5,856
= Share of other comprahensive {expenselincome from
equity-accounted investess (1,15%5] 133
= Wet fair value dossligain on gebt instrumensts measured st
fair value theowgh other comprehensive income (5.617) 4,156
= il changaes in éxpocted crodil [ossed of debd mitrumants
measizred at fair value through ather comprabiensive iIncome 3,471 3,035
= et movement in cash flow hedge resenve 12 105
= Eschange difierence on translation of financial statements of
foreign operations 4,429 (1,574}
= Dther a5 -
ftevms that will mot be reclassified fo profit or foss is 1,333
= Mol fair value gain on squity instruments designated at
tasr value through other comprehensine income 48 1318
= Rernpasurement of delined benelit scheme {10} 15
Other comprehensive income for the yoar, net of tax (13 1,313 T.189
Attributable vo:
Equity holders of the Bank 1,053 T1.298
Man-controlling interests 270 {109)
Total comprehensive Income for the year 140,817 128,023
Attributable to:
Equity holders ef the Bank 139,065 127,220
Man-cantralhng inlerests 1,552 B3

The notes form part of these consolidated financial statemsants.
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Chinas Merchanis Bank Chapter VI Firancial Statemants
Annual Report 2022 (H share)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2023
[Egreised i millons of Benmenbd webes obfenase sadh
Nates 2022 2021

Assats
Cash 15,209 12,310
Frecious metals 562 & 635
Balances with central banks (1] SET. 818 553858
Balances with bamks and other finanoal institutions 19 a1,346 B0,350
Placements with banks and other fimancial inststutions il 263576 194 431
Amaunts held under resale agreements Fil 276,678 Sd4,601
Loans and advances (o cuslomen 12 5,807,154 523530
Financial mvwestments at fair value throwgh profit or koss 3al 423,467 248123
Demvatne financial assets &N 18,671 232,390
Debt investments a1 amartised cost 2310} 1.555,457 1,185,841
Debt investments a1 fair value throwgh other comprehen iee incomse F3(ch TEO,349 636,038
Equaty inwpstments designated at {air va'ue through other

compeehensve incamae 234d}) 13,416 6,995
Int@rests in joint ventures a5 14,247 14779
Interests in associales 6 9,597 BETS
Irvestment properies . 1,268 1312
Property and equipment i 99,914 B0 415
i.lghl-o‘l'u.'m asLols Z0a) 17,553 18,403
Intangible asiets 30 3,403 £ DBE
Goodwnll n 9,999 9,954
Deferred tax assels 2 90,848 81,633
Other assels 33 55,978 122,521
Total assets 10,138,912 0240021

The notes form pant of these consolidated financial statements
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China Merchants Bank Chagtar VI Fimancial Statemani 1™
Anneal Repart 2027 (H share}
Hotes 2022 20217

Liabilities
Barrawing from central banks 129, 745 159,987
Depesits from banks and other financal institutions E1 645,674 753,018
Placements from banks and other finarcial mstitutions 3t 192,857 170,650
Finamcial liabilites at far value through profit or loss k1 63,314 63,761
Denvative finamoial liabdities [t 18,636 27,282
Amaounts sold under repurchase agreements n 107,003 157,660
Deposits from customens 3B 1.590,519 6,385,154
Salaries and welfare payable 3a{ab 23,866 19,761
Tax payable 40 19,458 22 491
Contract liabikties 41 6,679 T.536
Lease liabilities b 13,013 13812
Prowisons L ¥ 22431 14,660
Debt securities issued 43 223,821 446,645
Deferred tax liabilities 32 1,510 1.353
Cther liabilities ES) 125938 139,570
Total liabilitles 9,184,674 8,383,340
Ecquity
Share capilal a5 25,210 25,2320
Orther equity instruments 46 120,446 127,043

- Prslerence shates idB[ap 27,4568 34,065

- Perpetual bonds A6k 92,978 92,978
Capital reserve 47 65,435 67,523
Investment revaluation resenve 48 11,815 15,047
Hedging reserve 49 151 I
Surplus reseve 50 94,985 82,137
General reserve 51 132.4M 115,288
Retalned eamings 449,139 390,207
Proposed profit appropriation 2{b) 43 832 33,385
Exchange reserve 53 2,009 (2,144)
Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Bank 945,503 B58,745
Men-contralling inlerests 8,735 6,936
= Man-controdling interest 5,948 3,300
= Perpeiua’ debt capital G2 {al 2,787 3,636
Total equity 954,238 BG5S 681
Total equity and Habilitles 10,136,912 9,249,021

The notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 Karch 2023,

Miae Nanmin Wang Liang
fhractor [wrectar
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172 China Mercharts Bank Chapter VI Birancial Statamants
Annual Report 2022 (H share)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2032

(Exgressed in millons of Renmenis weleis oftenaiss sated)
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The notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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China Merchanis Bank
Annual Repart 2022 (H share)

Chapter VIl Einancial Statemants 173
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China Merchanis Bank Ehagter Vil Firancial Statemants
Annual Report 2027 (H share)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Far the year ended 31 December 2022
tEpeeased in millons of Renmanhs weles offsnsn saned)

2022 2021
Qparating activities
Profit before taxation 165,113 148,173
Adjustments for:
= lmgairment |osses on lpans and advances 45157 3r.020
= lmparment losses on investments and ather 12,409 29,335
= Urwinding of discount on the allowances of oans and advances (238) 247
= Depreciation of proparty and equipment and irvestment proparties 10,279 8,857
= Depreciation of right=afuie assets 4,151 4,259
= Amgriisation of other assets 1,193 1,389
= Met gains on debt securities and egquity investments (14,722) (15,388
= [mt@real income on mvesimenis (55,808) (56,055
Inferest eapense on mswed ool secuntnos 8,662 12,532
- Share of profils of asscciates {815) {1,153
- Share of profity af joint ventues (1.710) (2,877
= Met gainy on dmposal of proparties and equipment and other assets 1282) [ARES
= [nterest expense on lease Babillies 5190 555
Changes in:
Balances with comtral banks [48,851) 12,874
Loans and advances to cusiomerns IEDB,H'II (564, 974)
Other assots B3,611 (37,395)
Dieposits from customaers 1,188,664 g 742
Amaunty due o banks and other financial institutions (135,569) 73,321
amounts due from banis and atber fimancial matitutions with
onginal matunty ower 3 ot i H-E.,E‘JSI 2,160
Borrawang from central banks (20,073) {170,100
Othaor Habilities (39,251) 16,596
Cash generated from operating activities before income tax payment 607, 566 7,557
Incarme tax paid (37.423) (35,509)
Met cash generated from operating activities 570,143 182,048
Inwesting activities
Payment for the purchases of investments {1,858, 898) 11,225,345)
Proceeds from disposals and redemptions of investmenty 1.334,013 1,160,738
Investment income received 79,122 71,197
Payment for the acquisition of subsidaries, associates o joent ventures (984) (5,342
Paymant for the purchases of properly and equipment and other assets (34,892) (24,1600
Proceeds from the disposals of property and equipment and other assels B, 750 1,399
Proceeds from the disposals of subssdianies, assocates or joint veniures 463 B55%
Met cash used Im Investing activities (513,926) (19,697

The notes Form part of these consolidated fimancial statements.
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Fimancing activities
Proceeds fram the ssuance of negotisble interbank certilicates

of deposit 55(bh 76,666 NS0T
Proceeds from the ssuance of certificates of deposit 55k} 20,287 14,692
Proceeds from the ssuance of debt securities 550k 21,481 63,872
Proceeds from fthe ssuance of perpetual bands - a2 S8G
Proceeds from nan-contralling interests of subsidiaries 2667 -
Proceeds fram other financing activities 550b) 10,796 6,860
Repaymaont of negotiable interbank certificates of deposit S50k} (250,996) {226,012
Repaymant of certificates of deposit 550k (16, 504) (21,363)
Repayment of debt securities 5500 (T8,735) (55,771)
Paymant for lease liabi'ities 55h) (4,932) (4,835)
Payment for redemption of preference shares (7.195) -
Payment for redemption of perpetual debt capital (1.104) -
Distribustion paid an perpetual debt capital 1202) 22T}
Payment for dividends distribution {38,664) (31,845)
Distribution paid on preference thares [1.675) (1,638)
Distnbution paid on perpetual bonds [3.56.2) {1,975)
Interest paid on finanong activities {12,400) (11,398)
Payment for other financing actities Saih) [14,959) (3,697
Maet cash (used in)igenerated from financing activities (157,032) 28,350
Met [decrease)increase in cath and cash equivalents {240,815) 251,710
Cash and cash equwalents as at 1 January 801,754 552,790
Effect of foreign axchange rate changes 6,259 (2,746)
Cash and cash equivalents as st 31 December S5{a) 567,198 BO1, 754
Cash flows from operating activities include:
ISt received 285,050 269,081
Interest paid 10B, 456 110577

The notes form part of these consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2032

(Expreised in millons of Renvenis weleis cibenviss sated)

!
(n

(2)

2.
(1)

(2

Organisation and principal activities

Organisation

Chima Merchants Bhnh Coa, Lid, ithe "8ank™ ] 11 & ﬂ'ﬂw:lll bank incarparsted in Shen2hen, 1he Fﬂﬂplb-l Hepubll:
of China [the “PRC" ) With the appraval al the China Securities Regulatory Commisuon (e “CSRCT) of the PRC,
the A-Shaies ol the Bank were [iited oh Shungl‘ul Stock Exchiangs on 3 April 2002. On 22 5e1:|'|rr|1b|.-f 2006, the
Bank’s H-Shares wete listed on the Masn Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kang Limsted (the "HKEx")

A5 at 31 December 2022, apart from the Head Office, the Bank had 51 wanches in the Chinese manland, Hang
Kong, Mew York, Singapore, Lusembourg, London and Sydney. In additian, the Bank has two representative offices
i ew York and Taper.

Principal activities

The principal aciseties of 1he Bank and 15 subsicharies (the “Group®) are providing corpacate and personal banking
sereces, conducting treasury business, providing asset management and other finandal services.

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

These consalidated fnancial statements heve been prepared in accordance with Intermational Financial Reparting
Seandards (TIFRS:™) and it interpretations promulgated hy the Intemational Accounting Standards Boasd [ -1
and the disclosure reguirements af the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consobdated financial statements
alva comply with the applicahle ditckure providiony af the Rues Gowerning the Lideg of Secunitin on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kahg Lamited.

Basis of measurement

These finaacul statements are presented in Renminkl {"AMEB"] and unless othersase stated, rounded to the nearest
millinn. AMA |4 the Tunctianal eurrency of the damestic oporations of the Group The lunctional eurrend s of
overieas branches and subsidiaries ane determined in accordance with the primary econames environment in which
ey aperate, and ae ramlated into RMB Tor the preparation ol these linancial statements according to Nole 4(16),

The consalidated financial statements hawve been prepased on the hostorrcal cost basis except for financal instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of aach reporting period and the maasurement principles as explained
el
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2, Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements cornuea

{2) Basis of measurement (connnved

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell én asset or paid 1o transfer a liabslity in an ooderly transaction
between market pasticipants a1 the measurement date, regardless of whether that price & directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a Rabifity, the Group takes
into account the charactenstios of the asset or Lability f market participants would take those charactenistics into
account when gricing the assel or liability at the measarement date. Fair value Tor measurement andfor anclosure
purpeses in these corsoldated financial staternents is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are wathin the scope
of IFRS 16 leases, and measwamaents that have some similasites to Laie value but are not fair valee, such as ret
raalisable valug in 1AS 2 foveniores or value i use in 1AS 36 impairment of Assets

In additser, for finandal reporting purpodes, las value mesurements are categonsed into Level 1, 2 or 3 bated on
1t degree 1o which the inputs to the ler value messuremenls are obaeivable and the significance of the mpuls o
i Takr value resiursment o iy entmety, which are described as ol

Lavel 1 inputs are quoted prices [unadjusted) in actve markets for identical assets ar liabilities that the entity can
accest at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted poces included within Level 1, that ase observable for the aswet or
lability, eithee directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unebiervable mputs lar the assel ar liability.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformety with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumpbons that affect the aoplcation of policies and reported amounis of assets and kabiliies,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histonical experience and vanous
other factors that are belseved 1o be reasonable under the cooumstances, the results of which farm the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and habilnies that are not readily appatent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlyng asumpteans are reviewed an an angoing baws. Rewnions to accounting estimales are
recognised in the period in which the ostimata is revised if the revision affects onby that period, or in the period of
thir revinion and future poriods f the revision aflects both cument and future pariods,

Judgements made by management in the application of BR%: that have significant effect en the consalidated
firancial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adustment in the future periods are discussed
in MNote 5
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3.

Application of new and amendments to IFRSs
Amendments to IFRSs effective in current year applied by the Group

Amendments o (FRS 3 Relerence to the Conceptual Framework

Amendment ta IFRS 16 Cowvid-19-Related Rent Concedssions beyond 30 bere 2021
Amendments 1o LAS 16 Property, Flant and Equipment - Proceeds belone Intended U
Amendments 1o 1A% 37 Onerous Contracts — Cast af Mulfilling & Contract
Amendments lo (FRSs Annual Improvernents Lo [FRSs 2018-2020

The above-mentioned application of the amendments fo FFRSs has had no matenal impact on the Group's financal
pesitions and performance for the current and prior years andfor on the disclosures sat out in these consolidated
tmancial statements

Standards and amendments that are issued but not yet effective and have not
been adopted by the Group

Effective for
annual period
beginning on or after
IFRS 17 {inchudng the June 2020 Insrrance Cantiacts 1 lanuary 2023
and December 2021 Amendments
1o IFRS 17)
Amendments 1o 145 1 and IFRS Disciosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
Practice Staternent 2
Amendments 1o 1S 8 Dafiartion of Adcounting Estimates 1 Jaruary 2023
Amendments 1o |45 12 Dederred Tax redated to Adsets and Liabilities arising 1 January 2023
Tram a Single Transaction
Amendments 1o IFRS 16 Lease Lability in & Sale and Leaseback 1 Jaruary 2024
Amendmants 19 145 1 Classfication of Liabilities &8 Current of Non-current 1 Jaruary 2024
Amendmants 1o 145 1 Mon-current Liabilites with Covenants 1 lanuary 2024

Amendmaents 1o [FRS 10 and 145 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an lnvesior  the date to be
anelths AaabcMe o Jowlt ki oo

The mew and amendments 10 IFRSs mentioned above are not especied to have matenal impact on the consolidated
timancial statements in the foresesable future.
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4, Principal accounting policies
{1} Business combination

Financial statements include financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are entities contrelled
by the Group. The Graup controls an entity when it is expesed, or has rights, to variable returns from its avwodvement
with tha entity and has the ability 1o affect thode raturns through its posvar over the entity. When assessing whather
the Group has power, only substantive rights theld by the Groip and other parbies) are considered

An imyestrent in 4 subsidiary s consalidated into the comsolidated financisl statements from the date that control
commences until the date thal control ceases. Intia-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any profits
arising from intra-group transactions are elimirated in full n preparing the conwotdated Financial statements. Il the
mtra-group transachion indicates that the relevant assets have imparment losses, the losses shall be recognned in
full

When necessary, adjustments are made by the Group to the fimancial statements of subsidiatees 1o bring thair
accounting poliches n line with the Group's sccounting poletes

Hon-controfling inferests reprosont the oquity in a subsidiary not attributable dirgctly or mdiroctly to the Bank, and
im rgspect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the halders of those interests which would
resudt in the Groop as a whole having a contractual obligation in reipect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. Non-contralling inferests are presentes in 1he consalidated statement of financial position and
comolidated statemant of changes in egquity within equity, sepaately from equity attributable 1o the eguity holders
of the Bank. Non-controlling inferests in the results of the Group are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consclidated statement of profit or loss and other compeehensive income as an allocation of
the net profit or loss and takal comprehensive income dor tha year hetwaen noncantialling inlerests and the aquity
hekders of the Bank

Changes m the Group's interests i a subsidary that do not resull in a loss of control are sccounted for as equity
tramtactions, wheteby adjustrments are made te the amaunty of centralling and nod-contrelling interests within
condalidated equity to rellect the change in rilsthve interests, bul no adjustments are made to goodwill and ne gain
of bass |5 recognised.

When the Group foses control of a subsidiary, it 5 accounted for as a duposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a msulting gain o loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any inlerest retained in thal former
subsidiary a1 the date when control & lost & recognised af fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Mote 4(5)) or, when appropeiate, the cont on initial recognition of an
investment in a joint venture {see Note 412)) or, an associate (see Note 4(3))

Business combinations or asset acgulsitbons
Optional concentration fest

The Group can élect to apply an optonal concentration tedt, on a transaction-by-transactson Batsis, that permils a
simplilied assessment of whether an acquired set of activifies or asels B nol & business, The concentration fest i
met o substantially all of the fair value of the groess assens acquired o concentrated in A single identifiable awet or
group of simitar identifiable assets, The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred
tax aisets, and goodwill resulting From the elfects of delerred tax labilibies. If the concentrabion test B mel, the st
of activities or assots ik determened not to be a business and no lurther assestment B needed.

Asset acguisitions

When the Group acquires a grous af assets and liabinties that do nat constiute a business, the Group sdentifies
and recegnnes the individual (dentfiable sdsels scquied and lisbdities sisumed by alocating the purchase prce
first to fmancisl assetslinancial habilities st the respective fanr values, the remaning balance of the putchase price
1 then aliecated to the other identifiable assets and liabilitses on the bass of their relatre fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does nol give nise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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(n

(2)

Business combination jeonbmuwsd)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions foontinued?
Business combination

Acguisitians of buunesses are sccownted for usng the soqusition methad. The combderaten transferred in a
baminess combination i rreasured at fair value, which s caleulated as the swm of the acquisition date Tair value of
the assats transferred by the Group, habiltes incurred o assurmed by the Group, and any equity inferests issued by
the Group. Acowsiton related costs are recogrised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Al the acguislion date, irrespective ol por-controlling interests, the idestifioble assely acgueed and lislalities and
contfingent liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values; except that deferrod tax assets or liabilities, and
awets or Babilities reloted 1o employee berefit arangements are recognised and measered in accordanoe with 1AS
12 tncome Taxes and 1AS 19 Employes Benefits, respectively.

Mon-comralling interests 1hat ropresent ownership mtefesds in the acepuares, and eatitle thesr hobders 1o a
proporisonate shate af the entity’s net assets in the avent of liguidatsen are nitially récognised at either lair value ar
ther non-contralling intereils” proporionate share in the recognined amounts of the acquires's identiliable net asiets
The chaice of measurament basi 4 made on a transaction-by-ransaction basis,

Joint ventures

& joind venluoe 5 an aangement i which the Group has [oim contral, wheseby the Group has sghts to the ne
assets af the amangement, rather than regfls to its assets and obligaten for i habilithes

Jaint contrel 15 the conractually ageeed shanng of control of an amangement, which exsts only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control,

When judging whether there is @ joint contral, the Group uwsualy considers the Tollowing cases:
- whiether amy party within the joint arrangement caanot contral the relevant actnaties of the jaint ventures;

- whether the decsions about the jomt vendures relevant actaaties require the unanimous consent of the
partias shasing controd

The comsolidated statement of profit or foss incudes the Group’s share of the results of pint ventues for the
year ard the consolidoted statement of financial position includes the Growp's share of the net assets of the joint
wontures.

Under the equity method, the investment 5 initially recorded a1 cost, adjusted tor any escess of the Group's shane
of the acguisition-date far value of the investee's identifiable net assets ewer the cost of the investrment (f any)
Thedeafier, the investment s adjisted for the poest acquistion change in the Group's shame af the ot ventures’ net
assets. Any eacess af the Group's shate of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabslities over the cost of
the irvestments, is recognised immediately in prafit or loss in the period in which investment is acquired.

The cansolidated statement of peafit o koss includes post-tax results of the |aind ventures for the year, including any
impairment loss on goeadwill relating to the investment in the joint veniures recognised fos the year (see Notes 4id)
and #1130

When the Group's share of losies exceads 115 intevest in the joint venlures, the Group’s mterest is reduced 1o mil and
recognition of further loases (3 discontinued except o the extent that the Group has incurred legal e constructve
obligatians ar made payments on behalf of the joint venlures For these puipoies, the Group's inlerest in the jaint
wentures i he carrying amaunt of the mwesiment under equity method logether with the Group's interests that in
substance form part of the Group's net investment i the joint veniues

Unreabised profits and losses resulting from wansactions between the Group and (i punt ventures are eliminated
1o the extent of the Group's interest in the joinl ventures, except where uwnrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group coases to have joint control owor a joint wenture and has no significant miluence on i, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investes, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
the eanwbdated statsment of prolit e low, previous other comprehensive incame would be reclaswtied to profit
or loss, Any interest retained in that former invedtes at the date when joint contral is lost & recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as U Fair value on initial recognition of a finandal st [see Mote 8[51,
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4. Principal accounting policies iontinuea
{3} Associates

Associate i3 an entity in which the Group has significant nfluence, but not control, or joint contral, Significant
mfluence 5 the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the inwester but is not contral
ot paint control of those policies

When judging whither theee is any significant slluende, the Group wually contiders the Tollowing cases:
- iepresentalion on the Board of Diréclons o equivalent governing body of the nnesies,

- participatian in policy-making peocesset;

- matenal transactions between the entity and 14 investea.

Investments in associates are acoounted for in the consobdated financial statements under the eguity method
Under the equity method, the investreent s initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's shase
of the acquisition-date far value of the irvesiee's identfiable ret assels cver the cost of the irvestment Of any)
Therealter, the investrnent s adjusied for the post aoguasition change in the Group™s share of the assocates’ net
assets. Amy exoess of the Group’s shate of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabdities over the cost of
the investments, i1 recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which svestment 15 acquired

The consolidated stmement of profit or loss includes the Group's post-tax results of the associates Tor the year,
ncliding any impairment loss on goodwill relating 1o the investment in the asicciates recognsed for the year (see
Hotes 4(4) and 4{11}).

Whaen the Group's share of losies siceads s interedt in the siocmies, the Group's interest is reduced 1o nil and
recognition of further lesses is discontinued except 1o the extent that the Group has incurred legal o constructve
obligatians or made paymenis on behall of the associates. For these purposes, the Group's interest in the ascociates
s the carryng amount af the investment whder equity method togethes with the Group's interests that in substance
form pant of the Group's net investrent in the assooates.

Unmealises profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are elimmated 1o the
extent of the Group's interest in the associales, axcept where unrealsed losses provade evdence of an impairment
of the asset transferved, in which case they are recognised immediatedy in prodit or loss

Whaen the Group coases 1o have sgraficant influence ower an associste entity, 1t is accounied for as a disposal of the
entire imtorest in that investon, with a resulling gain or los being recognised in the consolidated statoment of profit
of loas. previous other comprebensive income would be meclassified 1o prafit or loss. Any interest retaned in that
former investee a1 the date when significant influence o lost s cecognived &t fasr value and 1his amount 13 regarded
a5 the tair value on initial recogaition of & linancial asset (See Mote 40515

(4) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the sacets of

i thi aggregate of the fair value of the consideration tramsfened, the amount of any non-contiolling renest
based on the faw value of net assets acquired in the acouiree and the fair vatue of the Group's prewously
hatd equity interests in the acquiros; ou

{iil the net fais vélue of the acguiree’s identifiable assets and labilitses measured as at the acquasition date.

When (i) is greater than (i}, then this excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss a3 a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goothwill is stated at cout hess accumulated imparment. Goodwill amiing on 4 business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit ("CGUT) or group of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and tested at beast annually for impairment {see Maote {111

On disposal of & CGU during the year. any attnbuiable amaunt of purchased goodwill is included in the caloulation
of the profit or loss on diposal.
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4!
(5)

Principal accounting policies womnces

Fimancial instruments
Initial recagnition

A linancial instrument is any coniract that gives rse to a flinancial aset of one enterprise and & fnancial lisbility or
equity instrument of another enterprise.

Al regular way purchases or sales of francial assets are recognised or derecognaed on a trade date basis. Regular
weay purchises or sales are purchases or ales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulstion or convention in the market place.

A1 initial recognition, financial assets and {mancial liabilities are Initially measured al fair value except for trade
recenvables ansing from contracts with customers which are initially measured n acoordance with IFRS 15 Revenue
from Cowtracts wilh Cusromers. Tramaction coils that ane directly attnbutable 1o the acquisition ar isue of financial
agsets and financial Eabilities fother than financial assets or financial labilities at fair valee through profit or loss)
are added 10 o deducted fram the fasr value of the financial assets o financial labibites, a5 appropnate, on mital
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financia! smsets or financial lisbilities at fair
walue thrsagh profit of loss are recognaed smmediately in prafit of loss.

The eflective interest method 5 a methad o ealeulating the amaitied cost of a hirancial asset or financial Bability
and of alfocating interest income and interest sspense over the relevant period, The effectve interest rate is the
rale that exactly disccunts estimated future cash receipls and payments (mcluding all fees and points pad or
racerved that form an integral part of the sHlactive irterest rate, fransaction costy and other premeems o0 dncounts)
through the expected e of the financial asset or financial kabily, o, where appropriare, a shorter pesiod, 1o the
net camying amount on initiad recognition. When determining the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the
future cash flowr an the bass of condidering all contract terms af financial assets or financial Rabilites, but dees not
comiider the expected credit loss,

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The Group classidies it financal assets into the following measurement categories at initial recognition: financial
asmiets at amortised coat, financial assets at fasr value through other comprebensee income and financial assets at
fair value through prafit or loss,

Debt imstruments that meet the fellowing conditions ane subsequently measured at amaonised cost:
= the financial asset = held within a business model whoie objective is 19 collect contraciual cash flows: and

" the comiractisal terms of the financial awet give rite on specfied dates 1o cash {ionis that ame solely payments
of princpal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (*5PFI")L
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4, Principal accounting policies iontinued)

{5} Financial instruments fooived
Classification and measurement of financial assets (confined]

Debe instruments that mest the follewang conditons are subsequently measured at faie value through other
comprehensive ircome (TFYTOCIT):

. the financial asset 15 hekd within a business model whose objective 13 achipved by bath collecting contraciwal
cash flows and sa'ling; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give nse on speoled dates 1o cash {lows that are solély payments
of prncipal and interest on the prncipal amount cutstanding,

Al gther financial asyms are subsequenily measured at fair value through profit or loss (TFVTRLT), except that at
the date of initial applicationdinitial recogniten of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably slect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investmant, which o not held for trading, in other comprehense
incomie (COC1T),

& tmancial asiet i claastied a3 held for (rading if
. it hat been acquired principally far the putpese of selling ia the near lefm; of

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of wentified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual patiemn of short-1erm prodit-taking; or

. it is o derivative, except for a derivative that is a finarcia! guarantes contract o o designated and effective
hedging Instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably desgnate a debt mvestment that meets the amortised cost o FVTOCI critenia
a8 measured at FVTFL Il daing so elimnates or signifcantly reduces an accaunting mamatch,

Financlal amets at amortised cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are subseguently measured with the effective interest method, and the
gains of losses aising from amostisation of impairment are recognsed in profit or loss. Interest income is calculated
by spphing the effectve interest rate to the gross carnding amount of & financial ssser, except for financal assets
that have subseguently became credit-impaited. For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest imcome is recognised by applying the affective mterest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period, I the cradit risk on the oedit-empaired finandal instrument improves so that the finanaal
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate 1o the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset frem the begnning of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaied

Debt instrvments classified as at FYTOO

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt mstruments classiied as at FYTOC! as 2 result of interest
mcome calculaled wsing the affective inferest mathod, foresgn exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
of loss. AR other charges in the carrying amount af debt instruments are recognrised in OC1 and accurmdated under
the heading of imvestment revaluation reserve Impainmert losses ase recognised in profit of loss with comespanding
adjustment o OC1 withewt reducing the carrying amounts of debt instrumonts. The amounts that are recognisod
i profit or loss are the same as the amgunis that would have been racognised m profit or foss if debt instruments
had been measured at amortised cost. When dabt instruments are derecognised, the cumulatiee gains or losses
previously recognised in Investment revaluation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss.
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(5)

Financial instrumeants feontmwed)
Classification and measurement of financial assets {confinued)
Eguity instrumerrts designated as at FVTOC]

At the date of imtial applicationfinitial recognrition, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an
mnstrurneni-by-instrument basis) to designate mwestments in efwly instraments which are not held for trading as
at FVTOCT Inwestments in equity instruments at FVTOC] are initlally measwsed at fair value plus transachion costs.
Subsequently, they ae measured at fair value woth gains and losses ariseng from changes i fair va'ue recognised
in GCI and acoumulated in the investiment revaluation reserve, and are not subject 1o impainment assessment The
cumulatnie gain or loss wall not be reclassified to profit or boss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to relained earnings

Deadonds from these irvestments in equety instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's night
1o receive the dvidends m establnhed, unless the dividends claasly represont a recovery of part of the coxt of the
ivestment, Dividends are included in the “other net income™ line Hem in prafit or loxs,

Financlal assets at FIYTPL

Firancial assets that do rot meet the crtena for being measured at amortised cost or FYTOCH or designated as
PYTOCH are meaiured al PVTPL. Ferancial Assets at FVTPL aré momured a8 Far value &t the end ol sach roparting
period, with any Fasr value gaing or losses recognaed in profit of logs. The net gasn or loss recognised in profd o
bess includes fair value gains or [osses, any dinsdond or interest earned on the financial asset, and is incheded in
“wiher nel incomae”

Impairment under ECL model

The Group perfarms impairment asseasmend under ecpocied credit loss {TECLT) model an financial assets which
are subject 1o impairment under IFRS 9 Firanoal instrumenis, including linancial aisets at amoetined codt, debt
intrument adsets at fair value thicugh other comprehenive income, leases receivable, lean commilments and
financial guarantes contracts, The amount of ECL 1x updated a1 cach reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition,

The Group assestes the ECL of financal assets with forward-looking information. 12-month ECL {"12m ECLT)
represents the partion of lfetime ECL thar w expected to result from default svents that ae possible within 12
months aftes the reporting date. In contrast, lifebime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all posuble default
events over the expecied life of the relevant instrument. Assessment are dore based on the factors that are specific
to the debiors, general economic conditons and an assessment of both the current conditlons at the reporting date
as well as the forecast of fulure corditions.

Far tha above financial instruments that apply the ECL madel, axcept for the purchased or originated credil-impaired
timancial assats, an assessment of whether cradit risk has increasad significanmtly since inttial recognition is pedformed
at each reporting period by the Group 1o determine whether 10 recognise hifetime ECL. When the credit risk of
these Tinancial instruments does not incréase significantly after the nitial recognition, the Group recognines a logs
allawance for the financial instrument at an amount equal to t2-month ECL; in the event of & significant increase in
credit risk, the Group recognises a lows sllowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The Group recognises the loss
allowance of roceivables that result from transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 15 Rewenue from contracts
with custemers at an amount equal 1o lHetime ECL

Significant increase in credit risk

In azsessing whether the credit risk has increased signficantly sonce inital recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial mstrumaont as at the reporting date with the risk of a default eccwring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recagnition. In making this assesment, the Group conwders bath
auantitative and qualitstes imfarmation that i reasonable snd wwppartable, including hasloocal sxperisncs and
{oreward-loaking infermation that is available without undue oot or effort, The assessment of whether the credit risk
has incrosted significantly is detailed in Moo 60(ak

280/433

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooooa



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooooa

China Mercharts Bank Chapter VI Financial Statemants 1BS
Anpusal Repart 2022 (H share)

4. Principal accounting pelicies «ontinuea)

{5) Financial instruments featneed)
Impairment under ECL madel [continued]
Credit-impaired financial assets

The Group defnes whether these (s eredit impairment based an the internal evaluation resulls of the credit risk
managerment system fod relevant financial assets. The Group considers that finandal assets have been credit-impaired
whan its loan cassication is substapdasd, doubtful or loss or & mare than 90 days everdus.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

ECL s measured based on the probability of defavly, loss given default and the sxposure al delault The
measurement and recogniticn of ECL are detailed in Note 60(a).

Generally, ECL i ostimated as the dittorence betwean all contractual cash flows that are dup to the Group in
accordance wath the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effeciive
inberest rate determaned al indial recognition,

For a lease recovable, the cash flows used for determiming the ECL m consistent with the cash flows used
measunng the lease recenvabile in secordance with IFRS 16 Loases.

For a fmancial guarantee confract, the Group s required 1o make payments only in the event of a default by the
debitar in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordangly, the espected credit losses is
the present value of the expected payments 1o reimburse the holder for a credit Boss that it incurs kess any amounts
that the Group espects to receive fram the holder, the debtor ar any other party.

Foor undrawn loan commitments, ECL is the present value of the difference bebween the contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group:

. if the holder af the loan commitments drasws down the lnan, and
. the cash flows that the Group expects to recelve if the fean is drawn down.

The las allowarce for losn commitments and financal guirsmos conirscts i4 recognised in poofit o |oss and
accumulated in provisions. As for debt instements meascred ot FVTOC, the lows allowance iy recognised o QC0 and
accumulated i the investmont revaluation reserve without reducing the carrying amounts of these financial assets,
The lass allewance Ter ather finaneial assats which are subject to impalrment under IFRS @ Fmadchal instruments i
recognied (n profit or loss through & loss allswance socount.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabijities at FYTPL

Fenancial Babiibes are classifies as at FYTPL when the financal liability 5 () held for trading (including denvatives
belonging to financial Babikties) or (i) designated as at FVTPL Except for hedging accounting, fimancial liabilities
mieasured at FVTPL are subsequently measured at tair value and al changes in fair value are recognised m protic or
lonss.

A tmancial Bability i classified as held lor trading if:
. it has been acquired principally lor the purpose ol repwrchaiing o o the near Lerm; or

. on initial recognition it is part of a porticlio of wentified financial instrumenis that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it s a denvative, except for a denvative that 13 a financil guarantes contract o o designated and effectve
hedging instrument.
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(5)

Fimancial instrumeants jcontimed
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities fconfinied)
Financial Habilitles at FVTPL (continued]

A& linancial labilily other than a finandal liabslity beld for wading may be designated as al FYTPL upon udial
recognition (i

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces 4 measurement or recagnitenn inconsistency that would
artheswise arise, o
- the linancial Rabiiity focms part of a group of financial azsets or linancal liabilities or bath, which is managed

and its performance is evaluated on a fair vabue basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management of investment strategy, and information about the grouging is provided miermally en thar basis;
ar

. it forms part of a contract containing one or mare embedded dervatives, and IFRS B Financul nstruments
peimits the entire combined conteact to be disignated as at PSTPL

Other financial Nabilities

Except for financial liabdities at FVTPL, finandal Kabilitees formed by the transfer of financial asseis that do ot
mesl the condiliom for derecoghition o by continued imeobeement in transfermed Tinoncial asaets and Financial
liabilities, finarcial guarantee contract and loan commitment, ather financial liabdities are classified as financal
linbilrtios a1 amorined cost, which are wibsoquantly maasured at amortited eodt and the gamnd or |lpsies ariging fram
derecognition or amortisation are Inchuded in profit or foss

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives &5 hedging instruments for fair va'ue hedge and cash flow hedge
The Group documents the relationship between the hedging instruments and hedged iterms, as well as its risk
managerment objective and rategy for undertaking the hedge, al the incéption of a hedging relabiorship. The
Group also reguires documentation of the assessment, both at hedge mception and on an ongoing bass, of whather
1 derividived that are used in hedging ranssctions are highly effecine in offsetting changes in lair values or cash
figrws of hedged items attnbatable 10 the hedged risks.

Fair value hedge

The gains or losses an the hedging msirument ae recognised v consolidated statement al prafit of lass. When
the hedging for the mk exposure relates to an non-trading egquety instrument dessgnated as al FVTOCH, the gaim or
bosses on The hedging instrument are recognised in other comprebensne income,

The carrping amount of the hecged item not already messured a1 far value i3 adjusied for the gain or lods
attnibutable to the risk being hedged and is taken to conselidated statemant of profit or loss. The adjustmant to the
carrying amaunt of the hedged lem s based on a recalculated effecive interest rate at the date that amortisation
beginy and shall be  amortised to  consolidated statement of profil or loss il the hedged item is a financial
mstrurment meatured st amortized cosl Ameftisation begins a5 soon &% on adjustment exsis butl no later than
when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for hedging gaing and losses. If the hedged item is debt mstruments
measured a1 FVTOCI, the amaunts privicusly recorded as curmalative adjustments al hedging gains or losses are
amartised in similar method and recognised i the consclidated statement of profit or loss, The carrying amaunt of
the hedged tem is not adjusted.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portiors of changes in the fair value of dervatives that are designated and qualified as cash flow
hedge ane recogniied in other comprehensive income and acourmulated separately in hedging reserve. Any gain of
foess relating to an ineffactive postion i recogrised mmediatedy in the consolidated statemant of profit or less,

For cash flow hedge of a recognised asset or lability, the associated cumulative gain o boss is reclassified from
hedging reserve to the consolidated staternent of profi of loss in the same penod during which the hedged cash
fiows affect profit and foss When a hedgeng Instrument expires or i sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulatse gain or loas at that time remains in hedging reterde until the {orecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the consaolidated statements of profit or loss. Whaen a forecast transaction is
né langer expected 1o occur, the curnudatane gam of fods o immediately reclaatied ta the convedidated siatement af
profit or boss.
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{5} Financial instruments feentnead
Hedge accounting (cortinued)
Hedge effectivencss testing
The Group has elected to adopt the general hedge accounting i IFRS 9 Financal Instrumenis. This requeres the

Group te ensure thal hedge accounting relationships are aligned with its sk management chiectives and strategy
and to apply a maore quakitative and forward-locking approach to assessing hedge effectveness,

For hedge effectveness assessment, the Group considers whether the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting
changes in tair values or cash flows of the hedged ilem attributable to the hedged risk, which is when the hedging
ralatiorshios meet a'l of the following hedge effectiveness mequirements:

. thiefe 1 an ecanamic relatianship betwesn the hedged tem and the hedging initrument;

. the effect of credit risk doss not dominate the value changes that resubt from that economic relationshp;
and

. the hedge ratio of the hedgng ralatiorship 15 the same as that resulting from the quaniiy of the hedged
item that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrumant that the antity actually uses
to hedge that gquantity of hedged item

il a hedging relstionship ceades 1o mest the hedge effectiveness reguirement relating 1o the hedoe ratio but the
ik managemenl objective for thal designated hedging relationship remains the tame, the Group adusts the hedge
ratio af the hedgirg relationship (e rebalances the hedge) 1o that it meets the gualifying criteria again.

Specific items
Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents comprise investments that are shaet term, highly liguid, readly convertsble into known amounts of
cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in valee, and unsestricied balamces with the central banks, banks
and ather financial mstitutions, and amounts hedd under resale agreements, with onginal maturity of 3 months or
less

Falances and placements with banks and other financial institations

Banks refer to those approved by the People’s Bank of China ("PBOCT) and other authorities Caher financial
instetutions represent finance companies, inwrance companies, investment trust companies, leasing companies
and msurance companies which are registerad with and under the supervision of the Ching Banking and Insurance
Requlatery Commission (the "CBIRC ") and securities firms and imvestment fund companies which are registered with
and under the superasion of other regulatory authosities, Balances and placements with banks and other financal
institutions are meatured o1 amortised cost

Resale and repurchase agreaments

Amwunts lor purchase of financisl asels under resale agresments sre sccounded for under “smounts held weger
resale agreements”. Amounts from sale of financial assets under repurchase agreements are accounted for under
“amounts sold under repurchase agroements”

The differerce betwesn the purchase snd resale conckderation or wale and repurchise consideration = amorised
ower the perrod of the iransaction using the elfective interest methed and is included in Interest income ar expense

(% appropnane}
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Financial instruments foonmiued)
Lpocific items fronfinwed)
Financial investments

Equity imvestments are accounted for as financial assets at fale value through prafit or loss or equity Ivestments
desagnated a1 fasr value through other comprehersice noome. Debt investments are classified as finanzial assets ai
fair value through profit or loss, debt mvesiments at amortised cost, debt investments at fair value through other
cemmpreheniive income in accordance with the entity’s business model, contractual cash flow charactenisties and the
fair value option.

Loans and advances to cusfamers

Lesans and advances directly granted by the Group to custemers and finance leases recenables are accounted for as
fpans and advances 10 customers.

Loans and advances to customess are classified a3 lpans and advances to customers at fair value through profit or
loss (Roans and advances 1o customaers at FYTPLL, loans and adwvances to customens at amortised cost, loans and
advances to customers at fair value through other comprehanswe income (loans and advances to customers at
FYTOCH in accordance with the entity's business model, contractual cash How chazactenstics and the fair value
optson,

Derivative financial instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments mainly include {orward, foreign currency swaps, interast rate swaps and
optEon confracts undertaken in respomse o oustomens needs or for the Group's own risk managemen: purposes
The Group enters infa derreative coniracti with other banka that can conduct wuch business and fimancial imstitutions
1o hedge against risks arisng from derivative trarsactions undertaken for customess,

Derwvatve fenancisl ndtruments are slated at far value Except for the gains or logies ansing from the effectwe
hedaing portion af thowe dervatives in cash flow hedge and the gans or |ases on the hedging instrument that
hedges an non-trading equity instrument designated & at FYTGCN are recognised in other comprehensive mcome, all
other gaing of losses are recognised in the consolidoved statement of profit or lows.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatves embedded in hybnd contracts that contain nancial sset hosts within the scope of IFRS 9 Flrancial
Instrumants are not separated. The entire hybnd contract i classified and subsequently measured in 115 entirety as
either amadised cont or fair value a5 appropriate. Derivatives embedded in non-dervvative host contracts that are ot
firancial assets within the scoge of IFRS 9 Ffinancial Instruments are treated as separate derivatives with the same
terrns when they meet the deliniion of & decivative, ther risks and charatiedstics ate not dosely related 1o those
af the hoit contracts and the hybrd contracts are notl measured a1 PVTPL Separated embedded derivatives are
measured af fair value, with all changes in fair value recognised in prefit or loss unless they Torm part of a qualifpng
cash flow hedgang relatinnship

Equity instrumernts

The consederation recesved feom the issuance of equily instruments net of trantaction costs 1s recognised in
shareholders” equity. Consderation and transaction costs paid by the Group for repuschasing self-issued equity
instruments are deducted from shaseholders’ egquity.
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(5) Financial instruments jonbmued)
Specific [bems (conninued]
Equity instrumaents (continued)
A fenancial instrument is an equity instrument if, and only if, both cordstions () and (i) below are met

i the fmancial mstrument includes no contractual obligation 1o delver cash or another financal asser to
anather enfity, or to exchapge financial assets or finangal habilities with arother entity wnder conditions that
are patentially unfavarable 10 the Group; and

L] if thie financial inroement will or may ba 1ettled im the Group™s own oquily imstruments, i o & non-derivatio
instrument that includes no contracual obligations for the Group to defer a varlable number of its own
equitly initrusnents, of a dervative thal will ke settled only by the Group exchanging a lined smount of cash
or anather financial asset for a fized number of its own equity instruments.

At anitad recognition, the Group classifies the perpetual bonds and perpetual debt capitals ssued of their
compongnti as financial Habslities o equity instruments baled on thed comfactual terms and theit eenomic
substance after considersny the definison of inancial Kabilibies and equity instruments.

For perpetudl bonds and perpetusl debt capitals sued that classified as equity instruments, any destnbution
of interasts during thoe imgtruments’ duration is treated as prul'ﬂ approonation. Whon the porpetsal bonds and
parpetual debt capitals are redeemed, the redeemed amouwnt s charged 1o eguity. Relevant traniachon expenses are
deducted from equity

At mitial recognition of preference shares, the Group classifies the preference shares issued or their components
a3 finoncial habilies of equity instruments based on thesr contractual termd and ther economee subitance after
condideting the defmition of fnancial habilsties and squity mstruments.

Wher the Group classifies preference shares ksued a3 an eguly instrument, [es, commission and other ransaction
costs af prdrrr\n:g shares wymance are deducted fram equity, The dividends on prﬂerwﬁe shares are recnqnlgd 19
profit destribatioen at the time of declaraton

Derecogmition of finamcial instruments
fa})  Financial assers

A financial azset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial aiset or pant of a group of smilar firancial asets)
is derecognised when:

- the rights 1o receive cath llaws fram the assel have expered, o
- the Group kai wanslerned its fghts to receve cath flows fram the asset; o

- hak ratained d4 nghs to ecens caih Howt liam the adist but hat ssumed an obligatien 1a pay them
In full without matesal delay to a thied party under a “pass-through™ arrangement; and either the
Group has transfered substantaly all the rsks and rewards of ownership of the financisl asser; of
the Group has neither transferred nor retamed substantially all the risks and rewards of ownenship of
the financial asset, but has transferred control of the asse

Where the Group has transferned 115 rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has retained its rights
to recewe cash flows from the asset but has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has nedther
transferrod nor retaned substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is racognised to the extent of the Group's continuing invalvement in the asset.

Continuing Involvement that takes the form of & guarantes ower the transferred asser (s measured at the
lower of the criganal camrying amount of the asset and the maximam amount of comideratson that the Group
could be reqguired to repay

The Group writes aff a finaneisl asset (if any) when thete s infermation indicating that the counterparty s in
severn Tinancial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, A write-off constitutes 2 derecognition
event, Any subsegquent recoveries are recagnised in prafit or los.
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Financial instrumants feontnwed)
Derecognition of financial instruments fcomfinued)

it}

(et}

Securitisation

As part of s operational activities, the Group securitises credit assets, generally thiough the sale of these
asgets 10 structured entities which issue securitied bo investors. Interests in the securitned financial assets may
be retaned in the form of seriar of jumior tranches, or other residusl interests retained interests).

‘When applying the accounting policies on securitised financial assets. the Group has consdered baoth the
degree of transfer of mks and rewards on the transferred financal assets and the degree of control exercised
by the Group over the transfemed financial assets:

- when the Group trarsférs substantially all the nsks and rewards of awnerhip of the financid asiets,
the Group thall derecognie the financal ssets;

- when the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financal assets,
the Group shall continue 1o recognise the financial assets; and

. when the Group neither transfers nor retaing substantialy all the risks and rewards of awnership
of the financial assets, the Group would determing whether it has retained control of the financial
assets, If the Growp has not retained control, it shall derecogrise the finarcial assets and recognize
voparalely ai asals or liabditied any nghts and obligaticns erpated or retamed m the frarador, I the
Group has retained contral, 1 shall continue fo recognise the finarcial assets to the extent of s
cantinuing invalvement i the financeal adsats,

‘When a securitisation of financial assets does not gualify for derecogaition, the relevant financial assets are
not derecognived, and the consderation collected Trom thand parties are reconded as & linancal babiling

‘When the securitisation results in desecognition or partial derecognition of financial assets, the Group
allpcates the carrying amount of the transferred financial assets between the financial assets derecognised
and the retained interests based on their relatve fair valses at the date of rarsier Gains or losses on
securitisation, which is the difference between the consideration recerved and the allocated carmymng amount
of the financial ascets derecognised, are recorded in “other et income”. The retained interests continue 1o
lbe recognised on the same basis befose the securitisation,

Sales of assets on condition of repurchase

Derecognition of financial assets sold on condition of repurchase is determined by the sconomic subsiance
of the trarsaction, B a financal asset is sold under an agreement o repurchase the same or substantally
the same asset at a fixed price or at the sale price plus a reasonab’e return, the Group will not derecognise
the assel, I a financal asset & sold together with an oplion to repurchase the fmancial asset at ity fair value
a1l the time of repurchase in case of transferor salls such financial asset), the Group will derecognise the
Financal asse

Financial Nabilities

A financial kability lor part of f is derecognised wher the obligation under the liabdity [or part of it s
distharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting financial instruments

Ferancial ansnts and liatahties are olwat and the nat amount B peeiented in the comuldated tatement of financal
position when, and only when, the Group currently has there iz a legally enforceable nght fo offset the recognined
amaunts and there is an imention to setile on & ned basis or feadise the asiet and sellle the Lability smultaneously,
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{6) Property, equipment, investment property and depreciation

Froperty, equipment and investment propeny, are stated at cost or deemed cost less nooumalnted depreciations and
accumulated impairment losses, These also include land held under operating leases and buildings therean, where
the fair value of the lrasehald interest in the kand and buildings cannot be measured separately a1 the inception of
the lease and the building ks not clearly held under an operating leasa.

Depreciation i calculated to write ofl the cost of property, equpment and investment properly over the following
estimated useful lives, after taking inlo account an estimated residual value on a straight-line basis:

Land and bulldings 20 years .
Inwvestment properties 20 years
Computer equisment 3 years
Leasehodd improvements {leased propesty} thee estimated uselul lives
Leasehokl mmprovements (self-owned proparty) hea estimated useful lves
Abrcraft, vessels and professional eguipment no more than 25 years
Other 3 -5 ymars

Construction in progreds roprosonts property under construction and i4 stated a1 cost less imparment losses. Cout
comprives the direct and indirect cout of eamtruction. Comtruction in progress B irardlerred 1o an appaoprate class
of proporty of ather el when the asiet s ready Tor its intended use. No depreciation is provided for conttruction
W e,

Subsequent expenditure relating to a property, equipment and imeestment property is capitalised only when it is
probable that future economic benefits sssoiated with the property and equipment will flow to the Group. All other
expendiiure is recogrized in the consobdated statement of profit of loss as an expense as ancutred

Profits or losses on dnposal ol property, equipment and irvestmen! property are determmed as e dfTerence
betwoen the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the property, equipment and investment praperty,
ard are accounted for in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they arize

{7} Repossessed assets

b the recovery of imgaired loans and advances, the Groug may take posession of assels held as collateral theough
court proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the borowers. Repossesied assets other than equity
natrumant are reported in "othor assats”

Repotimised assets of equily instruments are detaled in Nate 4055

{8) Intangible assets

Intangible sisels are stated &t codt less accumulated amortisation fonly intangible assets with Tirte wselul lves) and
accumulated impairment losses (sae Mote 40110, Amortisation of intangible assets with finite usefud lives is charged
1o prali e loss on a straghi-line basia over the assely’ estimated uwseful lves.

Intangible siets are not amorsed while their uielul lsses are asiessed to be indefinite. The Group doet not have
intangible assets with usaful lives assessed to be indefinite as at the end of the reparting period

The amortisation period of mtangible assets b as follows

software and Cther Core deposit
2 =20 years 18 years

Bath the periods and method of amortisation are reviewed annually,
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Leases

Definition of a lease

A conftract is. or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the nght 1o control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in excharge far consideration, The Group assesses whether & contract is of contsing a lease baved on
the delinibion wider IFRS 16 Leases al inceplion or modifcation date. Such contract will not be reavsessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are submsgquently l:hangod

Ay a lessen

fa}

Allecation of consideration to components of a cantract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease componants,
the Group allocates the consideration in the confract 19 each ‘eate component on the basis of the relaime
stand-aone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alane price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leates and leaies of low-value a5sets

The Group recognises a righl-of-uie assot and a corresponding beaso liability with respect 1o all lease
arrangemenis in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less and
do not contain & purchate option) and leates of low value assets (the value of assels = equivalent 1o below
RMB35,000),

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-valus assels are fEEDqﬂI'I-Ed a5 eNpEnse on a4
siraight-lmg basit aver the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The right-of-use assets are presented o a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The right-of-use asset i4 nitally measured at cost. This cest includes:

. the ameount of the mitial messurement of the lease abilty,

- any lease paymedits made al of before the commencement dulu, bess any |Base incentves received,

. any initial direct costs incurred by the lesses; and

" whenever the Group inours an oblgation for costs to dsmantle and remove a leased asset, restora the

site on which it i located of reslore the underlying asiet 1o the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, a provisson s recogrsed and measured under LAS 37 Frowsions, Contingont
Liabiities and Contngent dssefs. The eosls are included in the related right-of-uie acwet, un'ess thowe
costs ane incurred o praduce irncentones

After the commencement date, the nght-of-use assels are measured at oot Gubject 1o certain exceptions)
less accemulated deprecation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasusement of the leass liability,
The Graup recognises the depreciation af right-of-use sssels a3 an operating expense on a siright-ne badis,
Right-of-use assets are deprecated aver the shorter period of lease term and wseful life of the underlying
assat, W & lease transfers the ownesship of the underdying asset or the coat of the nght-of-uwie asiet mflects
that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related nght-of-use asset is depreciated over the
wtetul ite of the underhying st

Accounting pelicy for any identified right-of-use sl impalrrent low ane dischosed in Note 45115,
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4, Principal accounting policies continwea

(9) Leases jcontmesd
As a lessen (continued)
fd)  Leasehold fand and buliding

For payments of a progerty Inferest which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entre
properly (& pretented as property and equipment of the Group when the payments cannot be allocated
reliably betweaen the leasehold land and budding elemems, except for those that are dassified and accountad
for ay imeestment properties.

fe}  Lease Habilitles
Lease liability is presented as o separaie ine in the consolidated statament of financial pesition.

Except for short-tesm leases and leases of low-value asset, lease liakslity is initially measired &t the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencoment date wsing lesses’s incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate

Lease payments refer to the payment made by the lessee to the lessor in connection with the rght to use
the leasad assets during the lease term. Lease payments included in the measurement of the hease lability
Comprise:

. fiaed lose payments (including in-substance fixed payments), lews any leate incentnes,

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured wiing the index or rate at
the commencement date;

. the exerciwe price af purchase options, if the lesee it reatonably cortain to execcss the options,

. payments af penalties Tor terminating the lease, i the lease term reflects the exercise of an option fo
ferminate the lease; and

. the amount expecied 10 be payable by the lessee under remaining value guaranieas

Aftes the baginning date of the lease term, the Group calculates the interest expense ol the lsase lLability In
each poricd of the lease term at a fived periodic interest rate, and rocognised 1 in the current profit and loss
or related asset costs

Aftes the commencement date, the Group remeasures the lpase lability according to the present value
caloulated by the revised lease payment amount and the revaed discount rate and makes a corespanding
adpustment to the related sght-ol-ue asset whenever:

. the leate term has changed ot there 15 8 change in the assessment of exercne of & purchase option, n
which case the lease liability is remeasered by discounting the revised lease payments using & revised
ditcourt fale; ar

. the leais payments change due 1o changet in an indox o rale ar a change in expecied payment
under a guaranteed remaining walue, in which cases the lease liability s remeasured by descounting
the reveied lease payments using the rmtial discount rate, Byt of the change in lease payments resulls
from a change in floating Inferest rates, the lessee shall use a revised discount rate that reflects
changes in the interest rate

289/433



194

China Merchants Bank Chagter Vil Firnancial Statamants

Annual Report 2022 (H share)

4. Principal accounting policies connnued

{9) Leases jsonnnusd)
As a lessor
Leases for which the Group is a lessor are dassified as finance or operating leases. When the terms of the lease
transter subitantially all the risks and rewards of ownershap to the lewses, the contract i classiliod o o fmance lease.
Al other leatid afe classified as aperatisng o
Where the Group s a lessor under finance leases, an amaount representing the net iwestment In the lease |3 included
i the consolidated statement of financial position as “loans and advances to customen”, Unrecognied finance
incorre under finance leases are amorised wusing the effective interast method over the lease term Accouniing
policy for impairment losses are disclosed in Note 415
When the Group is a lessor ot an operating lease, ncome denved tom operating krase o recognised an the
comalidated statement of profit of loss using the straigh-line mmhad cver the lease term, IF initial direc? costs
incurind in repiect of the asets leausd oul are matenal, thie costs e initially copifalised and subsequently armorived
i profit o loss over the kase term on the same basis a5 the lease income. Contingent lease income is charged 1o
profit o boss in the accounting period in which it is incurred
‘When a contract includes lease and non-lease companents, the Group applies IFRS 15 Revenue frovn Confracts wilh
Custormners (o allocate the consderation under the contract to each component,
As a buyer-lessor in a sale and leaseback transactions
For a transfer of asset thot does ned meet the requirerments ol IFRS 15 Rewence from Contracls wolh Cuslhomes
te Aceount for 4 wle of asiet, the Group acling a4t a biyer-lesar doe nof recognise the trariderred asust and
recognises loan and advance to customers at an amount that eguats the transfer proceed within the scope of IFRS 9
Fretancial irsirurments,

(10) Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Group has accepted significant insurance sk, relative to an
insured event or ecourrence. When necessary, the Group enters into reinsurance contracts 1o transler insurance nsks
to reinmeer. A significant imsurance risk test is performed al inception of the insweance contracts.

Insurance incame recagnition

Premiums from long-term [ife insurance contracts are recognised as revenve when due from policy holders.
Premiums related fo short-term pon-file insurance confracts are recognised when recened at the inception of the
policy, a5 unearned insurance premiums in liatslities, and are amortised on a strasght-line basia into the consolidated
statemnent af profit or loss owver the term of the policy. When the Group has transferred insurance risk through
rainsurance contracts, the Groug calculates the amount of premium ceded and the reinsurers’ share of expenses
and mecognises them through the consolidated statemant of profit of lods i accordance with the terms of the
rainsurance coniracts

Insurance contract labilities

Inupance contract habilities are measured based on a reasonable sstimate of the amount of payments that
the Group will be required 10 make 1o ‘ullil its obiigatons under the irsurance contracts, which ropresents the
difference beiween expecied Tutuie cash outllows and inllows elalvd 1o such coniracts, A reasonable wmtimate of
oxpected future net cash flows is determined based on information currently availaabe a3 a1 the end of the reporting
poriod.

The Group has conudered the impact of time value in the liability calealation for long-term bife insurance. The
Group performs Habibty adegeacy tests based on miermaten currenily avadable as at the reporting date. Additional
Insurance cantract Kabilies should be recorded i any deficlency exisis
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4, Principal accounting policies iontinued)

{11) Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than impairment under
ECL model

The carrying amaunt of tangible and miangible assets including property and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangibla assets, inwestment propertees, inleresty m point ventuses, inderests in asspoales, goodwill and other
nonegurent assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable amount has declined below
the carrying amount. When such a dechne has occurred, the carrying amount & reduced to the recoverable amount,
The amount of impairment loss b recognised in the consolidated statement of prodil or loss. The recoverable amount
of an awet x the greater of fs fair value less disposal pepense and present vabue of future sxpected cash flows In
assessing value in use, the estmated fulure cash flows are discounted to ther present values.

Internal and extemal sources of information ame réviewed atl the end of the meporting period to |du|1'|'lf1 any
indbeations thal other assets may be impaired.

it amy such indication exsts, the asset’s recoverable amount s eshmated. In addimon, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet avallable for wse and intangible assets that have indefirite useful lves, the recoverable amount is
estimated by the Group at the end af the reporting period whether or not there i sy mdication of imaairment.

- Caleulation of recoverable amaunt

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the greater of it6 farr value less duposal
capente and the present value of future cash flows. In assessing value in use, the estlimated future cash flows
are discounted 1o their present values using & pre-tas dscount rate that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks specefic to the esset. Where an assel does not generate cash inflows
largely independen of these Trom othes assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that genemtes cash inflows independently (e a cash-generating unit)

- Recagnition of impairment losses

An impairment loss 5 recognised in the consolidated staterment of profit or less whenever the carrying
amopunt of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs exceeds its recocwerable amount,
Impairment losses recognised in iespect of cash-generating units are allocated fust to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, o reduce the
cammyws amount of the other assets in the unit for group of units) on a pro rala basis, except that the
carnnng value of an asset will not be reduced below 115 individual fair value less costs to sell, of value in use,
it determinable

{12) Precious metals

Preceows metals that are not refated 1o the Group's trading activities are initally measured at acquisition cost
and subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realsable value Precicus maetals that are related to the
Group's trading activities are mtially recognised at fai value. with changes in fair vabue arising fram remeasurement
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise,

291/433



196

China Merchants Bank Chagter Vil Firancial Statamanits

Annual Repart 2022 (H share)

4,
(13)

(14)

Principal accounting policies icomnnued

Financial guarantee issued, provisions and contingent liahilities
Finandial guarantees issued

Firancial guaraniees are contracts that sequire the Bsuer ie the guarantor) 1o make specfied payments to
reimburse the benelicary of the guarantee (the holder) for & hoss the halder incurs because & specited debtor fals 1o
make payment when due in aceordance with the terms el a debd ingtrument. The provision of financial guaranmess
nswed i1 recognmed in the contolidated statement of fnancial potition in accordance with accounting policy sof out
i Mote 8{5),

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions ase recagnised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amaunt when the Group has a legal of constructive
oblgaton ansing a1 a rewdt of @ past evert, it 13 highly probable that an outllow of econamée benefits will be
requited 1o settle the oblgation and & reliable sstimate can be made Where the time value of money i3 material,
prewmiions are stated af the present value of the expenditures expected 1o seithe the oblgation.

‘\Where it is not probab'e that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the ameount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, un'ess the probability of outflow of econcmic benefits is
ramole

Income recognition

Aevenue 5 1he inflow ot economic benelits thatl the Group has formed in its daily activities that sl result in an
increase in shareholdens” equity and hawe nothing to de with the capital invested by shareholders.

Het interest incame

Interest income and eapense for all financial instruments except for those dlassified as at FVTPL are recagnised In
“intarest income” and “Interest expense” In the profit or loss account using the effectwe interest method. interest
on financeal mstruments measured as at FVTPL is included within the fair value movement during the period, which
s recognised in "Other net income”

Dividend income
Diwidend income from investments is recognised when the dividend |5 declared and approved by the investes

Rental income

Income derived from operating beases 5 recognned o the consolidated statement of peofit or loss using the
straight=line method aver the lease term,

Pramium Income

PFremium income represents gross insurance premium written less meinswrance c¢eded, as adjusted for unearned
premeum, Geoss premiums written are recagnised a1 the date of risk moeption,
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4, Principal accounting policies iontinued)

{14) Income recognition jcontoued)
Fee and commission incoma

Under FRS 15 Bevenie from Confracts with Cusfomers, the Group recognises revenus whan for a3l a performance
obfigaton is satislied, i.e, when “contred” of the goods or services wderlying the particular performance obbgation
i trandferred ta the customer

A performance ohligation represents a good and service (or a bundle of goods or sendices) that i datingt o 8 séried
of distnct goods of services that are substantially the same. For contracts that contain more than one performance
chigation, the Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obigation on a relatwe stand-alome selling
price basis, except for the sllocation of discounts and varialde consideration,

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or service underlying sach performance chligation is determinad
at contract mception. 11 represents the price al wisch the Group wwould sell 4 promised goods of sevwte separatoly
1o a customer, I @ stand-alone selimg price o not direclly observable, the Group etimates i1 wsing approprigle
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amaunt of
consideration to which the Group expects 10 ba entitled in exchange for transfeming the promised goods or services
1o the customar

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which it will
be entitled usrg ether (a) the expecied value method or (b the maost [Rely amouwnt, cependmg on which methad
better predicts the armount of cansidetation te wheeh the Graup will be entitled.

The estimated amaunt of vanable consideration is ndueded in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an nclusion will rot result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the uncestainty
asscciated with the variable considesation is subsequently resolved At the end of each reporting peried, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (induding updating (b3 assessment of whether an estimate of variable
comideration is consirained) to represent fanhfully the circumstances present at the end of the reparting period and
the changes in circumstances dunng the repoming period.

For pach performance obligation (dentified, the Group defermines ol contracl inceplson whather st winfies the
performance obligation over time or satisfies the pm’hﬂn:ncn abigation at a paint in time, Control &5 trarsfenmrod
owor timo and revenue n recognised ower time by reference 1o the progress lowards complete satifaction al the
relevant perlarmance obligation il ane of ihe lollowing critera is mer

. the customer simultanecusly receives and comsumes the benefits provided by the Graup's performance as the
Graup performs;

. the Group’s performance creates and anhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

. the Group's pur!nmn:p does not create an asiet with an aliemative wse to the Group and the Group has

an enlarcesble right te payment for performance campleted o date,
Othemse, revenue is recognised at a point in time.

I the revenue is recogrned over time, the Gioup recognines revenue in accoedance with the progress Towands
complete satsfaction of a perlormance obligation, The progress lowards complete satisfaction of o performance
obfigaton is measured based on output methed, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measuremants
ol the value of the goods or seraces transferrad to the customer 1o date relatve to the remaining goods or services
promised wnder the contract, that best depicts the Group's performance in tranferring control of goods o services,
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(14}

(15)

Income recognition jcontinued)
Fee and commission Income [confinmed]

it revenue s recognised at a point in time, the Group iecognises the revenue when the customer abtains control
ol the distinct goad of service. To determine the point @ tme ot whsch a customier obtarns contial of o promised
serace, the follewing indieatars o the transder of eontrol theould alio be eanvidired. They include, bul are not
Limited 1o;

. the Group has a present nght o payment for the goods o serices;

. the Growp has ransferred physcal passession of the goods:

. thie customer has the sgndecant risks and rewsnds of ownership of the goods;
. the customer has accepted the Qoods or Services.

‘When another party i imvalved in peoviding goods of services to a customaer, the Group determines whather the
nature of its gromise i3 8 perfermance obligation to provde the specified goods or services itsell (e the Group i5 a
principal) or to arrange for those goeods or services to be provided by the other party (i e. the Group 13 an agenth

The Group s & principal i 11 can contral the goods or service before transfeseng 11 to customers. The Group s an
agent of its perlormance abligation i 1o arrange for the provaian al the speafied gooads af sevice by another pary.
In this case, the Group does not contral the specified goods of serace prowded by another party belore that goods
of serace i ansderred 1o the customer. When the Group a(is as an agent, il recogiises revenue in the amount
ol any lee of commission ta which i1 expects to be entitled in exchange fer arrangang for the specfied goods ar
serdeed ta be provided by the ather party.

A contract asset represents the Group's nght to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred 10 a customer that is not yet unconditional. In confrast, a receivable represents the Group's unoondrticnal
nght to consideration, Le. only the passage of time is required befose payment of that consiceration is due.

& contract lisbility represents the Growp's obligation to transfer goods of services 10 a customer for which the Group
has recedsed considoration (or an amount of considoration is duo) from the customes.

Taxation

Current income tax and movements in deferred tax balances are recognised in the comolidnted statement of profit
o1 lo3s except to the extent thal it relates to items recognmed directly in equitly, in which case 1l & recognised in
euity.

Curént 1ax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using Tax rates enacted ar substantially
enacted al the end af the reporing period, and any adguitment 1o tax payable in respect of provious pears.

Deferred tax s recognised on temporary differences between the camrying amounts of assets and liabdities in
the consodidated Tinancial statlements and the comesponding tax bave wied in the computaticn of taxable profit,
Deferred tas assets abo arise from unused tax Ipsses and unused tax credits, The amaunt of deferred 1ax provided is
based on the cxpected mannes of realisstion or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and labilities, using tax
rates of supocted rotums of the assets o the repayment of tha labilites, Defemaed tax aisets and labilities are no
duscounted

A delerred tax asset i recognised only 1o the extent that 11 & probable that future taxable profits will be availsble
agasnst which the asset can be ulilised. Deferred tan assets are reduced by the edient that i is no lenger prabable
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

The Group shall recognise a delerred tax asset for all deductible temporary differsences associated with investments
i subsidianies and interasts in associates and joint wentures that both of the folbowing conditions ane satsfied: the
tempasary differences are likely to be reversed in the foreseeable future; and it is probably to obtain the taxable
incpme used 1o offset the deductible temporary dillerence in the Tuluse. The Group shall recognise 4 defered Lax
liability fer all taxable temporary differsnces sssooated with investments i subsigiaries and inberests in assoiates
and joint wentures, except where both of the following conditions ase satistied: the westor s able o control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference; and i1 s prokable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future
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4. Principal accounting policies «continued)

(15) Taxation feantimuedl

Cument tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately fram each other
and are nof offset. Cument tax assets are offsel against cument tax labilities, and deferred tax assets againg
deferred tax Rabilities if the Group has the legally enforceable right 1o set off current tax agsets against current tax
liabilities and the follewing additional conditeons are met:

. in the case of current tax assets and labilities, the Group intends aither 1o seitle on a ret basks, o to realise
the attel and settle the habulity timuiansously; o

. in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilitles, if they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authasity on either

- the same tazable entity; or

- different taxable entithes, which, in each fulure period in which tignificant amounts of delesed tax
liabilities of awets e expacted 1o be settled of recovered, intend to realive the current tax aisets and
sedtle the current tax liabilities an a net bass of realise and setibe smultaneausly,

{16) Foreign currencies translations

In preparsng the fmancial ststements of each indondual group entity, tramsactions n currences other than the
entity’s funetonal currency (Toreign eurrencied) are recognied at the rates of exchange prevading at the dates of the
transactions. A the end of each repanng period, monetary items denominsted in Tarsign currencles are retranslated
at the raled prevalkeg al that date. Non-maaetary (tems carred ol fair value that are denpminated i foreign
cusrencies ang retrandlated a1 the rates prevaing at the date when the fair value is determined. Non-monslary ilems
1hat are measued in teoms of historicad cost in a foresgn cutréncy ane nol tetranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised m profit of loss in the period in which they anse except lon

- ouchange differences on transactions enfered o av part af the effectve portion of a hedge on certain
foreegn currency ks ar

. eachange dilferences on manetary lems recénable fram or payable te a fereign operation Tar which
settlement o neither planned ner likely 1o occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the forelgn
operation), which are recognised initigly in other comprehensie income and reclassified from equity 1o prafit
of loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the assets and liablities of the Group's
fareign operations are translated info currency wnils using euchange rates peevailing at the end of each reparting
period. Income and expense dems are translaled at the average exchange rates Tor the pencd, unless exchange rates
fluctuate signitcantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates a1 the dates of the transactions are used
Exchamge dilferences arising, il any, se retognised in other comprehemive income and accumulated in exchange
resarve {and attributed 1o nan-controfing interésts as appropriate),

On the dispotal of a loreign aperation, all of the exchange dillerences sccumulated m exchange resenve in respect
of that opesation attnbutable to the ownert of the Bank are meclasilied to the consolidated statement ol profit or
Iewis
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(7

Employee benefits
Salaries and staff welfare

Salaries, bonuses and ather benefits are accrued in the pericd in which the associated services are rendered by
employees.

Post=employment benelits

The Group participates i g number of defined contnbution retirement benelit schemes managed by different
prowncal governmants of independent insurance companies. Dbligatson for contributions 1o these schemes are
poanitly barne by the Group and the stall, and contributions pad by the Gooup are recophis a5 an sxpense o the
condolidated statement of prodil or loas &% incurred.

The Group's net obligation in respect of delined benefit plans is caleulsted separately lor each plan by estimating
the arnount of Tuture benefit that employess have earmed in the current and prior penods, discounting that amount
and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calrulation of defined benpfdt obligations iv perfoemed annually by a qualified actuary wsing the peogectad unit
oredit method, When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset i limited j0
e present valive of economic benelits available in the Torm of any Tulure refunds from the plan or reductions in
{utiare contributions to the plan. To caléulate the present value of economic benefity, consideration s gwen fo any
applicable minamum lundinq requrernants.

Remeasurerments of the net delined banelit habilty, which comprrie actuanal gaing and bodses, the return on plan
assets (exdoding intevesti and the effect of the asset cading (il any, excluding interest), are recognsed Immediataly
i olber comprehensive intome. The Groop deteimines the nel intest expeme (noomie) on the net delived benefit
liahility (asset) for the period by apolying the discount rate used 1o measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning af the annual penod to the then-net defined benefit lability (asdet), taking mte account any changes
in the net defined benefit lability (ssset] dunng the perod & a reiult of confributions and benefit payments. Net
interest pepense and other expenses related 10 defined benelit plams ane recognised 0 perionnel expentes in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

‘When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates 1o
past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recegnised immediately in profit or loss, The Growp recognises gains
and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement ooowrs.

Share-based payment

The Group offers H share appreciation rghts to i3 employes, namely H Share Appreciation Rights Scheme for the
Senior Management ("the Scheme”™, which i settled in cash, Cash-setiled share-based payments are measured at
the fair value of the liabilities incured by the Group, which are detesmined based on the price of the share The
Group recognises the senices for the penod as relatled costs or sapanses, with a comesponding increass in liabiity,
at gn amount equal 1o the Tair value of the lability based on the best estimate of the oulcome of vesting a1 the end
of each reporting penod within the vesting period. Until the lability s settled, the Group remeasures the fair value
of the liability st each roporting period ond and at the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value rocognsed
in peafit or koss for the pericd

The fair value of the H shase appreciation rights i usng Black-Schales model, taking inla account the termy and
condilion upan which the H share sppreciation rghts were granted.
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4. Principal accounting policies iontinuea)

{18) Related parties

For the purposes of these consofidated financial statements, parties are consefered to be related to the Group if
the Group has the ability, directly, mdrectly o jointly, to control the party or exerose sgnificant influence over
the party in making financial and eperating decsions, or wice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject
to cantrol, common control or commaen significant influsnce (except that the Grouwp and the party are subject
1o commen fignificant influence of the other party). Related parties may be indwiduals (being members of key
management personnel, significant shareholders andfor their close family members) or other entities and include
entities which are under the sipnificant influence of related parties of the Group where those parties are indinduwals,
ard post-employment benefit plans which are for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that it a
ralated party of the Group,

{19) Segmental reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segmeont ttem reported in the comolidated Tinancial statements, are
iontifiod from the financal information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior exedutaes managemant for
1he purposes of allocating resources to, and assewsing the periormance of, the Group’s vanows lnes of basiness and
geographcal locations Indwidually matenal operatmng segments are nol aggregated for financial repoting purposes
unless thie segmients have similar economic chorecteristics and are similar in respect of the rature of products and
servions, the nature of producton processes, the type or dass of customers, the metheds used to distnbute the
products or provide the services, and tho nature ol the rn-gul.'llnqr grwiranmant. Qperating segments which am not
mdividually material may be apgregated if they meet moy of these critena

{20) Fiduciary activities

The Group acts i a hduciary capacity 10 entrusted loan and entrusted investment business, Assets held by the Group
and tho refated undertakings to refurn such assots 1o customers are gucluded from the consolidated statement of
financial pasition as the nsks and rewards of the assets revide with the cuttamers. The Group anly charges a relevant

Commmission

{21) Dividends or profit distributions
Dradonds or profit detributions are recognised a4 a liability in the yoar nowhich they are approved and declared.

{22} General reserve

Thie general reseeve is an imlegral part of equiy. According to the relevant regulations, in additien to the mmpaitment
allowancei, the Dank mantainy & general ressve (o make up for unmidentafiad potential losses Bn principle, the
balance of genesal reserve shall not be fess than 1.5% of the ending balance of rsk susets, 11 addition, the gencral
reserve includes 2.5% of the meome of mutusd fund custedy butinesses. The general reserve al the Group alio
ncludes the genorsl reserve maintmned by the subsidunes of the Group sccording 1o the appicable bws and
requlations of thesr industry ar regeen,
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5.

()

(2)

(3)

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

In determining the caryng amaunts of some asets and habilities, the Group makes assumplions Ter the effects
ol uncertain future events on the assets and labdities at the end of the reporting period. These estimates ivvohe
assumplions aboul cash flows and the discount rates wed The Group's estimates and assumptions are based an
historical experiende snd expectations of future events and are reviewed periodically. In addition to the assumptions
and estimations of future events, pdgements are alio made during the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies,

Control over structured entity

Where the Group acts as asset manager of streciured entities, the Group makes udgement on whether it (s the
principal of an agent 1o assess whether the Group contrels the struciured entities and should consolidate them.
‘When performing this assessment, the Group considers several factors incduding, among othess, the scope of its
decidon-making suthonty over the structured entities, the rghis held by other parties, the remuneration 1o which it
i entitled in accordance with the related agreements for the assets management services, the Group's expoiure to
vanability of returns from interests that it holds in the structured entities.

Classification of financial assets

Business model assessment Classification and measurement of financial assets of the Group invosves significant
judgement on business model. The Group defermines the business modsl at a lavel that reflects how groups of
fimancizl assets are managed 1ogether to achieve a particwlar business abjective. Specic considerations Include how
the performance of the assels is evaluated and measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and
how these are managed and how the managers of the assets ase compensated.

Derecognition of financial assets transferred

In i3 normal course of business, the Group tanders s financal assets through various types of trarsactions
incldirg regular way sales and trarslers, sequnbisation, financal assets sobd under repurchase agreements. The
Group applies significant judgement and estimate m assessing whather it has transferred these financial assets and
gqualified for a full derecagnition

Whare the Group enten into structured transsctons by which it tansfers finanoal assets 1o structured entities, the
Graup anatywes whethar the subsance of the relationsbip botweon the Group and thess structured oniitEes indicates
that it controls these structured entities and the Group needs to consolidate therm, This will detesmine whether the
following derecognition analysis should be conducted at the consolidated level o a1 the entity lewel from which the
Tmaneial assets are tramiferred.

The Group analyses the contractual rights and ebligations in connection with such transfers o determne whether
derecognition oiteria are met based on the following considerations:

. whether it has transferred the nights to receive contractual cash Flaws from the financial asseis or the transfer
qualilies for the " pass through™ of those cash flows to independent third parties;
. the extent 16 which the associated ks and rewadds of ewnership of the fmancial assets are transferred.

Significant judgement and estimate B apphed in the Group's estimation with regard to the cash flows belare
and after the tranifers and other factors that alfect the cutcomes of the Group's asuetsment on the extent
that reskss aned feavards are tranderred.
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5. Significant accounting estimates and judgements (omnme

{4) Impairment under ECL model

. Significant increase in credit risk: ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets, An assel moves (o stage 2 when its credit rsk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increasad, the Group takes into account quaktatse and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward
looking information. Refer to Note G0{akin for more details

- Establishing groups of assets with similar credit risk charactenstics When ECLs ane meoatured on a collective
basis, the financual instruments are gmupmd an the basis of shared rsk charactenstics. Refer to Mote &0{allv)
for detaili of the charactenitics conwdered o this judgement. The Group montors the appropriateness of the
credit fuk characteristics on an angaong basis to asiess whether they continue o be similar. Thia s reguered
in arder o ensure that shou'd eredit risk chatacteristies change there is appropriste re-segmentation of the
assets. This may result in new portfalios beng created of aswts moving to an existing portiohe that better
reflects the smilar eredin risk characteriatics al that group of adsets.

- Modaly and assumptions used: The Group uses vanous models and assumptions in estimating ECL. Judgement
it apphed in identifying the most appropnate model for each type of asset, as well as for determining the
assumptions used in thesa models, incheding assumptions that relate to key drvers of credit risk. Refer 1o
Nate G0{aiinilar more details,

" Forward-locking informabon: When measuring ECL the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward
looking information, which is based on msumptions for the future movement of different economie drivers
and haw thewe drivers will affect sach ather. Reler to Note G0{ajled for more detals

. Probability of Default (*PD") FD constitutes a key input in measureng ECL. PD 1 an estimate of the likelhood
aof default over @ gwen tme honzon, the calculavon of wheh includes historecal data, assumnptions and
expeciatiens of future conditens, Refer 1o Note 80{a) (x) for made details

- Less Gren Default ("LGDT) LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference
betwesn the contraciual cash flows die and those that the lendar would expect to receve, taking info
accoant cash flows from coflateral and integral credit enhancements. Refer to Mote S0(aliii) for more details.
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5.
(5)

(6)

(7)

Significant accounting estimates and judgements o

Fair value of financial instruments

For a number of financial instruments, no quoted prices in an active market exist. The fair value for these finandial
instrumants are established by using valuation techniques. These technigues include wsing recent arm's longth
market transactions, reference to the current fair value of similar instruments, discounted cash flow analgsis or
optson pricing models. The Group has establshed a process to ensure that valuation techniques are constructed by
qualified personnel and are validated and reviewed by personnel independent of the business unit that constructed
the valustion techniques Valuation techniques sre cortified before boing implemented for valuation and aie
calibrated 1o onsune that outputs reflect actual market condifions. Valuation mode's established by the Group make
the maximum use of market inpuis and sely as fittle a5 possible on the Group's specific data. Howewar, it shou'd be
noted that some inputs, such as credit and counterparty risk and risk correlations, require management estimatas
Management estimates and assumptions are reviewed penodically and adjusted if necessary I the far valee is
minasured wsing Uhind party information such as broker quotes o pricing services, e valualon eam will evaluate
the ewdonce obtained from third party 10 support the conclusion that the relevant waluatson meets the require ments
of FRS, indluding the category of the redovant valuation at the appropriate 'ovel in the fair value hiorarchy

Income taxes

Determining income Rax provisions invalves judgement on the future tax treatment of ceftain transactions. The
Group carefully evaluates tan implications of trandactions and fax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatment of such transactions i reviewod periodically 1o t1ake info account all changes in tax kegislations. Deferred
lax asusets are recogrnad {or tax losses not yot used and temporary deductibls driforences. As thote deferred tax
amsels can only be recognised to the extent that it is pobable that future fazabie pralit will be aviadable agasmst
which the unused tax credils can be ublised, management’s judgerment is required 16 assess the praobability of Tulure
tazable profits. Maragement’s assssment b constantly revieend and additonal defermed tax assets are recognised i
it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allew the deferred tax azset 1o be recovered

Impairment of goodwill

The Gigup determings whether goodwill is fnpared at least &n &n annual biis and when glrcumitances indicate
that the canying value may be irmpaired, This regueres an astimstion of the recoverable amount of the CGU or
group of CGUs 1o which the goodwill is allocated, Estimating the recovarable amount requires the Group fo make
an estimate of the oxpecied luture cash flows from CGU or group of CGUs and also to choose a suitable discount
rale in orded to caloulate the poesent value of those cash flows. VWhere the actual futwe cash fhows are less than
expocied, ar change in facts and cireumstances whech results in dawrward rovision of Tuture cash Flows of upward
revision of discount rate, & matesial impairment Joss of Turther impalrment lows may &rise
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6. Interest income

2022 2021

Loans and advances 1o customers. 265,601 250,662
- Comarate Inans 86,754 80,575

= Retail loans 168,114 159,124

= Descounted bills 10,673 10,953
Balances with central banks E,482 7,792
Balances with banks and other financial mstitufions 1,242 Ui F]
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 7,760 5526
Amounts held undar resale agreements 4,487 6,115
Financial investments 65,808 56,05%
= Dbt investments at PTOCI 15,654 15,875

= Dbt investments at amoised cost 46,154 40,184
Total 353,380 127,056

Watw For the pear anded 11 Deterrber 20132, included in the abdve i he metes) mcore of EWMBEDG6E milion sooued on lnens end wdeande 1o

ClEtsmens & | valus ihegh Other comgieleni edome (2011 B R, 237 mllan)

Interest expense

2022 2021
Deposits from customens 105,836 B4,332
Bosrgraaing froem central banks 2,828 7635
Deposits from banks and other financial inatitution: 8,782 11,993
Placements from banks and other firancial instiutions 4 567 3519
Ampunts soid under repurchase agrésmants 1,960 2,571
Dbt seurities iSoued o662 12,532
Loase labilties 510 555
Tatal 135,145 123,137
Fee and commission income

2022 2021
Commissiens from wealth management 30,903 36,053
Commissigns from asset managemaent 12,457 10,856
Bank cards fees 11,359 19,377
Clearing and settlerment feas 15,051 13,902
Commissions lrom credit commitmient and lending business 3,753 6,321
Commisiens on custodian busines 510 5433
Other 12,018 10376
Tatal 103,372 102,318

In 2022, the Group optimised the grouping cotera for the detaled térms of "“Commissions from wealth
management” and “Othet™ in the note to fee and commission income, and the comparstive figurel wode ho-

presnted accordingly
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Other net income

2022 2021

Hat {losslipain from lair vaee change (2.67%5) 93
= finaneial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (2,204) 544

= derivatives insiruments {120) 12
- precious melals {351) 1464)
Mt investmant income 18,013 17,822
= financial instrumenis ar FYTRL 12,443 14,835
= gainfloss) on disposal of linancial assets at amortised cost 17 {657

= gain on disposal of debt instruments at FYTOCI 5,161 3516

= gf which: gain on disposal of bills 3,29 1434

= dividend income from equity investments designated at FYTOCH 153 74

= othar BB 50
Fargign exthange gain 3,600 31,351
Other income 9,702 6,868
= rantal income 8,181 6415

= inuirance incoma 521 453
Othar 1,065 BTE
Tatal 29,705 28,011

Dp eratin g expenses

2022 2021

Sraff coans 70,657 66,028
- Salanes and honuses 55,647 51,031

- Social insurance and corporate supplemental insurance B.421 B0

- Othes 6,589 6,586
Tax and surcharges 3,005 2172
Depreciation of property and equipment and investment properies 10,279 8,857
Amortisation af intangible assets 1,061 1,153
Deprecation of nght-of-use atsels 4,151 4,259
Short-term |eases expense and beases of low-value assets expense 229 250
Charge far insurance claims 360 i
Other general and adminiswative expenses (nole) 32,319 33,249
Total 122,061 116,879

it fupdioes” revwineration smounting o AMBIT milion foe the ges ssdes 3 Deoesber 2022 Q021 84809 mullon) 5 incided in oiber genasal

g adrmerridialiee Enpenie
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11. Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

The emolurients of the Dieclors and Supenvisois during the year weie a3 Tollows:

2032
Salaries,

allewances Retirement

Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses comtributions Total
RME 000 RME 000 RME" 000 RMB 00D RAMIE'000

{i (i

Exacutive director

Wang Liang - 3,625 = - 3,625
Subsatal - 3,625 - - 3,625

The executive directoss emoluments shown above were for his seraces in connection wth the management of the attain

of the Bank and the Group
MNen-oxecutive directors
Miao kanmin

Hu Eanhua (i)

Lo Yunde (i

Zhou Song

Hong Xiaoyuwan

Zhang lian

S him

Chen Dang (i

[ I R |

Subiatal =

The non-eeeculive directos shown agove did nol receive remuneration from the Bank,

Independent nan-executive
direciors and supervisors

Warg See Hang

Li Menggang

Liu Qs

Tian Honggi

Li Cheaxian

Shi Yangdang

Xiohg Ligngjun

Luo Sheng {w)

Peng Bikong

Wu Heng

Xu Fhengun

Cai Hongping (vh

Thang Xiang (v

Warg Warging

Cai lin

Subtotal

88, , EEEE288

B

3,804

2,650
1,548

7,915

- - 202
3 = 202
2,650
1,548

11,219

The ﬂ'rd!pﬂﬂﬂ!lﬂ nf-esecu tve derectars” and supervikors’ emalumenls shown sbove were Taf theit wercces ard

emplayment &t diecion of ipenon af the Bank
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11. Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments e

20k2
Salaries,

allowances Retirement

Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
AME 000 RME' 000 RME 000 AMB'000 RMB'O00

i i}

Former smecutive, non-enecutive
directors and supervisors

Fu Gangleng {ivh = = - = =
Tianm Huryu (] e = = = x
Wang Duaooang (il - = o = z
Luo Sheng il - - - - -
Guo Kikum (vi) - - - = -
Ding Huiping {vi) 167 - - - 167
Han Zirang {yi) 167 - - - 167
Subtotal 334 - - - EED ]

The former executies, non-sxpcuties direcions’ and supenisoes’ emoluments shown above were for their sernces as
directors of supervisars of the Bank.

Total

4,138 11,140 = - 15278

Hale

Lt}

iy

twil

The iold remures stion belore e i the Tulldme drecan, upersson sl esenitive ollicen of the Gresp B o gt Bnaloed. Detail of e
it cempeiatinn wil e diclossd separatsly whes B 1obal ieeuneration @ conlirmed

i june JORY. Edsrdig Lo the ielevan seaol o paosd @ e JOT1 Asnusl Qeesisl Wissteg o the Bink W fiu Seshis, M S0m Yusle
and Wir, Chen Dong vers dlacied su Ko Eescutive [hrecton of the Bank, whops qualdcations au the Dewcion. s approved by the CRIRC my
Cictotsir 227

in Sene 3038, v, Wirg Dasisng and Mr luo theng craed 5o be Man-Lerruing Droctors 3f the Nack alter i gnd = the 3001 Aemsd
General Meeting due to e sy of ther tenn of office, and My Tian Heyu cessed ko be s Executive Direchor of the Bank abter the end ol
the 2021 Arnusl General Mesling

i Howember 21, W Tu Gangleng ceswed to be Bw Wam Chaman and BonEsrodive Director of the Bank dew B0 change ol word
dif ain i

W e FO3D, aiinidieg e the ielswinl iessiitinen s &l D 2000 Aniial Gessial Masheg ol the Rasd, Ke i Sheng was stsrted in
the Sharehoder Supervoor of the Bank sd My, Cal Horgeing and W, Thang Blang weie electied as Exdernsd Supendson o the Bank

W e J02T, MR, Gus Mliron ceaksd 0 ba tha Shamholdey Superdsor of the Bani dus be ®a gaphy of ha terms of oflios, s Mr. Ding
Hurphng and ke e deong deded 15 teie s External Supereon of the Lok dus i e migoty of thet terem ol bl

Asid 3 Booombe 3831, the Gimm hasd sflored 10 phunes & W sham spirciaten right uidder the Scheme Cokady & e Scheme are del
st i Mole 75 caMsil
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11. Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments conmmues

2021
Salaries,

allowances Retirernant

Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
foes in kind bonuses  contributions Tatal
RMAB'D00 REAR'OO0 RMB000 RMB'000 RME 000

m
Executive directors

Tian Haiyu - 4,158 = 40 4,158
Wang Liarg - 3302 1,403 40 4,745
Subtotal - T.AED 1,403 B0 B943

The executive direciois’ emaluments shown above were for thesr sendices in connection with the management of the
affars of the Bank and the Group
Non-executive directors

Meao lianmin - - - - -
Fu Gangfeng - - - - -
Zhou Song - - - - -
Hong Xiaoyuan - - - - -
Zhang lian - - - - -
0 Min - - - - -
Wang Dasang - - - - i
Luo Sheng - - - - -
Subitotal - - - - -

The non-executive dirscton shawn above did not receive remuneration from the Bank
Independent non-executive
directars and superviior

Wong Lee Horg 500 - - - 500
Li Menggang 500 - - - 500
Liv Qlao 500 - - - 500
Tian Hongag 500 - - - 500
Li Chacwian (i) 183 - - - 183
Shi Yangdang i} 183 - - - 183
Klong Lianggun (i) - 3,64 1,344 EE:} 4,556
Peng B:hang - - - - -
\Wu Hang - - - - -
Guo Xigun (iv) - - - - -
[thng Huiping A0 - - - i
Han Zirang 40 - - - 400
Xu Thengjun A0 - - - 400
\Wang Wanging - 1,747 - 44 1,765
Cai lin iv) - 123 - 48 m
Subtatal 3,566 6,034 1,344 144 11,088

The independent non-executive directors’ and sugervisony” emoluments shown above were for their services and
employment as directors o supervisors of the Bank.
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11. Directors’ and supervisors' emoluments onmme

2021
Salanes,

allowaness Relsrerment

Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary seherme
{een in kind boaauses  contihutiond Tatal
AME DO BME 000 HME 000 EMB'000 AME'000

L0
Former exefulive, non-execulive
directors and supervisors

L Reanfun (wi) - 1,373 531 19 1,023
Leung Kam Chung, Antony (it Ny - - - 7
Fhaa lun (i 17 - - - 317
Liws Yusan Dwily - 1,368 BYE N 3,297
Wen lamguo (il - - - - -
L Xiaoming [in) - 1,979 - 48 2,027
Subrobal B34 5720 1,428 a3 T.B81

The lormer executme, non-execulive ditecton’ and superasors’ emaluments shown above were Tor their wnaces as
durectars of supsiatarns of the Baak.
Total 4,200 19,214 4,176 322 27912

ol

i O 10 Sepioember 20132, ihe Boad ol Diteciors ippraved e ditcretonery bofunes of s Rani'y desctee, supeniton sed aamcslve eMicen
tor JG21

(1] e 2027, accordeg to the Flevan ieolotons pacied at the J030 Annasl Genensl Meating of the Baik, K L Chaosen asd Mr. Shi
Yirwdong wive elected & the Midepeides! Nor-Ladulioe Cirechins f the Rank_ whoie guald b e iedegonden] Mon-[nstuties
Darecioes veere approved by the CBERC s dugest D020, AR the same tme, W, Leung Sam Chung, Sviosy s Mr, e iun csed 1o be the
indégandend Mor-farcutiom [arecion af the Rank doe &5 Ehe ey of Thair feomrs of affice

el m Auged MO, Mr, Niong Largjur wen elechied o $w Erplome Superencd of the Beny ot e ergloyes ieprewmiative mering of the Rark
According b th neelebons pased ab the 7140 maptsg of te Elwrnth Semsen of et Board of Superasies of the Bank, W ¥ang Liangjen
wrk whecied an the Chaiman of The loard of fupesnan of the Baek,

fred i fune 31001, sccording 10 the relewand pesclulioes, paved o the 3630 Arnusl Genaeal Berpng ol the Bark, Wy, Gus Kivun wn eiecied o
the Shirshoider Superaio of 1he Bank,

L m Degembs J0T0, M. Cai fin vk eleched a5 1% Employes Supervion of the Bard a1 e A P nirg of 1he Aark,

il e Ay 02, Wy L damqun emased 89 e P Dyt i, Dnevstess Vice Pressdmd s Socortary o e Baad of Dreclon of the Rk
thiw o charge of work ETangesen

kil  Auguat 2031, M. Lk Yuse oaised vo be the Chasrran of Board of Superiios and Esployee Supervsos of the Bank dis w dranges of work
anEngement

(S0 Al 2020, W Yen Baequo ctaeed 1o he The Sharebalder Supervieo of Bhe Denk dus 1o chaeage ol work snengemen]
[IL+] m Decerber 2050, Mr Ly Sasorseng oteed 1o be the Employes Supsennor o T Bark duw 1o change o wirk grmangement.

(] Ag of 3V Detemiar 1020, the Geoup had oftesed 13 phaces of H chae speenation fghes wate the Schsns. Drtabs of e Scheme are set
el T Male 3 )

Duersng the year of 2022 and 2021, no emaluments were pald by the Group to any of the persons who are directars
of supenadars a8 an indecement ta join of upen paning the Group of as compensation lor lau of affice.

Duning the year of 2022 and 2021, there was no amangement under which a direcior or a supervisor waided of
agreed to waive any remuneration,
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12. Five highest paid individuals

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2022, the five highest pad Indridusls ndluded wux persors in total, two of
them were with the same emoluments apd being the third highest paid indnaduals, and two of them were with the
same emolurments and beng the fourth highest pad individuals. Dunng the year ended 31 December 2021, the five
highest pald individuals included five persans in 1odal, two of them were with the same emoluments and being the
fourth heghest paid individuals, OF these highest pasd indeviduals, two (2021 threel were direciors or supervisors
of the Bank whose emoluments were ituded in Note 11 alswe. The aggregate emolument of the remaining four
12021 two) highest paid indivduals who were neither directon nor supenasors of the Bank is & follows,

2022 2021

RMB 0 ABAB D0

Salaries and other emcluments 11,764 5,048
Discretonary banuses - 1,568
Contributions 1o defined contrbution retirement schemes - B5
Tatal 11,764 B3

These highest paid indivduals wha were neither dicectors not supervisars of the Bark whose emoluments fell within
tho fallowing bands is ot out bolow:

2022 200
HED
3,000,007 - 3,500,000 4 .
3,500,000 - 4,000,000

b

4,000,007 - 4,500,000 =
4,500,007 — 5,000,000 =] =
5,000,007 - 5,500,000 = .

13. Loans to directors, supervisors and executive officers

Lezans 1o directons, supeivisors and eveculve officess of the Gioup ae & follows:

2022 2021
Aggregate amound of relevant loans made by the Group oulstanding
at year end 14 &1
Maximum agqregate amount of relevant loans made by the Group
outstanding during the year a1 56
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14.

15.
(a)

(b)

Expected credit losses

2022 2021

Loans and advances 1o customers 45,157 3r020

= Loans and advances at amortised cost [Note 22{ciil 40,175 LK ¥

= Loans and advances at PVTOC (Note 22(ciiil] 4,582 1,342

Ameunts due from banks and ather fimancial institutions (3,284) 6110

Fimancial ineastments 38 15,848

= Dbt investments at amortsed cost (Note 2 3Hbiui) 4,234 13,200

- Debt imvestments at PYTOC (Note 2 3chinn {35%) 1,647

Financial guarantees and lsan commitments 1112 5636

Other 3,887 1,345

Tatal 56,751 65, G52

Income tax

Income tax in the consalidated statement of profit or loss represents:

2022 2021

Curdent income 14y expense 34,276 ELRER]

= Chiness mainland 33133 37,222

- Hong Kerg 973 167

- Dverseas L 153

Deferred taxation (B.457) (10.802)

Total 25,819 27,339

A reconciliation of income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and that calculated at the applicable statutory tax rate is as follows:

2022 2021

Profit befom tazation 165,113 148,173

Ta st thir PRC stadutosry income Lax fate of 25% (2021: 35%) 41,278 37,043
Tax efects of the lollewing items:

- Effects of non-deductible eupenies 1,543 1,392

= Eflects of non-taxable income £17,114) (12,053

= FHlects of ditferend applicable rates in other junsdiciions. {21%) 258

= Transfer out of previousy recoanised deferred tax asiets 955 1,716

- Tax effect of perpetual bond imternest expense 1942) {550)

_cQuher Ll __

Income lax expense 23,819 27,338

Golel Tansben for Hong Cor and Svsmnr ope inciy ae chargeil &1 e apphessls 1t ol L prasabng s Frlivan] mgang
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16. Other comprehensive income
{a) Income tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income
vyl 2N
Before-tax  Tax bersfit/ Net-af-1an Bele-an  Taw benefit! K- af-1
st {experne) amizuni amounl |Epae) Emoanl
Iy tha may be ieclasdied in peoli o loss Tz 553 1,285 £ 381 (2,536) 5855
- Taed Tl vioe (ousligabs on debit
iatremnents. mesieed ol FYTOCH [7.353) 1,73 [5.617) 561§ {r.579) 4,158
- Mgt chungies in eapected oredil losses al
et inianments meamnes Al FYTOC) 4631 [1, 168} am 4060 {7,y 1,035
- et mawement in cash flow Recoe resene 135 [£x]] 1 B 1w i3
- Share of other cempreheroe (axpemel
Imcnme from equitj-soccunied esiees (L1559 - (1155 133 - 133
- Eachange difference on rasslstion of
financsd stafements ol foregn npsiamom dars - 44k (1,504} - Ih50
- Daret 111 - i3 - + £
Tarmg, than will neod b reclassded subrequentdy
o profit or s o0 2 n 1,10 ¥57 1338
- Mgt Tl vidue gaan on egaly mtumeat
desgnated 3t FVTOCI r3 (£} 45 1,158 il [
- Benpasrement of defned benefit scheme [1Fi] 1 [41] 1% ar 15
Dtk compisherdive Income m 551 135 558 (2,363} (AL
(b} Movements relating to components of other comprehensive income are as

follows:

2022 2021
Mot fair value {losa¥gain on debt irsfruments measuned a1 FYTOLCE
Changes in lair value recognised during the year (1, 746) 6,733
Reclatsrheation adjusimaents for amounts transforred to peotit
___ ot loss upon depasal o [3.871) (2.837)
Mot movemaent m mu-.mfml I"m|ul[lnrl reLary e dunng tha yoar
recogniied in ot :nrnpnihmuu neam (5,617) 4,156
Mot changu in ¢:|:pﬁfltd- :md Iosses of dabl netruments.
rmeasured at PTOC)
_Changes in expacted cradit lassen fecogniied during the yea: 340 3036
Nl mevement n invesiment evaluation resere durlng the mr
_recognised in other camprehensive mcome 3471 3,036
Het fair value galn on equity instrements dhlghl'l.ld al FTOCI
_ Changesin fair uaruc recognised durmu the year a8 1,318
el mevement in nvestment revaluation feserve during the year
L remqmmd in nthlr :umnrlhanmi Incame a8 1318
Het movement i zanh liow n:dgt resEry e
EHfective portion of changes in fair value of hedgirg instruments 112 14
__!I_tf-lass-fpcmmn atfjLsiment for realised gain o prnln o lavs - Ell
MNet mavement in hedging reserve durmg the year m:ngnm&d in ather
comprehensive income 112 105
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17.

18.

Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share i bawed on the net prafit ansibutable 1o ordinary sharehalders af the
Bank and the weighted sverage number of shares in (ssue for the year. As there were no diluted patential andirary
shases for the years of 2022 and 2021, there was no difference between basic and dduted sarnings per share for
both years.

T0ze Fie L
Hat pralit atinbutable 16 equity haldes af the Bank 138,012 119,922
Less: Mot pralin attnbutable 1o preference shareholdess of the Bank (1,675) (L6383
Mt profit attrbutable 1o hokders of perpetual bonds (3,562) (1.975)
Het profit atinbutable to erdinary shareliclders of the Bank 132,775 116,303
Wesghted average rumber of shares in issue {in milbon shases) 25,220 25,220
Basic and diluted earnings per thare (in RME Yuan) 5.26 6T

Hate

The Bask isusd son-cwmulstive pralesos thaet o 01T asd non.cummelitive perpeiuel bond in 2020 and 2031, Fo o puipols of caloulaieg Baue
wamengs g hare, dwdends on ron-ceTedetive el mence wanes and eises on ersoemulalie perpesdal bonds decleed duning the yes should be
ewtharied from o oot anisitslie oe ety Soldern of The Bank

The gomvenion feature ol preleesace vharer n comideied 1o be coningeaBy suulie qudinay thaer. The Inggering wveats ol cemreruion did nol oo

a ol 31 Decomber 1027 e 2020 Thiwlom the corrersion fsature of Eeleence thaves has no sffe on the dhuisd ssring per share caloulation fod
Bath yain

Balances with central banks

2022 2021
Statutory deposit reserve {note (i) 524232 484,878
Surplus deposit reserve (nate (ijk 50,846 65,819
Othet deposits with central banks {ncte (il 1,455 2,958
Interes) receivalle 285 243
Tatal 587,818 553898
L
(1] The Gioup places stabulory depait ieeves wail the Feop'e's Bank of Crina ["PI0C ") ared merrieas ceniral Saniy where I han nperations
The vty dégonil rrieres e not available for b Gioug's ety spemtons. The ety depesil reserer funds of the Rak™s metiltions
Socated w the Chinese marlnd oo caioslated al T%% and 0% of cligible B depouts and fareign curmengy depoesty repechieely a5 ol 310
Dorcermbnr 3027 (31 Darermmibier 2021 0%, arvdd 6% of rlsgitile RMD dopemits el dervign cumenty depotith ingetiedy) Dhgitle dapenity indude
depoails from gowerrerend duthotibes arad othe crgenmatom. retad depost. coporabs deomit. and rel cedd balances. of eninated buareia
and W deposty pliced by Poanill insliubon mutkds Ba Chiness muinlard. The armouniy ol wsulsly depoill reson plasd wim
canarsl banky of DORTETIRS S ol by ol panedactago
(C]] Sinplia depost 1eueve maintared with the FRBOC snd oeaial banks culsas the Chires Mﬂﬂm.lﬁ-hﬂm el sEsilement
oo

(*8] Ciiher depowln with central Bank prmarily represend Bl deposty and fomegn seifangs e placed weify the PROC,

310/433

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooood



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooooa

Chins Mercharts Bank Chapter VI Financial Statemants 215
Annual Report 2022 (H share)

19. Balances with banks and other financial institutions

2022 2021

Principal {a) 91,587 80,654
Impairment allowances (alib) {509) 378
Ot e o 80,286
Interest receivabie 3 )
Total 91,346 80,350

{a) Analysed by nature of counterparties

2022 o2

Balances in the Chunese mainland 57,809 37,453
- Banks 54,808 35,620

- Dther financial institutmom 3,001 1,833

Balances cutside the Chinese mainland 33,778 43,211
- Banks 33,390 41,430

- Dther financial institutons 388 1,781

Taotal 91,587 80,6564
Less’ Imparmeni allowances (509) 378
- Banks (490) 329

- Other fmancial intitutons {19) (4@
Nl camryrg amount 91,078 BO,2E6

(b} Movements of allowances for impairment losses are as follows:

2022 2021
Balance as at the beginning of the year X 277
Charge lor the year (note 14) 120 09
Exchange difference 1 18
Balance as at the end of the yoar 509 37g
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20. Placements with banks and other financial institutions

{a}

(b)

(e}

2022 2021
Frincipal {a) 264,782 196,351
hinpairment allowances (a)ic) (2,658) (2,860
Ot oo s mana 193,491
Interest recaivable 1,452 B30
Tatad 263,576 194,421
Analysed by nature of counterparties
2p22 2021
Placemerts in the Chinese malnland 202,381 127,959
- Banks 65,018 19,213
- Othe financial institutons 137.363 108,746
Placermernts outside the Chaese mainland 62,401 68,392
- Banks 61,880 68,102
_—_qthn fenancial institaons 521 2_*3_0_
Tatal 264,782 196,351
Less: Imparment allowances (2,658) (2,860
- Banks {163) {136
- Other financial ivititutions {2,4a5) (2,724)
Het carrying amournt 262,124 193,491
Analysed by remaining maturity
2022 2021
Maturing
= Within one meonth (inclusiee) 80,368 66,842
= Between one manth and ane year {inclusive) 158,086 15,906
= Over ane yoar 14,610 10,743
Tatad 262,124 193,491
Movements of allowances for impairment losses are as follows:
2022 2021
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,860 ite
(Refeaselicharge for the year (note 14} {235} 1481
Exchange differance 33 3
Balance as at the end of the year 2,658 1,860
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21. Amounts held under resale agreements

{a)

(b)

(c)

{d)

2022 2021
Principal {a) 277,561 528,564
Impairment allowances (alid] (1.094) (4,263)
Ot oo meaer 524,391
Interest recaivable 209 300
Total 276,616 524,607
Analysed by nature of counterparties
_enle 20T
Amounts held under resale agrecments m the Chineie mainland 277,382 528,447
- Banks 42,077 £0,323
_-Othe fmancislimtwvons 235,305 468124
Amounts held under resale agreerments outside the Chenese mainland 179 e
 —Other ftnancial institutiens 179 T
Tatal 277,561 528,564
Less: imparment allowances (1,094) (4,263)
- Banks {216) 1175
- Other fenancial institutions {878} {4,088)
Ml cafryirg amount 276,487 524,301
Analysed by remaining maturity
2022 2021
Maturing
= Within ane month linclusivel 268,850 524,301
= Between ane manth and ane year {inclusive) 7,577 -
Tatal 276,467 524,331
Analysed by underlying assets
2022 2021
Bonds 256,129 522,202
Bills 20,338 2009
Tatal 276,467 524,301
Movements of allowances for impairment losses are as follows:
2022 2021
Balance as at the beginning of the year 4,263 143
{Reteaselcharge for the year (nate 14} (3,169) 3,510
Balance as at the end of the year 1,094 43263
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22, Loans and advances to customers

[a) Loans and advances to customers

2022 2021
Gross amount of loans and advances 10 customeds at amortised cost (i) 5432112 5.075,052
Interest recaivable 1,326 10,548
s e e e e M3aE 3.085,600
Less: Lods allowances of loand and advancet to cuslomens
at amortised cost () [254,913) (244,523}
Loss allowandes of interest recenalbls {846} @t
Sublond (255,758} e i
Lowns and advances 1o cuslamers st amartised cost 5,187,679 4,840,106
Loans and advances 1o cuslomers at FyTOCI (i) 614,481 ABE, 00
Loans afid advandes 16 custamerd al PUTPL {imi} 4,994 ) '.I:.]:E'F
Tatat 5,807,154 5,335,391
L] Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost
2022 2021
Cosporate loans and advanees 2.270,323 2,087,247
Retasl lnans and advamced 1161, 789 2,987,701
DHORMO D . : — - P i O
Gross armount of loans and advances 10 customess al amortised cosl 5.075,052
Less: Loss alloswanges (254,913) {244, 523)
- Siage 1 (12-month ECL) [159,932) (169,347
— Stage 2 (Liletime ECL — not credit-impaired) (44,838) (32,007
___-Steoe 3 {Uifetime ECL —credivimpalredy _{50,083) _133,168)
Het amount of loans and advances 1o customers a1 amorised ¢ast 5177199 4 E30,529
{ii}  Loans and advances to customers at FUTOLI
—— e .
Casparate koans and advances 100,430 56,713
Deicaunted Bily 514,051 431,291
Loans and advances 1o customers 31 FyTOCI 614,481 4B, 004
Loss allowances (6,563) (1,581)
- Stage 1 (12-manth ECL) (6,311) (1, 289)
— Stage 2 [Lifetime ECL - not credit-impasted) 1292)

- Stage 3 (Lifetime ECL - credi-impaired)

{252)

Mo loss allewance s recognised in the consolidated statement of finanoal poution for lesns and asdvances fa

customers at FWTOC) as the carrying amount i at fair value,

{iii)  Loans and advances to customers at FYTPL

2022 2027
Corparate loans and advances 4,863 6,978
Diseounted bils kS -
Interest receivable 128 303
Tatal 1,904 7,281
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22. Loans and advances to customers connnues

{b) Analysis of loans and advances to customers
1] Analysed by industry sector and category;
Operations in the Chinese mainland

2022 2021
Transpartation, storage and peital sernces 461,434 A12.417
Manufactunng 445,218 309,635
Propesty development 349, 682 367 642
Production and supply of electnc power, heatng powes, gas and water 203,870 187,611
Wholesale and retall 171,786 133,352
Leasing and commercal services 158,320 170,00
Construction 103,998 117 453
Tedecammiuricatens, sofoware and IT services 78,950 58,267
Finance 75,593 57948
Waiter, environment and public utilities managemeant 64,885 G4, 427
Isning 3aan 28,854
Other 67,677 66,364
SRl of camporate any el IVEERE e S e AT, 1509049
s S S0 431,305
Ressdential mortgage 1,379,825 1,364,534
Credit cands 884,395 Bd0,254
Micro-firance loans 629,857 560,657
Other 213,599 173,527
Subtotad of retad loans and advances ) 3,107,676 2,938,972
Groas amownl of boans and advances 10 cutiomess 5,837,565 5,349,296
Operations outside the Chinese mainland

A0 227
Finance 36,521 37,345
Transpartation, storage and postal sernces 30,814 33,186
Prapesty development 26,298 34,062
Manulacturing 20,494 23,763
Tefecarmmunications, sof tware and IT seraces 10,908 TRIT
Production and supply ol electne power, heatng power, gas and water 9,023 7.077
Whelesale and retail 8923 8,924
Munineg 6,074 5651
Leasing and commeraal wervices 3,430 4,749
Construction 1772 3,481
Water, environment and public utilities management 110 &21
Othes 5414 5137
Subtatal of comarate Inans and advances 1S9 171,919
Dascounted bifls - -
Residential mortgage 9,383 g.872
Credit cands 124 1M7?
Micro-firance lnans 1,181 1,214
Othes 43,425 37,816
Subtotad of retail loans and advances N osamE N 43,819
Gross armownl of foans and advanges 1o cusbome:s 13 8094 220,738

At at 31 December 2022, over 90% of the Group's loans and adwances to customers were conducted in the Chinese
mainland (31 December 2021 over 90%).
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22. Loans and advances to customers connnued

{b) Analysis of loans and advances to customers jcontinued)
i} Analysed by type of guarantees:

2022 2021

Credif loans 2,218,635 1.8977.014

Guarantood loans B36,550 752,744

Collateraliod foans 2,122,337 2,075,635

Pledged loans 24B BB 333,332

Subtotal 5,537,405 5138729
Daicaunted bils - 514,054 43L31:'I5_

Gross amount of loans and advandes 1o cuslomers 5,051,459 5,570,034

{ill)  Analysed by overdue term:
. S .
Oveadue Oyerdue

Overdue fram {rom Overdus Tatal

within Imenths 1 year up fo more than overdue

Imonths  up to | year I yean 1 yean loant

Credit loans 22,260 123 2,365 Ba 7887

Guarssteed loir 6,533 7517 3,581 TE2 18,413

Colateraliued loans 5,180 67T 2913 1,694 15,966
Pedpedboens A& 5 2.1 1251 L

Gross amount of laans and advences 1o cusiomers 7,207 16,659 9,810 i 599 TB.285

203
Owerdue Orerdue

Overdue fram fram Dretdus Tow

within Imonths 1 yearupto e than et

Imonths  up o 1 year 3 ypears 1 pear loans

Credit loans 18,087 10,269 1,972 Gl 32,282

Guarsnieed losrs 1,141 2,650 3476 1403 BATD

Colateralived loans 1616 2733 3,610 FALF 15,10

Pedaged o 73 BET %1 3422 5373

Grass ameunt of loans and advinces 10 Cuomens 12130 16,330 10,849 ran 57426

Beim: Lot are dassfeed a0 overdor mbien el of inbise A owiedus ivoee B one disy

Amang the above-montioned ovirdue loans and advances 1o customers, collataralized foans and pledged laans that
are gwerdue but not impaired at the reporing date are as follows:

2022 2001
Collateraloed Inant that are owverdus but not impaired 4,198 1,512
Pledged lpans thiat are overdue bul not impasned 1.819 473
Total 6,017 1,990
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{b) Analysis of loans and advances to customers jconnnued)

fiv}

Analysed by ECL
i
- Stage 2
{Lifetime - Stage 3
- Stage 1 ECL - not {Lifetime
{12-manth eredit-  ECL - eredit-
ECL} impaired) impaired) Total
Loans ard advances measured at amorised cogt 5,217 868 156, 240 GE,004 5432112
Less: Loas allowances of loans and advances to
custarmers at amortised coi (159,932) {44, B9} {50,083} (254,913}
Nt amount of loans and advances fo Customens al
amortised cast 5,057,936 111,342 T.a21 5 177,199
Loans ard sdvances 1o customers at FYTOC 612,660 1,821 - 614,481
Lews allowances of loans and advances to cuslamers
at FWTocl {6.311) {252} - {6.553)
~aan
- Stage 2
{Lifetime - Stage 3
- Stage 1 ECL - ot (Lifetime
{12-rranth creht-  ECL - eredit-
ECL) impaired) Irrpair el Tatal
Loans ard advances measured at amartised cost 4,912,836 111,354 50,862 5,075,052
Less: Loss allewances of loans and advances to
custamers al amortised cos (169,347) {32,007) (43,169 (244,523)
et arncunt of loans and advances 10 customens at
amortised cost o, Fd3 089 19,347 1,093 4,830,529
Laans ard advances to customers at FYTOCT 485,735 2,269 - 488,004
Less allowances of loans and advances (o customers
at PTG [1,289) (292} =+ (1,581)
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22. Loans and advances to customers connnued

{c)
i)

]

Chaptar VI Financial Statemani

Movements of allowance for expected credit loss

Reconciliation of allowance for expected credit loss for loans and advances to customers measured at

amartised cost;
2022
= Stage 2
iLifetime = Mage 3
- Stage 1 ECL - not {Lifetime
(12-manth credit-  ECL - credit-
ECL] impaired) impaired) Total
Balance as at the beginming of the year 169,347 32,007 43,169 244,523
Transler ta
- Slage 1 3,039 (2,965} [74) -
- Shage 2 (7,699) 1878 (1EO) -
- Stage 3 {3,693) {4,681) 8,374 5
{Releaselicharge for the year (note 14} {1,6!1] 12,653 29216 40,175
Wite-olfuidispesais - {71} {39,018) (39,087)
Unadnding of discount on allowance - - (286) {386)
Recovery of lcans and advances written off - - B.a72 B.972
Exchange difference 632 76 8 716
Halange as af the end of the year 158,932 d4 B9E 30,083 254,913
2021
- Stage 2
iLfetime - Stage 3
- Stage 1 ECL - nat [Lfatirne
{12-rmanth creht-  FEL - eredit-
ECL) impaired) Imaaired) Toral
Balance as at the beginning of the year 159,918 27,401 4107 234 426
Trarsier 1o
- Stage 1 5,848 15,743) {105) -
= Stage 2 [1,137) 1,502 {455} -
- Stage 3 {1,001) (4,572} 5973 -
Charge for the year (note 14) 5,766 13,763 16,149 35678
Wite-olfsidisposals - - 135.105) (35,105)
Unwinding of discount an allowance - - {247} {247
Recovery of loans and advances written off - - 5,893 9,893
Exchange difference 1473 [34) (A} (122}
Balance as at the end of the year 169,347 32007 43,169 244,523

Reconciliation of allowance for expected credit loas for loans and advances to customers measured at

FWTOCI:

2022 2021
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,581 238
Charge far the year (note 14) 4,982 1,342
Exchange difference - 1
Balange as at the end of the year 6,563 1,581
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22, Loans and advances to customers icontnuea

{d) Finance leases receivable

The table below provides an analysis of finance leases receivable incheded in koans and advances to customerns for
leases of assets in which the Group is a bessar:

o 2022 2021
Total minimaum beagses recovabio
Within 1 year (inclusive] 13,323 15,035
Cvesr 1 year bt welihin 2 Ly {arvelusivel 11,035 11,225
Over 2 years but withen 3 years (inclusve] E,074 8,519
Oves 3 years bul withan 4 year (inclusive) &, 069 5,323
O & years bt withon S years {inelusive) 3,860 5,580
Qe 5 years 17448 13980
Subtatsl 57,829 549,652
Uneained finance income (9,665) (8,378)
Present value of rommum leases recevable 4B, 164 51,284
Less! impactment allowances (3.671) (3,237
- Sqage 1 {12-monhth ECL} II.!D&I (1.872)
- Stage 2 {Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired) (1.646) {632
- Stage 3 {Lifetime ECL credit-impaired) {717 {733}
Met carrying amount of linance leases recevable 44,493 48,047
23. Financial investments
aotes 2022 2021
Fenancial investments at falr value through profit or loss 13{a) 423,467 348,123
Debt irvestments at-amortsed cost 23{b) 1,555,457 1.85841
Debt irvestments at FUTOCH 23idh TEO,34% 536,038
Equity investments designated at FYTQC) i3di 13,416 6,995
Total 2,772,689 2170, 957
{a}) Fimancial investments at fair value through profit or loss
Kates 2022 2021
Financial imseitments measured at FVTPL {1} 411,591 18,245
Financial assets dl_'uqr_._at_-gq_m 1_a|! vl :h_n_:u_gh pt_n_h_l_nr hoa (it 11,876 29578
Tatal 423 467 348,123
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23. Financial investments onmmues

{a) Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss jcontiuea)

i Finandial investments measured at FVYTPL
Financial investments held for trading

2022 2021
Bonds:

Classified by issuer 182,416 129,792
~ Gowernmant bonds B1,781 46,721
= Bonds ssued by policy banks 21,871 9,861
- Bonds issued by commercial banks and other fanancial instqutions 35,999 21,245
— Dither debl securitied 42,765 51,965
Classified by fisting 182,416 129,792
— Usted i the Chanese mainland 167,998 113,762
— Listed qutside the Chinese mairdand 12,215 15,796
= Unlisted 2,203 234

Other nvesiments:
Classified by undarlyng assels 1,901 1,849
= Equity imvestments 1K -
= Fund investments 814 B
- Wealth managoment products 1,032 1,036
= Llong postion in precious metal contracis 108 102
Classified by listing 1,91 1,945
= Usted guiside the Chinese mainland 134 11
= Unlisted 1,837 1,838
Tatal financial investments held foe trading 184,387 131,741
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23. Financial investments wontmuea

{a)
i

(it

Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss fonsoued

Financdial investments measured at FVTPL (continueal
Other financial investments measured at FYTPL

2022 2021
Bonds:
Classified by wssuer 20,789 17,094
~ Bonds ssued by commercial banks and ather financial irstitutisns 14,039 9,784
~ Other deat securiis 5,750 7.310
Clasiifhed by fating 20,769 17,004
= Listed in the Chenese mainland 16,216 15,388
~ Usted gutside the Chinese mainland 1.872 1,333
— Unlusted 01 373
Cither invesimanis:
Classifioa by undarfyng assets 206,415 169,410
— Eguity investments 4,362 4,500
— Fund investments 198,735 161,954
= Wealth management products 1,511 1,360
= Other 817 1,182
Classified by hsting 206,415 169,410
= Listed in the Chanese mainland 330 B2
= Listed gutside the Chinesa mainland 653 1,118
= Unlisted 205,432 168,230
Total other financia ivestments measred at FYTPL 27204 186504
Total linancial investments measured st FUTFL 417,591 318,245
Financial investments designated at fair value through profit or lois
2022 2021
Bonds:
Classified by issuer 11,876 29878
= Government Bonds 18 a4
= Bonds ssued by policy banks 4,559 17.970
~ Bonds issued by commercial banks and ather financial irstitutions B,370 11,251
= Orther debt sequrities 19 616
Classified by fisting 1,876 19,878
Listed in the Changse mainland 11,656 28,793
= listed guiside the Chinese mainland 110 1,050
= Unlested - 25
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23, Financial investments wonmmuwen

(b)

]

Debt investments at amortised cost

2022 2021
Dbt ireestmenls al armodlsed cost i) 1,579,845 1,209,359
Interesl recaivalle 19,294 16,368
e A A B T Lo s T A RRR T,
Impaitment losses ol principal (O0isiE) (43,448) (39,707
Impairment losses of inlerest recelvabla {234) {179
Subtoral (43,682} (30,888)
Tatal 1,555,457 1.185,841
Debt investrnents at amortised cost
2022 2021
Bonds:
Classifud by msuer 1,452,999 1.078 888
= Gwernrment bondd 993 624 TE8, 537
= Bonds isued by policy banks 394,126 280,129
= Bonds wsued by commercial banks and other linancial imstitutions 56,913 20,064
= Othar. debit socudtits 1,826 10,154
Clissifurdf by fating 1,452,499 1.078 888
- Listed in the Chinese mainland 1,295,184 1,068,300
= Listed eutside the Chinese mairdgmd 33,319 4,740
— Urilivted 23,996 5,848
Far vaiue fav B bcfod bongl 1,457,373 1,099,251
Qe tnvesiiments.
Classifued by underlving assers 127,346 130,471
— Mon-standard assets — Loant and advances 10 cuslomedss 10B,616 115,022
- Mon-standard assets - Creditor's beneficlary rights 1o athes
commercial banks 5,500 100
- Nan-standard aviets - Othes 12,582 14,729
T Other B8 _520_
Classified by lating 127,346 130,41
— Unlsted 127,346 130,41
Tota 1,570,545 1,209,358
Less: Loss alloandes (43,448) (39,707
Stage 1 (12-manth ECL) (1o, 120) (14,974}
Stage 2 (Lifetime ECL — nob eradit-impained) {960) Mz
Stage 3 (Lifetime ECL - credif-impaired) (32,368} (24,021)
MNet deb? investments at amartised cost 1,536,397 1,169,652
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23, Financial investments wonmuen

(b) Debt investments at amortised cost fcansinuwed)
i} Analysed by stage of ECL:
2022
= Stage 2

{Lifetime = Stage 3
= Stage 1 ECL = not (Litetime

{12-month credit-  ECL - credit-
ECL) impaired) impaired) Total
Dbl imestments sl arnoelsed ool 1,343,652 2,072 34120 1,579,845
Less: Loss allewwanges of debi svwesiments
al amorised eoit (10,120) [oa0} {32,268) (43,448)
Mot debt invesiments af amortised cost 1,533,532 1,113 1,752 1,536,397
5 EDI'I
- Stage 2
iLifetime - Slage 3
- Slage 1 ECL - nat (Liletimse
{12-rmanth credit-  [CL - eredit-
— _Eel impaired) impaired)  Total
Dbt irvestments &t amotsed cost 1,183,320 1,862 24,077 1,209,359
Less: Loss allowances of debi mwestments
at amaortised cost (14,974) ma {24020} (23,7071
Het debt invesiments al amartised ean 1,168,346 1.250 56 1,169,652
fili}  Mowement: of allowances for expected credit loss
A0ds
- Stage 2
{Lifetime - Stage 3
- Stage 1 ECL - nat {Lifetima
{12-month oredit-  ECL - credit-
ECL) impaired) impaired) Total
Balance as at the beginming of the year 14,974 Tz 24,0 39,707
Transfer to
- Srage 1 - = = =
- Srage 2 27 27 - -
- Stade 3 {153) (298} 451 -
(Releasel'charge for the year (nate 14) [4,674) 518 8,390 4,234
Wite-offsidisposals - - {531} {531)
Recovery of debt previously written aff - - 238 8
Exchange difference - 1 9 10
Balance as at the end of the year 10,120 G&0 32,368 43,448
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23. Financial investments ionmued
(b} Debt investments at amortised cost fcoatnued)
i)y Movements of allowances for expected credit loss fcontinued?
2021
- Slage 2
Lifetime - Stage 3
= Stago 1 ECL=mnaot [Lifotimo
(12-rmanth credt-  ECL — eredit-
ECL} imnpained) Irngaired] Tatal
Balance as at the beginning al the year 11,832 36 13,960 26118
Transfer o
- Srage 1 - N - -
- Shage 2 5 ] iz =
- Siage 3 - - - -
Charge lor the year (note 14) 3,158 3El G a64 13,201
Wite-of fa/disposals - - Q) {13
Hecovery of debt previously wiitten aff - - ang arg
Exchange difference 19) = 2y 21
Balanco as at the ond of the yoar 14,574 M2 24,021 39,707
{c} Debt investments at FVTOCI
2032 2021
Dobt imeestments at FYTOC! {i) AN 628,355
Interest recaivable 5,078 7,683
Tatal TEO,34% 636,038
Impairment |osses of debt mvestments at FYTOLI (i) (B,540) [B.622)
Impairment losses of interest receivabile {819} {84)
Total (B,620) (6, T06)

i

Mo mpairmont allowwances aro recognsed m the consoldated statormant af financial postion for debt investimonts at

FYTOECH as the carnping amaunt is at fair value
Debt investments at FYTOC:

Horids:

Classified by istuer
- Eowernment bonds
- Bonds wsswed by policy banks
= Bonds issued by commercial Banks and ather tinancial instdutiong
— Orthier detit securities

Classfued by lating
~ Listed i the Chanese mainland
- Listed sutside the Chenese mainland
= Unlisted

1022

771,271
524,651

74,072
119,602

7T
611,110
a0, 148
70,013

2021

£28,355
00415
82,427
106,139
49 370
628,355
527, 829
6% 435
40,027
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23. Financial investments conmuwes

{c) Debt investments at FYTOCI icontnved)
{ii}  Movements of allowances for expected credit loss

20232 2021
Balance as at the beginning al the year 6,622 4014
(Releaselicharnge for the year inode 14} {355) 2,647
Exchange dilference 273 {39)
Balency as at the end ol thy year 6,540 6,622
{(d) Equity investments designated at FWTOCI
2022 2021
Repossessed equity Instruments 3,264 Lol
Other 10,150 6,004
Tatal 13,416 5,505
Classified by Fsting
- Listed in the Chinese mainland 1,412 &5
- Listed outside the Chinese mainland 2,744 1,204
= Uniisted 9,260 476
Tatal 13,416 6,995

During the year ended 31 December 2022 the Group disposed part of the equity invesiments designated at
FYTOEL. The fair value of the equity investments disposed at the date of derecognition was RM32.E7% million (2021
AMB2 VEB millien), The cumulatwe net of tax gan of RMBZ0 mallion (202 1° cumulative ret of tax gain of RME1, 804
million] was transferred from irvestment revalualion meserve to retained earnings on disposal.

24. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the bank

The foflowing list contains particulars of subsdiaries which principally affected the financial results, assets o
habilities of the Group. Unless aothervade stated, the clods of all shares hebd is ardinary, All of these companies are
subsediaries as definad under Mote 401} and have been included in the scope of the consolidated financial statements

of the Group.
LT
PAlace of Particulari of  ownesship
incarparation  the mued i held by Eronesmic Legal
Hame f tompary and eperation  paid upcaptal  the Bark  Principal adiivitien  nature representabve
[ milbom)
(MR imerranonal Capetal Helgngs Heng Kosg HEDd, 11 0% wemet Bark Lmvied Gakdty  Wang Liarg
Covparation Limited (ncte (0 el riment
NanagEmeEt
CME Franoal Leasrg Comgany Sranghal Rv12,000 0%  Fnance leasng Lomvied Gabdy 5 Shushsa
Liswiaed {riate (i}
ICME Wiy Lury Bank Lerited ot (i) tieng King KDl 8 W% Barking Lowwled abdlly L Yuan
Chuna Merchants Furd Mansgerment (o L. Penden LR $5%  Ford management  Lmied Gy Wang Xeeging
vzt v}y
CME Wiaith Managemees Co., Lod fnate bl Benghem LR W% Ametmasagenent  Lmded bty hen Yeong
(China Marchants Evrope S8, [note (v} Lamrmbouy FURSS 100%  Barking Lirvted Gty U Bao
Crgna & (M2 Asart Managrment Compary By ENES0R  incte [l Amet macagement  Lewied a3ty Wang Xacging

Lireited {rgrte i)
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24, Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the bank ortines

Mate:

(1]

il

L

L

Cnil by i Capial Holdrgy Comp Umded (“CWC L formerly bnown an Kangran Tingnce Company Limsted and ChR
[  Capitd Cor Liruted, i the Bank's whellpawned aulsichity appetond Bor welSng up by the FROC thinugh b ¥ fu
[toas] Mo 855 in 2014, the Bank wesde an sdotonal captal coninbution ed KEDTSD milkon in CMBIC. The capital of CMBICH eorsesd to
HEDT D00 i, ad the Bask s sharsliulSing geeriemacge desaned wicungnl The Budnd of Direciots pased “The Brvoiiles) ngatlicg the
Capital mosa angd Redruciunng of CHEC" which sgressd St the Bank mads capital comnbation of UEDEGD milion (or S squivslent) o
CMEIC on 28 fey POTE. Thet Cag tal CONESEON Wil OOPpieing on 20 haary 4018

Culll Vindmtall Lpaing Company Lamied ("CMEFLT) o whslby-owned subnidiary of the Rank ssprovd for wetteg up by e CREC theiugh
My Vi Bay b (20081 Ko 110 and commencec ity opeswion m Aped 208 In 2004, the Bank made an sddibonal capisl coninbobon ol
WLAR), 0060 mmifiiers iri CAMIIL. The éaptsl & CLAIRL mereased 08 AMBE 000 mil 8h and She Dink's sharholdvg pestrmtige remai unchariged
n August 2O, CAMFL coreeried RABRG 000 milion of @ relened ewmngs inin shave capetal, and the capitsl of CUAIL rereaied o
AR B2, 000 mllion. The Hénk’s sharehekding getcestage semaned unchanged.

M Wing Lung Bank Lirited (" CMB WLE®] mas Tormerdy knowes ai Wing Lung Rask Larsted On 30 Seplesber 1008, the Bark sused
# SLUZ% queay dereats in CME WIE CME WIS Became & wielly oaned subnidiary of the a0l on 15 landery 3009 O WA had
witheltwwn Friem Fytieg on e HKRx it ool 16 laeiry 7000 The Chasteun of CRIWIE chirged frem i Yuan 1o Wang Lisng e Feliusey
4, 2073,

W 2077, the Bard scrused 11 B0 aquity ket i Chas Machan Fund Mansgement o, Lid. ("CWFAT), (i Ioimey sisociaes, Irom
WG faael Mamagement B9 o 8 coralderation & LURED 56T 447,57 | oliguing the witiement of the shove conuideraiion m gath, the Lnk'y
haeholdng o CMEL inoiesed Irom 33A0% 4o 55.00% |h J0E3. Ag g bewdi. e Bark obisined the conirol over CRMFR, whith becams
fhe Rank'y weimadady on I8 Wowenber M1 0 December M7, B Back made a5 sdddsned cajatsl comiiibaSon of UJRGDS melion in
TN, ard othe shaeshobders o TP dio mads Cigial corts buten of REABISS millatn peopaitamally. The dapetal of CMFM swrminad o
K1 119 mifior. and the Bark's tharebsldng penoenlage femanesd andhanged

T Wtk Maragement Co, Uid, ["CAW"0 i o ywhollp-paned sty of T lank, spproved lor seitng up by the CRAC with ¥in Beg
liar Fa [ 2019] Mo 9E1, 1w formally ritabioded on Nowede 1009 In ccordancs with the seproval of CERC (Y Rao e Fu (2021
W A0, PMoegan Axet Manageman (sl Peofol Liited [ IPWorgan Asst Mansgemssn ) ke sutnenbed (o & 10% stk in CMBEWKE
i 02T whih o eweiirend of RUED GET milion Afss ihe completon ol capital secnen, CREWW'S iegoieeed capetsl has besi ievsined o
approsisgiey BUES, 55 mibicn frem AMBS 20N melton and fhe Eanl's g PAcigen Assei Marsgerreni's sharetoldings se 50% and |0%
sy,

Ching Meichasty Huiops A ("CME Burope 3471 & 4 whaly-weed nltaldaty of the Hink spproves by the CRINC wiih Fin das by [2016)
W 53 The Bank recrwed an approwad from the Ewopean Coniral Bank (ECAY for the misbinbment of CUE Furcpe 54, in lusemsoug o
Wy H0T

Cigry & M Ampt Wanagewmend Company lemuded ©CCHINA & CHAMT) wai regrirned and sulablithed an 18 October 2000 il Y
approsal 1o Letling @ by the CERS veiin ¥in Bag jan Fu (10001 No P8 CIGHS & CMAM s an deectly oovirolied whesdary of the Bari,

wth BY BASA%, Bekd by SIGHA B CMD Lile sutinde Co 40d, » josrd wertune of the Bacsk, e 120542 % held by CRRNE, & wulnidiary of the
Band
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25. Interests in joint ventures

2022 2021

Share of et assets 14,247 14,778
Shace of profits for the year 1me 2A77
Shase of other comarehensive (euperselfincome for the year {997) 133
Detats of the Group’s nterests in major podnt ventures ane as follows

Pace af Perticulsrial  Grouphs  Percentage of

Imtarporation jsued a0d  eMectve  owmeribip held
Mame of joint vertunes Economicnature  and operaton  pald upcapial  interent by the Bank  Priccipal activily

i iy}
CGNA S TVE L Irirasee (o, L. (resslill Limned hab by Shesshin PVEREDY  S000% 5000%  Ufe imwrasce
1 T
Merthants Urson Comuser France Company  Limined habd vy Shes.thun 10000 S000% 5000%  Corsumer fnasce
Lvetind {ravitlall

Hiotes:
1] The Gevag Pl 50000% sopaty Inbeeim in C3GNA & CME Libe inutance Ta 101G, & CHIB Lile ) ond Cigea taealth and Life musance

Comgany ("CHLIC ™) holdy the cthes S0000W squity inlsterts. The Rank nd CHUC duew the jeint sentone’s nil, aredits and loue bused en
thew shareholdfing procortonally. The Band's inesstmend s CiGHA & CME Lile b sccownded for m e invesiment i s joini veniue.

[} CHB WoE ane of the Gooap's wholl-owned subsidanes, s~ Chens Unded Mebwed Commurscations Lmned | "CUNCT), 0 subsdisy of Ching
Umicor Liswied, |ty @t up Machant Lsion Corgumet Finarce Company leies (SWMOCKE®) E8IRE spprowd the cperation of LRICES
e 3 Slarch FI0S CMER WLE and CUKE pach held 50% soadty imeeesiy in MUOCFD ard share the nsha, prodns and lmse. propomonally hased
@y thair gharshcldergs. i December 3017, the Bank and CUKL made o capal genicbytion of K600 milsn in WUCES smpecivly, Alle
the capiial npecoon, the caseal of MUCTD inoessed 1o EVIS2 859 miioe, Wil Bw Bank's hrrsoidng percentags becoming 15%, CME
W' ihaivhildng perorriage Becoming Fi%, and the Croep's iokel sharsholding preicerdige ¢ d o L%, n D ke JO1R, The
Bank made snothes caprial comribefon of BAEY OO0 midlon m MUCHD, srdl CUMC mmade the same smouni of capfal mpecoon. Alser Bai
the shaw capiial of MUCTC by resched 1,869 mulion. The Bark and SR WAR then Feld 34.15% and 15 85% of eqeity néeech s BUCIC,
riapeciierly, and the Geoup’s wotel shaeholdng pecentage remansd 81 5%

Wy 3027, T WAR ranslesind ol s shares ol MUCED i e Banl. Ahe ke wranle, the Bash and CUNC each hed S0% ol egally
etereyts v MUCIC, and the Groug's 1atel shareholding = o unchanged i Oktober J000, MUCFC converied AMB1TH
rrilion of i copital et end ARIBS BIO milbon of ikl ielaned sainitgn m23 shee Cngiled, aed) the shice cagatal af MUCTC incrrased 13
RLANE0, 000 il altet the- comrion
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25. Interests in joint ventures (onnued:

Summarised (nancial infarmation with neceisany adjustments in accordance with the Group's acceunting palicies of
the joint ventues which ae individually matesial to the Group is as Tollows

(i3 CIGNA & CMB Life

Crhe Total
timsithemie  (omprehesin Lot Depretistion
L (enpernel feeriel  and ik ind
bty Lubines gty Beena peoft et Aome  euiiests  aEriaaton Incene la

na
KGN B CL Life e UL 151 iR [ ] (155 {L%e L] W Le]
Crong'ueffactin mlwet e REn 40 R i% 97 ] 56 Moo
nn
I I Ml Lle TEEF FES NI 1] 1, 8 18] L5 i il
T vl el LRt R L 13318 L] k] ] BlE H 1]
{iil MUCFC:
Tedal Cash Deprecistion
Met comprshensive  mmd canh nd  Inceme
Equity  Revenue prafa isore esuvalents  amoriisaton fan
blikh)
MAMCFT 164 HE 47,108 17087 17.500 19 15 A5 L S00
Group's afflective ialeret BT 5,60 E5u s 1665 1665 m M Bl
nr
ML 145658 135,680 14,038 15503 I3 M3 4555 a4 4
Group's effectoe mbemest TLE4R B1AI0 o 1597 1507 1507 18 i e

Summarised financal information of the jint vertures thal are not Individually matenal to the Group is as follows:

Total
Cther comprahansive
Nert {loss) comprehensive (expense)
profit CXPENT income
2022
Other int wenturesy [2.874) = [2.874)
Group's effective inlorest {291] - (291)
2021
Other jaint ventures 4675 {3) 4,672
Group's efective intarest BOG = S
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26, Interests in associates

2022 2021
Shase of met assets 5,547 8,875
Shase of prefits for the year s 1,153
Share of other comprehensive expense for the year {158) -
Detarls of the Growp's interest in major assocate are as Tolkows;
Place of Particulan af Grewa's Perceniage of
Incaiporation iued asd elfettive  svmanhip held
Eeonamic malte and opetation paid up rapital [ntetest bythe Sank  Principal activity
______ - i milboe)
Bark of Tairhou Co, L8, Mlate) Limited Ratsiity Tastos PELEDD  JABSSEN MEEN Commerctal Bunk

L The Bank, wisth sigaaly held & V0% 9ee i Bank ol Taisou, sgueed 5 wonasl ol 13 BS50% sk Mo Mg An That Cn, d end g As
Lig iempance £omaany of Clera, L @l @ b8l conilderation of AMEI 12 felbon an 17 May 3021, Ugshn ke completon ol the Semaitien,
the Bank held PLESSO% slele of Bardk ol Tethod The Baok (as eosicise sgnBoam llussie oo Bel of Tedhou sl thevelom i
invmiimenl i e vead Tram sty imestmenty devignates s PVIOK ) i3 nisiwls in anciates

Summarised financial infoermatlon of the assoclate which is Indivdually matenal 1o the Group B as follows:

Csher Total Cash  Depreciation
Wet compeberive  comprebtmive  and cadh aad  Income
Auets LabBtr  Equity Seweeuw  peofit ApEniE income equbalenty  amertisation tax
Hal
Bariy of Taizhou Co,
ed LS MIEM MR B M5 (138} 437 e SO
Grogiseffmtimimieed 91508 B538 B150 1743 1004 s By §.0E3 L} .
Osher Tatal Cash  Depreciation
Net compreberdive  comprehemive  aad cach and  Income
Aty LiabSties  Equity Beveeus  perdit L] income eguivalints  amortisation tan
0 insted
Bark of Taighou Co.
id AT eI A BT LS 0 1 M5 11,585 b1 B
Grogiefiwtendeet 77536 TLOE 552 iE & & 154 n 153

Hatw Tha geiind of B3 Por pualil or Fevs and cther comprabeniive neore i hem 1 uns 7021 10 17 Decernber 3021

summarised finapoal information of the assooates that ase not individually material 1o the Group is as follows:

Total
Other camprehansive
Net {loss) comprohonsive {oxpenself
profit eHpEne income
2022
Othor associates (11,527} {137 (12,254)
Group's effective mterest {184} {123} 312)
2021
Other assocaies 37,958 16%) area3
Group's effective intoret 663 L) 654
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27. Investment properties

2022 2021
Cost:
At 1 January 3,135 3276
Transiers infout) 13 {86)
Exchange difference 153 {55)
AL OO UUUURUUUU RN ... SOUUUUROL: . .
Accumulated deprecation;
At 1 lanuary 1,763 1,653
Deprecation 132 155
Tramsfers inflgut) EE] "
Exchange ditferance 105 [ELH]
At 31 December 2,033 1,763
Het carrying amount;
At 31 Decamber 1,268 1,372
At 1 lanuary 1372 1,613

As at 31 December 2022, no impairment allowance was consdered necessary for inwestment properties by the
Group 12021: ki

Investment properties of the Group mainly represent the leased properies of CHMB WLE and the Bank that have
besn leased oul under apetating leaies. The fair value &l the Graup's ivestment peoperties o determined by the
miarkel approach and the method of capitafsation of net rental income. As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of
these propedties was RMES, 534 milion {31 December 2021 RMES,279 million]

The Group's total future minimum leases receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as Tollows:

2022 2021

Within 1 year {inclusvel i 13
1 ywar 1o 2 years (inclusree) 244 17
2 year 1o 3 years {inclusnen) 184 127
3 yoar 1o 4 years (inclusve) 153 106
4 yoar 1o 5 yoars (inclusvel 102 105
Crvee 5 years T5 3595
Total 1,243 1,180

This tair visbue hierarchy of the investmant propecties of the Graup ame lised as follows:

Fair Value

B4 8t

31 December

Lewel 1 Leval 2 Leval 3 2022

Located in the Chinese maniand - 3,140 - 3,040
Located ouErSEaL - - 2,304 2.3!_1:_
Total - 3,140 2,394 5,534
Fair Yalug

as at

31 December

Level 1 Leved 2 Level 3 2021

Located in the Chimese masnland - 3,078 - 3078
Located owerseas - - 2.203 2,103
Total - 3,078 i.203 5178

In estimating the fair walue of the properties. the highest and best use of the properties is thelr curent use.
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28. Property and equipment

Arcratt,
vesptls and
Land and  Comdtnation  Computer Leawtheld  peoimsional
bulldings  improgres  wquipment  improvemantt  wquipment Cithar Tatal
Cout:
At 1 lanay 3022 WEm 1,50 16,860 10935 51327 LR 13,399
Aditioss n Lo 1498 28 FLE L] w e
Fedassdcaton and ranslers 1450 [h.625) 16} 1 - {1631 i
Desposals {1508 - {517 1198 maa (431 3322
Exchange difference 61 . 13 n 5454 L H] 5917
LEL e oL 1L L. L I new o m CLILIL 1L
Acrpmulated depreciation:
At | Ry 12 12,530 - 12,924 108 8051 4885 45866
Depriacaton 1155 - L 1103 Ror " 10,147
RedasEcation s ramslens 33 . 13 - - {13 )
Dinponals (87) - [am LEL] (1,653 (578 (2,885
Exchange dtireniy 175 - n 4] (=11 13 435
B s pninis L S AL AR o EOEL . S i T3
Impairment loss
At} anuy 1012 H - - - 438 bt
Charge - - - - e m
Deposals [154) {154
Eachange differencs - - - =~ 50 5]
At 31 Deoamber 2002 n - - - 1432 . 1,152
Het carrying ameunt:
At 31 Cecemiber 2002 15,142 18 FA 1813 1,438 1,134 e
At 1 lanry 1022 15,558 150 1,936 1897 51778 1444 Bas
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28. Property and equipment ontnues

firrab,
werrRls and
lasdand  Conciution  Compuie |smebald  prdesonal
mildings  npogres egaipment improvemest equipmant Crier Total
ot
At fargary 21 FLEE] EALH 15, 14% F.681 SE104 6159 110819
Addibiors 534 T4 LA 1,108 1Ty 53 1%
Erdamdation wed transten. & 34| k.l i . 1 BE
Driosdls [LL] - 1638 na 3418 i 5125
Exchanga dHerence [EF] . 3n “n (1.361) 14 (1,415
AilCwerper) CLIL IR isa  em0 osrs & | WY I
Acrumulated depreciation:
At} lanary MO 1,750 = 11,483 LREH LAF ] 481 wh3
Beprecaton 1304 - 1097 L] un LIk L
Redansfation and ranslers ] - 1 - - 1] T
Dwponaly (4 - (661 (L] 1,250 (348 2818
Exchangn dfisce &8 A o I L. 2 e
ok it £ L RO, ., S VSIS DOV .. ..., (N OO .. OO,
Impairment losk
ALY Rarsary 2O - - - - 13 E 38
(Charge i - - - 167 - a7
Enchange dffsrente - . - - {5 - (5
At Decambes 2020 H - - - 288 - it
Nt casrying amount;
&t 31 Pecemiber 2001 15,65 150 19% a7 51778 144 Bas
At Rarusgy MDA 16528 EAL T 1660 159 41058 F° ] fam

b A sl W1 Reserndes 3000, e piceia of pllinieg the regidraten dertfinaie Tor the Gumups drsgetien weith in angregale el Carping walis
i AMEY, 108 millon 31 Decenber 2027, RWE] 016 mdlon) was sl in pogie. Marsgement & of the Wew that the sloemad manes woud
raither #8tect the right o the Gooup & thews st nee hawe sny sgaificint mmpeet on the butines opstation of the Geoup

(4] A5 i 31 Degrmber J02F, the Group bad no sigraficant umused property and equspment (31 Deoeber 1021 Horel

il &5 gt A1 Oevwmbar J60F, the carmang valus of morigeged sinraft and sl o placsmenty fram baeks srd oiner Srameal it ol
i CHBFL v BAE0E 517 millish (31 Deoreiber 2001 BWAY 5,075 milkani

0 The Gemp's tetel fyhste sman e bease seewivabley usdes non-ranrellable nperating S, ae o oliows

nr: ore

WWithim 1 ymar (i 8,306 1,785
1 i s ) pary Gnclusive) LR 1k
¥yuat ta 1 prary Deschuien) B, ik 5, Tt
Byt En 4 yeary Dnchusies 7 nat 4 ALl
& ywal oo § s fnciushe £151 4,753
(= ] 15076 THIET
LEE ) B2 155 43188
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29, Lease contracts

{a}

Right-of-use assets

Mator
Land Computer wvehicles
use Fights Bulldings  equipment and athes Tatal
Cont:
ALY January 2022 5,885 23,070 1 i 19,078
Additors - 1,5% 4 7 3667
Cermase = (2,348} {1 {12 12,851)
Exchange difference 15 48 - - 63
i R R AR i I, i L O LA
Accumulated deprecution:
A1 1 Jenuary 2022 1,190 4414 3 9 10,616
Depeeciatien inote 100 181 3,965 3 Fy 4,151
Decraase - (2,458} {1 9 12.458)
Exchange difference 4 *) - - £
il OSSOSO ., JOVRIL..... . RTRRPRE:. e it R s
Impairmert boss:
ALY Jenuary 2022 58 - - - 5%
AL Decinbar 303 - T i PP R PO R P s I o = R S e
Het carrying amount:
A1 31 Decernber 2012 i, 566 12,973 5 9 17,553
A1 lenuary 2022 4,736 13,656 L] 7 18403
Matar
Land Computer vehucles
L2 tights Buidimgs  equipment ard athar Tatal

Cent:
A1 lenuary 3021 5957 PR 4 16 17,009
Additiors 33 a0n 5 1 a1
Decrease - (2,107 2] in Z.1nm
Exiharge differerce {5} {181 - - 20
ety ... S L A =L 1 e iR
Accumulated depreciation:
AT January 2021 1,009 b,974 1 ] 79495
Depeeciaten inote 10 182 4,070 3 4 4,259
Decraase - (1,649 12) in {1,632
Excharge difference ) 5l = = [13]
i A b TR ... SO .. S - S S 8
Impalement hoss:
ALT Lanualy 2021 - - - E -
Charge 59 - B - 59
AL Decernber 2021 " Y i e i bl
Hat carrying amount:
A1 31 Decernber 2021 4,736 13,556 4 7 18.a03
AT January 2021 4,548 14,144 1 ] 19,104

The Group mamly leases land wse nghts and buikdings for its operatiens. Lease terms are pegotiated on an indevdual
basss and contain o wade range of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
langth of the non-carcelable period, the Group reassesses whether it is feasonably certain to exercse an extension
option, or nol to exercse a termination option, upon the ocowrence of either a signifecant event or a sagnificant
change in circumstances that is within the control of the lessee.
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29, Lease contracts rommmues

{b]) Lease liabilities
Analysn of the Group's lease Eabilities by remaining maturity is as follows:

2022
Within 1 month (mchuive) 503
1 mcnth 1o 3 months (nclesive) 5491
1 months 1o 1 year finclusive) 3,041
| year 10 2 years {inclusive) 3,038
2 yoear 10 5 years {inclusvel 4,612
Orved 5 years 1,178
Tats 13,013

Interest expense on lease labdties are st oul in nole 7.

{c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Shart-term lease ecpense and leases ol low-value assets enpense are disclosed 1 note 10, The Group entered nta

shart-term leases Tor buildngs, compuler equipment, motar vehicled and othes.

{d)  Dusing the year of 2022, totd cash outllow ol the Groep's leasws amounted to RMBES,332 mdlion (2621 RMB4,835

millian)

{e) &sat 31 December 2022 and 2021, the leases committed but not yet commenced wera not significant.
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30. Intangible assets

Software

and other Core deposits Total
Costfappraisal value:
Al 1 lanuary 2022 10,045 1,083 1,128
Additions 3487 - 47
Dasposals {131 - {13)
Exchange difference 14 58 112
AL Decembier @08 e e TR e B NN
Accumulated amortisation:
At Y January 2022 b,550 512 1,062
Charge lor the year (note 10} 1,021 43 10461
Dsposals (1 - {1a)
[xchange diffevence 11 48 59
At 31 December 2022 7,572 G0 8172
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2022 2,821 581 3402
At 1 lanuary 2022 3485 5M 4,066

Software

and other LCore deposits Total
Cost/appraisal value:
At 1 January 2021 8576 1118 10,694
Additions 479 - 4%
Exchange differance {1 135) {45)
R Rt Y PP ROIN oo TRRRRER. ., . NEVORRRPRE, L) [
Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 Janwary 2021 5,442 453 5,931
Charge los the year (note 10} 1,114 e 1,153
Exchange ditferance 6] &) 23
A1 31 December 2021 6,550 512 7,062
et carrying amount:
At 31 December 2021 3,495 5N 4,066
At 1 January 2021 4,134 £29 4,763
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31. Goodwill

As at Addition Decreate #s at
3 December during during 31 December
2021 the year the year 2002
CME WLE ingte (il 16,177 - - 19177
CMPM [rote il 55 - - 155
CHI {note fiiil) - 45 - 45
Thaoyin Intemet (nobe (W]l 1 - - 1
N 2 B D A R P e Mg o M e ] 10.578
Less: Impasment alowances - CME WLE (5749 - = (57
Het carrying amount 9,554 15 - .55
L
ay O 30 Sepiermber 2008, the Baok sorpied & 531 1% ety rievests & OB WAB, On e scounibon daie. She far wsboe of O WK
abierdiatie nel st wo BV N2 E5E malion, of whith e Bant scoounted ho AMBG 5] malien & s of RWEAG,1TT malion, being the
wncris off sequiution om? owel the s walus of the identifissle sl st wan ecognned a gooduall The delaily shost CWSEWLE are vl ol
i P 3
] O 18 Hewrdier 2011, th Rank scqured @ 55 D0% squily ety in CAFLL O (he soqurction dite, S Pai vk of CMPR idenifiakss

el ety wan BATSE mikon, of whh the Bank aoooonbed for RMBATL welion A wm of BRBTYS milioe, beseg the erces of scqumdion
ol of RMETED militry Seni ibe Lok viler of S idenbliable art surty, e icsegrined s goexbvil. The detadi showt TR a0 arl gt
Kabe 14

(o] O 30 Decemibesd, 2007, CWB Wing Les Wairasws Company Linted, & subbiiaty of CME WLE, nsued thades b purchese e Busess of
Ching Merchamiy ussnce Comping Lisiled ["CAT) On ihe arquisiton dile, the lar vibes o ThI " dderidiable il s i AMETSY
mmilion. A sum of AVE4S miton, beng the sxoess of acgquiston cont of AMBAOE mdlion over the 1er ssiue of ihe mismitiabis net marn, wn
reczgned an goodwill

(1) 0 1 apnl 201%, CWMN Eoguied the TDOW equily micteti N heopn ngeme Teshrakagy (hanahen) Conperation Limibed | fhaaym
mtama 1. On the amunition date, the ey wahoe of Traogin istomet's shestdably net ascet, ver RME T milsom A sum ol AMET il ion, bee)

the eximd of acqusiben toml cver B L wahue of the denfifiable fel aast, wel ricegnnied o goodedl. Faoen mienat's oo of Busneis
e and sales ol ooy sottwiare e havdvarn; sele of cemmurscation and ollice sulemabon squpment, and (T

=

Rl g

Impairment test for goodwill

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs ane dezermined based on valur m use calculations, These caloulations use cash
{lew pravections based on linancial farecaits approved by managemenl covering & S-yoear pariod. Catk flows beyond
the S-year period sre sdirapolated uurg a steady growth rate. The growth rate does not exceod the long-term
avesage geowth rate for the business in which the CGU operates

I assessing thee impabiment of goodwill, the Geoup assurmed that the teiminal growth rate & compadable to the
forecast lomg-term economic growth rate issued by authoritatve mstitutions, A pre-tax duscount rates of CMB WLE
and CMFM adopied by the Group are 11% and 10% (2021 7% and 10%). The Group believes any reasonably
pesable change in the key assumplions on which recoverable amounts are based would not cause the carrying
amaunis of the CGUs 1o exceed thelr recoverable amoiants
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32. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

{a)

2023 2021
Deferred tax assets 90,844 B1.639
Deferred tax labilites (1,510) {1,353
Het armoasnd 89,338 80,286
Analysed by nature of deferred tax assets and liabilities
The components of deferred tax assets®abilibes are as follows:
2027 a2
Deductibles Deductiblaf
{taxahble) (taxabla)
temporary Deferred temparary Delerred
o difference tax difference tox
Deferred tax assets
Imparment allowances on loans and adwances to
customers and other assots o amortssed oost 201,706 75,228 2B4 360 7
Financial assets at FyTOC) {3,332) {1,016} (11,082 (2,763}
Financial imstrumants at FYTPL FEL 183 92 3
SIPATE e el e A T LT LY PR L BLAE 185188:
L : Ela Ll i o e
Deferred tax liabilities
Iimpasmrment allowances on loans and advances to
pusformers and olhwer assels al armorsed ool 356 50 - -
Frnancial assets at FvTOC) 15 4 {s) (R}
Financial instiurnents at FVTPL 215 54 {144) 271
Salaries and welfare payable and ather (10,235) {1,61E) (7.755) {1,325)
Tatal {9,649) {1,510) (7,904) (1,353}
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32. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities «onimes
(b} Mowvements of deferred tax

Impairmint
allawanced
an boans and
achvarted to Salasies and
cust o dod Finaneial Financial weifare
oiber ety ol assety Imstsments payable and
amariised cos1 at FVToo &l PTPL othes Toda!
AL lanigany M2 R L |2 754y (4] 1883 B0, J3E
Feconived in profit of lms 4,061 1,160 43 1,933 B457
Raceqnised in othet comprehamne neome - i - {21 557
Exchinge ditference 26 4 (i - iE
At 37 December 2022 15,278 [h,00dh 237 14,835 9,318
|mgairment
allzrwpraes
on loans and
atvances fo Salaties and
ustomen and Finandial Financial weelfare
uther assets af wusaty nasumees payakle and
#ncrbsed cost at FToc atFTRL oher Tata!
At 1 lamary 2N 61,380 [1,404) 151 10,305 1180
Becognised in peolit or loss 0,850 1.020 [1.554 1516 10,232
Facognised m ofher comprehensive mgome - 12,383} - 14 [2.365)
fExchange difference I E] 1 L 33
At 31 December 1021 FEAL] [2,764h (4 11,863 20,28

hale Ha. derlereed L Rabidty Fory beers recogmansd in eipedct of lempotary di'levence s aied with imertments in subnidaries hecwane the oo
5 i @ i b oonirol te g of the reweral ol he temesay BN

the toaivapreable future

el il is prubabl

il sk iy
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33. Other assets

(a}

34.

{a}

2022 2021
Ampints pending for settlernent 15,387 8,719
Comtinuing involvemant assets 5174 5274
Interest receivable 4,154 31913
Prepaid lease payments 209 257
Repossessed assets (a) 456 513
Guarantes degosits 465 51
Raceivable from rensurers EFL] 186
Prepaymant for leasebold improvement and other miscellanecus ters 7.569 4,987
Premium receivables 196 13%
Post-employment benefits: defined benefit plan {note Fbl 50 &5
Other 21,889 27953
Total 55,978 122,521
Repossessed assets
A Calii
Land and bulldings 66 623
Gither rpessesd dots & 3,
Total 612 654
Less: imparment allowances {156) {141}
Mt repoisessed assels 456 513
Woie; w2083, the Group deposed of reposesed ames wih @ 1o cerpng salue of RWEELD malion (200 1 AMBES millon)
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions
2022 2021
Principal {a) G4, 618 751,254
Interest payable 1,056 1,764
Total 645,674 753.018
Analysed by nature of counterparties
2022 2021
In the Chinese mainland 633,178 T01,085
= Banks. 103,250 77,788
= Other financial institutions. 519,928 623,297
Outside the Chiness mainlard 11,440 50,160
= Banks 10,779 48,301
= Other financial institubons 681 1,858
Total 644,618 751,254
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35. Placements from banks and other financial institutions

{a)

36.

{a)

(b}

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
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2022 2021
Princigal {a) 191,872 170,257
Interest payable W5 ELE]
Total 152,857 170,650
Analysed by nature of counterparties
[ 2022 __ 2021
in the Chinese mainland 124,513 114,496
- Banks 123,934 1mor.2a
— Other financial institutions 599 7,282
Dutusde the Chinee manland 67,339 55,761
- Banks 67,130 55,570
- Dther financial institutions ] e
Total 191,872 170,257
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
2022 2021
Ferancial liabilites held for trading (a) 18,247 17,017
Fenancial liabilities designated at far value thicugh profit or loss (bl 45,067 A, 744
Total 63,314 63,761
Fimancial liabilities held for trading
2 202,
Financial liabilibes ralated 10 precious matal 17,634 16,406
Short position on banas a13 011
Tatal 18,247 17,017
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
2022 2021
In the Chinese mainland 36,217 34,677
~ Precious metal contracts with other banks 14,170 11,596
= Other 22,047 23,081
Dutside the Chinese mainland B850 12,06/
= Cartificates of deposit ssued 383 37
= Dbt securities issued 7,709 T.600
= Other 7548 4,050
Total 45,067 46,744

Az at 31 December 2022 and 20721, the difference betwoen the fair values of the Group's linancial liabelities
diasspnated at faar value through prafit ar 1o and the cantractual payable amount At maturty it ool sgrificant. The
amounis of changes i the fair va'ue of these liabdities 1hat are attributable 1o changes in credit risk of the Group
are nol significant during the years encled 31 December 2027 and 2021 and & o 31 December 2022 and 2021
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37. Amounts sold under repurchase agreements

2022 2021

Principal {albh 107,024 157,572
Interest payable 69 ]
Total 107,053 157,680

{a}) Analysed by nature of counterparties

[ g LN
I the Chaniese mainland 103,452 155,322
- Banks 103,446 147410

- Other linancial institutions L) 7912
Diutisde the Chinese mamland 3,572 2,250
- Banks 2,801 1,854

- Other fenancial institutons m ik
Tokal 107,024 157,572

{b) Analysed by underlying assets

2022 2021

Dbl securities 95, 999 152,071
Government bonds 73,335 00,956

- Bonds uiued by policy banks 15,330 48,833

- Bonds wsued by commercal banks and ather financal insttubionk 3476 2074
= Othet _rkbl: sefuhities . 3,3? i '!5'33
!_:g:s:nun:m bls _:I_l_,lHS ! 5501 |
Tatal 107,024 157,572
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38. Deposits from customers

(a)

(b)

2022 2021
Principal {a) 1.535,742 6,347,078
Interest payable 54,837 38,078
Taal T.550,579 6,385,154
Analysed by nature of counterparties
2022 2027
Corporate customens 4,431,553 4. 058,924
- Demand deposits 2,762,671 2,653,817
- Time deposits. 1,668,862 1.406,107
Retail customers 3,104, 189 2,2B8,154
- Demand deposits 1,983,354 1,557,861
= Time deposis 1,120,825 130293
Tatal 7,335,742 6,347 078

The deposits taken from customers as collateral or for the purpose of

guarantees are as follows:

2022 2021
Guarantes for acceptance bals 195,384 132,858
Guaranteo for loans 4 18878
Guarantee for ssuing letlers of credit 19,366 21,574
Depos:t fof latters af guarantes 44,732 32412
Other 41.4% .08
Tatal 321860 138,930
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39. Staff welfare scheme

{a} Salaries and welfare payable
2032
Charge
for the year Paymant/
Beginning  arising from Charge transfers Ending
balance  combination  for the year in the year balance
Shaort-term employee benelits (i 1B.DES 15 58,581 (53.724) 23,075
Pest-employmant benelils - defined
centribution plans (il 1,629 - 5,110 15,974) TES
Crthar long-term employes benelisling &7 = (41} - as__
Total 19,761 151 63,652 (59,698) 23 BEE
201
Faymant/
Begennimg Chargn transfom Ending
halance lat the year in the year halance
Chart.term employes benefits (il 14,155 53,827 48.917) 18,085
Post-ompioyment benefis - delined
eantribution plans (i 1,240 4 B84 14,495 1629
Oriher Ir.mq-mm employes benelisiii) &7 7 nan &7
Testal 15,462 58 T72E (54 429 19,761
{0 Shart-term employes benefits
o 2022
Charge
far the year Payment/
Beginning  arising from Charge translens Ending
— balwce:_ovorhination:forthayear inthevess . Delece
Salasies and bonus 14,318 19 48,682 (44,263} 16,888
Wellare expense 14 - 2,310 1231y 17
Locedl insurance 530 - am 13.470) Eral
= Medical insurance 515 - 3,192 13,354) ELE
~ Ingury insusance [ - £l 34) &
= Matemity insurance k] - 85 182) 12
Houming reserve 166 - 2,309 (2,318) 157
Labour unien and emphayee
educilion ecpanies 3,032 - 1,971 11,3861} 3,642
Total 18,065 151 58,583 (53,724) 23,075
IDI 1 P ———
Paymentd
Begennimg Charge tranafiers Ernding
balance for the year In the year balance
Salaries and bonus 11,121 43,716 {40,519 14,218
Willare expense 24 2,908 (2.913) L]
Social insurance aga 3,158 (3038} 530
- Medical insurance I 3,046 (2.923) 515
~ Infury imsuranoe 6 7 (27 &
— Maternity msuranoe 11 BS (BT o
Housing résere 191 2119 2. 1a4) 166
Labour union and employes education expenses 2411 1,926 (1.305) 3.032
Total 14,155 53,827 (49917 18,065
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39. Staff welfare scheme covmoes

{a)
(i

{iii)

Salaries and welfare payable jcontnued
Fost-employment benefits-defined contribution plans

R
Payment/
Beginning Charge transfers Ending
balance  for the year in the year balance
Basic relirement insJarance: 157 2,811 {2,827} 151
Supplementary pension 1,450 2 (3,080} 591
Uramploymen? insurande 22 (1] {67} 23
Total 1,629 5110 {5,974) TES
2“2 I I—
Paymint!
Beganning Charge transfers Ending
halance far the year i the year bakance
Badic setinement insurance 130 1,566 (2,539) 157
Supplementany pensinn 1,084 2,257 11,495} 1,450
Unemploymens insurance 12 61 {61} iz
Total 1,240 4,884 (4,495} 1,629

In accordance with the regulations in the FAC, the Growp participates in statutory pension schemes organised by
the municipal and provingal governments for its employees (endowment msurancel Dusing the year ended 31
December 2022, the Groep's contributions to these pension schemses are determined by local governments and vary

at ararge of 14% to 16% (2021: 14% 10 16%] of the stalf salaries.

I addition to the sbove statutory pension schemes, the Group has establshed a supplementary delined contribution
plan for its employess (anauity insusance) in accordance with relevant annuity policies for corparate enfities in the
PRC. During the year onded 31 Cecember 2022, the Group’s annual contributions to this plan ame determined based
on 0% to B 33% of the stall walaries and bonuses (2021, 0% 1o & 32%)

For ity employess outide the Chingse mainland, the Group participates in defined contnbution retirement schemes
at funding rates deterrmined in accondance with the kocal practices and regulations.

Othar long-term employes benefits

2022

Beginning Charge Payment Ending

balanee  for the year In the year balante

Cash settied share-biked transactions 67 41} - 26
2021

Baganning Charga Payment Ending

balance for the year in the yeas batandce

Cash settled share-based transactions 67 17 {m &7

The Group has offered 10 phases of H share appreciateon rights under the Scheme, the remaming esghth to tenth
phases have not boen exercsed as of 31 December 2022, The share appreciation rights of the Scheme vest alter 3
years from the grant date and are then exercisable within a period of 7 years. Each of the share appreciation right &

linked to ona H share
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39, Staff welfare scheme jcontnped

{a) Salaries and welfare payable (continued
fiily  Other long-term smployee benefits fcontinued)
[l Al shaie apgreciation nghts shall be settied in cash, The terms and conditions of the Scheme ane listed bebow

Mumibser of
unepercised thare Centract period of
appreciation righis share appredation
ot the end of 2022 Exerciie conditions righti

lim millons)
Share apprecabon night granted on 22 Jul 2005 [Phase ¥} 0157 3 years efter the grang date 10 yean
Share Appeeciaten rights grantsd on 24 Aug 2016 {Phase 1) 0.210 3 ypears after the grant date 10 yean
Share appreniaten nghts grantad on 25 Aug 2017 (Phase X) 0.240 3 years after the grant dite 10 yean

{2} The number and wetghled avarage axercise prices of share appraciation nights are at follows:

2022 2021
Mumiser Mumbesr
Weightad af share Weighted of share
average  appreciation average  appreciation
exercise price rights  exercise price rights
(HKD) {im million} IHKD] {im milban)
Gutstanding as at the beginning of the year 16.21 .78 18.34 1.87
Exeromed during the pedr - - 17.23 [0.42)
Farfeited during the year 13.65 {v.15) 19.11 (069
Outstanding at the end of the year 150 oa1 1621 .76
Exercable at the end of the year 15.25 055 14092 .35

The share appredation nghts outstanding at 31 December 2022 had a weighted average exarcise prico of HED15.91
(2027 HER16.21) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.70 years (2021 436 years)

Pursaant to the requitements set out in the Scheme, if there ane eny dividends disinbuted, capital reserve converted
into shaded, share split or dilution, adjustments to the exerciie price will bo applied,
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39. Staff welfare scheme covmoes

{a)
{iliy
(E]

[0}

Salaries and welfare payable contnued
Other long-term employee benefits (fcontinued)

Fair value of share appreciation rights and assumptions

The fabt value of services recesved in return for share apprecation tights granted are measured by reference 1o the
fair value of share appeecizbion nghts granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share appreciation nights geanted

15 measured based on the Black-Schales maodel. The contractual e of the rights are used a5 an mput 1o the model

2022

Phase Vill Phase X Phase %

Faw value at measutemant date (m RME Yuan) 14.54 527 17.75
Share peice fm HKD) 4330 43,30 43,310
Exercise price (in HED) 1281 11.38 .52
Expacied volatdity 48.34% 45 4% 48, 34%
Share appreciation nghts remaining fife (yeari 2.50 358 4.58
Expaciod dwidends yinld 2.93% 2.93% 2.93%
Rigk-froa imorest rate 1.42% 1.43% 1.43%

2021

Phase Vi Prase Vill Phase 1% Phase X

Fair value at measutemant date {n BMB Yuan) &0.54 3366 33.40 25.98
Share price (i HKD) 61.75 61.7% 61.75 61,75
Exercine price (in HKD) 744 14,58 13.16 X3 TD
Expecied volatdity ITM% ITAI% 37.41% T4
Share apprecatian nghis remaming life [yeark .50 350 458 5.5E
Expected drvidends yield 336% 3 36% 3.36% 136%
Risk-free interest rate 1.43% 1.43% 1.43% 1.43%

The expected volatiity it based on the histoncal volatiity (caloulated based on the wesghted average remaining
life of the share appreciaben nghis) and adusted lor any capected changes 1o fulure volatdlity based on publicly
avaslable information. Expected dnidend yeld 15 based on histerical dindend yields. Changes in the subjectrie input

assumpliens could materisly alfect the lair value estimate.

Share appreciation nghts were granted under service conditions. The conditions have not been taken into account in
the grant date fair value measirement of the services received, There were no market conditions associated with the

share appereciation raghts granted,

The numbser of share appeeciation rights grantad

2022
Exercised’
Fhase Vil Phase 1X Phase X Tofal Foafelted
[in thowands) [in thousands) {im thousands] fin thowsards)  (in thowands}
Tias Hunyw - - - - 1438
Wang Liarg 157 i 40 {10 it}
Tatal 157 H 2a0 &07 1413

201

Ererredd
P WY Phaie W1 Phais [ Phase X Tatal Fordmiee
(m thousandal  fin thosandsl (o thousassy)  (in thoumandsh  (in thowsands]  n thousendh)
Tian Huiyw 115 0 0 330 1,155 1%
L Juanjun - - - - - &
Wang Liang - 157 1 240 07 03
i Lok i : : £ 3 = b
Total 135 457 510 S5 1,762 1808

hile | ie 20}, versdn masageiment del fel cumirie sy apge et oghts | BL 8 0,47 seillon ab & weeghted s soeie pide of HEDH 7.3
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39. Staff welfare scheme womnues:

{b} Post-employment benefits - defined benefit plan

The Growp's subsidiary CME WLB operates a defined benelil plan (the “plan”) for the staff, which includes a
defined benefit scheme and a defined benefit pension scheme, Contnbutions 1o the plan are determined based on
periodic valuations by gqualified actuaries on the assets and Fabilities of the plan. The plan provides benefits based
on membaers” final salary, The costs are sololy funded by CMB WLB

The latest sctuarial valuatien of the plan as at 31 Decomber 2022 was performed by Towers Wation Hong Kong
Limited, a professional actuadial firen i accordance with A5 19 Employes Benedits. The present values af the defined
benelit obligatson and current senice cost of the plan are cakulated based on the projected wna credit methed. A1
thar vadwation date, the plan had a Tunding level of 121%(2021: 123%)

The amewnts recognised in the censolidated staterment of finanoal position as a1 31 December 2022 ang 2021 are

anatysed as Tolows:

2072 01
Fair valee of the plan assets 285 349
Present H!LI:D of the f_uwlgd defined hgﬂnﬁt nHi_g_il}cn {2_35! 125:4!
Hat asset recognised in the consolidated statement of Tinancial position 50 &5

& portion of the above asest & papected to be mocovered alter more than one gear However, it s nob practicable
10 segregatd This armouni from the amounts receivable in the next tweilve months, as fulure contrbutions will
alsvo relaie to lwwee sewvices rendered and future changes in atluarial assumptsons and markel conditsons. No
comnbution to the plan 13 expected to be pasd in 2022,

There was no plan amendment, curtaliment or settlement impact for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
The amounts recognised in the consolidated statermant of profit or loss are as follows:

o iz 2021
Cumrent service cost (9] {13
Mt intedest incodme 1 -
Het expenie for the year included in retirement benefit costs 1a) (RL]

The actual boss on the plan sssets for the year ended 31 December 2022 was RMB42 million (2021: gain of AM3Z
mullign)

The movements in the defined benefit obigation duning the year ane as follows:

2022 2021
Present value of obligation a1 1 lanuary 284 4
Currant service cost 9 10
Interedl cost a 1
Actual benelits pad {49) {42}
Adiuatial gains of e dus 1o Mability expatience (4) &)
Actuarial gains of losses due to financial assumption changes {31] 2
Atuarial gains or beases due Lo demographic assurmgplion changes - 10
Exchangedfference n L]
dociual obligation at 31 December 235 284
The mowerments in the faie value of the plan assets during the year ane &5 fallows:

2022 2021
Fair value of the plan assets at 1 January ELH a4l
Interest incame 5 1
Fxpected refumn on plan assets {47) |
Actual benefits paid {44) [EF]
Exchange difference 27 [AF4]
Fair vahsa of the plan assets at 31 Decomber 285 349
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39. Staff welfare scheme covmoed:

(b} Post-employment benefits - defined benefit plan iconnnusd

The major categories of the plan assets are as follows:

Eruities
Bands
Cath
Tatal

2023
.ﬂul'vlelml

153
50
82

285

2021
L] Amouhil e .
337 202 539G
17.5 7 203
B8 i a8
100.0 349 100.0

#1 at 31 Decesmber 2022, depouit with the Bank mclutded in the amount of the plan assets was RMBSE millon (2021:

AKEST millinn)

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the valsation are as folloas

Dicount rale
= Diefined benefn schemn
- Dafined benofil pension schorme
Long-term avarage rate of salary imcrease foo the plan

Pendian increass rate for the delined benefit pention plan

2022
)

3.3
4.6
5.0

2021
o

i4
o4
3.0

In 2022 and 2021, there were no significant change in the amount af retirement benefit plan labilities due to

change in the abows-mientioned actuanal pitumplions

40. Tax payable

2022 2021
Corparate incomo tax 13,392 16,5389
Valua added tax 4141 4,395
Other 1,925 1,553
Tatal 19,458 1249

41. Contract liabilities
S 2032 2021
Credit card poinis 5319 6,065
Other deferred fee and commeion ncome 1,360 1,471
Total 6,679 7536
42. Provisions

2022 2021
Expected oredit loss on provisions. 20,217 12,790
Other 2,274 1,870
Total 22,481 14,660
The expected credit loss for loan commitments and financoal guasantes contiacts by stages are a3 follows:

2022 2021
Erpucied credil boss provnion 20,217 12,790
- Siage 1 (12+-month ECL) 12,082 8,210
- Stage 2 Lifetirne ECL = naot credit-impaired) 7,569 3724
- Stage 3 (Lifetme ECL - credit-smpared) 566 B56
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43. Debt securities issued

Nates 2022 2021
Subordinated bonds issued (a) 19,5964 34,236
Long-term debt securities issued {b) 120,91 159,306
Hegotiskle interbank certificates of depoyit sswed 65,719 240,284
Cortificates of doposit and other debt secuntios issued (note) 15,604 10,715
Intarest payable 1,533 2104
Tatal 223,811 AdB 645

Hute:  Other delil s s mussd sow puie noued by oveneas walnacnees o the Bari

{a) Subordinated bonds issued
As at the end of the reporting period, subordinated bonds issued by the Bank were ai follows:

he  Dibooend of
Temts  Dueed Nerrisal Begiming duting prenisn  lepagnent
bt aypee matsly  Haste Arvsal steret rate ik Balince tieyhir  anotton duneg the i Dading bl
i [ambeal MVEnmekor) (86 adot] e mder (M A nlon) (DM A Aol
Fudnbibond [Mm®s 1T0x M 5N T, 0 11,686 - 1 1R -
Fdniebosd  [Neordn 15k I8 L8 BR300 14584 - - - FaEaL
Totd k] - | (1] L]
Ad at the end af the reporing period, subordinated bord ssued by CMEB WLE was as fallows
Digcoumt ar
Tmets  Damed Nomisal  Begming  gomam  Echinge  Dpee
Dbt typm marsy ey Al istered rte Wil balice  ameriation ditiwrencn during the year  Ending blance
L] [nmdice] M@nmion) Minnlicd MWlemdor [V pndion (1M 0 niliod
Fardtafiotrg (M) mord  T7 Hev MI7 175 fhoe the fst 5 pmct) 508 158 ] 1] P E] -
rain o] T41.75% from £tk o
ey, i the nofes e
it
Totd L1548 ¥ 11 .68 -

T repheietits 10 § praes U5 Treasiny fate
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43. Debt securities issued ormnura

(b)

Chapter Vill Financial Statamants

Long-term debt securities issued
As at the end of the reporting period, debt securities issued by the Bank was as follows:

IDismount o

Termin  Daeol Rorudl Honndd  Beprrrg b detng et Evhinge  Repaprent Tnirg

Dbt et miludty  evisante  ileed ke st halarce eyt saoctmben  dfeerce datng the e Ealinee
%] frmlr) (INE @ mdica| [EME in o) (M i mllon]  (KME i o) MR i e LS i maillon)

Vedurs v ety Wt WA RS 0N Ik I - 1] L] (1143 -
Mebmipmooty Ermodd hnld TWlbor'olM  USED i1.1] - - L [ER 1] *
Fasfuiebond Mok SWINIE B RN 000 193 - n = 30w -
Fredttebond  Mmweds  SpNH 13 RN D00 1337 - 1 - L0000 -
Mefsmmty Dok 3759 I EbecelM 161 m - - o L] -
Medun bemeoti Bmods 55NN 110 1%t 1585 - Lh H - 1180
Medun oty Mol JiSpDN DE [lit:01] 193 - L] 1] - LET
Faingebond  Mmowk  Sho I 3ad L1 10 1] Lk - I - - 958
Feditebond Mees 1MeX2l 180 12000 EL ] - - - - 958
Fedilebond Bt JThall 1N BB 000 1835 = 13555
Foelttebond Mmootk Aoy 190 RA 10,000/ el ] - - - - 9588
Medum eyt Mewrthy  DSepd SO0 (00 130 - L] 1T - i1
Vedun emaots Simerds 159Xl 15 e300 191 = LI} 1] - 10E3
Medurbemioté Hmoils Mo G2 100 [l - 158 ;] 55 - 1%
Fesdtitebond Mmootk  VMgRN 18 RS 000 - LR I - - a5
Fudnibpbond  Mmoth  1Sep N 18D R[] 000 - 10,000 1w - - 587
Totad T 52 [H 1,165 {56,505 [y

d Libor mRpresinis Lonooa intrveant Ofliwed Rate. SO repersents Seoired Cwarmight Franong Hate

L Fonar o ondy sued By the Bank 1hat wee hild by CWAB WL amrounied b8 5 1018 of 555 melinn RME spiialant a1 of 31 Deoember 3022
{90 Deowmiber 2027 1082 milbon RS eguveleril
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43. Debt securities issued ontnues

(b} Long-term debt securities issued jeontinued
As at the end of the reporting period, debt securities issued by CMBFL were as Tolows
Dexourt o
Temio  Daeol Ko Homndd  Begewvurg  heue dating e Birusg  Bepapren Erding
ekt typet miluity  emaanie ek ke il halasee thegtat  amoctatien  dffeeni darng the e balinte

Ll fn malin) (T8 raice| [NV in ] A o) (B i o) (R i il LR i )
Fadniebosd Mot [HNeX 19 Rl | 500 1.5 - - - (LR ] -
Fudiiibond  Wmordd  LNwl 400 RS = - | - - £l
Fadnitbond et 1My 2N 18 [LLER 19 - I - (30008 =
Fafotrbod e IMEIE  IW I 518 - i i - £
Fadnipbond  (Mmohs JRNIE 36 lal i il - | o] - =5
Pudnhibond  Merth  TRI0G 18 B3 00 19 . 2 E 2,000 :
Fadntbond  [Heowhy WD L9 G 131 - f - o Lo
Pdnnbod  GOmonbs 11 AglEN 158 USgan 5T - 3 & - 5501
Pdmpbod 1Mok kg 1T 1) 154 : i 1w : 1m
Tedntebod Mt Dl 220 16 34 000 1 - 1 E - 1m
Pdntbod ey JiLD1 180 a4 000 19 . 1 : . 1%
Padntbond By AGAND 100 i it - 3 b1 x 17
Pednnbed  10mohs SRARD 183 (540 138 = i W * 178
Peinnbed e BMEXD 10 s i = : ) i ¢
Fftiebond Mootk MMeXl 39 2 000 195 = 2 s % ]
Pintboed ey MMe X 100 (T2 1% 3 j n . 138
Painihod W IESed 13 1251 A . 5 1 - Lm
Pminwbod  Wmes  MSe2 17 i1 ] 11 - i 18 - 181
Peingbed  Weoms  lESeMD 04 B 100 (7] a I 1 - il
Fomrguinberd [1eorch  BEe ) Dlbed$  USe il - - # ] .
Fadnptbond  Meorths  HDe2@) 050 il ] i - - i - m
Fomrgraiebond 12 morshs  JMw NI SORRGEM 1.l - pri n - a3
Femeqrinbord [Trorthy G0y M1 SOFRCAS 045 = - 3 - T
Feaequinbind D eorehe  EMg M) 509100 0T P 1 = B - @
Fomrmqraiebord I morths  Han N2 SORRDH [l - .= - n - Bt
Fudiebond ~ dmueths  SlepliD 19 it - i - -] - Lo
Fomogralebord  Groethn L0 HOT  SOPRGELTS e d - e - i - W
Falnibosd  Ileerth R ddl 300 I - X0 - - - k=)
Fomngrat bord  17werdhs  JOec M1 SOFREM Ul - ns - m - n
Fomegurbond G0 moss 110w SRRM 15401 E = : i & =
Faintrbod  [lmors  MOec! 190 st . an A 1 . al
Tatal LY LR £ 181 [ Ll

Waim:  Feans bonds pnsed by CWBFL that weee hald by the Bank smowrced 10 0 tsnal of 1,570 mulion RMR sgarvsent sy of 30 Decormbsr 2007
i3 December 3001 1,170 mibon AME eguivalent], Frencal bondy med by CU imerstioned Lesrg banageman Lniled (CME81ML &
whille ey wibsdiry of CVWIFL, that wese Bald By ihe Bark weaonied to 8 woisd of 3 288 milon RME squialent 550l 31 Decernber U7
i3 December 2021 2085 milkon 3B sguvalenl. Fnenna bendy naued by CMBLRA thai vers Bwld by CWBE 'WIH aseunied 1o 8 tolal ol
1527 nelbon RV emmvalen & of 31 Deosnber 2007 (31 Delembes 2021 500 wallon EWE eqi valenth

A5 a1 the end of the reporting period, lorg-term debt secunities issued by CMBIC ware as follows:

Dispaurt o

Teemts  Diteal ey Wl Begining  hmedeitg  pesim B Reamen g
et Bype malirdly  osswe  beleied ity vl balaswe theget  amorisation  difenee daieg the e bl

%1 (n pelm) M w radicn) (RVE o o) M o) BV i bt (R aliond R o i)
Faedimrbond  Mmersd  Jhee XN 13 [l A - i i - 4156
Totd 180 - iy m - 4166

Mot Fisarnial Do erousd by CMBIC that st held by CME WLE amiinied fo & okl of 74 evilen BWE epasalint a5 o 31 Decsmiss 1022 031
Decomber J021 1 Gl mihin AMA sguialieg)
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44, Other liabilities

2022 2021
Clearing and settlerrent accounts 31,534 50,565
Salary risk allowances (noda) 45,500 3R, 508
Continuing involvement liability 5,274 5274
Insurance liabilities 2,902 2,063
Collecting on behalf of customers 817 951
Cheques and. remittances miurned 39 a7
Other payable 35,062 4170
Tatal 115,938 135,570

Sile balaty rnk alowances ale ipecds lundy vwekkReld Yrom the employesl’ anmisl iemunerabiom @ whidh the paymeits ae deliyed 1o e
purpese of ngh management. The alccaiion of the funds f bewd on peierance swmment s el eeeagement seubs taleg e
#counl The hort e and leng term bewelil im the even) of @ declirm in e part quality, @ shaep deterioration of rink pofiles o

Dealiialekiy, (Pe cocuiiere of begal une, o @ wgilican | e esory wolales idenlilisl by ey segulsbiory aullseiel, te fvievad eegliyen
‘adll b Fratricted from B allstation o thew dlovwani e

45. Share capital

By type of shares:
2022 and 2021
Mo.of shares
(irt madhian)

Listed shares

A Shares 20,625
= H Shares 4,591
Tatal 25,220

#ll H 3hares are ordinany shares and rank pari passu with the & Shares. There s 0o festaction on these shares,

Capital
Mo, of shares Amount
{in million}
A1 1 January 2022 and at 31 December 2022 25,210 25,220
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46. Other equity instruments
{a) Preference Shares

hingurtieg Divicend Canwetiisn
e date  daniteation e e price e Lrount Do dite conditiotn  Catwerion
I of shares] RN i o)
Cffhote P Shaves v 101 10N bty matremesn. L% P00 W 5T fetoetuil mibnce Mol () Noee
L]
Conest Prefrmsc Shares n 017 JEDec 10T bgwiyimcinemess  030S TRAIOOShare m IME Pepwnal eeerce Mol il Mo
(pece (R
Totd i JRIES
The changes of Preference Shares issued were as follows:
1 Januaey 1031 Increaseidecrease 11 December JOLE
Mo, Amount Mo Amomt Ko Amount
Hsuane (R in [BME {AME in
dite (mifiicars of shares) milign). millom of shares) millicn} {millions of shares)  million)
DFfshare Frefecence Shates [note (75 Cct 2017 ] 55T = 16,557} - -
Domeqtic Prefprenda Shares (e (al) 12 Cac 2017 75 48 - - 13 17,868
Tatal s EER L o] 16557 s 17,868
it
1] Putusnt b3 the apjsueis by the ieenl regalatory aulhositn in Chma, he ek haued U3 Dedllee warded anl allled Frsn-gurmidatis

Tiishoes Pesfarence Shaem w the spqregais momed vidus of U500 008 mllon em 25 Dciober 3017, Each Difshoew Pesference Shae hm »
Firatal ilue ol USDPY aned 30 millisn Oflihans Feliermce Waiv wire ssoetl ih L0l The divielend i6% 15 mbaly ot S40% ahd wbieen 1o
Twill par agreerEnt fubrequenty Sut nol scesds 1668%  With the sgproval of the CHAC, T Bk sedismisd a8 of the sbove Ddfshere
Prafeinrce Thare duting The yeis

1] Pumuant io e spprovan by the splevant regulaioty suthoripes m Ching, fhe Bach mued neneouamlaine Do Profeesor Sharey
the gqiegats ramenal wilue of BB 500 milvon on 22 Deosrnier 1007, Emhy Domerh Frilseocs Share Fan a nominal vakue of HMB10G
and 315 milipn Dampits Peoferpnoe Shaery wate inues v tefal. The doddend rase o ssatially ot @ 01% srid whjock Bs resel par agroement
udvseguenily, bl net aiceedy 16.6E%.

(=] Btk Darnealis asd OFhbhars Meleronis Dhirvs hine cliuses Pl GL818 corlan Fnli wnikd bigget Pasdilary corittan, e dlasin aié i
Tolgw:

i Uy the accarrence ol any sdditkoral Tier ] Coptal imument Tigge Evert, (b i, the Core T Capitsl Adegoary Rt deogn
B8 5 25% o below, thi Bank ihal haw ®w fght b coreeid, seibeul the coni@n ol the Balder al Freleseacs Dhirr ol e¢ parl
aof the Prederence Shanes than nsued snd cutrtending wao Ordnery A& Shenes (Demestic Fredenence Shanes] o0 Didmaary H Sharei
[QMtbkgre Prglieence hanei bied on the (ot nosendl vabue of the Preberendn Shares o oeider 30 reslons the Core Tier+1 Capaal
Agequacy Ratio of the Bank v sbow 5 17%% I ik wese of parsd conesion, ihe Pe‘srence Shaes shall be cotweried o0 @ po
vl lhinri whd e identical eondbiam

in Ligen the witarincs off @ Tee:d Cagiial Trgeges Dami, the Bank whall buve the nghl 16 conver], wiiloed B sonssnt ol U bolden
ol Preferum Sharey, &l or part al the Prelemecs Shares Ben mued snd osiviandng min Srdnarg A Shanes Miomes Preference
Shte) of Dodematy M Abuery (Ofhbans Pretprence Shaied) Bused on the 1obd romingd vels of e Frafisiens Saiel A Ter-d Capiial
Tespgid Evarvl tirlirs 1o T Mﬂﬂﬂi“—qldﬂh' THCHEC hpsiieg concledid Pl withoil & coiveon o wnteolf, the
Hank would becoms ran-vsble, and &7 P pelvan) sithorile having condhedes that withoul @ bl wechor syeoten of cagital o
EpAsEnl Wwppor, e Bk wouid boooms pon-vshls

Upon g occurance of the sbowe mandssory coneerson b, the Bank shall iepon 80 the CERLC Tor eview anil deteeminaton, The Sank
sball { bl fhy relevant ink on ik q of the Securtin Law, the CSRC's and Hizng Cong's relevend lews and requiationg
sk @ maling provisena mporis of anecuncemeti in vt pelevani regulal oy reguersmeniy.
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46. Other equity instruments carnirued

{a}

{b)

Preference Shares fconpnued

Dredends on the Offshore and Domestic Preference Shares shall be paid in cash, Save for such dividend a1 the
agreed dividend rate. the holders of the albbove Preference Shares are not entitled to share the remaining profits of
the Bark with the ordinary shareholders. Divdend i3 non-cumulative. The Bark has the nght 1o cancel any dividend
on Preference Shares, and such cancellation sha® noi be deemed as a default After the cancellation of aFf ar part
of the dividend to preference shamsholders, the Bank shall not make any ordinary shares distribution, wrtil the
Preference Shares desdend is resumed in full. As the deedends on the DHfshore and Domestic Preference Shares are
nonegcumulative, the Bank will not distribute the dividends that were cancefled in prior years to Preference Shares
Tolbdars

The Offshore and Dorneste Prefesence Shaves have no maturdy date. However, after the (ifth annivenary al the
wauance date, subgect to the wtislaction of the redemption conditions and having abtamed the prior apgroval of the
CRIRC, the Ofishore and Dometic Preference Shares may be redeemed in whole of in part 21 the diseretion of the
Bank, bul the Bank does nol have the abbgation 1o iedeom praference shared. The halders af Prelerence Shares da
ng have the right to demand the Bank 1o redeem the Preferencs Shares and shall not expect that Preference Shanes
will e reclieernmd,

After deducting the issuance expenses from the Preference Shares above, the total net proceeds have been included
in additional Tier 1 capital of the Bank.

Perpetual Bonds

| L] Infgret Cemetucn
dite danitieition el pros M2 Aoreust Due dite eoeditienn
{rullors cf wats| [ in i)
[Drareae: Pepetusl Boudy insle 00 O 0d 210 Ipaty ety 1% ANBIDGUNE 50 B Pepetull eoenge ot Pazre
Dot Prpitunl Joach frede 3 TOwCJ0H  Dpetyinirorests  389% AME!DORUN L] 1065 Peeial uescy  hiose o
Total i} L
The changes of Perpetual Bonds issued wede as folloas:
1 January 2022 Ircrnaie 3 December 2032
Ko Amound Ha  Amauri No,  Amguni
Hauane (AME in (AME {RME in
date |rllors of units) milon]  imillors of wnits) malion| {millions of units)  millian)
Domestc Perpetudl Bonds Inode (1 5 ' 2000 50 LLR - . 500 45,908
Domest Perpetual Bonds (node () 7 Dec 2021 4 A58 - - 430 45,965
Tatal 9% suEnR - - 530 hrare
Bl
ik Wil ew sppoved o the relesant regulatury sghonie o Ching, T Rark naed DUES0,000 yllan of 3330 Chana Mgighern Bad Co Ll

Unidated Arldtonal T Capital Bonds (Senes 1] (e " Pemetual Bonds 20207 ) in the nasonal imensbdeic bond market on @ kiy 1900 The
weit Tace walie 1L RASRI0O The coupen dale adenbed penss ooevsty % year Inom the mauance of the Ferpetud Bonay J0M A ey coupsn
tale sddpouied period, the cougon fale Bl the Peipeiua Bond: vill isman ol 4 preenbed Tosd rais. The Potpetusl bosd 2030 will cofibae s
‘e ot Lareding 1o long v the Bank continue 10 cosrale

[} With Fw approval of 1he relesant requlshory suthonbes n Chine, the Bark housd A0A3000 milon of 2031 Chins Merchariy Bank Co Lid
Umelased Adtonal Tw.1 Capital Boad (e “Farpeiual Bont 2001, together wilh Fepetesd Bonds 2030, Pevpatusl Bordi®] in the natonal
-t hond martel on 7 Deoember 2020, The unin laoe walue n BBI00 The coupon rase sdpnted penod 6 seery 3 yesns Som the
ssiinee of thet Parpetusl Borok 2021 1 ary Cougeon riss afusted petod, the coupirs e ol tue Parpetusl Borals will remain #0 s prncribed
fimed rate. The Pevpeioal Sondy 1021 sl conbnes b be owbiancdeg o kong o She Dink contnues b opersie

354/433

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooood



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooooa

China Marchants Bank Chagter Vil Financial Statemants 258
Annual Repart 2022 (H share)

46. Other equity instruments «omnvea)

(b} Perpetual Bonds jconrnued

From the fifth anniversary since the issuance of the Perpetual Bonds, the Bank has the right 1o redeem in whole
o in part the Perpetual Bends on the annual interest payment date fincluding the interest payment date on the
fifth year since the issuance date) subgect to the approval of the CBIRC and the satisfaction of the redemption
preconditions, If, after the issuance, the Perpetual Bonds no longer quality as additronal Teer 1 capital as a result
of an unforesesable change 1o refevant provisions of supervinory requlation, the Bank has the right to redeem the
whalé but not part of the Perpetual Bonds. The investons do not have the right 1o sell back the Perpetual Bonds to
the Bank

The claims in rospect of the Perpeiual Bonds will be subordinated to the daims of depositers, general creditors,
and woordinated debts thal rank sermar fa the Perpetual Bands, and will rank in presty to all classes of shares
held by the Bank's thareholders and rank pan passu woth the daims in respect of any other sdditional Tier-1 cagial
itrurments of the Bank that rank pari pastu with the Perpetual Bonds,

The coupon rate will be resel on each benchmark rate resot date (e the date of evesy Tive yeass from the issuance
date}. The adjusted coupon rate will be determined based on the benchmark interest rate at adjustment date plus
the fixed spread as determined at the tme of issuance. The Perpetual Bonds do not contain interest rate step-up
mechanism or any cther redemption incentves. The Sark has the right to cancel, in whobe or in part, distributions
on the Perpetual Bonds and any such cancellation will not constitute an event of default The bond interests are
nen-oumulative, and any cancelled dotributicn is not carred to the following year. The Bank will fully consider the
interests of bondholders when exerciing this nght The Bank can use the cancelled bond interest fior the cunent
perind at its discretion 1o repay ether due debts. Cancellabon of any distributions 1o the Perpetual Bonds, no matter
in whote or in part, will not impose any other restriction on the Bank, except in relation to dividend distnbuwtions to
oedenary shares.

Upan the accurrence of a Noan-Veability Trigger Event, the Bank has the night 1o write off in whale ot in part, without
the need for the consent of the bond holders, the principal amount of the Perpetual Bonds. A Hon-Viability Trigger
Event refors 10 the eatler o the following events: () the CEIRC having concluded that without a wte-ofl, the Bank
would become non-viabile, §i) the relevant authorities having concluded that without a public sector injection of
capital o egquivaknt soppon, the Bank would become non-viabibe, Thie write=off will not be restored

After deducting the ssuance expenses, the funds rased by the bond: hove been usad to swupalement additsonal Tier
1 capitad of the Bank in accerdance with applicable laas and the approval of the relevant awthorities,

{c) Relative Information Attributed to Equity Instrument Holders

2022 2021
Equity sttnbuted to shareholders of the Bank 945,503 B58,745%
= Equity attributed to ondinary shareholders of the Bank 825,057 3,702
— Equity alinsuted to other edquity imitrurment kalders af the Bank 120,445 127,043
Including- Met prafit 5,237 3613
Total comprehanisee incoma 5,237 3613
Dustributions in eurrent year (5.237] {3,613
Cumulative undistributed dividends - -
Equity attribuled 1o nop-contralling interesly B,7i5 6,936
- Equity attributed to non-controlling holders of ordinary shares 5,948 3300

- Equity attributed to nor-contralling halders of perpetual debt capital
(mivte G2(a)) 2,787 3636
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47.

48,

49,

50.

Capital reserve

Capital resgrve primarily represents share premium ol the 3ank and can be converted into share capital with the
shareholders” approval

2ﬂ_22 ?.1.'_!2T

AL Jamary 67,523 67,523
Decrease (2,088) =
A1 31 December 65,435 67,523
Investment revaluation reserve
: (20 2021,
Dbt instruments measuied a1 FYTOCL investment fevalualion mesemne 9,319 11,459
Fair value gain an equily insfruments desgnated at PVTOC) 2,606 2,578
Remeasurernent of defined benefit scheme 78 8E
Share ol other comprehensive (eapenselfincame of equity-acoounted

LTI {233) 922
Other a5 e
Tatsd 11,815 15,047

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve compnses the eflective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging
struments used n cash llow hedges. Subseguent recogniten ol the hedged cash flow o accounted Tor in
sccordance with the sccounting palcy sdopted for cash flow hedge n Mote 4(5),

Surplus reserve

Statutory surplus ressrve 15 calculated according to the regurements of the Accounbing Standards foe Business
Enterprses and other relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance (" MOF®) and s provided at 10% of the
audited profit after tax of the Bank. Surplus reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses or capitalvied as paid-
up capital with the approval of shareholdess

1022 2021
A1 1 lanuary 82,137 71,158
Provided for the year 12,848 10,975
&1 31 Decembar 94,985 81137
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51. General reserve

The general reterve 13 an inegral part of equity. According to the relevant regulations, in additian to the mpaliment
allwances, the Bank mantains & general resetve to make up for unidentified potential losses In principle, the
balance of general reserve shall not be less than 1 5% of the ending balance of rsk assets. In additien, the general
reserve includes 2.5% of the income of mutual fund custody businesses. The general reserve of the Group alse
mcludes the general reserve maintained by the subsideanes of the Group according 1o the applicable faws and
regulatiens af thes idustry oF reguon.

2022 2021
At 1 January 115,268 98,082
Provided for the yoar 17,183 17,208
At 31 Decamber 13z4M 115,288
52. Profit appropriations
{a) Dividends approvedideclared by sharsholders
2022 2021
Ordinary share dividends in 2021, approwed and declared
RAMB1 522 per share 38,385 -
Qrdinary share dividends in 2020, approved and declared:
RMB1 253 per share - 31,601
(b) Proposed profit appropriations
2022 2021
Statulory durplus reserve 12,848 10,979
General reserye 17,183 17,206
Dwdends
= gash deddend AMB1.7IE per share (2021 RMB1.522 per shate) 43,832 38,385
Tatal 73,863 66,570

2022 final dividends is proposed in accordance with the resalution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors
held on 24 March 2023 and will be submitted to the 2022 Annual General Meeting for aporoval

53. Exchange reserve

Exchange resarve compnses all foreign exchange differences arsing from the translation of the financial statements
of operations outskde the Chinese mainlang.
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bank's equity

54. The bank's statement of financial position and changes in the

2022 2021

Assels
Cash 14,787 12,794
Precious mataly 2,884 4,554
Balanges with central banks 585,338 543,652
Balances with banks and other financial institutions 47,791 41,632
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 247,340 188.37¢
Ampounts held under resale agreements 276,292 523516
Loans and advances 1o customers 5,482,692 5,023,050
Fenancial agsets al fair valup Ihruugh prufil or log 260,391 Fa0,941
Darvatee financial assets 17,859 43,178
[hebit investments at amartsed cost 1,533,544 1,183,662
Dbt investrments &l Taie valee through other compeehensivie income 675,484 551458
Equity investments designated at fair value through

other comprehensive income 10,724 6,392
Inwestments in subsidianes 50,767 49 49&
Inter@sts in joint vontures 13,341 12,582
Interests in associates B 190 5,521
Investment properties 507 945
Propesty and equipment 26,541 16,833
Rightegf-use assets 16,764 17.701
Intangible awsets 2,422 1,228
Daferrod tax sl BE, 056 79,712
Other asepls 41,440 109,871
Total assets 9,510,556 8,700,134
Liabilities
Borrowing from central hanks 129,745 159, 987
Deposits from banks and other financig mattutions 621,621 Tar631
Flacemnerts from banks and other financial institutions 43,319 55,710
Fenancial liabilities a1 lair value through profit or koss 40,035 36,105
Darivatee financial Fabilities 18,207 16,866
Ampunts sold wndar repurchase agresmants 95,970 137,857
Deposis from customerns T.aT 94 6,150,241
Salaries and welfare payable 19,136 15,853
Tan payable 17221 20,926
Contract liabilities 5,653 1,536
Lease labiktes 12,285 13,164
Provisions 22,410 14,503
Debt securities issued 172,402 298,612
Other labilities 96,680 119,395
Total liabilities . - ; B.623,658 1,889, 44E
Equity
Shaeo capital 25,220 25220
Other eguity instrements 120,446 127,043
Capital resorye 76,082 76,681
Inveitment revaluation reseree 13,144 14,566
Surplus reserve 94,985 82,137
General rsenie 121,230 105,941
Retsned earnings 291,579 a02M
Proposed profitl aporogrration 43,832 38,385
Exchangs reternd 380 144
Total equity 886,858 B0, 688
Tatal equity and liabilities 9,510,556 B.700,134
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54, The bank’s statement of financial position and changes in the
bank’'s equity rontinued
Details of this charges m the Bank’s equity ane as follows.
Orber ity
irstrumants
lvgsiment Prepased

Share Pevfeence  Perpetual  Capétal mvadusticn  Sapin Gessral Retaieed prafit Exchasge
capital  dhares  hendi rewve mevee  reenw reive samiege appropriation e Total

el A .. . B T JIL S L L I T
Free————r——— - BN - DM 0T mME BIM S0 LW 6 taw
Bt prod dor e yoar = - - - - - = e - BT
(et compreherm e inoome ol The fear - - - = (L - - . = I (e
Total smamprehemave worse b {oe pear - - - = - - i = B
Reempriion of preflvene shares = IR - [ - - - - - = (s
Frorit aporopdationn - - B - - WLME 15189 (106 LT = [asy
Bppecpristen o vt tory mapkn e - - - - B - [iLEsE - - -
Epgropraton o genenl wiene - - - - - = 1RHE (15066 - - -
Devidends pad for the wer M11 - - - - - & - - BLUS - Gaa
Fropened dhwelench for the yae 202 - - - - - - - (4 42 - -
Crdendh to prebioeee tharen - - - - - - = (L5 - - (LATH
Bistribton 1 pecpetiad boeds - - = = - = - By i - sy
Tramben. within equry gon duposal of
ey instnments designated a1t FYTO01 - = - = 6] = - £ = - =
i 1 Deemb 2001 B2 TAE SRR eIl 13084 SRS K0 AN 48 W mEE
i ety
imtrameny
Inemitemt Fropeesd
St Pulewrct  Pepriad  Cipldl wwhuleen Redgny  Supa Giredl Leumed profit Exhunge
optl  a b M e TS RS MW WS gorpilen  msw Tl
ol L S BID MBS M3 WE| I 05 108 M WD D@1 3 s
Thirvges in eqaty bot the yuar - 03 - &9S B NI 1M N BT B
Mot palit o e pe = * - - - - - - EW - - lmm
mﬂmmhhw - - - E im u - - o - B ORE
Tl oy o o e i “ T i r A TR, AL B o
s of pepertaal bod, - 434 - - - - - - - - 45
Bkl appropratest - - - . = W9 15 BLESY §Tid = [ERI
Boprapnatin ‘o iLabuiee Wi, i - - - - - Wm oL - - -
Apqrogration ‘o jeensl vt - - - - = 1Ee ey - - -
Do puid lo¢ the yeir X130 - - - - - - - = 3 = (e
Propmed ddends ‘o the pear 2131 - - - - = - = - [y nus - -
Crwbeads. by posfermmce shaems . - . 1228 {128
Detobotion b parpatanl boedi - 1 = - . - - . J -
Trashers withey sputty upoe deipeud of ety
B e e L S R . ... SR A .. s =
A1 31 Dacersiar 11 LI MpE WAM WEl uES = ELIT IME540 34201 Hms o DEE
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55. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

{a) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents (including assets with
original maturity within 3 months):

2022 2021
Cash and Balances with central banks 6E,055 79,129
Balanee with banks and ather financial institutions 81,928 75,919
Placements with banks and ather financial instilutions 93,704 65,897
Amounts he'd under resale agreerrents 275,051 527,341
Debt securities investments 50,460 53,464
Total 567,198 EDT. 754

(b} Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table bolow details changes o the Group's habilities Trom linancing actaaties, including both cash and non-cash
changes: Liabilities ansing from financing acivities are those far which cash flows were classified in the Group's
consalidated cash flows statement as cash flows from financng activities

Megatiable  Cestificates ekt

Imterkank  of depealt eurities Ieferest Other

certificates ised Isued pajible  Dividend  Fnasgial Leass

of depasit = [Mote]  enbands payabie  lablites  labilities Teta!

a1 Doy 3021 240,384 16043 o0 FAL] i X655 13412 455,100
{anth thanges:
Protendy Foom the fver TahE koA 11,480 - - T . 1380
Bepayment (15955 {16,504 (a733) o o 114,555 4830 (385,126)
Irseeestifmend pad {514 - a2 6 5861 (&4,183 - . (54,503}
Mar-cath charges:
Edetom of lease labines - - - - - - fLH R
Ssccrmd inseies . - - (31} - - 510 L5
Deevdend declared - - - - Ll - - &0
Descouni or premum arortaaion am n n - - . ERSH]
Far vl adjintmenty - & [544) - = W - 1575}
Encharge dffererce - (AL 55 - - 141 - £841
&1 31 December 1023 &5 15,587 148,674 1533 if Fr R 13013 w1
Megotible  Cartificatey Debt
mhtank  oldeposd  securite Intenet Drer
oeeicates smd insued Jabie [iwecd nancial Lease
of depand [Mhote) Rt}  onbordy papile hatulitiey Lo Totst
a1 liary 2011 144814 19,684 154 775 1585 .3 FERCH 1 797
Cah changes:
Proxreds bom the mor 319,707 14,893 E3AT - - EBED - wEm
Repaynent REMD [ 363} BT - - 13,597 [em  ONEE
Irsetesy!fradind pad [3,7E8) - - (7 530% (35,5E5) - . 7 3
Non-cnh charges:
Adaitiont: of I labilites - - - - - - 1B 1850
Srrmd ineiest - - - EAL:] - - 555 I
Dirtdend daclared 5 , - - 35685 - - ¥5,Ba5
Deitount o pramam avortuiog 5.54| 134} 53 - - - - 4,783
Fuat g atdprsimanty - 1% 2571 - - L - £
Exthange dilference = 4a5) (1,530 - - 16 - 22an)
1 11 Decesber 1071 140,284 LR 0,142 114 il 550 i 435110

emin kg Thancial Dabwboes devgnaied ot lar vabue theosgh peol o e

{¢) Significant non-cash transactions
Theve were no significant non-cash transactions during the years ended 31 December 2002 and 2021
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56. Operating segments

The Graup's principal actnaties sre providing corparste and persanal bankeng services, conducling treatury business,
prowiiing asset managerment ane other linancial services

The Group manages its businesses by divisons, which are organised by both business Imes and geography

(1) Wholesale finance business

The financial services for corpaeate chients, government agencies, and financial matitutions include: loan and deposit
serece, settlement and cash management service, trade finance and olfshore business, investment banking business,
inter-bank business such as placement and repurchiase, assel oestody business, financial market business, and other
SBICRE

{2) Retail finance business

The finanoal serveces provided to retad customers include) loan and deposit service, bark card Serace, wealth
managemaent wervices, privale banking and athar services

(3) Other Business

Other busness covers investmant properties, subsidiaries aucept for CMB WLE and CMBFL, associstes and join
wentures. None of these segments meet any of the quantdative thresholds so far for segment dmision

Durmng the year of 2022, the Group reallocated CMBFL Trom the other busness segment 1o the wholesale financeal
business segment. The compasative figures were re-presented accordingly

For the purpose of cparating segment analysis. external net interest incomelfexpense represents the nal interest
income earmed or edpense incurred on banking services provided 1o external parties. Intermal net inferest income’
expense represents the assumed profit or los by the internal funds transfer pricing mechanism which has taken into
account the structure and market returms of the assels and labilities portfobo. Cost allocation i based on deect
costs attnbutable to each reporting segment and apportion according to the relevant factors

The accounting palicies al the operating segments ane 178 same ai the Group's accounting polics as stated in Note
4, Cperating segment income represents income generated fram extemal customers, infer-segment transactions sre
offset. Mo customer contributed 10% or more 10 the Growp's revenue lor 2022 and 2021, Internal transactions are
comducted at fair value,
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56. Operating segments ontmoea
{a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

Wholessle Resail
finarce butiness.  finange butiness Otberbusners ~ Towl
H M na i Mz ol maz Find]
Ererral ref mstes) nome 28,165 026 4 443 135412 &5,627 o7 ABY ITR2I5 e
Irnstndl et prisies ] oot oo (1] 69,121 B0 (REST (5.0 (S065H - -
Wetimprstineome Ll TR SO UL OO - L. U SR L
Mt (e dnd commien intose 15,540 15,10 .M 0,155 11,456 3002 WS L
Cbrent epmy O L SRR ISR 1L SV g A% am
Cperating income MR LEME RIS 17E0N4 E 706 SN MIs 1
Opsrating Gipenes
=~ Paagnily ard bauipimen| and Auesdment
peoperties deprecton (LAl (3740 [2.842] 128600 [ Qs (e EE5T)
- Rightt-olza vty deprotisbon 11,676) (L& 2254 {1,367 (15 xam @15 (4255
~ Ot (43,435 5 3n (58,0m (56457 (667} GO 107E31) (%03,765
Reportalile isgmest piafin before
impaitment loses BS 8 9383 1AM 1173 FAL] (TEf 20054 1348
Evperied credil brises wed mpueiment

st o eher gaaty [671)  (ms0n (068 (RN (528 (115 [(57.566) 66355}
?&Iurwﬁuul anaiaten and ol wenhared - - - - 155 41082 1515 400

Bepoctable iegment profit bifore tasation | 61140 G385 SLI7L | N0 L76  3073  Jesi13 akmd

Canpital expendiaure [note) 18,854 16,158 1560 3178 513 r3 2057 I3, 7d
Whalesle Enance busnes Artal finmaoe baniress Cribar busirssy Total

3! Dwoembser 30 Domemiber - 31 Dwoembar 31 Doverber 31 Dwoember 11 Docombve 31 Decomber 31 Deaimber

i il W H ] X N xn

Repartable sgrert sty LELEN BMLEN 1.8 108405 [RALH ) LI I R

0 whichr Inforwsd m aciarien and
ol T - . . - FEE HE FEEL Fekit
Repariable segrerd Labiim 5455441 LA LHI L H LW e L4859 VAl AmER Rl

bole,  Cagatsl gepeadiiune egrninly T amoun] s el fon scquating ieprient ayirb winth aes weperied (0 be waed kv imére Than o year
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56. Operating segments contnoes

{b}) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets, liabilities
and other material items

2022 2021
Operating income lor reportable segments 342,215 321300
Tatal profit befare meame tax for repariable segments 165,113 148,173

31 Decemnber 2022 31 December 2021

ety

Total assets for reportable segments 10,029,750 5,149,124
Goodwll 5,999 9,954
Intangible assets 581 Ll
Deferred tan assets 90, 548 B1,639
Other unallocated assets 7.734 7.733
Consolidated total assets. 10,136,912 9,249,021
Leabiletiies

Total liabiltses lor reportable Legrments 4,090,733 B ZB2 668
Tan payable 19,458 22,491
Dafersed tan Fabilities 1,510 1,353
Other unallocated labdities 53,913 76,828
Consalidated total abilites 0,184,674 B.383 340
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56. Operating segments contmues:

{c)

Geographical segments

The Group operafes principally in the PRC with branches bocated in major provinces, sutoncmous regions and
municipalities directly under the central government in the Chinese mainland. The Geroup alsa has branches
cperating in Hong Kong, New York, Singapore, Lucermnbourg, London and Sydney, subsidiaries aperating in Hong
Kong, Shenzhen, Shanghad, Begng and Luxembourg and representative offices in New York and Taipe

In presenting information on the basis of geograghical segments, cperating income o alccated based on the
focation of the branches and subsidianies that generate the revenue. Segment asuels and nof-Curient assels are
allacated based on the location of the underying asiets

To support the Bank's opetations and managesment's assessments, the geographical segments are defined as follows:

- “Headguarier™ refers 10 the Group headquarter, credit card centres and fund operation centres;

- “Yamgiae Rner Dela region™ réferd 1o branched in Shangha municipality, Ihejlang province and Jlangiu
province,

- “Bohal Rim region® refers to branthes in Bedjing municipality, Tianjin municipality, Shandong province and
Hebai province;

- “Peard Rivar Dwlta and West Coast region” refers to branches in Guangdong prowines and Fujian provincs;
- “Mortheast region” refers 1o branthes in Lizoning provnce, Hellongjiang province and Join prowince,

- “Central region” relers to branches in Henan prowinge, Artan province, Hunar province, Huben province,
liangga provinge, Shanxi provinge and Hainan province;

= “Western rogion ™ ralers ta branches in Sichuan province, Chongging municipality, Guizhou province, Yunnan
province, Shaangr provinee, Gansa province, Ningea Hoi Sufonomous regeon, :Imimng Lypghhur mutnoimiows
region. Guangsi Zhuang autonomaous region, inner Mongelia autonomaous region, Qinghai provinge and Tibet
s I omoe L. e,

- “Owverseas” relers lo overseas branches in Hong Kong, New York, Smgapere, Lusemboura, Londan, Sydrey
and repiesentative alficed i Mew York and Tape; and

- “Subsidianes” retees to subswharees wholly osned or controlded by the Group, including CWB WLR, CMBIC,
CMEBFL CMEM, ChBWM, CMB Europe 5.4 and CIGHA & CMAM

Tatsl sty Telal lubsltie hoo-cient amieh Frofd belore bin  Dperating imvome
WDecember 30 Deoember 11 0woomide 11 Dwerbet  11Decembe 31 Detember

Seagaphinl intemtion o A A i o meoommoa o oEm nn
Faadquiter LU TN T 1R R PR E 506 L0 GE 415 MM A
Yarugat By Dekts epm Lo LELY LM LI 5 B0 UsE HME & 448
Bohui Bim rogny (] L] BI148 1138 Lhi an mE 1a MW e
Prart Roer Della i Wl (sl oo 1, B1,S01 ol T SR ma LHH Wy MAm BRI N Em
Rorheiit min e -k 166,486 164311 156 (ESERN T -1 R T A
Crriral iegpm ERAl 6T 181 B 360 35541 gl I N Al NS MUE
Werter e §31,766 B BITERY B0EN EELH TS nBE N N
Dty 1Al il Tt 143451 1 W £ IR T T TR T Y 11
e _MNS UM VUM UM WM 6 BN WD R BN
Toud RE L] LHR0 18N Lok 135,385 el NI AWM s m

emrim: Mo cuirinl sl inchebl ierEels i josl senbues, siiseeEin i saocisb, popeily abd egugent, sselimenl sepeitieg, eghiol e

ansEts, inlarapble ety el goodwell
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57. Assets pledged as security

The following assets have been pledged as collateral lof berrowing from central banki and labdities unders
repurchase o placement arangements.

; 2042 Lo
Banowing fram central banks 129,438 159,357
Placemnents from banks and other financial instiutons BE2D 7517
Ampunts sold under repurchase agreemants 107,034 157,572
Total 145,082 324,446
Assets pledged
= Fmanciad assets at fair valee through profit or loss 24,093 29,241
= Dbt investments al amortised cost 95,1949 185,166
= Debt investments at fair vahse through other comorehensive income 25,267 34,441
= Loanms and advances 1o cusiomens 105,531 81,357
Tatal 154,090 340,205

The transactions under repurchase or placement agreements are conducted under terms that are wwwal and
customary to standard barrowing and placng activities.

58. Contingent liabilities and commitments

{a) Credit commitments

At any given time the Group has outstanding commitments to extend credst These commitments take the foem of
appraoved loans and credit card lmits,

The Group provides finangial guarantees and lettens of oedit to guarantee the performance of cusiorners 1o third
parfics. Acceplances comprise undl:f‘t.uh'ng: by the Group to pay bills of qm:hnl'r;: drawn on customers. The Group
expects modt acceptances to be settled smultansousily with the mimbursement from the cuslamers,

The contractual smounts of commitments and contingent kabilities are set oul in the following table by category,
The amounts reflected in the table for commitments assume that ermounts are fully advanced. The amounts reflectid
in the tabde for guarantees and letters of credit represent the masimum petential foss that would be recognised at
the end of the reporting peskod 1§ counterpartes default.

2022
= Stage 2
{Lifetime = 5tage 3
~Stage 1 ECL - nat {Lifetima

{12-month credit-  ECL - credit-
ECL) impaired) impaired) Total
Irevocable guaranices 245,003 9,818 272 255,093
Of which: Financial guarantees 44,805 7341 3 5,149
Nan-firanong lettérs of guarantees 200,158 24717 268 202,944
Irrevacable letters af onedit 23,849 1,344 - 233,193
Bills of acceplances 427150 3,733 500 431,383
Irewacable loan commitments 155,775 1,647 - 157,382
= with an onginal maturity wathin 1 year (inclusve) 22,638 4 - ar.642
= with an onginal maturity over 1 year 133117 1,603 - 134,740
Credit card unused commitments 1,406,951 9,613 B5 1,416,609
Orthar 81,225 245 - 81470
Total 2,547,913 26,350 B5T 2,575,130
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58. Contingent liabilities and commitments «oonnuea

{a) Credit commitments fontinued

2021
- Stage 2

[LHetimae - H1age 3

- Stage | ECL - nat (Liletime

{12-month credit-  [CL — eredit-
ECL Fmpalned) impained) Tatal
rewocabile guataniee 197,208 1,353 254 204,815
OfF which: Financial guarantees 52,198 6,337 3 58,536
Non-finanong letters of guarantees 145,010 1,08 251 146,277
Ireevocable lettars of credit 162,320 1,Mm 188 164,218
Hills of acceplances 339,154 5, bad g 345,61%
Irevocable loan commitments. 141,727 4,896 2 146,625
= with an orgnal matarity withe 1 year [indusme) 26,601 - F 26,613
= with &n erginal malurity over 1 year 115,116 4,896 - 120,012
Credit card unused commitments 1,230,831 1803 122 1,239,856
Orther 126,955 1,555 - 128,550
Total 2,199 236 29,102 1,356 2229694

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's irrevocable letters of credst included sight letters of credit of AMB22,525
millizn (31 December 2021 RMB16,574 million), usance letters of credit of RMBE,965 millon (31 December 2021;
RKIBS,552 million), ard other commitments of RMB2G3, 703 millien (31 Docember 202 1: AMB137,683 million)
Irrgyacable loan commitments include crodit limits gramted 10 offshore customers by oversaas branches, subsidearies
and anshare and alfshore yndicated loant ele

Apart from the irrevocable loan commitments, the Grouwp had loan commitments of RMBS,159,127 milion a1 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021 AMBA, 441,835 melliond wihich are unconditionally cancellable by the Group
or automatically cancellable due to deterioration in the ceditworthiness of the borrower as stipulated in respective

lending agreements. The Group will not assume any risks on the unused credit limits for these loan customers. As a
result, such balances are nat included in the above contingent liabilities and commitmesanits

2022 2021
Credit nsk weighted amouwnis of contingent liabilities and commitmants 595,977 553,062

The Group calculsted the crodit risk woighted amount of its contingent fabilitios and commitments in accordance
with the requirements of the Administrative Measures on Capital of Commercial Banks (Provisisnal) issued by the
CBIRC The amournt within the wope appraved by the CEIRC in Apeil 2014 i caleulatod uiing the internal Ratmgs-
Bawed Approach, and the Welghted Approach & used to calculate thade that are aet eligible for the Internal Ralings-
Based Approach
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58. Contingent liabilities and commitments oorneed

{b) Capital commitments

The authorised cagital commitments of the Group were as follows:

Lo LA
= Contractod Tor an 480
T Puthorited but not contracted fat 189 23
Takal 559 714

The lease cammitments of the Group a3 a lesser are detaded in note 58 (el

{c) Outstanding litigations

A1 31 Decemer 2022, the Bank of other group entines was a defendant in certain autstanding litsgations wath tatal
gross claams of RMBET, 910 milkon (2021 AMB1,678 milion} The Group considers that no material losses would be
mcwried by the Group & a result of these outstanding litigatons and thetefore no provision has been made n the
consalidated financal stalements.

(d) Redemption obligations

As an undenwriting agent of PRC government bonas, the Group has the responsibility to make advances 1o bond
hodders if the holders decuds to early redeem the bonds held, The redempton pece for the bonds at any teme before
their maturity date is based on the nomingl valee ohus any interest unpakd and accrued up to the redemption date.
Accrued intevest payables to the bond hobfers are calculated in sccordance with relevant redquirements sel by the
MOF or the FEOC. The redemption phice may be different fram the fair value of similar instruments traded at the
redemption date,

The redemption obiigations below represent the nominal value of government bonds underwritten and sald by the
Group, but nof yet matured at the end of the reporting period:

2022 2021

P S

Redomption obligations 27,401 30,020

The Group expecis that the amount of redemplion before the matunty date of these governmeni bonds through the
Group will not be material,

{e) Lease commitments

Operating lease commitments and financial lease commitments whare the Group 1o a lessor a1 the end of the
repartiag pencd are as follews:

2022 2021
Operating lease commitments 30,519 13,750
Financial lease commitments B,025 TAal
Tatal 3R, 544 FARE
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59.

(a)

(b}

(e}

Transactions on behalf of customers

Entrusted lending business

The Group's entrusted lending business refers 1o activities where principals such as gavernment departments,
business entities and individuals provide capital for loan agvances through the Group 1o thesr specilied targets
on their behalf in accordance wath specific terms and conditions, with the help of the Group in monitoring loan
usage and seeking loan recovery. The entrusted lending business does not espose the Group to amy credit sk, As
instructed by these principals, the Group holds and manages underlying assets and liabdlities only in the capacity of
an agent, and charges handling fees for ielated services

Entrusted lending are not asietd of the Group and are nol recognizsed in the comalclated statement of financeal
peniticn. Incomir recived and recoivable for providing these services are recagnised in the consolidated statement of
profit o less as fee and commisson income.

At the end of the reporting penod, the entrusted assets and babilities were as follows:

2022 201
Entrusted loans 231,266 163,580
Entrusted funds [231,266) (263,589)

Wealth management services

The Group’s wealth management services to customers mainly represent sales of wealth management products to
corporate and personal banking customens by the Bank and CMBWM, The funds obtained from wealth management
services are invested m investment products, including government bonds, policy bank bonds, short term corporate
debt mairumaents and trust loans. The Group initiated the launch of wealth mansgement products. The mvesiment
risk associated with these products i borme by the cusiormers who imvest in these products, The Group does not
contalidate these wealth management preducts, The Group earms commission which represents the charges on
customers in relation 1o the provision of custody, sales and maragement services

Thie wealth management products and funds obtained are not assers and Babilies of the Group and are nol
recogneed n the consolidated statement ol fmancial position. The funds recesved from cutlomer for wealth
management business that yet 1o be imiested are recorded under ather labilities.

At the end of the reporting period, funds received from customers wnder unconsolidated non-prncpal-guaranteed
wealth management services were RMB2,552 408 million as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
AME2 683,636 milhor),

Entrusted management of insurance funds

The entrusted management of insurance funds mainky refers to the business that the Group camies out Investment
activities om funds entrusted by imsurance companses according 1o the regulatory polices and the investrment
gusdelines from insurance companses, and charges fees for providing such services.

A1 the end of the reporting periad, the balance of entrusted funds were as follows:

2022 2021
Entrusted management of insurance funds 108,868 B6, 008
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60. Risk management
{a) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the patential losses that may arise from the failure of a counterparty or a debtor 1o meet its
oblgation or commiiment to the Group, Credit risk increases wihen all counterparties are concentrated in a single
indusiry of a gecgraphical region, as different counterparties in the same region or industry may be affected by the
same economic faciors, which may eventually atfect their repayment abiliies.

The Groug designs ity arganisation framework, credit policies and processes with an objecive 1o identify, evaluste
and manage ity credit sk rffuﬂlv!ly. The Risk and Capitad Managerment Commitlles, set up and appointed by the
board of directors is respomiblie for supervising and evaluating the set-up, organisational struciure, work process
and oflectiveness of vanow risk maragement funclians.

With respect to dally operatons, the Risk Management Department, as directed by the Risk and Capital
Management Commutiee, participates i, coondinates and monitors the work of other sk management functions,
including each bushress unil and the Legal and Comphance Department. The Group matages credit riak throughaut
the entire credit process induding pre-lending evaluateors, credit approval and post-lending monitoring: Accarding
to Implementation Aules on Expected Credit Loss Approach of Commercial Banks (CRIRC (2022 ] No 10), the Group
has further optimised the workflow related to the implementation and management of ECL measures dunmg the
year.

With respect 1o the credst risk manasgement of wholesale financal business, the Group formulates eredit policy
gusdelines, enhances the standards on credit acceptance and management requirements for corparate, interbank
and institutional chents, and implomants fmits in kry risk arpas to improwe the quality of credit TXpoALTe

With respect 1o credit fisk manageent of rétail linancial business, the Groud mainly relies on the oredil ssessment
ol applicants as the bass for loan appeoval, wlisch takes inlo conuderstion the mcome level, wedit hatory, and
repayment abulity of the applicant. The Group manitors post-lending canditians by Tecusing on borrowers’ repayment
ability, the gtatus of collateral and ary changes to collatesal value, Onee a loan becomes averdue, the Gioup slarts
the collecbon process sccording 1o standard retail loans collection procedures

To mitigate risks, the Group requeests customers 1o provide coflateral and guarantees when necessary, Certain
gusdelines. have been set Toe the acceptabiity of specilic types of collateral o ks mitigating measures. Collateral
portfolio and legal covenants are reviewed regularly to ensure that they remain sutficient for the green ks and be
condistent with market practices

In respect al assel quabty clatahcanon, the Group adepls a nik based asiet qualrty clavalicatson methodology
Cuntenily, the Group categorises ifs loany on & ten-grade loan cassification basis in oeder to refine internal risk
dlasiliation managemeitt (normal {grades 1-51, special mention (grades 1-2), sulstendard, doubilul and boss),

The risks invalved in contingent liabilities and commitments are essentially the sarme as the credit risk imvelved in
loans and advances to customers. These transactions are, therefore, subject to the same credit appiication, post-
lending monitonng ard colateral requirements as for customers appleing tor leans,

Concertration of credit risk: when certain nember of custamers cany out the same business activities. locate in
the same geographical region or their indusinies share similar economic charactesistics, their ablity to meet their
obdigations may be affected by the same economic factors. The level of concontration of credit risk reflects the
semsitivity of the Group's operating result fo a specitic industry or geographical region. Te prevert concentration of
credit risk, the Grosp has formulated a limit managemant poficy to monitor and analyse its kan portfaho,

Aanalysis of loans and advances by industey and loan portfolio ame presented in Mote 232
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60. Risk management ionmmen

{a)
i

{iik

{iid)

Credit risk feantinged)
Internal credit risk rating

The Group classifies credit risk based on probabality of default. The internal credit risk rating @5 based on the
lorecasted default risk, taking o consideration qualitatrve and quantitative factors. For customerns of whalesale
budineds, swch facton include net pralit growth rate, sales growth rate, industny, ele. For cuslemedrs of retall
bartinesa, such lackors mclude maturity, ageng, collatoral ratio, #ic

Significant increase in credit risk
s dedseribe i Mote 4(05), the Group recogrises ifetime ECL if there are significan mereases i credt rab.

In assessing whether the credit nsk has increased sgnificanily ssnce infial recognition, the Group compares the nik
of default ocowring on the finannial instrumeant and ather items at the reporting date with that at the date of intaal
recognition. In making thas assessment, the Group considers an actual or espected significam detencration In the
fimancial instrument’s internal credit risk rating (Mote GO{i(), as well as internal early waming signal, the result
of S-tier classification and owerdue information. The Group reqularly reviews whether the evaluation cnteria are
applicable 1o the current sauation

For wholesa'e business, credit risk i considered as significantly mereased if any of the following conditions = met:
the S-tier clnsilication o wpecial menten; more than 30 days (mchnivel overdue, the internal oredif risk rating of
the customer has boen downgraded to certain level; the early warning signal of the customer has resched a certain
fevel, or the customer has othor significant risk sigmaks identified by the Groug

For retall and eredit card busimess, eredit risk B consdered as sgnificantly inereased o amy of the fellowing
conditions is met the S-tier dassification is special mention, mare than 30 days (inclusive) overdue, the customer
or the debt has credit risk early warning signal; or the customer has other significant nsk ssgnals wentified by the
Graup.

& debt insttument is determined 1o have low credit risk il i it has a low risk of default, i) the borrower has a strong
capabality to meet its contractuad cash flow cbligations i the near tesm and Wi} adverse changes in economic and
baminess conditions in the longer term may not necessanly reduce the ability of the borrower 1o fulfil its contracieal
cash {low obligations,

For loan commitment and financlal guarames, the date when the commitment becomes imevocabbe 3 considered as
e initial recogriton date

The Group comsiders that a debt instrument i impaited when the det® instrument is mare than 90 days (ndusive)
owerdue of the S-tier dassification of ths debt instrument is substandard, doubtful or ‘oss (these three categories
include debt mstruments with mose than 20 days (inchusive} overdue),

Measurement af ECL

The key inputs used for measuring ECL are

- probability of default (PD); is an estimate of the likelinood of default over 1 months or lifetime horizon;
. loss given delault (LGDY is the propartion of the loss arising on default to the expadure at defauly;

. supasure at default (EAD) s the risk exposura on a debt

Thise figuras are generally dorlved from internally developed statistical models and other histarical data and thiy ate
adjusted to reflect foraand-looking information
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60. Risk management ionsmed

{(a) Credit risk feontiued
{ivl  Incorparation of forward-looking information

The Group divides financial assets info ditterent asset groups based on their detferent sk characteristics, According
10 the risk characterrstics of the asset geoug, 1he Group collects external data released by authoritative institul:ons
and infernal risk data without wundue cost or eflort for madelling. Apart from the common ecaname indicators
such as Gross Domostse Product ("GDPT), Consumer Price Index {"CP%}), Producer Price Index {"PP®) and Broad
Money Supply ("MZ"), various other categories of indicators such as industry index, nterest and sichange rate,
and sureey index are alo mehuded, Based on siatistical analyws and expert judgements, the Group sets up mulliple
forward-looking scenarios 1o prechcl mocroeconamic indicatons and nik parameters, The Group will firly wfer fo
the farecasts lsued by extarmal authontative inititutions as the forecasts of sconomic Indicatar undsr the baseling
scenania. Il there B no external forecasts, the Growp will refer 10 the forecasts msued by the professionals of the
Bank and the caipuls of the models. For the forecasty of economic indcalod wnder the remaiming scenarios, the
Group will fefer o the actwal histodcal data for analysis and focecasl. Taking GDP (year-on-year growth rate) and
CPl {month-on-month moease) e &n example, the forecasts sdopled by the Group for 2023 undes (he beeling
scenario ohe A, 80% [2022: 5.34%) and 2.80% (2022: 2.43%) respectively,

Combined with guantitative measurement and expert judpement, the Group sets the weighting of multiple scenarios
based on the prinople of taking the baseline scenario as the main and the other scenanos as supplement. The
weight of the baseline scenario of ihe Group as a1 31 December 2022 is the highest According 1o the sensitivity
test results of the Gooua, when the weighting of the optimistic seenano increases by 10% and the weghting of the
baseline scenano decreases by 10%, the ECL amount at 31 December 2023 will decrease by apprommately 3.1%
compared to the cument result {at 31 December 2021° will deveease by approximately 3 4%) When the weighting
of the pessimistic scenario increases by 10% and the weighting of the baseline scenaso decreases by 10%, the ECL
amaunt at 31 December 2022 will increase by approximately 5.2% compared 1o the current result (a1 31 December
2021: will ircrease by approximately 1.5%)

The Group periodically forecaits macrosconomse indicators, and calculates the ECL based on a weighted 12-month
expeciod credi boss (stage 1) or 4 weighted lifetime expectied credil loss (stage 2 and stage 3

v Groupings based on shared risk characteristics

The Group dvides the primary business mio whodisale business, retad buviness and credid card business. The models
are deaded based on shared risk chatactedstios, and the reference indicoton include the S-tee classificatsan, busines
type and collateral type.

{vi]  Maximum exposure

The Group's masimem exposure o cedil nsk withou? taking nto scoeunl ol ey collaters beld o otber oedin
enhancementy is the carrying amount of the relevant hnancial assets (including derivatves) as disclosed in the
comalidated statement of financial position and the contract amount of the off balance sheet lems duclosed in
Note 58(a). 4t 31 December 2027, the amount of the Group's maximim coedit ik ecposune was BMB12 440,314
milliadn (31 Decermber 2021: AMBIT, 235,033 milletn)
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60. Risk management icontinued)

{a) Credit risk jeontinued

iwiiy  Renegotiated loans and advances to customers
The carrying amount of loans and advances that ware ondil-impalrﬂl and the terms had boen renegotiatod was
RMIE12,076 million as 8 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021 RMB16.517 millian)

{wiii} MNon:performing loans
Unchior tha S-tier lnan clasulicaton yitem, non-petforming leant of the Group ame divided e whatandard lnans,
doubtful loans and loss loans Ax at 31 December 2022, the Group had balance of nov-perdorming lcans of
AMESE 004 milion (31 Decermber 2021: AMBSD,BE2 malion)

{ix}  Credit quality of bond investments rating resulis

A1 the end of the reporting persd, the anabyuis of the credin quality of bond mestmems by designated external
credil musssrrent institution, Standard & Pnur'a., 5 a4 Tollows

2022 2011
Impaited gross amount of debt investments 358 340
Impairment allowances 1243) 1228
Heither owerdue nor impaired
AAA 1,750,057 1,345,363
Al 1o AA- 53,526 29,468
A+ to A- 562,475 422,427
Lowwer than A- 33429 28,415
Unsated 38,966 57,994
hnpaitment sllowances (5,954) (10,935
D i i o A R R R S o e AL it B
Tatal 2431650 1.871 844
e
1] Bonds msued by T gowerrmiendt and policy banka held by e Group amouided S0 EVE2 084 502 mdkon & at 31 Decembes JMIID (31

Deeermber 2021, RLARD 506, 1045 i)

111} Fhe impunineni almwiscrt abroew m (o0 Selst isresutrenin A ssmitied ool enly
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60. Risk management jonnmed)

(a)
E]

(xi}

Chaptar VI Fimancial Statemani

Credit risk foontinued)
Collateral

An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other credit enhancements held against financial assets that are

owerdue But not impaired & a3 Tollows

2022 2021
Estimate of the fair value of coflateral and other credst enhancements
hefd agaiist following financial assets
- Loans and advances 1o customers 25,148 4,124
Movements of loans and advances and debt investments measured at amortised cost
Loans and advances measured At amnartised cest
2022
= Stage 2
(Lifetime = Stage 3
= Stage 1 ECL = not {Lifetime
[12-month credit-  ECL - credit-
ECL) impaired) impaired) Total
Balance as at the beginning of the year 491,836 111,354 50,862 5,075,052
Het changes for the year 425,054 {27,002) (1,831) 9621
Trarsfer to
= Stage 1 18,758 {18,644} [114) .
= Stage 3 {103,532) 103,734 [262) ™
Stage 3 (35,248) {13,117) 48,365 -
White-otfs - {145} (39,018} 128,161)
Balsnce a2 at the end of the year 5,217,868 156,240 58,004 5432112
2021
- Stage 2
(Lo etamee - Stage 3
- Stage 1 ECL - nat {Lifetime
{1 2-month credit-  ECL — credlin-
ECL) impaised) impaired) Teal
Balance as af the begrning of the yea 4,517,139 16,286 53,615 4,647 140
Hel changes for the yest d6E, Ik 14,154) 11.093) de3.0ny
Tramsles to
= Stage 1 20,436 [210,293) [143) =
- Stage 2 1BG,411) 69,966 [555) =
- Stage 3 {23,692) (10,451) 34,143 -
Wiite-offs - - £35,105) (35,1053)
Batance as at the end of the year 497,836 111,354 E0,862 5,075,052
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60. Risk management jonnmea)

{a}
{xi)

Chaptar VI Financial Statemanin

Credit risk reantinued

Movements of leans and advances and debt investments measured at amortised cost (conbinued

Debt irvestments st amortised cost:

2022
- Stage 2
{Lifetime — Stage 3
- Stage 1 ECL - not (Lifetime
(12-manth credit-  ECL - eredit-
ECL) impalrad) Impaired) Total
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,183,320 1,962 24,077 1,209,356
Met changes for the year 361,916 (275) 9,395 371,036
Transfer to
- Slage 1 3 {3} - -
Stage I (1.278) 1,276 - -
- Sage 3 {311} (a7} 1,198 -
Wite-offs - - (5500 {55a)
Balance as at the end of the year 1,543,652 2,073 34120 1,579,845
2021
= Stage
Litetime = Slage 3
= Stage 1 ECL - not [Ufetime
{12-month credt-  BCL = eredits
ECL) impaired) irmpaired] Total
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1.044 826 an 14,580 1,060,387
Hat changes for the year 140,141 (B5E) 5487 148,972
Transfer to
= Stage 1 - - - -
= Stage I (1,647} 1,647 - =
= Stage 3 = = - -
\Wirite-offs - - - -
Balance as af the and of the year 1.183.320 1.863 24077 1.209,35%
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60. Risk management ionnmen

{a) Credit risk feontinued
{xiiy  Cradit quality of financial instrumants

The staging analysis for loans and advances to customers and debt investments a1 amortised cos are disclosed in
note 22, nole 23(b) and G00a)xi) respectvely. The slaging analysis Tor eredit commitments and the eapected oedil
loss allowances of fmancial guarantees and lean commitments are disclosed in notes 58{a) and 42 respectively. The
staging anabeiis lor other finandal instruments [ o follows:

nn
Frieipal Erpected predt o
T TH Stage

ffstime  Sged Lfme  Saged

vagel  El-met  (Lfwtme Sugel  E-nat  [lifetine

{12-maeth reds- L~ crwehd- [1e-menth wedi-  BOL- kit
)  wpred  pared] Tatal B opared] g Totd
Radarm wech (it burky R - - 8383 - - - -
Bakances with aie ad orhes Fouridl ity 15N H n 157 | m 1] (it}
Facwments with barks ind othat Fancal st titen b1 v - - wma [rI'i 1 - - (L5584
Bty bl unddee e pReTET man - 1] ms 54 - (L] BE- 1
Lot ety at FTOCI T8 i W mmn R L] [1.56% g

xh
i e Byt vullion
Jage ] Yl

Rreirw ftage 3 Limmy Suge 3

Sugg b HLene Lirme fagel  El-rat (e

[} 2monty el HL- ol (11-nanth redt-  EL-oeit:
il g rpaned - | 4] mpaend ) Tl
Babancws wh et baris 51455 - - B = - - =
Salirces with sk and other Francad ity 715 . n Fak] 38N E L] am
Pacnmenty with Saeks aod othet Fuancidl it taton 158,145 10 . 1935 s m . ko
ety held urde medle wpesent HHAn - ] S5 LRI - (] LR
Lot movraments at FVEOC REMT 1% m B35 M0 i LW L1

Motr:  The halsoes dnslied showe do not indude miered ecenshle
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60.

(b)

0]

Risk management iontmed

Market risk

Market risk refers to the sk of loss due to changes in observable market factors such as interest rates, exchange
rates, commedity prices and stock prices, resubing in charges in the fair value or future cash flows of the Group's
fimancial instruments. Interest rate and foreign axchangs rate are the two major market nsk factors relevant 1o the
Group. The Group o exposed to market risk through the finandal enstruments under the trading book and banking
book, The firancial instruments and positions under the trading book are held for trading purposes or for the
purpases of hedging the risks ansing from the trading book position, and these financial instruments can be traded
wiithoud any restriction, The financial instruments under the banking book are assets and liabslities held by the Group
for determinabie return with relative stable market value or for the purposes of hedging the nsks, which indude
hath the Group's on-balance shest and nff-balance sheat exposure

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign sxchange risk arsses from the holding of foraign currency assets, liabilities and equity items, and the foreign
cumency and foregn currency derivalie positions, which ocpese the Group to potential losses in the event of
unfavourable foreign exchange rate movement, The financial assets and Habilities of the Group are denominated in
AME, and the other currencies ae mainky in US0 and HKD. The Group seqregates the policy setting, execution and
supervision of foreign exchange risk management, and estabishes a foreign currency risk managemont governance
structure. This structure specifies the roles, responsibilities and reparting lines of the board of directors, the board of
ILpeTEROrs, serior managemenit, cesignatled committoes and relevant deparimonts of 1he Bank o the managemont
ol foregn exchange risk. The Group o prudent in 13 foresgn eachange nik appetite. and would not valuntanty take
forsign exchange risk, which sults the current development stage of the Group, The curreni foresgn exchange risk
management policies and procedures of the Greup meet the regulafory requirements and the requerements of the
Group.

iy Trading book

The Group has eablished a market nak structure and spstem of the trading book, which covers emchange
rate risk, 10 quantify the exchange rate risk of the trading book 1o facilate contralned management. The
struciure, protess and mathod of exchange rate risk management of trading book are consistent with that of
thee interest e Nk of trading book

The Group adopts guantiatve indicators such as exposure wwlicator, marker value a1 risk indicator (vaR,
covers intérest rate, Torespn exchange rate, and commedity rak factars), exchange rale scenaro stress test
loss index, exchange rate sensitinly index, and cumidatse loas mndex 0 it management of fareign exchange
risk. The management methods include delegation, setting limits, daily monitoring and continucus reporting,
&c

376/433

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooooa



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooooa

Chinas Merchants Bank Chagter Vil Financial Statemants 281
Annual Repart 2027 (H share)

60. Risk management cnnmwea)

(b} Market risk jcontinwsd)
(i Foreign exchange risk joon nimuedl
{2} Banking beok

The Group's foreign exchange nsk under the bBanking book s centrally managed by the Head Office. The
Asiet and Liabidity Management Department, as the treaswrer of the Bank i3 in charge of the banksng book
loresgn exchange nik management. The nternal Audd Department is responsible for auditing this. The
treaswrer o responsible for maraging the foreign exchange risk under the banking book with a prudent
appfoach and compliance with the regulatory requirements, and through approaches such 2 transaction
limis and adjustment of plans,

The banking book foreign exchange risk of the Group arises from the mismatch of the non-RBB financal
avsets and liabdities The Group stringently manilods is Toreign eachange ik exposures o control it within
an acceptable range

The Group has adopted foreign exchange exposure analysis, seenano simulstion analysis and stress testing
for the meaiurement and analyws of foreign exchange rak Thie Group regularly mesures and analyies the
Toresgn exchange ik expasuse lucteations, montors and reports ferelgn exchange rsk on a monthly basis
under the lmit contral framewark, and adjusts the foreign exchange expoaures based on the vend ol Toreign
eachange rale movements to mitigate the forsign exchange mk o0 114 banking beok

The Group continues to strengthen banking book eschange rate risk monileding and autharisation
managemeni of limits io ensure that risks are confrofiad within a reasorable range

{3 Assers and Nabilities By original currency are shown as follows:

na
| AME Ecpaivdhent Main origingl aaifehty

- AME s HED Other Total 5o HED
Adisty
Cath ied halances with central

barks 554,628 41,578 L1466 Lime 502,742 6019 i1
Ameunis due Inom Banks 2nd athe

Irianiasl IRVt LEIRE- t00.231 12144 16,008 520,560 14410 14,951
Lowers and achvarices 10 Cuvomens. 5,45, 679 148,393 157,628 2134 5796546 21433 175,812
Frencial rwedments (rdudng

demitoe finanisl asets) L514.659 'AE200 1,30 211 L3N 22,07 MAn
Crher ausets inote (2 4,335 85,541 i34 154 346,733 13,744 ine
Total 9,252,689 574,340 27080 54191 10038912 2704 1,50
Liabilithes
Bersteng Trom ceniral Banks and

mowitls dus b banks mad ather

fimancal insitstons 015,667 LHE A 1961 5507 0785 13,353 444
Deposti fom ousiomers 5,954,157 361242 150,456 43607 753502 51,97 18008
Fnancial kabties a1 FYTRL

{including dervalive fnanial

s bt £3,769 1575 4 i 81,950 L9 473
Dot tapui e intuied 162,148 58447 Ts0 G5 113288 B4 BBS
bt labilres note () 47,548 11,135 11,544 @y ma 1648 13,397
Total B4%E425 541,466 177682 LT SRS 11855 228
P_H_'lplllh_m BE4 264 33 483 39,455 [JI'II.H !SI.B! a8 ll,lil'l-
Mea off-balirce sheet position:
I;M_dsl eammibmmenta {fobs s} I._IS_S.._M !_J.i‘ll _It.ﬁi 14504 1575130 Illﬂi ]‘-!._E!:l-_
Dietivatraes

- formard purchaged 280,973 283388 26408 M E16520 A1 kaE 15623

-lorawrd wit (IS3E96) (22800 [10.467) (eEr)  (SEXIE] (2335 21,831

— P CLITEARCY oo BOston 5143 132,600 (411 4 {3,516 4T3 il
Total 56,006 138,580 6937 &007 30,778 5.552) 1.8
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60. Risk management ionmmes

[(b) Market risk jcantinued
n Foreign exchange risk (con firveal
3 Assets and Nabilities by original currency are shown as follows: fcontinued)

FoH
In RS Egualent . Man osgenal putrency
e ] KD Dither Teral [ HED

LT
Cinth and halances with cenirsl

baniks L81TTY 571419 18,432 18 565,965 0,08 161
Ameurls dog from hanis and ofte

financial instibuton 663,673 108387 12,182 8,356 798,078 17,085 14,878
Loares and advanded 10 cuitamen 4,592,545 156,000 141,66 Meed R3S LR 11313
Francal mvestments finducing

deriatve femandal ase) 1,038,147 108439 M8 1o0e  LITESS 17085 14893
O wsses [nats 48 iH.868 111872 10:513 487% 301,952 17,58 11,86d
o] o e A S LR L L s O o L TP SO I
Liabililies
Bcrsowing Trom cenfral beanks ard

aenoants due b banks and other

financial insibation: 1,115,553 b} 48 £317  LagM 17005 5958
Deposts Bom usiomess 5830565 346,349 129,30 5 f3aT0T 54,6 155164
Faancal kablities @ AVTRL

[mcludny derratrie Enancial

il 1040 18554 1438 " 9043 FA U] 1755
Dbl st issued 350,55 B0Ai5 FHY] 1345 444541 T80 mn
Crthver Aabifioes (rate (F 135507 18336 230 Fred J6d084 2,565 11,355
Total 1,641,038 54048 MR HaW 3i2ia 4,50 177,80
et pasition Tannes 1 LYk £713 865441 50 T0,882
Net off-balings shes? peaition:
Credd comemiimenis jrate {al) AN 71,178 488 16,343 1725654 11,168 29.590F
Derivatives:

= dormard purchased AT 451418 8554 16,144 735,34 AR 10,465

= Yorwiind wokd TR (395151 [POES) 748 [BM33M 162 0041 {13,035)

= nir cuty option pakhon 53,55 3075 i 108 {5180 5,00 %
Totad (33,108} G4 20891 5,458 TE06 14809 2,555
Yaabrs

L] Irterest recmable and mfeneyl payabde ol Aranoel rbryeenh e isduded i "o et ” and “otter hshdiie™ repecively

) Crecht commuiments genealy sopre balome thay ime v down, dherefors the sbows red position dost rot reprersn the fubere

Pt i
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60. Risk management iontined)

{b) Market risk fcentinwed
i Foreign exchange risk (continueal
) Sensitivity analysis

Under the existing managed floating exchange rate regeme, the Group uses sensitiity analyss 1o measufe
the potential effect of changes in foreign currency eschangs rates on the Group's nel profit and equity. The
following table sets forth the results of the Group's loreign eachange sk senubwity analysis an the assets
and habilitbes of all foreign currencies invelved ot 31 Decemnber 2022 and 31 December 2021

2022 FiH
Change in foreign currency exchange rate Down by 1% Up by 1% Cown by 1% Up by 1%
(Decreaselincrease n net prafit 1] G4 {73 19
|Decreasalincraass n equity (284} 184 (262} FLH

Actual changes in the Group's net profit and equity resulting from increases of decreases in foreign exchange
rates may be different from the results of this sengitivity analysis

(i} Interest rate risk

Interest rate rizk atises from untavourable changes in intarest rates and maturty profiles which may resailt in lows o
the income and declns in market value of financial instruments and positions held by the Group

(1) Trading boak

According to the bawc prnciples of ridk management, the Growp has built anc continuowsly impraved tho
markel nsk managemant ayitem, and pstablshed 1he managoment process o marked sk identibicateon,
meazurament, mondering, control and reparting, oovering interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, commedity
and other risks imvolved in the trading book buwsiness. Unde the market risk preference Tormulated by the
board of directors, the Group manages the trading boak by clearly identifying, accurately measwing and
eltectively managing the trading book market risk, 2 ensure that the trading book sk exposwe 15 within an
accoptable range and ackioves a reatonable balance of risk and return. The Group conitantly imoroviss the
risk-adjusted retum leval 1o maximite the shareholders” value,

The trading book market mk governence organisation structure defines the responaibilties, divislon of labour
and reparting lines of the boord of directors, Risk and Capital Management Committee under the board of
directors, senior management and relavan departments of the Bank, and safeguards the achieverment of
managemnent obpectves. The Market Risk Management Depastment o responsible for the Group's trading
book market risk, and underakes the task of risk pelicy fermulation and management
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60. Risk management icontmuea)

(b} Market risk jcantinued
{ii}  Interest rate risk fcontinued)

i

2

Trading beak (rentinwed)

Agcording to the business practices and market nsk governance organsaton structure, the Group establishes
the trading book market nsk limits management systern. A top level limit b5 set Based on the risk appetite
determined by the board ol directors, and Is tramsmitted from top o bottom level by level Within the
scope of ther authorisation, management departments at all levels allocate and set bmits according 1o risk
characteristics, product types and trading strategies, etc The business departments cany cutl the business
accoding to the authonsaticn and limils requirements, and the superasory and admnistrative degartments
a1 all levels continuoushy monitor and report according to the Bmits management regulations.

The trading book market risk management adopts the scale index, stop los index, sensitivity index, value at
righ indox, stress fest index and other risk meansremant indicos as the limits index, and sets the limit valug
by comprehensively considening the nsk appetite, nisk tolerance, busimess operation strateqy, risk retunn,
managemen] conditions and ather factors,

The Group used valualion, sensitivity anabysis, value-at-risk analyss, stress test and other meassement
methods to identify and quantify risk factors in the interest rate market The Group apphies the market
risk measurernent madel in s daily ek management and takes markel nsk measurement as the basa for
Butness plannng, raourees allsestan, finsnoal market busnes apeiation and v managemen

Banking book

Aceording to the external régulatory requirements and the internal bankirg book (nterest rave risk
management policy, the Group has built and conbmumesly impeoved the banking book interest rate risk
management yitem, eslabdished the management process of interest rate risk |dentdicatlon, measurément,
muonitonng, coribiol and reporting, and coveéred all o and ofl-balsnce sheet busiress o the Bank. The Group
clearly identifies, accurately measures and effecinvely manages the interest sate risk of the banking book
under the interest rate sk appelite of the banking book fermulsted by the Board of Directors to ensure that
thie net mierest income (NN and the economes value of shareholders' equity EVE) increase steadly wihin the
acceptable range of 1he banking ook risk.

The Group's governance and management framewcrk specifies the responsibiiities, dwision of labor
and reporting lines of the board of direciors, senior management, designatod committees and relevant
dopartments to enswe the eHectiveness of nterest rate risk management. interest rate risk of the banking
book © managed by the Asset and Liahility Management Departmen! of the Head Office. Internal Audit
Department of the Head Office & responsdle for independent awdit

The prelerence al the Group in respect of the interest rate nsk = 1he banking book & neutrally prudent. The
Graup establshes 4 banking book milerest rate rak imil management system based an the actual business
and the banking book mterest rate dik governance structure, The gquaninative index of mk appetite set
by the Board of Duectors is the highest level limat, wihich o vansmitted through the bmis level from top
te bottem and level by level Within the scope of their authorisatian, ol levels set Imits and continuausly
manifar and report according o risk tolerance, butiness operation strategy and risk management objectives
The Group formulates interedl rate rsk management strategees and reguladly tracks and reviesss them
based on risk messurement and momtoring resulls and in combination with macroeconomee and interest
rate enwronment. The key measures for mik management ol the Group mdude the adjustment m busness
wolume, duration structure and infterest rate strdture of on-balance sheet assel and latdity business and off-
balance sheet denvative 1o offsel Ask EXPOLUME,

The Growp has mainky adopted scenario simulation anabysis, re-pricing esposure analysis and duration analysis
for the regular measurement and analysis of inferest rate risk under the banking book. Stress fest is a form
of scemario simulation used to assess the changes in net interest income at sk and economic value of equity
indicators when there |s an extreme fluctuation in inferest rates. The Growp measures and monidors the
imterest rate risk of banking book through the asset-liability management system, and the main models and
parameter assumptions used in the measuremant process ane independently verified before being adopted,
and are regutarly revieaed and verified after being adopted. The various indicatars of interest rate risk during
the reporting period showed that the interest rate risk of banking book of the Bank was generally stable and
stay within the set limits
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60. Risk management jconnmec)

{b} Market risk jcantinued
i}  Interest rate risk fcontinued)

3 The following tabies indicate the expected next repricing dates (or maturity dates whichever are

ecarlier) for assets and labilities at the end of the reporting period.

2
3 manths
o less Cver 3 Han-
(inelude manths  Over 1 year Crier Imterest
Tatal ouerdue) 1ol year o5 yean 5 ypears bearing
Asety
Cash and balances with cestral
Bl BO2.Ta2 595,932 - - - 6810
Amaints due from banks and ather
financial institutions 529,569 516,309 99,288 14.05% £ -
Leans and advances (o cusiomen
{node (i) 5796546 1234885 302830 A73.932 59,354 -
Financial meestments (includmg
desivative financial assety) 1,763,222 217440 356,451 975413 1,184,030 A5,B85
Onher assefs inate fil) 36,733 - - - - 5,733
Total assets 10,138.912 1544572 3484110 1463404 1,223,398 423428
Liakilites
Borrerearg from cenra banks and
ampunts due o Banis and other
financial intibutioes 1,072,952 15,004 142451 10,501 4,995 -
Deposits from Cuktomes T.535. 742 5528249 BEOLTAE 1,101,583 31,365 37199
Finangual fabulites at FYTHL
{including derrsative finanial
Tabilitiesh B1.950 E LU §.23 n 13,640
Lease lisbdities 13,013 1094 30 1650 1,178 -
Dotk securitis ismued 221,208 35,587 E9.617 39.565 FEAL] -
Oeher liakifites inote (W 158,719 %] - 1752 - 255,714
Total liabilites 84674 G4R0ITY 1078912 1217262 65,130 333213
Asier-lusbiliny gap 954,238  {2.935565) 2405198 136,122 1158268 90,215
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60. Risk management ionmmes

(b}
{ii)

Market risk jcontinued
Interest rate risk ‘confinued)

{2}  The follewing tables indicate the expected next repricing dates for maturity dates whichever are
eardier) for assets and liabifities at the end of the reporting period. (confinued)
o]
3 maniths
al | Ower 1 New-
{include marths  Over 1 year Oresr Interest
Tousl overtue) ta 1 yea 1o 5 years 5 yeats beating
Agety
Cash ard balances with ceriral
bk 586,965 537 981 - - - 18,984
Amowts due from banks and ather
financal ntitubens Teg078 13941 63581 1asay a9 -
Ieans and acances 1o usinmes
{node {1 5325511 L1346 1750145 e 357 B4.238 -
Financial erestments (includng
dethvative financal assen) 1176515 159,659 288,349 B84.07% 96,611 Az817
Onher assets inote (i 381,952 - - - - 381,952
Towlamet . WMR0N 355625 AWNRNIS 120843 GBS 459753
Liabilites
Borrowing irom central banks and
amounts due to banlds and other
financial intituticens 1,236,594 1,081,661 149,900 6311 m -
Deposits from curiomess 5347078 48202 TE50% BOM,T55 ELL 3005
Financial Gabilities af PYTRL
{includirg derrvative finangial
fabslitiesh 043 1428 115 B 158 79,205
Lease liahditees 13812 1041 198% 8153 168 -
Debt securities suaed 444 541 96,239 210,608 E5074 38.720
Orher lakifitas inote (RN 148,272 A4 - - - 45188
Total linbilites 8363340 6000725  1.0%4.081 6,370 A15TE 330,588
Agget-luability gap A65.680 4344770 700800 354,573 B1B.322 129,165
Hobes: (il For boans arsl sdvances 2 cusiomens, e =31 montin o les” cetegony inclsde owrae srounds s ab 31 December 302
ard 31 Decermbae JOJ1 Nt of abowancet fo imparient keben. Overdus amounis frpieeenl laass of which o whos o
part of the prncipsl or bhdenecty were ovrdus
T nterest rechvable ated lerest Davalle of finarcial irsiuments e ecuded in Cothe aern” and et labikoe
rpesty
A Sensitivity analysis

The Group wses sensitivity analysis w0 meaiore the potential effect of changes in intéres) rates on the
Graup's net interes! mcome and equity. The lollowing table sets focth the results of the Group's mlerest rate
seniitivily analyis on the astets and labilities as at 31 December 2022 and 31 Decomber 2031

Pl ] 2081
Change In intesaer rages [in huish, polnty) Up by 3 Dawnby: UpbyS  Pownly I8
|Dereaselincreats n net inlesest income {4.412) a412 {3,605) 3,605
|Decroasa)increati in equity (B.463) 8,586 (6,830} 6,917

The above-mentionad mmlerest rate ssnaiovity analysls shows the chapged o net mterest ncome and equity
in the mext 12 months under the asumption of changes in interest rates in the above table. As the aclwal
stuation and assumotiors may be differeni, the actual changes in the Group's net inferest mceme and
equity caused by the increase or decrease in interest rates may be different from the results of this sensitivity
analysis.

382/433

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooood



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooooa

Chins Merchanis Bank Chapter VI Blnancial Statemants 2R7
Annusal Report 2022 (H share)

60. Risk management iconfinuec)
(c) Liguidity risk

limudity risk s the risk that the Group is not able to obtain suffciant Funds at a reasonable cost and in a timaly
manner to deal with the appreciation of assel growth, 1o meet its maturity obligations, or to perfarm other payment
oblgations.

According to the ligwdity risk management policy, the Group tegregated the policy selling, execution amd
supetwition of |l:|ur¢'ry ek managemont, and puts in place & gowernance framewosk which delines the robes,
redponsibiities and reporting lines of the board of directorns, the boaré of supervitors, wniod manigement,
dessgnated commuttees and relevant departments 1o ensure the effecivenss of the liguadity nsk management. The
board of direcions takes the ultimate responsibility for hquidity risk management, entures the Group can effectively
sentily, measure, manitor and contral liquidity fisk and |4 respansible for determining lauidity rsk level which the
Group can folerate. The Ask and Capltal Managemen: Commattee under the board of directors shall perfarm it
responiibibties in liquidity risk management according to the requaements of the Board of Directews. The board
of supensiars i responsible for the wuperenion and evaluation ol the perfarmance af the board of directass and
senist management In the liquidity sk management and reports (o the general meeting of tharcholders. The wnioe
managemaent is responuble for the liquidity risk management wodk end develops a timely undertanding of changes
in bguidity nisks, and reporls the sarme to the board of dirécters. The Asset and Liabidity Management Commilles
(ALCO) enercises specdic liguidity nsk rmanagement functions as reguired by the seror management. The Assels and
Leablrties Management Department al the Head Office & a day-te-day working bady af ALCO, and i respanible
for various concrete management wark (ncluding formulating policles and procedures relating 1o ligudity risk
managerment and condecting qualtative and quantitative anabysis of liquidiy nsk. The Intemal Audit Department of
the Head Dffice conducts comprehenuve sudd on the Group's liquidity nik management.

The Group is prudent in managing its lquidity risk, which swils its cument development stage. The Group's existing
lquidity risk management polices and systems meet reguiatary reguiremments and its own management needs.

The Group's liquidity msk management 5 coordinated by Head Office wath branches acling m concert. The Asset
and Liability Managemenl Departman? acting as the treasurer of the Group s in charge of daily ligquidity risk
maragement. Accardng to 4 prudent bass under regulatary requirgments, the treaswier (5 conducting centralised
Pguidity management through limaly managemen], budgel conteol, initiative debl management s wall @ intesnal
fund transter pricing.

The Group measures, monitors and identifses liquidity risk by shart-term reserves as well as madium- and leng-term
struciuges, It manitors the limit indcators dosely at fimed niervals.

The Group regularty conducts stress testing to assess its bguidity nsk resistance under extreme orcurmstances, Excopt
for the annual stress festing required by the regulatory authonties, the Group conducts monthly stress testing on
the liquidity risk ot local and foreign currences. The Group sats wup ligusdity contingency plans and conducts iquidity
contingency drills 1o contirwcusly improwe ity capability to handle any hguidity crises
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60. Risk management ionnmes)
{c} Ligquidity risk jcontinued)

Analysis of the Growp's assets and Babilites by contractual remaining maturity is a5 follows:
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60. Risk management o
() Liguidity risk feantinued)
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60. Risk management iconfinuea)

{c)

Liquidity risk tcontinusa)

The fellowing table provides an analysis of the contractual undscounted cash Tlow of the non-derivative financial
assets, financal labilties and geoss loan commitments of the Group as at the end of the reporting perod. The

Group's expected cash flows on thete instruments may vary significantly from this anadysis.
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60. Risk management cenmea)

{c} Liguidity risk reontinued)
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(d)

(e}

Operational risk

Dperational risk arises from the loss due to defidency in imternal procedures, staffing or 1T structure, a5 well as
external evants which have stfect on operation, including lagal risk hat not strategy risk and reputation risk

Dussng the reparting period, through stepping up the identificatson, evalugion and montoreng of operational nsk in
key areas, and by locusing on process, policy, emplayee syitem, and exiting problemns of eritical cortral segments,
the Group furthes bnproves the rak management framework and method, apprassal and assessment mechanim,
and strongthens ecoromic capital allacation mechaniam with the goal of enhancing the ability and ellectiveneis
el operational riak’s management of the Group. Al major indexes meet the requirerrents of the Group's riak
prefeence,

In viewr of the chationges frem internal and externad operations and management, the Group wil, based on it risk
appetite, continue to upgrade s risk management capabilities and strengthen operatianal risk monitaring and
controls, in ondar to prevent and reduce operational rsk losses

Capital management
The ooectves of the Groun's capital management ase to;

- Kepp copital adequacy ratos at reasonable fevels, satnfy capital-specilic regulatory provisiors and policy
recpuimements an an ongoing bass, and maintain a solad capital base in supporl el s businesy expansion,
social responsbility and strategic planning implementabion 1o athieve a comprehensve, coordinated and
sustainable growih:

- Camply with capital regulatory requirements, perform procedures 10 aiseds internal captal adequacy, apenly
disthone information related 1o copital mansgement, Tully cover all raks and emsure salé operatesn al the
Biline group,

- Put in place an ecoromic capital-centred banking walue managemant syitem by fully applying vasious risk-
specific quantitative deliverables, enhance decsion-making processes and management application regimes,
sieengthen capital restraint and capital incentive mechanisms, renforce capabalities to faclitale customer
pricing and decisien-making, and increase capital deployment efficiency;

- Fluumahlf wie all kindw of capital mstrumants, continua o upgrada -:n.p|'t.|| strengths, improwe capital
sruciures, ranse capiial quality, lower capital costs, and create the best returns for sharehalders,

The Group manages its capilal structure and adjusts it based on the economic condition and the sk characiensbcs
of its operations. Te mantain or adjust its capital structure, the Group may modify s profit datribution policy,
msue or repurchase shaves, additionsl tier-1 capital instruments, elapibfe tier-2 capital mstruments, and convertible
debantures. The Graup's managemen! regulasly montars capital adequacy ratio under an approach stipulated by the
CBIRC. The Group and the Bank submit required Information to the CBIRC every quarter.
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60. Risk management jconsmed)

{e} Capital management ‘contnued)

The Group’s capital adequacy rato calculation covers the Bank and its subsidaries. The Bank’s capital adequacy ratio
calculation covers all branches of the Bank, Az at 31 December 2022, the Group’s subsidkaries that were within the
capital adeguacy rato calculation included: CMEB WLA, CMBIC, CMBFRL, CMFM, CMBWM, CIGHA & CMAM and CME
turope 5.4

Singe 1 January 2013, the Group has colculaied ity r,apll:ﬂ adeguacy ralio in accordance with 1he CBIRC's
Admimistrative Measures on the Capital of Commercal Banks (Provizional) and othes relevant regulatsons. On 18
Apnd 2014, the CEIRC q;lpu'umd the Bank to .rd'qﬂ. the Advanced Meaturement Approach. Withan the approved
scope, the Bank could calculate corporabion and financial mstitlutions risk expoaure wsing the Foundation Internal
Ratings-Based Approach, retail nsk expoture uting the Advanced Internal Ratngs-Based Approach, market risk
using the Inlernsl Model-Based Approach, and operational vk using the Standardised Measurement Approach. a1
thi same time, the CBIRC implemented a transition period for commercial banks that were approved 1o adopt the
Adwanecd Measurement Approsch. Durning the tramition pefisd, commercial banks should wie both the Advanced
Measurement Approach ard ether spproaches to calculste capital sdequacy rathos, and comply with the capatal floar
mequiremeEnls

The Group's capital management Tocuses on the capetal adeguacy ratio managerment. The capital adequacy
ratia veflects the Group's capability of sound operations and risk resstance. The Group's capital adequacy ratia
management’s objective & to carefully determine capital adequacy rato, as legally requised by regulaters, accarding
to actual risk profiles and with reference %o capital adequacy ratia levels of globally leading market peers and the
Group's operating conditions.

The Groug adegts the scenario smulation and stross testing methods to losecast, plan and manasge it capifal
adequacy ratio with consideraticns of factors such as strategic developmaent plarning, busiress expansion status,
and risk mavemend frends.

(f)  Use of derivatives

Durvatres wchide forwards, swaps and option Pansacions undertaken by the Group i the foreign eschange and
mterest rate markets,

The Group enters mta interest rate, foreign currency and other financial densative transactions fae treasury business
and its assets and labikities management purpose. The Group's derivatives can be diveded inte financial instruments
that are held for fair value hedge and cash Tlow hedging purpose and that ase at fair value through profit or loss

The Group fermulates appropriate hedging strategies ard uses proper tood in light of the sk profile of nlerest
rates or foroign exchange rates associated with its assets and lisbilities, a5 well as its analysis and |udgement
regarding future movements of interest rates or foregn exchange rates

Thie Group i exposed (o Toresgn exchangs nsk whon assets or liabadites are denomimated in foresgn cumancies. Such
riak can be atfset thrauagh the use of foreion exchange forwards of loreign exchange aptions.
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60. Risk management ionnmea)

{f) Use of derivatives fcomtnued

In cash flow hedges, the Group uses inferest rate swaps as hedging instruments to hedge the interest rate risks

ansing fram RMB loans and internank assets or labilibes

Thee fabowing tables provide an analysis of e notional amounts and the cofresponding far values of defvatves
of the Group by remalning maturities a1 the end of the teporting period. The notional amounts of the dervatives
inscate the trantachion vo'wme that has nat been delvered at the end of the reporing period, and do not represent

e amounls at mk

plerk]
Matienad amounts with remaning life Fair value
Between Between
Within 3 menths 1 yeasr and et
Imonths  and 1 year 5 yearg 5 pears Tatal Mssets  Liabilities
Detivatives at fasr valae threagh
prodit ar lnss
Imetest rase Gernamves 50,013 734,550 135,045 470 1534 6145 (6.062]
el rate srss E0.013 134241 135,045 470 150 6245 (60621
Bond fulures - 409 - - L] - -
Cusmency dermvalime 513,568 129,318 27,320 1,198 7405 11,348 (11,445
Forwads 11,443 4,812 645 1,198 oot 487 (328
Farsign exchinge swips. 347,432 126,332 77 - 590 488 9.163 (7.304)
Futures 1,043 i - - 1.4 - -
Qpticns 143,650 98,094 8,951 - LHEY5 1.5 (3.817
Cithes dervabves 51,064 520 640 4 2058 B&T (856
Equity opbaons purchesed 41889 LE = EE 41540 554 -
Eguity opbons writien 42,508 57 - - 41546 - [t
Cormgdty radng praps 5266 406 - - 5ET2 13 (3340
Credi delaul swaps - - B40 - E40 - (54]
Fair value hedge derivatves
Cramancy dernatmas - 1316 8l - 1047 = {153
Farzign perhangs swaps - 1,31R 7RI - 1087 i (153]
Cash flow hedge derivatines
Inspreat rate dormatives 230 o0 1,A04 04 5,008 " -
Imierest rate wnas 231 100 1504 na 4588 182 -
Inlierest rate cptions 0 - = = 0 - -
Detivatives managed In
comjunction with financlal
Instrumenis designated at FVTPL
Iferest rate denvatss - 1,085 ni - 1802 - 4n
Inletedt rate vnags - 1,085 n? - 182 - (47
Cutrency dervatves - - ki - r ] - (&5)
Forzign eschangs wwaps - - 78 - Tis - (5]
Tatal BET,03H 1,068,990 767,035 BEAT LN 1861 {18.636)
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Use of derivatives fommued

2021
Moloral emaunts wilh remacing he Fait value
Betwesn Between
Witlr 1 montdn | yeat and
Imenths  and 1 year Syeers  Over §yean Tt Aneli Liatadities
Detivatives st fair valae through
prodit ar loss
Intirest fate decvaties E51.612 BIIETE 1,137,360 4965 1R33617 1,00 111,574,
Intetest Fate vadgs 585,59 RIIATE 1,237,360 4966 1,631,838 nnn [11,574)
Bond fulures M - - - kL] - -
Bond opbions (= = £ = 1,388 = =
Currency detivatves Ei7 0 508,850 A5 1,052 1,184,598 10047 (13, 566)
Forwads. w5 14373 157 1052 43,519 585 (184}
Fareign echenge swip A55, 140 357655 20,086 - 862,911 1530 (7,048}
Futusis 8T 1157 - - 1,704 - -
Cptons 347 133635 80 - TR424 1,526 16,754)
Othier derivatives 134,230 A m - 139,831 1472 (1,237
Eqasty options purchased B2, «r - - 63,000 344 -
Egety optans wiities 6.0 ar - - LER = [265)
Commedity tading twaps 10,601 34T ] - 13,538 (RFL] 51
Egsty svaps 41 135 nr - 353 - 221}
Falr value hedge derivaties
Curmency servatmes - - a3 - B - 111}
Foreign eechange swips. - - ] - B0 - [111]
Cash flew hedge derivatives
Interest rate derivatioes - - 1RE3 Mo 3,588 46 -
Inteest rate onags - - LRI i 3,585 L -
Detrvatives managed in
eomjunction with financial
Instrumenits designated st FUTPL
Intevesd rate dedmalives 19 7 3450 = o, 6dad m 1]
Imerest rate swagd L1 @57 3,486 - 4,544 (i1 I
Cutenoy derd e - n 530 - 632 - (k2]
Fareign exchenge swips - T 530 - 63 - (7]
Tatsl 1348104 13390 1204981 6721 3867807 13,350 127,262}

Theere was no ineffectve portion of cash flow hedges during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021
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The ceedit risk weighted amounts in tespect of these derivatiees are as Tollows:
et a1
Defaudt rk weighted asseis of counterparios 1,500 3,627
Inferest rate derivatves 137 138
Currency derivative 1,242 3,048
Other derwvatives 121 440
Coiedit valuation adpestment ik wiighled avets 2187 1,382
Tatal 3,687 5,009
The Group has calculated the esposure of dervalives according 10 the Notice of the Measwies on Delaull Risk
Weighted Assets of Counterparties in Respect of Dervalives and the related requirements issued by the CHIRC.
Thiese amaunts have taken the effects of bilsteral netting arrangements inte aocount. The sk welghted amounts in
réipect af dervatives are caleulated in sccesdance with the Admanistrative Measues an Capetal of Commaereial Banks
{Prenissanal) ssued by the CHEC . The armounts within the scope approved by the CRIRC o Aped 2004 are caleulated
using the imernal Ratings-Based Approach, and the Weighted Approach s adopted 10 caloulate those that are nol
eligibke Tor the Internal Rabirgs-Based approach
{g) Fair value information

L]

Methods of determining fair value of financlal Instruments

A number of the Group's accounting policies and dsclosure requinements stipulate the measurement of fair values,
Tor both financial and noneTinancial assets and liabilities,

The Graup has established & control framewerk to govern the measurernent af fair values, This includes a vatuation
team that takes the mspuhyhlrty for overseeing all significamt taer value measurements Indudinq the three levels of
Tair values.

The valuation team regularly revews significant unobservable mputs and valuation adjustments. IF third party
infarmation, such as bioker guotes or pricing services, |s used 10 determine fawr valuee, then the valuation team
assesses the evidence obrtained from the third parties 1o suppon the concluson that such valuation meets the
requirements of IFRSs, inchuding the classification of levels in the fair value hieranchy,

Whan measuring the fair value of an assat or a liability, the Group uses observable market data s far as possinle.
Fair values are categoeised inio ditferant levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs wed in the valuation
techniques.

The bevel in which fain valug measurement is categanied i determined by the level of the fain value heerarchy of the
owest level of mput that is significant lo the entire fair value measurement. The levels are defired 8 Tollaws:

- Level 1 inputs unadjusted quoted prices in active matkes that are observable st the measurement date for
identical assets ar Bahilities;

- Level 2 inputs: othor than quoted prces included in level | inputs that e enher directly of mdiectly
oberable for underhying sssets or Habilties inputs;

Lewel 3 inpuls: inputs that are unobserishle foe assels or liabdties.
The Group recognises transfers among levels of the fair value hiararchy when they ooour,

The Group's assets and kabifities measured afl fair value are measwed on 4 recurming bass. The Group does not have
assets nor lakdlities measured a1 lair vadue on 8 non-recurting bas
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60. Risk management ot

{g) Fair value information feantinued)

{ii}  Assets and liabilities held at the end of reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The following tables present the fair value information and the far value hierarchy, at the end ol the reparting
poriad, al the Group's aitets and llabilities which are masdured a1 fale value an & recuiring basid st each eparting

data:
2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
Agseld
Fenancial ineestments measured st FYTPL 16,175 390,702 4,714 411,50
- Dabt securites 15,497 187,349 359 203,205
- Long position In precous metal contracis 108 - - 108
- Equity investments andg 392 3,493 4,379
= Fund investments 6 199,665 a8 200,539
= Wealth management products - 2,543 - 2,543
= Dher - 753 64 sy
Financial investments designated at FYTRL it ] 10,928 - 11,876
- Debt securities aa8 10,528 - 11,876
Derivatee financial assets - 18,671 - 18,61
Loans and advances to customers al FYTPL - 3 4,991 4554
Debt irmestments at FUTOCH 136,81 643,518 = 780,349
Loans and advances to customers at FyTOC = 514,051 100,430 614,481
Equity imvestments desgnated at FYTOC 3164 2,862 T.390 13418
Total 157,118 1,580,725 117525 1,855,378
Liabilities
Frnancial liabilities held for trading 17,877 330 - 18,247
- Funancid liahildies related to precious metal 17,634 - - 17.634
- Short position on bands 283 330 - 613
Feinancia! lialishbis desigrated a1 FVTPL 21,879 20,541 2647 45,067
= Placement of precious relal from financsal
natibuteens 14,170 - - 14,170
- Certificates of deposid sswed - 383 - 383
- Dbt securities iued 7,709 - - 7,704
= Other - 20,158 2,647 22,805
Derivatee financial labilites - 18,636 - 18,636
Total 39,796 39,507 2,647 81,950
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{a)
{iiy

Fair value information feontnued

Assets and liabilities held at the end of reporting pericd that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (camtinueall
2021
Laved 1 Lewal 2 Leval 3 Tatal
Basets
Famancial invostments measured at FyTL 20,517 292 B40 4,873 318,245
= Daebt decurithes 19,102 127.411 373 146 BRE
= Long padition in pregous metal confracts 132 - - 102
= Eqquily irvesimients f,180 F] 3717 4,909
~ Fund mmveitments 133 161,865 T2 162,770
- Wealth management products - 2,396 - 2,396
= Dther - 1.175 rd 1,182
Ferancial incestments dedignated &1 FYTPL 1,022 28.856 - 29,878
= Debl securilies 1,022 28,856 - 29,878
Dervative financial assets - 23,390 - 23,390
Loans and advances 1o custemers at PYTPL - - 1.281 T.281
Debt investrents a1 FUTOC) 127,847 508,191 - 636,018
Loans and advances 1o custames at FYTOCH - 431,291 56,713 488,004
Equity investrments dessgnatiesd al FWTOC) 2,264 - 4, TIE 6,995
Takal 154%,640% 1,284,577 73,590 1,509,831
Liakilities
Financial liabilities heold for trading 16,832 g% - 17,017
= Fimancial liabfities related 1o pracious metal 16, 404 - - 16,406
- Shan pesition on bonds 426 185 - G611
Funancial liskihities designated af FYTPL 19,569 19.02E B, 147 46,744
- Facement of precicus metal from financial
it lsons 19,506 - - 11,596
= Cortilicatey of deposit iviued - a7 - 17
- Dbt securities Houed 7,600 - - 7,600
— Diher 373 18,651 B 47 27T
Derivatree financial Fabilitees - 27,263 - 27 282
Tatal 36,431 46,493 B,147 91,043

Dunng the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no significant tansfers of financial instruments
tetween Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy
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60. Risk management contmwed)

{g) Fair value information rcartnued)

fii}  Assets and liabilities held at the end of reporting period that are measured at Talr value on a recurring
basis fcomnned)

(1) Basis of determining the market prices for recurring fair valve measurements categorised as Level I

Bloombeng et are used for finanoal matruments wilth quoted prces n an active maticel

{2)  Valuation technigues wsed and the qualitative information of key parameters for recurring fair value
measurement categorised as Level 2

Fair walue of RMB denominated bonds whose value s available on China Bond website an the valuation date
is measured wing the latest available valuation resulis.

Fair walue af foreign cumency bonds without quoted peices in an active maekel is messuned by using Lhe
comprehensive valuations issued by Bloomberg, etc,

Fair value of foreign eachange forwards contracts in dermative finamclal instruments is measured by
discounting the differences betwean the contract prices and markel future prices of the loseign exchange
forwards contracts. The discaunt rates used are the applicable AME denominated pwap yield curve as at the
end of the reporting petiad.

Fabr value of opion contracts such as foreign exchange options, commodity options and equity oplions is
measured by using the Black-Schelos model, based on market data such as sigk-froe interest rate, undarlying
market prices and price volatility of foreign exchange, commadities, and equity confract. The above market
data vied are quoted price in an actve market, provided by Bloomberg, Refinitiv, Wind and other market
infarmation providers.

Fart value af inlerest rate wapd, 1urri|;|1 wichange veraps, and non-opbon commodily contracty in dervale
financal instrements is measured by discounting the espected receivable or payable amounts under the
msumplion that these dwaps had boen terminated at the ond of the fepoiting peviod, The ditoownt rates
uted are the related currency donomenated swap yisld cures a4 at the ond of reparing perind.

Observable guaoted price in marketl 3 wsed a5 the basis of determining the value of equity Imvestments
measured a1 FYTRL, investment funds and wealth mansgement products.

Thee fair value of discourted bills a1 FYTCCH and at FYTPL in the Chinese mainland i3 measured based on
the rate of mdiscounted bills anrounced by the Shanghal Commeicial Paper Exchange Corporation Ltd
The Group uses 10-day average dagount rate as the bagis for calculating the yahise of discounted bills; or
is measured by discounted cash flow approach. The discount rates used are determined by factors such as
credil rating of the loan customer provided by 58P, Moody's or Fitch, customer industry, term to maturity of
the loan, loan cutrency and the isseer credit spread

The Fasr value of equaty investments designated a8 FYTOCT is meatwed based on the recent transacton price
of by uiing the comprehensive valuations on Bloombeng.

The far value of cerificaies of deposit msued s measured by wsing the compeehensive valuations on
Bloomberg

The fawr walue of “Other” wnder financial wvestments measured at FYTFL i measured based on the net asset
walues

The fair value af other Iinancial llabdities designated a1 FVTPL i measured based an the nel adsel values of
thie funds, determaned with referénce to observable (quated) prices of underlying (nvestment portfolie and
adpatments of related expenses.
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60. Risk management jonnmea)

{g) Fair value information fcontioued)

i} Assets and liabilities held at the end of reporting pericd that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (comtinueal

{3 Valwarion rechnigues wsed and the gualitative mformation of key parameters for recurring faie value

imeadureménts -ﬂdl‘dj‘dﬂ'ﬂ'r’ﬂ Lewel 32

Fair value
as at
31 December
2022 Waluation technigques Unobservable inputs
Equity investments designated 2,725 Markel approach Liquidiy discount
at FWToC
Equity investmenis desgnaled 101 Discounted cash fow Risk-adjusted discount
at FTog approach rate, cash flow
Equity mvestments dessgnated 4,564 MNet assel value approach  Met assets, Nguidity
at FWToci drscount
Loans and advances to customears 4991  Discounted cash flow Risk-anjusted discount
at FYTPL approach rate
Loans and advances to customers 100,430 Discounted cash flow Risk-agjusted discount
at FATOC approach rate
Financ:al invesiments measured
at FTPL
= Equity Investments 2,950 Market approach Liquidity discount
Equity investmants 528 Discounted cash flow Risk-adjusted discount
approach rate, cash flow
= Equity invesiments 15 Net asset value approach  Met assets, lgudity
descount
= Debt securities 359 Discounted cash flow Risk-adjusted discount
approach rate
= Fund iwastments 797 Net fund value approach Net asseds
= Furd imvestments 1 Market approach Liguidity discount
= Other B4 Net fund value approasch Met assets
Financal liabdities designated at 2,647 Net fund value approach Met assets, liguidity
FYTPL discount
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60. Risk management jcnnmweal

{a)

fii}  Assets and liabilities held at the end of reporting pericd that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (comfinuved)

(3 Valvarion techmigues used and the gualitative infarmation of key paramelters for recurring faie value

Fair value information (eostnuedr

measurements catégarnsed as Lewvel 2 (continuedl

Fanr value
as at
31 December
2021 Valuason technigues Unobsarvable inputs
Equity mvesiments designated at BT3  Markel appreach Ligquildiy discaunt
FTOC!
Equity mvestmenis desipnated at 3653 Met assel value approach  Net assets, lguidity
FTOC discount
Loans and -advances to customers 7.281 Discounted cash flow Aisk-adjusted discount
at FTPL approach rale
Loans and advances to cistomers 56,713 Discounted cash flow Risk-adjusted disoount
at FWToCl approach rate
Financsal imvestments measured «t
FVTPL
- Equity investments 3481 Market approach Liquidity discount
- Equity investments 12 Market approach (Price-to-  Liquidity discount
Book Hatia)
= Equity investments 108 Discounied cash Mow Risk-adjusted discount
approach rate, cash flow
= Equity investments 15 Net assed value apgroach  Met assets, liquidity
discount
= Debt sacunties 373 Discounted cash flow Risk-adjusted discount
approach rale
= Fund investments 767 Net fund value approach Net assels
= Fund invastments 5 Market approach Liquidity discount
= Dither 7 Markaet appioach Ligquidity discount
Finangial liabilities designated at BB4  Market approach Liquidity discount
FYTRL
Financial liabilities designated at 7483 Net fund value approach  Net assets; liquidity
FYTPL discount
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60. Risk management ionmmed)

{g)
{iiy

Fair value information fcontinued)
Assets and liabilities held at the end of reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (camtinueal

3

Valwarion rechnigues wied and the gualitative information of key paramerers for recurring fade value

medsurements calegorised as Lewel 3. (confinued)

n

Valuation of fnancial instruménts with spnificant unabservable inputs

The follewing tables show the movements from the beginning balances to the ending balances for

Lewel 3 financial instruments:

Loans and  Loans and Equity
Fimancial advantes to  advanted te  irvestments
imvettments  cuttomers  cuitomest  detignated
Auiety, =~ MFVIEL AUFVIRL  BCFVTOCE  aRAVTOCL Tedal
A% 1 harudry 2021 4,879 7.181 56,113 4,726 73,508
Praht or loss
= b profit o ot {14 [366) 744 - 364
- I ather compreheraae inCome - - (o7 51 (58}
Addition lor the yeat 1,041 B5 196,298 2,527 192,951
Disposals or setfiement an muurity (1,147) (2036 [153,218) {128) (156,530
Traraler oul of beveld 3 [145) - - - [145)
Exchange differance o il = 15 M
At 31 December 2‘_!]22 4,71 4,991 'I!P),I]!I ?.3911 II'{.E!E
Total unrealmed gans and ke included
In 1k enmsobdmed statemend af praft
of lees far steets beld at the end of the
reporting perind iy (366 & - [280)
Loars and Lo and Eoudy
Financial  advances to advenoes lo evestments
wesiments  customens  pustemers desgnated
Basarg At FVTRL a1 FVTFL an VoL VIO Tor
A1 hanuary 2021 FA Y 6,856 dd 289 5.064 58938
Frafit ee less
- I prafit o b EEL] 187 1365 - .am
- bn nbher compiehensse intome - = a8 1050 1.04E
Addition lox the year 1832 143 118,229 il 120,925
Dispedals or settisment an maluriy 6R) - (107,218, {2.158) (109,484}
Exchange difference 43 151 - a9 93
A2 31 Decamber 2021 A 819 1 56,713 4,726 13,555
Total uneealised gans and lsses induded
in the corsobdated statement of prafit
of logs Far agsets held at the end of the
reposting periad 335 187 - - hlE
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60. Risk management jonnmed

{g) Fair value information feantinved)

(i}  Assets and liahilities held at the end of reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basls fcomtinuedl

(3 Valwation techmiques wied and the gualitative information of key parameters for recurring faie value
mediurements categorited as Level 2 (continued)

N Valuation of finamcial instrumeants with significant unobsenabis mputs feantinuad)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 2022 2021

Balance as at 1 January 147 5,549
In prafit ar o {142} 470
Addition for the year o5 3,105
Disposals and settlerment on maturity [5.6495) {8463
Exchange difference 241 217
Batance as at 31 Decomber 2,647 8147

Total unrealised gains and losses indhuded in the
consolidated statemant of profit or loss for latdities
hedd af the end of the reporling period a8 419

During the years ended 31 Decomber 2022 and 2021, there were no sgnificant translers amang
different levels Tor financial instruments which are measwied a7 fair value on & recurnng basis

During the years ended 31 Decamber 2022 ard 2021, the Group did not change the valuation
technogues for the financial assats and lRabildies divclosed above which are measused at fair value on
a recurring basis.
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60.

(g}
il

Risk management iontmed

Fair value information reantnued

Financial assets and financial labilities that are not measured at fair value

i

Financial Assets

The Growip™s financal assets that are not measured at fasr value mainky include balances with central banks,
balances and placements with banks and other financial instriuteons, amounis held under fesale agresments,
loans and advances to custorners ot amdd sed Cost and Bwestiments ol smorlised cost.

Except for loans ame advances measured at amortised cost and debt instrument investments measured at
amprtised cost, most of the financial assets mature within 1 year, and their carrying values approsimate their
tabr values. Loans and advances are stated at amartised costs less allowances for impairment |oss (Note 22)
Loans and advances at amortised cosl are masthy priced at floating rates with reference 1o Loan Pime Rates
[UPRs) and ropriced at leasd annually, and impairment allowances are made 10 reduce the carrymg amounts
of impaired loans to estmated ivcoverable amounts. Accordingly, the carrying valus of loans and advances is
clowe to their fair valus,

Debt investrmants meaured at amortsed cout are carrsed 8t amorhived o8t leo allowances lor impairment
Iosses, The falr vaive of the listed investiments & disclosed in MNate 23[b).

The carying walue, fait value and fair value hierarchy of debt investments at amortised cost nol measured at
fabr walue are lsted as below

The Lewel 1 fair value measurement s based on unadpted quoted praces in active markets wsing Bloombarg
elc. For Level I, the latest waluation results released by China Bond website are used 1o meaure Tair value of
bonds denominated in RMB. The Level 2 category also indudes Toreign currency bondy without actve quated
price, which ane measured using the publshed comprohensive vakuation by Bloomberg, The Lovel 3 fair value
is moasured using discourted cash flow valuabion technique
w1 o m

Larmying Carmrg
imouet  firwhe  lewll  leell L] ient  faade e intll  ned

T —————— T T B L L L L R T

L Tha abowe Timanoal anets do ror exclude inierest rrcsvable

Financial Liabilities

Financal kabilities that are not measured at fair value manly indude deposits from customers, amaunts due
to banks and other financial institutions, amounts sold undes repurchase agreements, and debts securities
issued by the Groun, The camying value of financial liabwlities approximate their fair value at the end of the
regoeting penod, except for the financial liabebities set out below:

n i
Lamyrg ]
wmguet Birwie  Lewll Ll Lewid oot Farmde el leal] i3
Juberdmaizd ber mand us axe - - HIE Em S -
\rgyteem dosd sty e ued INEN TMAE - T4 = 1HHE NEBG - VA .
Toadl ML TR = 1HME = MM W60 = TENE -

baiw T absorve Traranial kit o et e nlevead gagabile
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Material related party transactions
Material connected person information

Deetails of the Bank's major sharehabders and thelr parent companies are as Tallows:
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Material related party transactions ot
Material connected person information rcantinued

Details of the Bank's major sharehalders and their parent companies are as Tollows: (comtinpeal
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teee pid  MeMbythe  hhe  hedly 1o
Camgaty nive locatios daplal Corpiry  Cospasy  thedash  Baiven withthe Barw  Legal form  sepressmviuting
Cora (06D hoey By mum 15159864 1474 - e gmey Fumloldes  Lnesd i, M
Cigintion Listed Iamml bare, appering penl oy bty
i b e
Vageng, mpan and
ety of good: and
tethrolagy, rraenl
rosght ormariog e,
.
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61. Material related party transactions iconmmuea

{a)

Material connected person information jcartnued
Detaits of the Bank's major sharehalders and thels parent companies are as lollows: frontineed]
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B61. Material related party transactions contmuea!

{a)

Material connected person information rcantinued
The registered capital of the Group's refated parties as a1 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows

Hame of related party 2022 2021
MG RMETVG, 900,000,000  RMEAE,S00,000,000
CMENCL RME17,000,000,000 EMBT, 000,000,000
Shenzten Yan Qing Investment and Dewelopment Co,, L1d. R BE00,000,000 RMEED0 000,000
Shenzhen Chu Yuan Ineestiment and Develepment Co., Lid. RMBE00,000,000 RMB&00. 000,000
China Merchants Finance Investment Holgngs Ca, Lid, RMB7,T7E,000,000 EME7, 778000000
Best Winner investment Lid, USDS0,000 LEDS0.000
China Merchants Union (BYE0 Lemited USDED, D00 LD, D00
Chira Merchants Industry Development (Shenghen) Lid IS0 10,000, 000 LSD1Q 000,000
China Insdrante Secunty Fund Co, Lid RMA100,000,000 BB 100,000,000
Diajus Life Insuramoe Co., Lid AME30, 790,000,000 RNEAIT, 790 000,000
Ching COSCO Shipping Corparation Limited. REAE11,000,000,000 RMB1 1,000.000,000
China Ocean Shipping Co., Lid RM316,198,351,300 RMANE, 191,351,300
COSC0 Shipping (Guangzheu) Co., Lid, RME3,191,200,000 EMB3, 191 200,000
Guangrhou Haining Maritime Technolagy Censulting Ca,, Lid RRABSZ, 000,000 RMES2 000,000
COSC0 Shipping (Sharghal Co,, Lid. RMET, 298,941,000 EME, 358,941,000
COSCO Shipping Irvesimen) Holdings Co., Lid HEDS00,000, 000 HED50G, 000,000
Guahgehou Tr-Dynes Ol & Shippeng Ca., Lid. RME299,020,000 RMB299 020,000
Chira Communicatians Cortruction Group Limited. RMET 274,023,830 EMEZ, 274 023,830
China Communications Camtruction Company Limited RME16,165,711,425  RM3NE, 165,711,425

Shanghal Automadive Industry Corporation (Group)
SAIC Moter Corporation Limited

CMEIC

CMEFL

CME WLE

CMEM

CMEWM

CME Eutope 5.4

Clgna & CMB Asset Management Company Limited

RMB21,748,175,737
RMIB11,683,461,365
HKD4,129,000,000
RIAE12,000,000,000
HKID, 160,950,575
FME1, 310,000,000
RMES, 555,555,555
ELIRS0,000,000

A8 500,000,000

EMB21,749,175 737
RME11,683 461 365
HE D, 129,000,000
RE 12,000,000,000
HED, 160,950,575
RMET, 370,000,000
RMES, 00,000,000
EURSD, 000,000
AMB500, 000,000

The proportion of the Bank held by the largest sharehelder and the portion of the subsidiaries held by the

Bank
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A5 of 31 December 2022, other than those disclosed above, there were 142 companies that shared common
deurectors, supervisors and senlor management including their close family members with the Bank and they can

control or exercise significant influence over these companies (31 December 2021 265),
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61. Material related party transactions «ortruea

{b) Terms and conditions for related-party transactions
The Group enters imo trarsactions with refated parties in the ordmary cowrse of its banking business including
lending, investng, deposit taking, securities trading, prowidirg agency and trust services, and off-balance sheet
transactions. In the cpinign of the directors, the Group enters into such material relsted-party transactions undes
nonmal commaercial ferms, Interest rates on loans and deposits are set in accoedance with such benchmark rates as
PROC rates and LPR
I B . S _3021
Shart-term loans 3.65% to 3.80% 3.80% to 3.B5%
Medium fa long-tesm loans 3.65% to 4.65% 3.ED% 10 4 65%
Demand depasts 0.35% 0.35%
Tirma deposils 1.10% 1o 2.75% 1.10% 12 2.75%
Thede were no loans and advances granted to related parties that were eredit-impaired during the year (3021
Noneh.

{c) Shareholders and their related companies

The Bank's largest shareholder CMG and ity related companies held 29.97 % (2021: 29.97%) of the Bank's shares
a5 At 31 December 2022 (amang them 1304 % of the shares were directly held by CMENCL (2021 13.04%})

The Group's transactions and balances with CRSNCL and its telated companies are disclosed as follows

2022 2021
On-balance sheet!
= Placements with hanks ard ather financual institutions 2,000 -
- Amounis held under recale agreaments 4,589 13,967
= Loans and advances 1o cusiomers 40,772 42,645
~ Fanancial wrvestments 7.626 1,147
- Depesits fram banks and ather linancial institutions 20,726 19,755
- Deposits from customers 45,342 45 708
- Lease labilites 210 186
Off-balance sheet
= lrevocable guarantess 5,087 3,645
= Irrevacabie lettors of crodit ERL: 251
= Billi of acceptances 285 188
Interest incame 1,548 1,738
Interest expense {1.376) (1.559)
Het fee and commission income 1,027 669
Qperating sxpenses {177 {4
Other nat (expensesifincome {1a) 38
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61. Material related party transactions ot
{d) Companies that share common directors, supervisors or senior management
with the Bank {other than those disclosed in Note 81({c)) and they can control
or exercise significant influence over the companies
i 2ot
On-balance dhwst)
- Placsments with banks and sther financial institutions 2,277 -
- Armounty held under resale agreements 3,770 285
- Loans and sdvances fo cusiomerd 28,103 13,366
- Financiad mvestments el 595
= Deposis from banks and other financial institutions 4,346 21,356
- Placements from banks and ather financial nstitutions 6,047 -
- Deposns from customers 13,447 o6
- Lease habilities 65 13
Oli-balarce sheet:
- Inevocable guarantees 580 L
- |rrevocable letters of cedin [ da
- Bk ol acceptances - 235
Interest income 1,035 027
Interest sxponse [-I-?EI- 1384)
Mt T and commeiiion intome 133 273
Oiperating eapenie 274) {1,654
Other net {expenzesiincoms {129) 7
{e} Associates and joint ventures other than those disclosed in Mote 61(c)
2022 2021
On-batance sheat:
= Plagements with banks and other finarcial institutions 14,675 14,500
- Loans and advances 10 customans 6,548 6,044
~ Deposits from banks and other financial institutions BS6 1,251
- Depcsis from custoemers 3N 693
Off-balance sheet:
- lrrevocable guarantees - 8, 710G
Ingrest incoma 306 516
Interesl exponss {19) 23
Mot fee and commeizion income 2,458 1,695
Operating expenies (8] &)
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61. Material related party transactions icormmue

{f)} Other major shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Bank and
exercising significant influence over the Bank

2022 2021
On-balance sheat
— ameunts beld under resale agreemants - 359
- Loars and advances 10 cusiomens 27,070 17,654
- Fimancial ivestments 4,302 2,512
— Deposits from banks and other financal institutions 291 7,502
- Deposits from customens 14,872 19,704
- Lease labilites a0 a6
Off-balance sheet
lrevocable guaanteos B.511 7,895
— lmreyocable letters of credit 1,835 337
- Bills af acceplances 5,125 5,068
Interest incame M3 EE ]
Interest exponso 16332) {585}
Mot foe and commiszion income 2,243 1,411
Dpecating paparis {138) -
Other net expense {11 {1
{g) Subsidiaries
2022 2021
On-balance shest
- Balances with banks and other financal institutions 458 1,953
— Placements with banks and other financial institutions 32434 37,055
= Loars and advances 1o customens 1,396 -
= Financial investments 3415 1454
- Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 4,630 T.246
- Amounts sold under repurchase agreements - 816
— Deposits from custames 5,204 3,957
Dfi-balance sheet
- lwevocable guaantees L -
- lirevacable letters of oredit 4,599 1,958
- Bilk of acesptances 222 &1
Interest incame 943 1,124
Interes] expense {129} 1258)
Hat fee and commiision expenes {93} {1,294)
Operating eapenie (1,797) {9&)
Other net income 150 1"

Al significant balences and transactions between the Bank and s subsidisties have been eliminated in the
coniolidated financal staitements.
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B61. Material related party transactions iontmuea)
{h} Key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persans having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
contreling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including directors, supenisors and cupcutive officers
2022 2021
in thoutands in thauwands
Salaries and othar emolumonis 3B 249 39,264
Duserstionary banuses - 17,087
Shase-based payment [41,066) 17,312
Contributions 1o delmad contribution retrement whames ) - 567
Total [2.817) 68,230
The sbove share-based pagmiénts represent the estimated fair value of the share appreciation nghts granted (Mote
IHaliiiy) to senior management under the Bark's H share Apprecation Rights Scheme. The falr valve s measured
by wsing the Black-Scheles moded and acearding 1o the accounting policy &t oul in Note 4(17); and 1he amounts are
charged 1o the consolidated statement of profi o loss and other comprehensive income. As the share options may
expire without being exercised, the directors conuder the amounts dischosed are not represertative of actual cash
flows recaned of 1o be recewed by senlar managament
{iy Annuity scheme
Apait lrom the oblsgation Tor defined contributions to the annuily sehieme and normal banking lramsactions, na
clher transactions were conducted between the Group and the annuily scheme lor the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021,
62. Non-controlling interests
Hon-controfling nterests represent the nterests that the Group does not hold in the subsidianies, the Group doss
not have any subsidhary with skgnificant non-contralkng interests durng the reporting penod.
{a) Perpetual debt capital

CMB WLB, the Group's subsidiary, issved perpetual dobt of USS$170 million on 27 April 2017 and another perpetwal
dabt of U55400 million on 24 January 2018, CMB WLE redeamed the USDH 70 million perpetual debt issued in 2017
dumng the current year. Moverments of these perpetual debl capital are as follows:

Principal Distributions/Paid 'I'qtul
A1 1 lanuary 2033 3,636 - 1,636
Redemption in 2022 {1, 104) - {1.104)
Ditribiutions in 20232 - 202 202
Paod 0 2022 - {202} {202)
Exchange difference 255 - 255
A1 3 December 2032 2,787 - 1,787
S FI‘I_I'DCiEI!I DitributionwPaid _Inhll_
A1 1 January 20217 3,753 - 3,753
Deatribetoons in 2021 - 227 27
Paid i 2021 - 1227 220
Exchange difference Mn - n1n
A1 31 December 2021 3,636 o 1636

Thiste 1= o maturity Tor the imstruments and the payments of distibution can be cancelled 3t the dacretion of
the sssuer. Cancelled mterest is non-cumulative, There s no contractual obligation 1o delser cash to other parties.
Dueing the years ended 31 Decemmber 2022 and 2027, CWME VLB ded not cancel the payment of distribution and the
comesponding amounts were paid to the perpetual debt holders accordingly.
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63. Transfers of financial assets

The Group enlers 916 trandactions in the normal coufse of busmess by which it transfers recognised Ffinaneial
assets o third parties o0 to special pupose vehicles. In some cases, such transfers may give rse 1o full ar parsal
derecogniticn of the financial assets concerned, and in other cases the transfers may not gualify far derecognition as
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these transferred assets. As a result, the Group continues
1o recognise these transferred asseds,

Securitisation of credit assets

The GQroup enters into securitsation transachons in the normal course of basiness by which it ransfers credit assets
to special purpose trusts which in turn issue asset-backed sequrities to Investors. The Group may acquire certain
investmenis at the subordinated wranche feved and accordingly, may retain parts of the rsks and rewards of the
transferred crodit assets. The Group would determ ne whether or not 1o derecognise the associated ofedit assets by
evaluating the sxtent 1o which it retains the risks and rewards of the assets

With respect to the credit assets that are sequrithed and qualified for derecognition, based on the criteria et out in
Hote 4(5), the Group devecognives the tramsfered credit assets in their entirety, During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group transferred loams amounting 1o RME17.362 million (2021: AMBSSCEE million] in securitisation
arrangements, a3 wall as substantially all the risks and rewards asscoiated with the loans, The full amount of wch
securitised lnans were then derecognised.

In the cases that the Group has nether transferred ner etained substantially all the rake and rewards af the
transterred credit assets, and for which the Group retaing confral, the Group recognises an aised in the consolidated
staternent al Tinancial poution 1o the extent of the Group's continuing involverment in the translerred awsets, the
remaining portion is derecognised  The extent of the Group's contirung invalvement is the exent of the risks and
rewands exposed by the Group 1o the value changes of the transferred assets. For the year ended 31 December
2022, there were no new securilned credil assets in which the Giowd retained e conlinuisy irvolvemesnt (2021
AMB15942 millien). The carnyng amount of the continuing inwabrement asset and the corespoanding continuing
mwalvermnant llabdity, are recognised in other assets and other habidiies o the consofidated statement af financal
pedition, Amaunting 1o RMBS,274 milllan a3 a1 31 December 2022 [31 Decomber 2021 AMBS, 274 mlliank.

Transfers of credit assets to third parties

Durng the year of 2022, in addition to seeuritisatien ransactions, the Group translerred eredit assels amounting to
RAMBES9S millien (2021 RMBSAE million) 1o independent third parties directly during the year ended 31 December
2022 The Group determered that these transferred assets guablied for full derecognition, based on the cntena set
oul in Note 4[5), snce the Group has trensferred substanually all ihe risks and rewards of the transferred assets to
e counleparties

Repurchase transactions and securities lending transactions

Transfesred financial assets that do not gualify for derscognition mainky include debt securities, discoumed hbills held
by counterparties a3 collateral unider repurchate agreements and securitses lent 1o counterpartbes under securities
lending agreerrents. The counterpartios ate allowed to sefl o repledge those securities sald under agreaments 1o
repurchase in the absence of default by the Group, but has an obligation to teturn the securities al the maturity
of the contract The Group determines that i1 retains substantialy all the risks and rewards of these securities and
therefore does not derecognise them. Instead, it recognises a financlal liability for cash received as coflateral.

409/433



N4

Chinas Merchans Bank Chapter Vill Financial Statemants

Annual Report 2022 (H share)

B4. Interests in unconsolidated structured entities

{a)

The scope af the Group's comolidated financial statements 14 delermined on a contral basis. Control means that
th (rvestior has the power ever the investes, enjoys vmable returns by participating in the relevant activities of the
investes, and has the ability 1o use the power Lo affect the amount of 15 return.

The Group has the power over structured entities. and the other invesiors have no substantive nghts. In the
meantime, the Group is entithed 1o vanable returns, and will consolidate entities, in which the Group has the right
to affect the amount of ity refurm

In addition to the above-mentioned structured entitios thal have been included m the Group's contolidated financal
staternonts, the Group's equity infarmation on structured antitios which i nol covered by the conelidated Tinancial
statermnents o ai follows

Interests in the structured entities sponsored by third parties institutions

The Group holdd interesls in some structured entitied sponsoned by third parties through inyestments i the wnits
psued by ihews droctured entitees. Such interests include inwestmenis in wealth management products, asset
managemant schemes, trust benedicary rights, assete-backed securmses ard fund imvestments, and the Group does
nal cansolidate thete struclured entities. The puipode of the Group holding these structured entities 5 o obtain
investment iocme, capital appreciation or bath.

The follewing tables set out an analysis of the balance of interests held by the Group in the structured entities
sponscred by third parfies and an analysis of the line tems in the consalidated siatement of financial postions as
at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 in which assets are recognised relating to the Group's intenests in
struciured enfities sporsored by third parties:

-————— zm
Balance
Dbt
Financlal  inwettments Debt
investments  at amortised  investments Mazimum
IV R ativiod Jotst _ xpasim
Bavel marugemen| shemes - 48,362 - 48,362 48,362
Trust beneficiary rights - 17,954 - 37,954 37,954
Met-backed secuntaes B35 1,031 m 1,035 FAE
Fund investmenty BEE AN - - 18301 186 311
Wiralth managemend products e - - 1mg 1e
Toital 187,256 87,347 170 T 74,773
. 01
_ Salace
Deebl
Frantial  irvekimeal Dbt
mwitments  at amorised ifveitments Muaxenum
. MFVIRL hiia ALFVIOC) Towd g
Ml minagement ichemes - 67432 - &7,431 67,432
Trus? beneficlary rghti - EER AN - M ECR AT
Daset-backed securibies 2,537 207 1,208 4,049 4049
f_up!! in_v_!-.!alﬂ_mh HF.'I-H - - I!5-_E,I!I2_ 155\._112
Tailal 138,649 104,851 1,205 261,705 151,705

The maumuom éxposures of investments i funds, trust beneboary nghls, asset management schemes, wealth
management products and asset-backed securities are the balance of these assets.
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64. Interests in unconsolidated structured entities cornues

(b} Interests in the unconsolidated structured entities sponsored by the Group

The unconsolidated structured entities sponsored by the Group include non-principal-guaranteed wealth
management products, funds and assets management schemes. The nature and purpose of these strectured entities
are to generate fees from managing assets on behalf of investors. These structured entites are financed through
the ssuance of ivestment praducts to investors, Interest of the Group In these unconsolifated structured entitses is
Iimited 1o fees and cammissions charged for management senices provided

A at 3V December 2022, the amount of unconsolidated non-prncipal-guarantesd wealth management products
sponsaned by the Group was RMB2.66T 663 milllon (31 Deternber 2021 RMEZ 777,537 million]

As at 31 December 2022, the amount of unconsolidated funds sporsored by the Group was RMB1,219,793 million
{31 December 2021: RME1,200,150 milliank

A3 at 31 Decembor 2022, the amount of unconsolidated asset management schemes spomared by the Group was
RMB183,332 mullion (31 Decombsor 2021 AMBT T4 555 miliont

As st 31 December 2022, amounts held under resale sgreements ransacted between the Group and the nan-
principal-guaranteed wealth mansgement products sponsored by the Group were nil (31 December 2021
AMBI0EIE millian]. The above transaction: were conducted in accardance with normal busimeis terms and
condilions

As gt 31 December 2022, the amount ef urconsolidated non-principal-guaranteed wealth management products
haeld by the Group was RMBZ 433 million (31 December 2021 RMEBZ_ 396 milion)

As at 31 December 2022, the amaunt of unconsclidated Funds held by the Group was RMBIA, 228 million (31
Decemmtsar 2021, AMBE,E58 million),

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amount ol unconselidated non-peincipal-guarantesd wealth
managemaent products sponsoced by the Graup tramdfered 1o investiments measured at amenised cost of the Group
wat AMBTY, 143 midlion (2021 RM311,004 milliaa).

[uring the year ended 31 December 2022, the amcunt of fee and commission income the Group received from such
neneprincipal-guaranieed wealth management products was RMBIT,037 million (2021: RME11,998 million)

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2022, the amount of fee and commizson income the Group received frem such
unconsalidated funds was RMBS, 627 million (2021: AMBL.223 million),

During the year énded 31 December 2022, the ameunt ol fee and commission income the Group received from such
uncansolidated asset management schemes was RMBS26 milllan (2021 RMBBE2T millon)

The total amount of non-principal-guaranteed waalth management products sponsored by the Group after 1 January
2022 with @ maturity date before 31 December 2023 was RMBE20, 318 million (2021: RMB1, 529 874 million),

65. Comparative figures

Certan comparstive ligunes in the notes have been re-presented 1o conform 1o presentation o curment year,
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
17.48 16.75 16.06 18.06 21.01
16.01 14.86 14.79 15.78 17.93
16.64 15.81 15.44 17.10 19.49
16.16 15.60 15.81 18.05 19.10
100
2022 2022 2022 2022 10 2022 11 2022 12
20.59 20.09 20.83 21.01 20.58 19.74
19.94 19.50 20.17 20.36 19.28 18.94
20.32 19.88 20.44 20.66 19.90 19.35
100

19.59 2023

100
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the shareholders of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financia statements of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. (the "Bank")
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group™) set out on pages 168 to 315, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internationa Standards on Auditing ("ISAS'). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters
(continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected credit loss allowance of loans and
advances to customers at amortised cost,
debt investments at amortised cost, and
financial guarantees and loan commitments
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We identified expected credit loss ("ECL")
allowance of loans and advances to customers
at amortised cost, debt investments at
amortised cost and financial guarantees and
loan commitments as a key audit matter due to
the materiality of these items baance and

significant management  judgement and
estimates involved in deriving the ECL
estimates.

As at 31 December 2022, as set out in Note 22
(@), the Group reported loans and advances to
customers at amortised cost of RMB 5,443,438
million and expected credit loss alowances of
RMB 255,759 million; in Note 23(b), the
Group reported debt investments at amortised
cost of RMB 1,599,139 million and expected
credit loss allowances of RMB 43,682 million;
in note 42, the Group reported the expected
credit loss allowances of financial guarantees
and loan commitments of RMB 20,217 million.

Key judgements and estimates in respect of the
measurement of ECLs include: the significant
management judgement and estimates of model
design and its application; the identification of
a significant increase in credit risk (SICR); the
identification of credit impairment events; the
determination of inputs used in the ECL model,
as well as the determination of the forward-
looking information to incorporate.

Principal accounting policies and significant
accounting estimates and judgement applied in
determining the expected credit loss
allowances of loans and advances to customers
a amortised cost, debt investments at
amortised cost and financial guarantees and
loan commitments are set out in Notes 4(5) and
5(4) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit proceduresin relation to the expected
credit loss allowances of loans and advances to
customers at amortised cost, debt investments
at amortised cost and financial guarantees and
loan commitments included the following:

We understood management’'s process and
tested the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls across the processes relevant to
the ECL estimation of the Group. These
controls included the development, validation
and review of the ECL model; the controls
over the model data input, including manual
input controls and automated transmission
controls; the automated controls over the ECL
model calculation process; the controls over the
identification of SICR indicators and credit
impairment events.

We assessed whether the ECL model applied
by the Group has covered all the exposures that
should be taken into consideration. In respect
of different portfolios of loans and advances to
customers at amortised cost, debt investments
at amortised cost and financial guarantees and
loan commitments, we involved our internal
modelling specialist to assist usin assessing the
appropriateness of the Group’s methodology of
ECL modeling. We reviewed relevant
documents and evaluated the appropriateness
and application of the ECL model.

With the support of our internal modelling
specialist, we assessed the key definitions and
application of parameters and assumptions in
the ECL model. This included assessing stage
determination, probability of default, loss given
default, exposure a default and forward-
looking information. We selected samples to
check whether the calculation in the ECL
model is consistent with the methodology. We
selected samples to conduct credit reviews in
order to assess the appropriateness of the
significant  judgements made by the
management regarding the occurrence of SICR
and credit impairment events, and whether the
identification of such events are proper and
timely. In addition, we selected samples and
tested their data input into the ECL model to
evaluate the completeness and accuracy of the
data input. For loans and advances at amortised
cost and debt investments at amortised cost at
stage 3, we selected samples to test the
reasonableness of future cash flows from the
borrowers estimated by the Group, including
the expected recoverable amount of collateral,
to assess whether there were material
mi sstatements in credit loss allowances.
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Key Audit Matters
(continued)

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Consolidation of Sructured Entities

We identified consolidation of structured
entities as a key audit matter since significant
judgement is applied by management to
determine whether or not the Group has control
over certain structured entities.

The structured entities of the Group include
wealth management products, asset
management schemes, trust beneficiary rights,
assets-backed securities and funds, as disclosed
in Note 64 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As described in Note 4(1), the consolidation of
structured entities is determined based on
control. Control is achieved when the investor
has power over the investee, the investor is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and the
investor has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns. When performing the
assessment on whether the Group has control
over the structured entities, the Group
considers several factors including, the scope
of its decision-making authority over the
structured entities, the rights held by other
parties, the remuneration for managing the
structured entities and the Group’s exposure to
variability of returns from interests that it holds
in the structured entities.

Our audit procedures in relation to
consolidation of structured entities included the
following:

We understood and tested the design and
operating effectiveness of key controls over the
management process in determining the
consolidation scope for interests in structured
entities as well as understood the purpose for
setting up the structured entities.

We reviewed the relevant contract terms, on a
sample basis, and assessed the power of the
Group over the structured entities, the rights of
the Group to variable returns of the structured
entities and the ability of the Group to use its
power to affect its return, and evaluated
management judgement on whether the Group
has control over the structured entities and the
concluson about whether or not the
consolidation criteria are met.
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Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financia
Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give atrue and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the Bank determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether dueto fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Bank are responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Bank either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statementsasa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors of the Bank.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors of the Bank’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evauate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financia information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report is Shi Chung Fai.
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Ddoitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2023
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